
 
 

Santa Cruz County  
Regional Transportation Commission 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

Thursday, August 03, 2023 
9:00 a.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Accessibility: See last page for details. 
En Español: Para servicios de traducción al español, diríjase a la última página. 

Agendas Online: https://sccrtc.org/meetings/commission/agendas/  
 
 COMMISSION MEMBERSHIP  

Caltrans (ex-officio)     Scott Eades 
City of Capitola      Alexander Pedersen 
City of Santa Cruz     Sandy Brown 
City of Scotts Valley     Randy Johnson 
City of Watsonville     Eduardo Montesino 
County of Santa Cruz     Felipe Hernandez 
County of Santa Cruz     Justin Cummings 
County of Santa Cruz     Zach Friend 
County of Santa Cruz     Manu Koenig 
County of Santa Cruz     Bruce McPherson 
Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District  Kristen Brown 
Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District  Vanessa Quiroz-Carter 
Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District  Mike Rotkin 

 
 

The majority of the Commission constitutes a quorum for the transaction of 
business. 

 
1. Roll call 

In-Person Meeting 
Board of Supervisors Chambers 
701 Ocean Street, Room 525 

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 

Remote Participation (see page 5 for more information) 
RTC Zoom 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85406910971 
Dial-in: +1 564-217-2000  

Webinar ID: 854 0691 0971 
 

https://sccrtc.org/meetings/commission/agendas/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85406910971


RTC Agenda         August 03, 2023 2 
 

  
2. Consider AB2449 “Just Cause” requests 

3. Additions or deletions to consent or regular agendas 

4. Oral communications  

Any member of the public may address the Commission on any item within 
the jurisdiction of the Commission that is not already on the agenda. The 
Commission will listen to all communication, but in compliance with State law, 
it may not take action on items that are not on the agenda. 

 
Speakers are requested to state their name clearly so that it can be accurately 
recorded in the minutes of the meeting. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

All items appearing on the consent agenda are considered to be minor or non-
controversial and will be acted upon in one motion if no member of the RTC 
or public wishes an item be removed and discussed on the regular agenda. 
Members of the Commission may raise questions, seek clarification or add 
directions to consent agenda items without removing the item from the 
consent agenda as long as no other Commissioner objects to the change.  
 
MINUTES 
5. Approve draft minutes of the June 1, 2023 Regional Transportation 

Commission meeting 

6. Accept draft minutes of the June 13, 2023 Elderly & Disabled 
Transportation Advisory Committee meeting 

7. Accept draft minutes of the June 15, 2023 Interagency Technical 
Advisory Committee meeting 

POLICY ITEMS 

8. Accept State and Federal Legislative Updates 

PROJECTS and PLANNING ITEMS 

9. Approve authorizing the Executive Director to execute a contract with 
Community Bridges to provide Wheelchair Accessible Vehicle (WAV) 
services (Resolution) 

10. Accept San Lorenzo Valley Schools Complex Circulation and Access 
Study Final Report  

11. Accept Work Plan for the 2050 Regional Transportation Plan  



RTC Agenda  August 03, 2023 3 

12. Approve rejection of bids and adopt revised Scope of Work and
Specifications for the Phase 2 Debris Removal and Erosion Repair
Project along the Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line (SCBRL)

BUDGET AND EXPENDITURES ITEMS 

13. Accept status reports on Transportation Development Act (TDA)
revenues for June and July 2023

14. Accept status reports on Measure D revenues for June and July 2023

15. Approve Amendments to the Fiscal Years (FYs) 2022-23 and 2023-24
Budget & Work Program (Resolution)

ADMINISTRATION ITEMS 

16. Accept Fiscal Year 21/22 Measure D Annual Report

INFORMATION/OTHER ITEMS 
17. Accept monthly meeting schedule

18. Accept correspondence log

19. Accept letters from RTC committees and staff to other agencies

a. June 1, 2023 Letter to Steve McShane, Chair of the Central Coast
Community Energy Policy Board re: Requesting Collaboration on
New Bike Voucher Program

20. Accept information items -none

REGULAR AGENDA 

21. Commissioner Reports – oral reports

22. Director’s Report – oral report
(Guy Preston, Executive Director)

23. Caltrans Report

a. Santa Cruz County project updates

24. Highway 1 Construction Update – oral report
(Sarah Christensen, Senior Transportation Engineer)



RTC Agenda         August 03, 2023 4 
 

 
25. PUBLIC HEARING 9:30 a.m.: Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan for 

the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG), the 
Council of San Benito County Governments (SBtCOG), the Santa Cruz 
County Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) and the 
Transportation Agency for Monterey County (TAMC) 
(Shannon Munz, Communications Specialist) 
 
a. Staff Report 
b. Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan 
c. RTC Public Participation Plan Practices 

26. Receive presentation from County Health Services Agency-Public Health 
Division on Safe and Active Transportation Programs  
(Theresia Rogerson and Arnold Shir, Santa Cruz County Health Services 
Agency)  

 
27. Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP) Grant Funding Master 

Agreement, Contract Award for Professional Engineering and 
Environmental Services, and Amendment to the Measure D-Rail 
Category 5-Year Program of Projects for the Zero Emission Passenger 
Rail & Trail Project between Pajaro Junction and Santa Cruz along the 
Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line   
(Riley Gerbrandt, Transportation Engineer) 
 
a. Staff Report 
b. Resolution - TIRCIP Master Agreement  
c. Resolution - Professional Engineer Services Contract  

 
28. Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) Call for Projects  

(Amy Naranjo, Transportation Planner) 

a. Staff report 
b. Funding Programs 
c. Draft Evaluation Criteria 

29. Review of items to be discussed in closed session 
 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

30. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 
(Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4)) 
Initiation of Litigation: Two cases 

  



RTC Agenda         August 03, 2023 5 
 

 OPEN SESSION 

31. Report on items discussed in closed session 

32. Next meetings 

The next RTC meeting is scheduled for Thursday, September 07, 2023 at 9:00 
a.m. at the Scotts Valley City Council Chambers, 1 Civic Center Drive, Scotts 
Valley, CA 95066. The next Transportation Policy Workshop meeting has been 
cancelled. 

HOW TO REACH US 
Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
1101 Pacific Avenue, Suite 250  Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
phone: (831) 460-3200 / email: info@sccrtc.org 
 
LIVE BROADCASTS  
Meetings of the RTC are broadcast live by Community Television of Santa Cruz. More 
information about channels and schedule can be found online 
(www.communitytv.org) or by calling (831) 425-8848. 
 
AGENDA PACKETS 
Complete agenda packets and all documents relating to items on the open session 
are posted online at https://sccrtc.org at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. Sign 
up for E-News updates at sccrtc.org/about/esubscriptions/ 

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Items on the agenda: Written comments received by 9:00 a.m. on Wednesday before 
the meeting will be posted to the RTC website by 2:00 p.m. that same afternoon to 
allow time for Commissioner review. The opportunity to make oral comments is 
offered prior to the discussion period of each item. 
Items not on the agenda: Written comments on topics within the RTC’s jurisdiction, 
but not on the agenda, that are received during the monthly correspondence period 
will be posted to a public document. The correspondence period cut-off is 12:00 p.m. 
on the second Monday prior to the RTC meeting. A link to that document is provided 
in the Correspondence Log of that month’s meeting. The opportunity to make oral 
comments to the Commission on such topics is offered during Oral Communications. 

REMOTE PARTICIPATION 
The public may participate in the meetings of the Regional Transportation 
Commission (RTC) in person or remotely via the provided Zoom link. If technical 
difficulties result in the loss of communication for remote participants, the RTC will 
work to restore the communication; however, the meeting will continue while efforts 
are being made to restore communication to the remote participants. 
 
PARTICIPACIÓN REMOTAMENTE 
El público puede participar en las justas de la Commission Regional de Transporte 
(RTC) en persona o remotamente a través del enlace Zoom proporcionado. Si 
problemas técnicos resultan en la perdida de comunicación con quienes participan 

http://www.communitytv.org/
https://sccrtc.org/
https://sccrtc.org/about/esubscriptions/


RTC Agenda         August 03, 2023 6 
 

remotamente, la RTC hará lo posible por restaurar la comunicación. Pero, la junta 
continuara mientras se hace lo posible por restaurar la comunicación con quienes 
participan remotamente. 
 
ACCESSIBILILTY 
The Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission does not discriminate 
on the basis of disability and no person shall, by reason of a disability, be denied the 
benefits of its services, programs, or activities. This meeting location is an accessible 
facility. If you wish to attend this meeting and require special assistance in order to 
participate, please contact RTC staff at 460-3200 (CRS 800/735-2929) at least three 
working days in advance of this meeting to make arrangements. People with 
disabilities may request a copy of the agenda in an alternative format. As a courtesy 
to those persons affected, please attend the meeting smoke and scent-free. 
 
SERVICIOS DE TRADUCCIÓN/ TRANSLATION SERVICES  
Si gusta estar presente o participar en esta junta de la Comisión Regional de 
Transporte del Condado de Santa Cruz y necesita información o servicios de 
traducción al español por favor llame por lo menos con tres días laborables de anticipo 
al (831) 460-3200 para hacer los arreglos necesarios. (Spanish language translation 
is available on an as needed basis. Please call (831) 460-3200 at least three days in 
advance to make advance arrangements. 
   
TITLE VI NOTICE TO BENEFICIARIES  
The RTC operates its programs and services without regard to race, color and national 
origin in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act. Any person believing to have 
been aggrieved by the RTC under Title VI may file a complaint by contacting the RTC 
at (831) 460-3200 or 1101 Pacific Avenue, Suite 250, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 or online 
at www.sccrtc.org. A complaint may also be filed directly with the Federal Transit 
Administration to the Office of Civil Rights, Attention: Title VI Program Coordinator, 
East Building, 5th Floor-TCR, 1200 New Jersey Ave., SE, Washington, DC 20590. 

AVISO A BENEFICIARIOS SOBRE EL TITULO VI  
La RTC conduce sus programas y otorga sus servicios sin considerar raza, color u 
origen nacional de acuerdo al Titulo VI del Acta Sobre los Derechos Civiles. Cualquier 
persona que cree haber sido ofendida por la RTC bajo el Titulo VI puede entregar 
queja con la RTC comunicándose al (831) 460-3200 o 1101 Pacific Avenue, Suite 
250, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 o en línea al www.sccrtc.org. También se puede quejar 
directamente con la Administración Federal de Transporte en la Oficina de Derechos 
Civiles, Atención: Coordinador del Programa Titulo VI, East Building, 5th Floor-TCR, 
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE, Washington, DC 20590. 
 

https://sccrtc.org/
https://sccrtc.org/


Santa Cruz County  
Regional Transportation Commission 

Draft MINUTES 

Thursday, June 1, 2023 
9:00 a.m. 

1. Roll call.

The meeting was called to order at 9:05 a.m.

Members present:
Sandy Brown Mike Rotkin 
Kristen Brown  Bruce McPherson (Remote) 
Alexander Pedersen Jack Dilles (Alt) 
Eduardo Montesino Andy Schiffrin (Alt) 
Manu Koenig  Kelly McClendon (Caltrans Ex-Officio) 
Felipe Hernandez 

Staff present: 
Guy Preston  Yesenia Parra 
Luis Mendez Sarah Christensen  
Shannon Munz Krista Corwin 
Amy Naranjo Tracy New 
Grace Blakeslee Keith Rayburn 
Amanda Marino Brianna Goodman 
Rachel Moriconi Steph Britt 
Tommy Travers Brian Zamora 
Riley Gerbrandt Steven Mattas (RTC Counsel) 

In-Person Meeting 
Board of Supervisors Chambers 
701 Ocean Street, Room 525 

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

Remote Participation 
RTC Zoom 

 https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85406910971 
Dial-in: +1 564-217-2000 

Webinar ID: 854 0691 0971 

5-1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87944666793


  
 

2. Approved AB2449 request(s)  

Commissioner McPherson requested to participate remotely under the 
“emergency circumstances” clause of AB2449 due to a medical situation. 
Commissioner Alternate Schiffrin motioned and Commissioner S. Brown 
seconded the motion to approve Commissioner McPherson’s participation in 
this meeting under the emergency circumstances clause of AB2449. The 
motion passed unanimously with Commissioners Pedersen, S. Brown, 
Montesino, Koenig, K. Brown, Rotkin, and Commissioner Alternates Dilles 
and Schiffrin voting “aye.” 

3. Additions or deletions to consent and regular agenda 
 
Handouts for items 22 and 28 were posted to the website. 
 
4. Oral communications 
 
Received public comment from: 
Brian Peoples 
Jack Nelson 
Barry Scott 
Michael Saint 
David Van Brink 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Commissioner Hernandez arrived to the meeting at 9:10 a.m. 
 
Commissioner McPherson highlighted his support for item 11. 
 
Received public comment from: 
Brian Peoples 
 
Commissioner Rotkin motioned and Commissioner Alternate Schiffrin 
seconded the motion to approve the consent agenda. The motion carried 
unanimously with Commissioners Pedersen, S. Brown, Montesino, Koenig, 
McPherson, K. Brown, Hernandez, Rotkin, and Commissioner Alternates 
Dilles and Schiffrin voting “aye.” 
 
 
MINUTES 
5. Accepted draft minutes of the March 23, 2023 Measure D Taxpayer 

Oversight Committee meeting 

6. Accepted draft minutes of the April 20, 2023 Interagency Technical 
Advisory Committee meeting 

5-2



  
 

7. Approved draft minutes of the May 04, 2023 Regional Transportation 
Commission meeting 

8. Accepted draft minutes of the May 08, 2023 Bicycle Advisory Committee 
meeting 

9. Accepted draft minutes of the May 18, 2023 Interagency Technical 
Advisory Committee meeting 

POLICY ITEMS 

 No consent items 

PROJECTS AND PLANNING ITEMS 

10. Approved the draft final fiscal year (FY) 2023-24 RTC work program 
(Resolution 48-23) 

11. Approved amending the Highway 9/San Lorenzo Vally (Hwy9/SLV) 
Complete Streets Corridor Plan to fulfill the federal requirements of a 
Safe Streets for All Safety Action Plan (Resolution 49-23) 

12. Adopted Scope of Work and Specifications for the Phase 2 Debris 
Removal and Erosion Control Project (Resolution 50-23) 

13. Approved authorizing the Executive Director to amend a contract with 
the County of Santa Cruz for the Highway 1 Auxiliary Lanes and Bus on 
Shoulder Project between Bay/Porter to State Park Drive (Resolution 
51-23) 

14. Approved authorizing the Executive Director to amend a contract with 
Moss, Levy, Hartzheim, LLP (Resolution 52-23) 

15. Approved authorizing the Executive Director to amend a contract with 
Harris & Associates for Environmental Permitting for maintenance 
activities along the Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line (SCBRL) right-of-way 
(Resolution 53-23) 

BUDGET AND EXPENDITURES ITEMS 

16. Accepted status report on Transportation Development Act (TDA) 
revenues 

17.  Accepted status report on Measure D revenues  

18. Accepted FY2020/21 and FY2021-22 Single Audit Reports prepared by 
Moss, Levy, & Hartzheim for the RTC 

ADMINISTRATION ITEMS 

5-3



  
 

19.  Approved the FY2023-24 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Claim 
for RTC administration and planning 

20. Approved rejecting a claim 

INFORMATION/OTHER ITEMS 
21. Accepted monthly meeting schedule 
 
22. Accepted correspondence log 

 
23. Accepted letters from RTC committees and staff to other agencies  

 
a. May 9, 2023 Letter to California Legislators Re: Request for Funding 

for SCCRTC Priorities in the State Budget 
 
24. Accepted information items  

a. Public meeting requirements under the Brown Act and AB 2449 
b. Letter to Caltrans District 5 Re: 2023 International Conference on 

Ecology and Transportation (ICOET) Stewardship Award for 
Local/State/Provincial Organizations 

 

REGULAR AGENDA 

25. Commissioner Reports - none 
 
26. Director’s Report 
  
Executive Director Preston delivered updates on: March 2023 storm damage 
repairs and tree clearing; FEMA funding updates; strategic grant leveraging 
with Measure D Funds; Measure D Strategic Implementation Plan (SIP) 
update expected in November. 

 
27. Caltrans Report  
 
Kelly McClendon, Deputy District Director for District 5, delivered an update 
regarding the Highway 1 Auxiliary Lanes and Bus-on-Shoulder project and 
reminded drivers that the highway will be an active construction zone until 
completion expected in 2025; Highway closures related to storm damage 
repair; AIDS LifeCycle charity bike ride to come through Santa Cruz County 
on Sunday, June 4 and Monday, June 5. 
 
Commissioners discussed: appreciation for Caltrans’ attention to Highways 
9, 35 and 236; upcoming town hall meetings on the SLV schools complex 

5-4



  
 

access study; concerns about parking along the North Coast. 
  
Received public comment from: 
Linda Wilshusen  
 
In response to a question, Deputy Director McClendon provided information 
about distribution lists for news releases and project updates. 
 
28. PUBLIC HEARING: Highway 1 Auxiliary Lanes and Bus on Shoulder 

from State Park Drive to Freedom Boulevard and Coastal Rail Trail 
Segment 12 Project Environmental Impact Report/Environmental 
Assessment 

 
Deputy Director, Luis Mendez noted in Spanish that a translator was 
available for anyone requiring Spanish interpretation. 
 
Senior Transportation Engineer Sarah Christensen and consultant Zack 
Siviglia delivered a presentation and responded to questions regarding: the 
question and answer process for the EIR; possibility to obtain Caltrans 
approval in the future to have the buses run in the shoulder next to the 
auxiliary lanes;   
 
The public hearing opened at 10:04 a.m. 
 
Received public comment from: 
Charlie Wilcox, Seacliff Business Association 
Matt Ferrell, Friends of the Rail and Trail 
Sally Arnold, Friends of the Rail and Trail 
Susan Cavalieri 
Dan Holdren 
Saladin Sale 
Brian Peoples, Trail Now 
Jack Nelson 
Michael Saint 
Jean Brocklebank 
Michael Lewis 
Rick Longinotti, Campaign for Sustainable Transportation 
Barry Scott 
Paula Bradley 
Sean 
Dianne D. 
 
In response to a Commissioner’s question, Ms. Christensen clarified that the 
EIR is a separate stand-alone document that is not tiered off any other EIR. 
 
 

5-5



  
 

29. Potential GO Santa Cruz County Bicycle Incentives 
 
Transportation Planners Amanda Marino and Amy Naranjo delivered the staff 
report and responded to questions regarding: response to concerns about 
vehicle miles travelled; methods of collecting data; incentive stacking; 
simplification of the application process and assistance for Spanish speakers; 
how applicants are prioritized for the vouchers; adaptive bikes; whether any 
funds are available for the infrastructure that is required for e-bike 
transportation; and funding from the Monterey Bay Air Resources District 
(MBARD) intended for the bikeshare program. 
 
Commissioners discussed: events and organizations in South County that 
present opportunities for outreach; collaboration with Central Coast 
Community Energy and request for funding for e-bike vouchers; advertising 
program over several weeks so as not to overwhelm the program; phased 
roll-out countywide; and suggestion to local jurisdictions to move bikeshare 
programs forward in their own communities. 
 
Received public comment from: 
Claire Gallogly, City of Santa Cruz 
Joanna Edmonds 
Sally Arnold, Friends of the Rail and Trail 
Matt Farrell 
Matt Miller, Ecology Action 
Michael Lewis 
Piet Canin, Ecology Action 
Sean 
 
Commissioner Rotkin motioned and Commissioner Alternate Schiffrin 
seconded the motion to approve the staff recommendation to seek grant 
funds for a pilot bicycle incentive/voucher program focused on lower income 
individuals to assist them with purchasing regular bicycles, electric bicycles, 
and bike sharing services.  
 
The motion carried unanimously with Commissioners Pedersen, S. Brown, 
Montesino, Hernandez, Koenig, McPherson, K. Brown, Rotkin, and 
Commissioner Alternates Schiffrin and Dilles voting “aye.” 
 
The RTC Chair, Commissioner Koenig, said that he would send a letter to 
Central Coast Community Energy (3CE) requesting that funding continue to 
be available for these types of programs. 
 
30. Review of items to be discussed in closed session. 
 
RTC Counsel Steve Mattas communicated that he did not anticipate any 
reportable action from the closed session. 

5-6



  
 

 
Received public comment from: 
Grace Blakeslee 
 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

The Commission entered closed session at 11:30 a.m. 
 
31. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54956.8) 
 

 Agency Designated Representatives: Guy Preston and Jesse Lad 
 
 Employee Organizations: CORE and RAMM 

 
32. Report out of items discussed in closed session 

Because there was no reportable action from the closed session, the RTC did 
not reconvene in open session. The meeting adjourned at 12:25p.m. 

33. Next meetings 

The next RTC meeting is scheduled for Thursday, August 03, 2023 at 9:00 
a.m., at the Santa Cruz County Board of Supervisors Chambers located at 701 
Ocean St. Rm. 525, Santa Cruz, CA 95060. 
 
The next Transportation Policy Workshop meeting has been cancelled. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Yesenia Parra, Administrative Services Officer 

 

Attendees
Shilpa Trisal 
Brian Peoples, Trail Now 
Barry Scott 
Lowell Hurst 
Dianne D 
BobFi 
Lani Faulkner for Equity Transit 
Joni 
(831)-***-6833 

Sean 
Michael Saint 
Amy Johnson 
Sharon Polak 
Ray Welch 
David <3 Public Transit 
Peter Haworth 
Bill Philipps 
Jeanette Guire RC RR 

5-7



  
 

Heather Adamson, AMBAG 
Kate Elliot 
Linda Wilshusen 
(831)-***-7526 
Chris Schneiter 
Roberto Radrigan 
Paula Bradley 
Frank Rimicci 
Jim MacKenzie 
Jean Brocklebank 
Michael Lewis 
Ricky Longinotti 
Maggie Barr 
Pauline Seales 
PD 
Julia Mousavi, Caltrans 
Paul Guirguis, Caltrans 
Jack Nelson 
Johanna Lighthill 
Michael Pisano 
Mark Johannessen 
Piet Canin 
Jerry Cannella 
Tom Walker 
Claire Gallogly, City of Santa Cruz 
Joanna Edmonds 
Sally Arnold 
Matt Farrell 
Matt Miller, Ecology Action 
Sean 
Saladin Sale 
Susan Cavalieri 
Dan Holdren 
Charlie Wilcox 
Madilyn Jacobsen 
Judy Gittelsohn 
Derek Leffers 

5-8



E&D TAC Minutes 1 June 13, 2023 

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s 
Elderly & Disabled Transportation Advisory Committee 

(Also serves as the Social Service Transportation Advisory Council) 

DRAFT MINUTES 

1:30pm - 3:30pm 

Tuesday, June 13, 2023 

1. Roll call

The meeting was called to order at 1:32 p.m. 

Members present: 
Tara Ireland, Social Service Provider-Persons of Limited Means 
Jesus Bojorquez, CTSA (Lift Line) 
Michael Pisano, Potential Transit User (60+) 
Caroline Lamb, Potential Transit User (Disabled) 
Janet Edwards, Vice Chair, 1st District 
Veronica Elsea, Chair, 3rd District 
Patty Talbott, Social Service Provider – Seniors Alternate 
Christina Witt, Social Services Provider Disabled (County) 
Patricia Fohrman, 4th District Hernandez 
Phil Kipnis, 1st District Alternate 

Unexcused absences: 
Alex Weske, Social Service Provider – Disabled 
Paul Elerick, 2nd District 

RTC staff present: 
Amanda Marino, Transportation Planner 

Others present: 
Heather Adamson, AMBAG  
Patrice Theriot, City of Watsonville  
Madilyn Jacobsen, Caltrans 
Paul Guirguis, Caltrans 
Russell Chen, County of Santa Cruz 
Ben Vernazza, Member of the Public 
Bryan Ramos, Member of the Public 
Becky Steinbruner, Member of the Public 

6-1



E&D TAC Minutes 2 June 13, 2023 

 

 

 

2. Introductions 
 

3. Consider AB2449 request(s) to participate in the meeting remotely due to 
emergency circumstances (a physical or family medical emergency that 
prevents a member from attending in person)  

 
A motion (Edwards, Fohrman) was made to approve committee member 
Jesus Bojorquez’s request to participate remotely due to emergency 
circumstances. The motion passed unanimously with members Tara 
Ireland, Michael Pisano, Caroline Lamb, Janet Edwards, Veronica Elsea, 
Patty Talbott, Christina Witt, and Patricia Fohrman voting in favor. 

 
4. Oral communications 
 

Janet Edwards, Committee Member, stated that she is writing a letter to 
the City of Capitola to add the website link to the RTC Pedestrian Hazard 
Report Form to the City of Capitola’s website. 
 
Ben Vernazza, Member of the Public, communicated the need to have the 
Coastal Rail Trail wide enough for individuals with disabilities using 
mobility devices to reduce bicycle and pedestrian conflicts.  
 
Russel Chen, County of Santa Cruz, provided an update to the committee 
on upcoming projects such as the Soquel Ave. buffered bike lanes and the 
Hwy 152 Complete Streets Intersection Improvements.  
 

5. Additions or deletions to consent and regular agenda  
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

6. Approve Minutes from April 11, 2023 
 

A motion (Pisano/Edwards) was made to approve the minutes from April 
11, 2023. The motion passed unanimously with members Tara Ireland, 
Michael Pisano, Caroline Lamb, Janet Edwards, Veronica Elsea, Patty 
Talbott, Christina Witt, Patricia Fohrman, and Jesus Bojorquez voting in 
favor. 

 
7. Receive RTC Meeting Highlights 

 
8. Receive Information Items 

 
A motion (Lamb/Ireland) was made to approve the consent agenda. The 
motion passed unanimously with members Tara Ireland, Michael Pisano, 
Caroline Lamb, Janet Edwards, Veronica Elsea, Patty Talbott, Christina 

6-2



E&D TAC Minutes 3 June 13, 2023 

 

 

 

Witt, Patricia Fohrman, and Jesus Bojorquez voting in favor. 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

 
 
9. Receive Program Updates 

a. Volunteer Center  

Tara Ireland stated that the Volunteer Center has reached a total of 
198 participants with 96 volunteers, and 4 volunteer dispatchers. 
The Volunteer Center is always looking for additional volunteers. For 
more information visit: 
https://scvolunteercenter.org/programs/volunteer/ 

 
b. Community Bridges 

 
Jesus Bojorquez announced that Community Bridges Lift Line 
purchased new electric vehicles for their transit fleet and are now 
fully staffed with dispatchers for the Lift Line program.  

 
c. Santa Cruz METRO 

 
No update, METRO committee member absent.   

 
d. SCCRTC – Covid Public Meeting Rules and AB 2449 

 
Amanda Marino, Transportation Planner, informed the committee 
that the TNC Access for All program application due date has been 
extended to July 7th to allow more time for transportation providers 
to submit applications to receive up to $114,103 to increase 
wheelchair accessible on-demand transportation services in Santa 
Cruz County. 
 
Ms. Marino notified the committee that the Santa Cruz County Parks 
Department requested a letter of support from the E&D TAC for 
Segments 10 and 11 (17th Ave to State Park Dr.) of the Coastal Rail 
Trail to apply for funds from the CPUC to add formal pedestrian 
crossings. 
 
A motion (Lamb/Ireland) was made to approve the E&D TAC chair to 
write a letter of support for the Coastal Rail Trail Segments 10 & 11 
Formal Pedestrian Crossings CPUC grant application. The motion 
passed unanimously with members Tara Ireland, Lisa Berkowitz, 
Jesus Bojorquez, Michael Pisano, Caroline Lamb, Janet Edwards, and 

6-3

https://scvolunteercenter.org/programs/volunteer/


E&D TAC Minutes 4 June 13, 2023 

 

 

 

Veronica Elsea voting in favor. 
 

 
e. Pedestrian Ad-Hoc Subcommittee  

i. Pedestrian Hazard Report 
 

Chair Veronica Elsea stated that the subcommittee is continuing to 
meet and discussing ways to improve response times in the 
pedestrian hazard report processes working with local jurisdictions. 
The subcommittee is continuing to monitor the public meetings and 
projects of local jurisdictions throughout Santa Cruz County. Ms. 
Elsea identified projects that they are monitoring, and the next 
subcommittee meeting will be on May 26th at 2:00 pm. Ms. Elsea 
also provided information on how the RTC is going to promote the 
Pedestrian Hazard Reports on RTC media outlets to report potholes 
or hazardous road conditions.  
 
Vice Chair Janet Edwards informed the committee that Ms. Edwards 
met with City of Capitola Planner, Kailash Mozumder, and walked 
along 41st avenue identifying hazards for individuals using mobility 
devices.   

 
 

10. Safer Access to Pajaro Valley High School and Beyond Project 
  

Patrice Theriot, City of Watsonville staff presented the Safer Access to 
Pajaro Valley High School (PVHS) and Beyond Project including 
infrastructure improvements at the Highway 1/Harkins Slough Road 
overcrossing, other safety improvements in the vicinity of feeder schools, 
and non-infrastructure programing.  
 
Committee members asked questions regarding safe pedestrian pathways 
during construction and community input to Spanish speaking 
communities. 
 
No action taken.  

 
11. Highway 129 Pavement Project 

  
Madilyn Jacobsen and Paul Guirguis, Caltrans staff, gave a presentation on 
the Hwy 129 Pavement Project located in Watsonville. This project is on 
Route 129 between Route 1/129 Separation, Salsipuedes Creek Bridge, 
and on Route 152 between Main Street and Martinelli Street. The purpose 
of this project is to preserve and extend the life of the existing pavement, 
roadside safety, and multimodal access for pedestrian and bicycle users.  
 

6-4



E&D TAC Minutes 5 June 13, 2023 

 

 

 

Committee members asked questions concerning the accessibility of bus 
stop facilities to allow space for individuals in wheelchairs. Members 
additionally made comments regarding the curb ramps and audible 
pedestrian signals. Caltrans staff stated that they will discuss with their 
staff to see if this project can include audible features with locator tones at 
pedestrian signals.  

 
 No action taken. 

 
12. AMBAG Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan 

 
Heather Adamson, AMBAG Staff, provided an overview of the 2023 Public 
Participation Plan (PPP). The Public Participation Plan is a comprehensive 
document that guides regional planning agencies and local jurisdictions in 
the public participation process for the tri-county Monterey Bay region 
that either receive federal funds or are subject to a federally required 
action.  
 
Committee members provided feedback and asked questions regarding 
timeline and community outreach involved in the development of the 
2023 Public Participation Plan. 
 
No action taken. 

 
Meeting adjourned at approximately 3:26 pm. 
 
The next E&D TAC meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, August 8, 2023 at 1:30 
located at the SCCRTC office at 1101 Pacific Ave, Suite 250, Santa Cruz, CA 
95060 
 
Respectfully submitted, Amanda Marino, Staff 

6-5



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Interagency Technical Advisory Committee (ITAC) 

DRAFT MINUTES 
Thursday, June 15, 2023, 1:30 p.m. 

In Person: RTC Conference Room, 1101 Pacific Ave, Ste 250, Santa Cruz, CA 
Alternative Locations: Online Zoom and  

Caltrans-50 Higuera St, San Luis Obispo, CA 

ITAC Members Present: 
County Public Works & Planning (via Zoom-AB2449) Steve Wiesner 
Santa Cruz Public Works and Planning Proxy Mark Starkey 
Scotts Valley Public Works and Planning Proxy Chris Lamm  
Watsonville Public Works  
Watsonville Community Development 

Murray Fontes 
Justin Meek 

Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments Chris Duymich 
California Department of Transportation (via Zoom) 
Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District and 1 Proxy 

Paul Guirguis 
John Urgo 

Non-Voting Committee Members/Alternates Attending Remotely: 
(Did not meet AB2449 requirements) 
University of California at Santa Cruz (UCSC): Georgina Arias 
AMBAG Alternates: Paul Hierling, Will Condon, Heather Adamson 

Excused Absences 
Kailash Mozumder, Capitola Public Works 

RTC Staff Present - In Person: Sarah Christensen, Amy Naranjo, Rachel 
Moriconi 

RTC Staff Participating Remotely: 

Others Present In-Person:  
Faina Segal, Friends of the Rail & Trail (FORT)  

Others Participating Remotely 
Ben Vernazza 

1. Call to Order: Vice Chair Chris Lamm called the meeting to order at
1:30p.m.

2. Roll Call/Introductions: Introductions were made.

3. Consider AB2449 request(s) for voting members to participate in the
meeting remotely: Steve Wiesner participated remotely due to an AB2449

7-1



“just-cause.” It was noted that Paul Guirguis is attending remotely under 
regular Brown Act rules with the Caltrans office noticed on the agenda as an 
alternate location open to the public. Other committee members and 
alternates attending remotely did not meet AB2449 requirements and were 
not eligible to vote or count towards quorum. 

 
4. Additions, deletions, or changes to consent and regular agendas: 

Presentation slides for Item 8 AMBAG Public Participation Plan, Item 9 
Programming Process for RTC Discretionary Funds, and Item 11 State Road 
Charge, and public comments are posted on the ITAC meeting webpage.  
 

5. Oral Communications on Matters Not on the Agenda:  
 

• Ben Vernazza encouraged the RTC to consult with the California Coastal 
Commission about planned projects.  

• Rachel Moriconi announced:  
o Chair/Vice Chair Elections next month: The committee will 

consider chair and vice chair elections at its next meeting. In 
accordance with RTC Committee bylaws, all officers shall continue 
in their respective offices until their successors have been elected 
and have assumed office. 

o Year End Invoices: Rachel Moriconi reminded agencies to submit 
invoices to RTC for RSTPX, Measure D, TDA, and other 
expenditures for FY22/23 as soon as possible but no later than 
early-July. Agencies should invoice Caltrans for other programs at 
least every six months to ensure funds do not lapse or become 
inactive. 

o VMT Projects: Rachel Moriconi reminded agencies to provide lists 
of projects that will reduce vehicle miles traveled for consideration 
in the County’s VMT Mitigation Program to Anais Schenk by 
6/16/23. 

o Measure D 5-year Plans: Rachel Moriconi reminded agencies to 
solicit public input and post plans online. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
6. Approved Minutes of the May 18, 2023, ITAC meeting 
7. Received Notices and Headlines 

 
The Committee unanimously approved a motion (Fontes/Urgo) 
approving the consent agenda, with members Duymich, Fontes, 
Guirguis, Lamm, Starkey, Urgo, and Wiesner voting “yes”. 
(Committee member Meek was not present for the vote.) 

 

7-2

https://sccrtc.org/meetings/inter-agency/agendas/
https://www.sccoplanning.com/PlanningHome/Environmental/VMTMitigationProgram.aspx


REGULAR AGENDA 

Member Meek joined the meeting at 1:40pm 

8. AMBAG Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan

Heather Adamson, AMBAG presented the draft Public Participation Plan for
regional transportation planning and programming documents. The plan has
been updated to respond to federal and state legislation since 2019,
including the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) and addresses
SB375 (2006) requirements for the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP).
The plan includes public outreach strategies and best practices, including
innovative online outreach and visualization techniques, identifies key
stakeholders, and strategies for increasing equity-focused engagement with
Limited-English Proficiency (LEP) Populations, low-income households,
people of color, persons with disabilities, and tribal groups. She shared
preliminary input received on outreach methods, including in-person, virtual,
and hybrid meetings and pop-up outreach events and community events,
such as farmers markets. Comments on the draft plan are due August
23, 2023, with the AMBAG board scheduled to adopt the plan in October.
She requested that ITAC members provide input and help solicit
input on the plan.

ITAC members shared information about successful outreach techniques,
including in-person pop-up surveys and signage near project sites (such as
West Cliff Drive); Spanish-only meetings; having surveys at
events/gathering places both electronically and in paper; soliciting input at
food distribution locations, ethnic grocery stores, senior centers; sandwich
boards with project and input information; mailing surveys and postcards
with QR codes and web addresses to households; getting local leaders (such
as stakeholder groups, chambers, school districts) to serve as ambassadors
to share information about projects.

9. Programming Process for RTC Discretionary Transportation Funds

Amy Naranjo presented the proposed process and evaluation criteria for
programming regional shares of Surface Transportation Block Grant Program
(STBG)/Regional Surface Transportation Program Exchange (RSTPX), State
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP), and SB-1 LLP formula funds in
2023.

Committee members requested additional time be built into the schedule for
project sponsors to prepare applications and indicated support for the
application to be kept short (especially compared to several state grant
applications). Members discussed potential scoring rubrics for evaluation
criteria including: whether to use pass/fail, high/medium/low or give some

7-3



criteria more weight than others; using a median and eliminating outliers 
and allowing the lowest/non-responsive criteria to be dropped; ensuring 
geographic equity; not providing funding for projects with negative impacts; 
and support for criteria as presented. Metro staff suggested equity, safety 
and climate change impacts be given the highest priority. County staff 
expressed concern about measuring the scale of benefits/number of users 
benefiting from a project. Caltrans staff suggested setting targets for 
ensuring at least some percent of the funds are directed to equity 
communities and focusing funds in areas historically underserved that have 
greater needs. Several committee members suggested a public engagement 
process should have resulted in identification of projects/priorities. 
Committee members suggested Paul Guirguis serve on the application 
review team. 
 
Public Comments: Ben Vernazza suggested public safety be prioritized, the 
Coastal Commission be considered, and expressed concern about shared use 
bike/pedestrian paths. Faina Segal expressed support for considering the 
California Climate Action Plan for Transportation Infrastructure (CAPTI) in 
determining how to spend funds and taking politics out of decision-making 
process and using evaluation criteria.  
 
The committee unanimously approved a motion (Fontes/Lamm) 
recommending the RTC use the evaluation criteria presented by staff 
and allowing the lowest scoring criteria per project to be dropped 
from consideration, with Urgo, Starkey, Fontes, Duymich, Guirguis, 
Lamm, Starkey, Wiesner, and Meek voting “yes”. 

 
 
10. State Legislative Update 

 
Matt Schroeder provided an update on state legislation, including a 
summary of state budget proposals and bills that may impact local 
transportation projects and planning.  

 
11. State Road Charge Update 

 
Amy Naranjo provided an update on the state Road Usage Charge (RUC) 
pilot program, which would allow drivers to pay a per-mile fee instead of the 
state’s gas tax.  
 
Committee members mentioned heavier electric vehicles have a greater 
impact on pavement than lighter vehicles, considering equity in how fees are 
collected, phased implementation, out-of-state vehicles, and other 
considerations for new per mile fees. 

 

7-4



12. Status of transportation projects, programs, studies, and planning
documents

ITAC members and RTC staff provided updates on projects, programs,
studies, planning efforts, and storm damage.

METRO: John Urgo reported that METRO will consider its Measure D 5-year
plan at its June meeting and METRO has been seeking input on public
priorities for METRO service through the “Reimaging Metro” effort, with
public indicating preferences for more frequent service. METRO will also be
seeking public input on the “Rapid Corridors” options to speed up service for
cross-county routes this summer.

Santa Cruz: Mark Starkey reported on West Cliff Drive short and long-term
storm damage repairs, that (pending bids) the Murray Street Bridge project
could start construction as soon as December 2023, the bikeshare program
launch, and that the Measure D 5-year plans were approved on June 13.

Watsonville: Murray Fontes reported the Freedom Boulevard repaving
project is starting, the city is seeking a federal earmark through Senator
Padilla for Downtown Specific Plan improvements, and the Highway
1/Harkins Slough Road bike/pedestrian bridge project time extension is
going before the California Transportation Commission (CTC).

Justin Meek expressed interest in applying for planning grants with METRO
for affordable housing at Metro’s Watsonville Transit Center; the EIR for the
Downtown Specific Plan is out for public review that includes more housing
downtown, with council review scheduled for September; work is underway
on the city’s General Plan and Housing Element updates; and the city is
coordinating with Caltrans on planning Main Street/Highway 152 and other
specific plan recommendations, including traffic calming, safety, and street
modifications.

AMBAG: Chris Duymich reported that the AMBAG board approved the REAP
2.0 guidelines, with a grant workshop on July 11, and applications due in
August.

Scotts Valley: Chris Lamm reported city council approved the Measure D 5-
year plan, SB1 Local Streets and Roads project list, and pavement
management program updates at its June meeting. The city is also soliciting
input on its draft Housing Element. The city has awarded a contract to
repave Bean Creek Road this summer.

County of Santa Cruz: Steve Wiesner reported that its draft Housing
Element is also out for public review. The County’s Measure D 5-year plan is
scheduled to be reviewed by the Board of Supervisors on July 27. The

7-5



County and RTC kicked off the Climate Adaptation Vulnerability Assessment 
for transportation facilities. They are also working with partners to start the 
Safe Street for All plan and will be updating its Pavement Management 
System this year.  
 
Construction started on several summer pavement projects, funded by a 
combination of STIP, RSTPX, Measure D, and other funds. The County 
awarded a contract for the Soquel Drive buffered bike lanes and road 
rehabilitation project and will coordinate construction schedules with the City 
of Santa Cruz’s Murray Street bridge and Caltrans Highway 1 projects. The 
Holohan/152 intersection is expected to start construction in late 
summer/fall, pending coordination on other Caltrans projects. The county 
plans to go out to bid on the Green Valley Road multiuse path in late June.  
The County continues to make repairs to nearly 200 locations damaged 
during winter storms, with emergency projects at 20 sites completed so far, 
40 under construction, and another 10 starting in the next few weeks. 
Sewer line construction on East Cliff Drive from 13th-26th Avenues and 
several projects in southern parts of the county, including Paulsen, are also 
underway. 
 
Chris Duymich left the meeting.  
  
Caltrans: Paul Guirguis reported on road closures, including for permanent 
repairs to Highway 9 near Ben Lomond and Highway 236 near Big Basin. He 
encouraged members to sign up for Caltrans construction news releases.  
Caltrans will be having meetings to discuss plans for the north coast of 
Highway 1 and how increased tourism will impact the area. Rachel Moriconi 
noted she included several Local Assistance updates in the consent agenda 
and that items for the August California Transportation Commission (CTC) 
meeting are due to Caltrans on June 19.  

 
SCCRTC – Rachel Moriconi reported that comments on the SLV Schools 
Access plan are due June 30. The Highway 1 Freedom-State Park Drive and 
Trail Segment 12 project team are working on responses to comments on 
the draft environmental document, and RTC board authorized staff to pursue 
grants for a countywide bike subsidy program.  
 

13.  Funding Program Opportunities and Updates  
 
The Committee received information about several upcoming grant 
opportunities and shared information on potential applications. Rachel 
Moriconi highlighted that a lot of work went into quickly obligating the 
balance of Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations 
Act of 2021 (CRRSAA) funds that were rescinded as part the congressional 
Debt Ceiling deal, including funds designated for the Capitola Road/41st Ave 
project.  

7-6



 
14.  Next meeting. The next meeting of the ITAC is scheduled for 1:30 p.m. on 

August 17, 2023 at the RTC conference room, 1101 Pacific Ave, Ste 250. 
RTC committees do not meet in July. ITAC meetings will be canceled if there 
are no action items to be brought before the committee.  

 
Vice Chair Lamm adjourned the meeting at 3:52 p.m. 
 

 
Minutes prepared by Rachel Moriconi 

 
 
 

\\RTCSERV2\Shared\ITAC\2023\June\ITAC-minutes-June2023.docx 

7-7



AGENDA: August 3, 2023 
 
 
TO:  Regional Transportation Commission (RTC)   
 
FROM: Matt Schroeder and Rachel Moriconi, Transportation Planners 
 

RE: State and Federal Legislative Updates  
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
This item is for information only.  
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Regional Transportation Commission monitors state and federal legislative 
and administrative actions that could impact transportation funding or project 
implementation in Santa Cruz County. Legislative priorities are identified in the 
RTC’s annual Legislative Platform. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The following is an update on the evolving legislative and budgetary landscape in 
California and its potential impact on transportation operations and projects. This 
update includes an overview of the state budget and its implications for regional 
planning and project implementation, summaries of some of the most significant 
pieces of legislation, and an analysis of the budget trailer bills recently signed by 
the Governor. Budget trailer bills typically serve as tools to implement the state's 
budget by providing statutory changes necessary to enact modifications to 
government code. These recent modifications could have significant implications 
for various sectors, including transportation. 
 
State Budget  
In May, the Governor issued a "May Revise" budget proposal for the upcoming 
fiscal year. This proposal served as an update to the Governor's initial budget 
proposal, which was released in early January. The legislature had until June 15 
to approve the May revision, and the Governor signed the final FY2023/24 State 
Budget on July 10, 2023.  
 
Despite a multi-billion dollar shortfall, the budget successfully maintains 
substantial investments in crucial areas such as transportation, public education, 
healthcare, climate action, homelessness solutions, and other prioritized sectors, 
in part by using prior year budgetary reserves. A summary of some of the 
transportation elements of the budget that could support local transportation 

8-1

https://sccrtc.org/projects/legislative/


 
projects is included in Attachment 1.  
 
One budget element RTC and Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) 
staff had been closely following was the inclusion of $1.1 billion in flexible 
transportation funding to help support transit operations statewide and 
restoration of an SB198 (2022) $4 billion commitment for local transit capital 
improvements over three years, with an option to flex these funds toward transit 
operations. The state investments will help transit agencies avoid a near-term 
‘fiscal cliff’ that likely could have led to deep service cuts for transit agencies 
whose fare revenues remain below pre-pandemic levels. The local share of the 
$4 billion in Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP) funds, which RTC 
is expected to be responsible for programming, similar to State Transit 
Assistance (STA) formula funds, is estimated to be about $27 million. The $1.1 
billion in flexible funds will come from several sources, including the state’s Cap-
and-Trade program for greenhouse gas emission allowances, over the next three 
years to support operating costs (fuel, drivers, mechanics, etc.), as well as to 
cover capital expenses associated with the transition to zero-emission transit as 
required by the Air Resources Board's Innovative Clean Transit rule. Guidelines 
for these funds are still under development and subject to the anticipated 
transportation budget trailer bill. 
 
Noting the $5.1 billion for public transit included in the new budget, Governor 
Newsom said in an Instagram video, “That’s a significant improvement from 
where we expected the budget to land…But in return, we’re also demanding 
more accountability. We’re demanding more collaboration. We’re demanding a 
new approach, a new business model for public transit. Not just for Bay Area 
Rapid Transit but for public transit at large.”  
 
On July 10, Governor Newsom signed a set of bills to accelerate infrastructure 
projects in California. These transportation trailer bills focused on “streamlining" 
project delivery and included SB125, which caps the indirect cost recovery rate 
that Caltrans can charge to Self-Help Counties’ for highway projects at 10% 
indefinitely. National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA) and California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) streamlining and judicial review proposals that 
have the potential to save significant time and money and aim to secure 
additional federal funding from the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act 
(IIJA). An analysis of the actions associated with this “infrastructure package” is 
included in Attachment 1. 
 
To protect previous funding for climate-related projects and programs, the 
Senate approved SB 867, a proposed state general obligation bond to address 
California’s need to protect communities and natural resources from the impacts 
of climate change. If approved by both houses and signed by the Governor, 
California voters would see the $15.5 billion bond measure on a 2024 statewide 
ballot. 
 

8-2

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB867
https://lao.ca.gov/BallotAnalysis/Bonds


 
State Legislation 
The state’s 2023 legislative session will end on September 14. The Governor has 
until October 14 to sign or veto bills. The State Assembly and State Senate had 
until June 2, 2023, to pass bills out of their “house of origin” and pass them onto 
their counterparts, respectively or otherwise turn them into a “two-year” bill. 
When a bill is made into a two-year bill, it means that the bill will not expire at 
the end of the legislative session. Instead, it will remain under consideration 
under both years of this two-year legislative session. Due to the complexity and 
controversial nature of a bill, the legislature may want to give it more time to be 
evaluated. 
 
A few bills of interest that staff has been tracking this year that could impact 
local transportation projects or programs and/or special districts, like the RTC, 
are listed below, with a summary of some additional bills RTC staff has been 
monitoring included in Attachment 1.  
 
AB-557 (Hart) Open meetings: local agencies: teleconferences. Passed 
Assembly 
Amending the Brown Act and preserving remote meeting flexibility remains a hot 
topic issue for agencies across the state. CSDA has sponsored this bill to protect 
important emergency remote meeting procedures that have been effectively 
utilized throughout the state. CSDA is working with partner sponsors at the 
California State Association of Counties, the League of California Cities, and the 
California School Boards Association to eliminate the sunset date currently 
applied to emergency remote meeting procedures established by prior 
legislation. That prior legislation was also sponsored by CSDA.  
 
This bill will also adjust the renewal period associated with the emergency 
remote meeting procedures. Under current law, local agencies are required to 
meet every 30 days (or sooner) when meeting remotely during emergencies 
under certain conditions. This bill would change that 30-day period to 45 days. 
 
AB-744 (Carillo) California Transportation Commission: data, modeling, 
and analytic software tools procurement. Passed Assembly 
AB 744 requires CTC to acquire public domain or procure commercially available 
or open-source licensed data, modeling, and analytic software tools to support 
the state’s sustainable transportation, congestion management, affordable 
housing, efficient land use, air quality, and climate change strategies and goals. 
The bill also provides for a direct allocation of funding to local agencies for these 
purposes. This data could be useful to local and regional agencies in analyzing 
transportation needs and impacts. 
 
The state wants to transition from traditional manual approaches to data 
collection and shift to modern methods that rely on big data for modeling and 
analysis. These tools have shown the potential to accelerate an agency's ability 

8-3



 
to promote sustainable practices, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, address 
environmental concerns, and improve social equity. 
 
AB-825 (Bryan) Vehicles: bicycles on sidewalks. Passed Assembly 
AB 825 is a current statewide bill aimed at prohibiting local jurisdictions from 
banning biking on sidewalks when there is no adjacent bike lane or path on the 
same street. Additionally, it proposes a speed limit of 10mph for sidewalk riding 
to ensure safety. The bill intends to prioritize the rights of individuals to ride 
bicycles without unnecessary interference from law enforcement, outweighing 
concerns about potential conflicts with speeding bikes. Supporters argue that AB 
825 will restore rights and increase cycling mode share, thereby enhancing 
safety for both cyclists and pedestrians. However, some critics believe that the 
bill may imply that biking on the street or "taking the lane" is unsafe or 
inappropriate, although this opinion is not shared by supporters. Concerns have 
also been raised about the safety of faster e-bikes in areas where bicycles and 
pedestrians coexist. 
 
AB-1335 (Zbur) Local government: transportation planning and land 
use: sustainable communities strategy (SCS). Passed Assembly 
Currently, an early step in preparing the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) is to 
develop a growth forecast that reasonably estimates likely future outcomes over 
the 20-year (or more) RTP planning period. This law requires that the 
Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS) (prepared locally by AMBAG as part of 
the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP)) be developed using this scenario 
and account for the Regional Housing Needs Allocation (which includes an 
analysis of existing needs and future needs over the 8-year planning period).  
 
Existing law also requires a COG (AMBAG) to certify that its Regional Housing 
Needs Assessment (RHNA) allocation is consistent with an SCS. This bill would 
mandate a specific formula to determine the number of needed housing units for 
the entire (20+ year) RTP planning period based on extrapolating the average 8-
year RHNA number as a baseline. This is a complex bill with serious opposition. 
Some agencies are concerned that the bill would create uneven statewide effects 
and have significant impacts on achieving a GHG target and obtaining a 
conformity determination. The bill also requires conformity between two sets of 
housing numbers that were developed for different purposes, and opponents 
argue that requiring the investment of transportation funds to support housing 
that is not likely to be built would not create the author’s intent to reduce GHG 
emissions. 
 
Other State News 
On June 30, local Assemblymember Robert Rivas (Watsonville-Hollister) took 
over as the new Assembly Speaker. The appointment of Assemblymember Rivas 
as speaker is a significant moment for the Central Coast region because it 
provides the area with influential representation in the legislative process. With 

8-4



 
the speaker's power, the Monterey Bay region gains a key ally who can 
effectively advance regional priorities. 
 
On the housing front, earlier this month, Governor Newsom announced that the 
first $352 M (of $570 M) has been awarded for the REAP 2.0 program as part of 
his California Comeback Plan. Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments 
(AMBAG) received $9.13 million to establish a competitive grant suballocation to 
local jurisdictions, a non-competitive RHNA-based local suballocation, SCS 
implementation, and local TA. Most REAP 2 funds flow by formula to MPOs, but 
there are two $30 million competitive programs. 
 
Federal Activities 
On the Federal level, the U.S. Department of Transportation divisions have been 
working to implement the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA). This 
has included the release of guidance related to equity and the Biden 
Administration’s Justice40 effort, the federal budget and appropriations activities 
needed to meet IIJA funding commitments, and initiating new discussions on 
how to rapidly implement the provisions under IIJA and remove regulatory 
roadblocks due to escalating project costs caused by inflation. 
 
Federal funds were recently awarded for the following project:  

• $20,381,950 to Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) from the 
Bus and Low and No Emission Grant Program for fuel cell electric buses to 
replace 12 diesel and CNG-fueled buses, build a hydrogen fueling station 
and make facility upgrades to accommodate new buses and develop a 
workforce training program. In total, the FTA awarded $184 million to aid 
California in its transition to a zero-emission bus transit fleet.  

Currently, House and Senate budget plans are far apart, and with the traditional 
August recess, members are likely to head home without any clear resolution on 
the FY 2024 budget. House GOP spending proposals to date have included 
elimination and/or steep reductions to climate programs that were previously 
funded by the 2022 Inflation Reduction Act. These cuts are a non-starter for 
Senate Democrats and the President. The federal FY23/24 fiscal year formally 
commences on October 1, leaving less than a month to find a solution before 
that deadline.  
 
In early July, the House Appropriations Committee revealed its proposed budget 
for the Departments of Transportation and Housing and Urban Development 
(THUD) for FY 2024, which proposes a 25% reduction ($7.2 billion) in spending 
for discretionary transportation programs, like RAISE. However, funding levels 
for major federal highway and transit programs were maintained, with small 
increases from FY 2023. Some IIJA programs were spared, while others faced 
cuts due to the elimination of General Funds. Significant cuts are proposed for 

8-5

https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grants/fy23-fta-bus-and-low-and-no-emission-grant-awards


 
Amtrak, Transit Capital Investment Grants, and the rail system preservation 
program (FRA CRISI).  
 
The Senate’s version, which allocates $108 billion in funding for the USDOT, 
differs substantially from the House bill. Out of the $108 billion, $79.4 billion 
comes from transportation trust funds, and $28.6 billion is sourced from the 
General Fund. Notably, the Senate bill differs from the House bill, as it maintains 
funding for most USDOT discretionary grant programs, in addition to the 
advance appropriations provided by the 2021 Infrastructure Investment and 
Jobs Act (IIJA). 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The RTC monitors and engages in discussions surrounding legislative and state 
budget proposals which may impact or benefit regional transportation projects 
and planning. 
 
This report provides a summary of select 2023 legislative activities. Staff will 
continue to gather information on bills that are signed by the Governor, and if 
any RTC action is necessary, staff will return with recommendations. 
 
Attachment 

1. Bill Summary 

 
 

\\RTCSERV2\Shared\LEGISLAT\2023\LegisUpdate-Aug2023-SR.docx 
 

8-6



Attachment 1 
 

California Bill Summary 
 

2-Year Carry Over Bills 
 
AB-6 (Friedman) Transportation planning: regional transportation 
plans: Solutions for Congested Corridors Program: reduction of 
greenhouse gas emissions. (2-year bill) 
AB6 would increase CARB's oversight of Regional Transportation Plans (RTP) 
and sustainable communities strategies (SCS) prepared by Metropolitan 
Planning Organizations (locally Association of Monterey Bay Area 
Governments (AMBAG)). The current version would set new greenhouse gas 
(GHG) reduction targets under SB 375; require a nomination for a project to 
be funded by the Solutions for Congested Corridors Program to demonstrate 
how the project will contribute to achieving the state’s GHG emission 
reduction targets. Some MPOs are concerned about the targets, as well as 
how it will be determined if a plan will help meet GHG targets. This may be 
problematic because some much-needed high-priority infrastructure 
projects, such as projects that focus on repairing existing roadways or 
bridges, may not significantly impact GHG emissions but are still necessary 
for operations and safety reasons. Additionally, this requirement could 
require regional governments to prioritize GHG reduction over other 
important considerations, like safety, system preservation, equity, and 
economic development, depending on the specific context. There are also 
concerns about the bill’s impact on local implementation of VMT mitigation 
banks.   
 
AB-7 (Friedman) Transportation: planning: project selection 
processes. (2-year bill) 
AB 7 would introduce a new layer of project selection criteria that must be 
incorporated into the selection process for transportation projects funded by 
specified local, state, and federal sources. These provisions create a new and 
overly complex burden on the project selection process.  
 
The bill would require the state to include a fiscal analysis and explanation of 
planning assumptions in the California Transportation Plan, which is 
supported by most regions, and would require the California Transportation 
Plan to include an analysis of how the California State Transportation Agency 
(CalSTA), Department of Transportation (Caltrans), and the California 
Transportation Commission (CTC) are achieving principles in the Climate 
Action Plan for Transportation Infrastructure (CAPTI), the Infrastructure 
Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) and the federal Justice40 initiative. 
 

8-7



The bill would also require CalSTA, Caltrans, and CTC, to the extent possible, 
feasible, applicable, and cost-effective, to incorporate 18 specified principles 
into their processes for project development, selection, and implementation. 
There are concerns by regions on how these 18 principles will be considered 
for individual projects where they may not be applicable. 
 
AB-1525 (Bonta) Transportation projects: priority populations. (2-
year bill) 
This bill would require CalSTA, Caltrans, and CTC to develop an evaluation 
process to determine if transportation projects address an important need of 
priority populations. This bill also requires, on or before July 1, 2026, that 
60% of the funding allocated by CalSTA, Caltrans, and CTC be allocated for 
projects in priority population areas. Critics are concerned about how priority 
populations will be defined and how this might impact other state goals.  
 

 
Governor’s Infrastructure Budget Trailer Bills 

The Governor and Legislature negotiated a series of individual proposals to 
streamline administrative procedures, accelerate environmental mitigation, 
and provide new tools for implementing infrastructure and environmental 
projects.  
 
1. CEQA Administrative Record - This proposal aims to expedite the 

development of CEQA administrative records by implementing timeframes 
for petitioners to adhere to, excluding certain internal emails from the 
record, and permitting electronic filing. It will reduce litigation delays and 
accelerate project implementation. 
 

2. CEQA Judicial Streamlining - This proposal seeks to complete any judicial 
challenges and appeals within 270 days for certain projects, including 
energy, manufacturing, transportation, and water-related projects. This 
will streamline legal proceedings and expedite projects that align with the 
Governor's Climate Action Plan for Transportation Infrastructure. For 
transportation projects, the streamlined litigation pathway is limited to 10 
state and 10 local or regional transportation projects certified by the 
Secretary of Transportation to advance the goals of the Governor’s 
Climate Action Plan for Transportation Infrastructure 
 

3. Accelerating Environmental Mitigation for Transportation - Would allow 
the direct purchase of environmental mitigation services when required 
by an environmental permitting agency. It could speed up environmental 
mitigation processes for transportation projects. 

 

8-8



4. Job Order Contracting - The proposal authorizes Caltrans to use job order 
contracting to quickly and efficiently carry out routine transportation 
projects and maintenance work, which could improve the timeliness and 
cost-effectiveness of these activities. 

 
5. NEPA Assignment for Rail and Public Transit Projects - This proposal 

removes the sunset provision, allowing California to permanently accept 
the jurisdiction of federal courts and waive immunity by CalSTA for 
certain federal environmental responsibilities under NEPA. This will lead to 
continued efficiencies in the environmental review process for rail and 
transit projects. 

 
6. Progressive Design Build - The Governor proposes a progressive design-

build pilot program for the Department of Water Resources (DWR) and 
Caltrans until January 1, 2031. Each Department is allowed 8 projects for 
this delivery method. This change may increase project delivery speed 
and reduce costs. 

 
7. Reclassification of Fully Protected Species – This would allow for the 

reclassification of fully protected species to facilitate responsible and 
appropriate development but would also allow the Department of Fish and 
Wildlife to require mitigation and other actions to contribute to the 
conservation of these species. 

 
8. IRA Green Financing - The Governor proposes allowing the California 

IBank and DWR to utilize federal funding provided in the Inflation 
Reduction Act to finance greenhouse gas reduction projects. This could 
increase the financing available for environmentally beneficial projects. 

 
9. Direct Contracting for I-15 Wildlife Crossings - This proposal authorizes 

Caltrans to directly contract to construct three wildlife crossings over I-
15. This will facilitate the Brightline West high-speed rail project and 
contribute to wildlife conservation. 

 
 
 
 

\\RTCSERV2\Shared\RTC\TC2023\08\Consent\LegislativeUpdate\Attachment 1-Bill-Summary.docx 
 

8-9



AGENDA: August 3, 2023 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) 

FROM: Amanda Marino, Transportation Planner 

RE: Transportation Network Companies (TNC) Access For All Program 
– Wheelchair Accessible Vehicle (WAV) Transportation Service

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Staff recommends that the RTC approve the attached resolution (Attachment 
1) authorizing the Executive Director to execute a contract with Community
Bridges in an amount not to exceed $114,103 to provide Wheelchair
Accessible Vehicle (WAV) transportation services for the period beginning
September 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2025.

BACKGROUND 

The California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) created the TNC Access for 
All Program to implement Senate Bill (SB) 1376 (Hill: 2018) which directed 
the CPUC to establish a program relating to accessibility for persons with 
disabilities, including wheelchair users who need a wheelchair accessible 
vehicle (WAV). 

The CPUC made Decision 19-06-033 which requires transportation network 
companies (such as Uber and Lyft) to collect an “access fee” in the amount 
of $0.10 from each completed TNC trip, and defined geographic areas as 
individual counties for the purpose of fee collection and redistribution to 
“access providers” that establish on-demand transportation programs to 
meet the needs of persons with disabilities.  

In Decision 20-03-007, the CPUC authorized Local Access Fund 
Administrators (LAFAs) to develop WAV programs locally, using Access Fund 
moneys collected by the CPUC, and tasked the Consumer Protection and 
Enforcement Division to develop program rules for the selection of LAFAs, 
disbursement of funds, and compliance with data reporting. Decision 20-03-
007 limits the entities that may serve as LAFAs to metropolitan planning 
organizations (MPOs), regional transportation planning agencies (RTPAs), 
and county transportation commissions (CTCs). 

9-1

https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/regulatory-services/licensing/transportation-licensing-and-analysis-branch/transportation-network-companies/tnc-accessibility-for-persons-with-disabilities-program
https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/regulatory-services/licensing/transportation-licensing-and-analysis-branch/transportation-network-companies/tnc-accessibility-for-persons-with-disabilities-program
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB1376&search_keywords=wAV
https://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M309/K524/309524812.PDF
http://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/SearchRes.aspx?docformat=ALL&DocID=329472459
https://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M329/K472/329472459.PDF
https://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs/Published/G000/M329/K472/329472459.PDF


At the June 2022 Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) meeting, the 
RTC adopted a resolution authorizing the RTC to serve as the Local Access 
Fund Administrator (LAFA) for the Transportation Network Companies (TNC) 
Access for All Program to improve the accessibility of transportation for 
persons with disabilities in Santa Cruz County. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
RTC staff developed a request for proposals (RFP) for wheelchair accessible 
on-demand transportation in compliance with the guidelines set out by the 
CPUC and with consultation from the Elderly and Disabled Transportation 
Advisory Committee (E&D TAC). The proposed contract term is from 
September 1, 2023 to June 30, 2025. 
 
The RFP was released in February 2023 and no proposals were received by 
the original deadline of April 21, 2023. Staff spoke with some potential 
proposers and then reissued the RFP with an extended deadline. The RTC 
received two proposals from Community Bridges and Capital Transit in 
response to the RFP due on July 7, 2023. The proposals were reviewed by a 
panel composed of two TAMC staff members managing TAMC’s TNC Access 
For All Program, a representative of the E&D TAC, and RTC staff. Based on 
screening criteria derived from CPUC eligibility requirements, Community 
Bridges is eligible to receive funding to provide on-demand WAV service and 
scored the highest using the scoring criteria included in the RFP.  
 
Community Bridges Lift Line, the designated Consolidated Transportation 
Services Agency (CTSA) for Santa Cruz County, enhances equitable access 
to safe and affordable transportation for residents with disabilities, 
particularly residents of rural or low-income areas who face disproportionate 
challenges accessing critical transportation. This funding will be used to 
develop a new on-demand WAV transportation program “Wheels on Lift 
Line”. This program will allow for riders to request trips on-demand or 
schedule up to 7 days in advance. WAV transportation service will be 
available to all Santa Cruz County residents with disabilities requiring a WAV 
regardless of income and age costing a flat fee of $5 per ride. Riders can 
schedule trips on an integrated scheduling and dispatching paratransit 
mobile software application or by calling a dispatcher.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The available funding for this program is $134,239. Of that amount, up to 
15% can be used for administration of the program. A total of $114,103 is 
already included in the approved RTC FY 2023/24 budget for TNC Access for 

9-2



All professional services, which will cover the proposed contract. There are 
no additional fiscal impacts associated with the proposed contract. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Staff recommends that the RTC approve the attached resolution to authorize 
the Executive Director to execute a contract with Community Bridges for on-
demand WAV transportation services in Santa Cruz County. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
1. Resolution 

a. Draft Contract  
 
 

 

9-3



Attachment 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 

Adopted by the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
on the date of August 3, 2023 

on the motion of  
duly seconded by  

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO A 
CONTRACT WITH COMMUNITY BRIDGES FOR THE LOCAL ACCESS FOR ALL 

PROGRAM WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE TRANSPORTATION SERVICE 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1376 (2018) designated the California Public Utilities 
Commission (CPUC) as the administrative agency for the Access for All Program;   

WHEREAS, The Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission serves 
as the Local Access Fund Administrator (LAFA) for the Transportation Network 
Company (TNC) Access for All Program to administer a funding program for local 
Access Providers for on-demand and demand response wheelchair accessible vehicle 
(WAV) transportation services; and 

WHEREAS, as the LAFA, the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation 
Commission receives TNC Access for All Program funds from the CPUC and $114,103 
of such funds are included in the RTC FY 2023-24 budget for WAV transportation 
services; 

WHEREAS, after releasing a request for proposals (RFP), the RTC received two 
proposals to provide WAV transportation services; and 

WHEREAS, a review committee made up of one representative from RTC staff, 
a representative from the RTC’s Elderly and Disabled Transportation Advisory 
Committee, and two representatives from partner LAFA agency TAMC evaluated 
proposals received, and unanimously recommended award of the contract to 
Community Bridges; 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE SANTA CRUZ COUNTY REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION THAT: 

1. The Executive Director is authorized to negotiate and enter into a professional
services agreement (Exhibit A) with Community Bridges for a not to exceed
amount of $114,103 for professional services to provide on-demand and
demand response wheelchair accessible vehicle (WAV) transportation
services.

9-4



\\rtcserv2\Internal\E&DTAC\TNC Access For All\RTC SR\Access Provider - August 2023 RTC Meeting\TNC Access Provider-
RES.docx 

AYES:      COMMISSIONERS 

NOES: COMMISSIONERS 

ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS  

____________________________ 
Manu Koenig, Chair 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Guy Preston, Secretary 

Distribution: Community Bridges 
  RTC Fiscal 

9-5



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –1 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

Exhibit A 
Contract between 

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
and Community Bridges 

for On-Demand and Demand Response Wheelchair Accessible 
Vehicle Service within Santa Cruz County through  

the Transportation Network Company Access for All Program 

This Agreement is made as of ____________, (“Effective Date”) by and 
between Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission (hereafter 
“COMMISSION”), and Community Bridges (hereafter “CONTRACTOR”). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1376 (2018) designated the California Public 
Utilities Commission (CPUC) as the administrative agency for the Access 
for All Program; and 

WHEREAS, the COMMISSION serves as the Local Access Fund 
Administrator (LAFA) for the Transportation Network Company Access for 
All Program to administer a funding program for local Access Providers for 
on-demand and demand response wheelchair accessible vehicle (WAV) 
transportation services; and 

WHEREAS, the COMMISSION released a request for proposals (RFP) 
and CONTRACTOR was the selected proposer after review of the proposals 
received by the RTC; and 

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR represents to the COMMISSION that it is 
composed of highly trained professionals and is fully qualified to operate 
the services described in this agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the parties have negotiated upon the terms pursuant to 
which CONTRACTOR will provide such services and have reduced such 
terms to writing. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

9-6



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –2 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

Agreement No. TPXXXX 
 

 
1. DUTIES.  

A. CONTRACTOR agrees to exercise special skill to accomplish the 
following results included in the Scope of Services (Exhibit A) which 
by this reference is incorporated herein. 

B. The CONTRACTOR warrants that the CONTRACTOR and its agents, 
subcontractors, and employees performing work hereunder are 
specially trained, experienced, competent and appropriately licensed 
to perform the work and deliver the services required by this 
AGREEMENT.  

C. The CONTRACTOR, its agents, subcontractors and employees, shall 
perform all work in a safe and skillful manner and in compliance with 
all applicable laws and regulations. All work performed under this 
AGREEMENT that is required by law to be performed or supervised by 
licensed personnel shall be performed in accordance with such 
licensing requirements.  

D. The CONTRACTOR shall furnish, at its own expense, all materials and 
equipment necessary to carry out the terms of this CONTRACTOR, 
except as otherwise provided herein. The CONTRACTOR shall not use 
COMMISSION premises, property (including equipment, instruments, 
or supplies) or personnel for any purpose other than in the 
performance of its obligations hereunder.  

E. The CONTRACTOR'S Project Manager shall be the person specified in 
Exhibit A. Scope of Services. If CONTRACTOR desires to change the 
project manager, CONTRACTOR shall get written approval from 
COMMISSION Contract Manager of the new project manager.  

F. The CONTRACTOR’S Project Manager shall meet with the 
COMMISSION’s Contract Manager, as needed, to discuss progress on 
the AGREEMENT. 

2. COMPENSATION 

COMMISSION shall pay CONTRACTOR quarterly, upon receipt of a valid 
invoice and reporting, as described in Section 3. Invoice and reporting 
should be sent by email to COMMISSION within 30 days of the end of 
the quarter for which payment is requested. Payment shall be made to 
CONTRACTOR as promptly as fiscal procedures will permit, generally 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of a properly submitted quarterly 
invoice and reporting. 

9-7



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –3 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

A. Disbursements shall be made to CONTRACTOR on the basis of 
services rendered and costs incurred to date, itemized in quarterly 
invoice. Eligible expenses include those listed in Attachment A of 
Exhibit A: Scope of Services.  

B. The total amount payable by COMMISSION to CONTRACTOR 
pursuant to this AGREEMENT shall not exceed $114,103. 

C. The payments prescribed herein shall constitute all compensation to 
CONTRACTOR for all costs of services, including, but not limited to, 
direct costs of labor of employees engaged by CONTRACTOR, travel 
expenses, telephone charges, copying and reproduction, computer 
time, and any and all other costs, expenses and charges of 
CONTRACTOR, its agents and employees. In no event shall 
COMMISSION be obligated to pay late fees or interest, whether or 
not such requirements are contained in CONTRACTOR’S invoice.  

D. Transportation and subsistence expenses shall not exceed the rates 
authorized to be paid rank and file STATE employees under current 
State Department of Personnel Administration. 

E. No payment will be made prior to approval of any work, nor for any 
work performed prior to approval by the COMMISSION and execution 
of this AGREEMENT. 

F. Invoices shall be sent to the COMMISSION’s Contract Manager at the 
following address:  

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission  
Attn: Amanda Marino, Transportation Planner 
1101 Pacific Avenue, Suite 250, Santa Cruz, CA, 95060 
 
And/or email to:amarino@sccrtc.org and 
accountspayable@sccrtc.org 

The invoices must include the following information: 

1. Itemized expenses incurred during the billing period; 

2. Total invoice/payment requested; 

3. Total amount previously paid under this AGREEMENT; and 

4. Report of expenditures by CONTRACTOR and subcontractors. 

G. For personnel subject to prevailing wage rates as described in the 
California Labor Code, all salary increases, which are the direct result 
of changes in the prevailing wage rates are reimbursable. 

3. REPORTING.  Contractor shall submit quarterly reports within 30 days 
of the end of each quarter. The term of this contract spans eight 
quarters. Quarter 1 spans from July 1, 2023 to September 30, 2023, 

9-8

mailto:amarino@sccrtc.org
mailto:accountspayable@sccrtc.org


Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –4 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

quarter 2 spans from October 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023, quarter 3 
spans from January 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024, quarter 4 spans from 
April 1, 2024 to June 30, 2024, quarter 5 spans from July 1, 2024 to 
September 30, 2024, quarter 6 spans from October 1, 2024 to 
December 31, 2024, quarter 7 spans from January 1, 2025 to March 31, 
2025, and quarter 8 spans from April 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025 . The 
reports shall include: 

A. Number of unique wheelchair accessible vehicles (WAVs) in 
operation. This information should be provided in an Excel document 
supplied to the Contractor by the COMMISSION. The number of 
unique wheelchair accessible vehicles in operation shall be provided 
by quarter and aggregated by hour of the day and day of the week. 
“In operation” is defined when a WAV: (a) is available to receive a 
trip request in that quarter/hour/day or (b) has accepted a trip 
request in that quarter/hour/day. 

B. Number and percentage of WAV trips completed, not 
accepted, cancelled by passenger, cancelled due to passenger 
no-show, and cancelled by driver. This information should be 
provided in an Excel document supplied to the Contractor by the 
COMMISSION. The number and percentage of WAV trips completed, 
not accepted, cancelled by passenger, cancelled due to passenger 
no-show, and cancelled by driver shall be provided by quarter and 
aggregated by hour of the day and day of the week. 

C. Completed WAV trip request response times. “Completed WAV 
trip” is defined as a WAV trip request that results in a passenger 
being dropped-off at the requested location. This information should 
be provided in an Excel document supplied to the Contractor by the 
COMMISSION. The completed WAV trip request response times shall 
be provided in deciles, as well as broken out by Period A (time 
elapsed from when a trip is requested until the trip is accepted) and 
B (time elapsed from when a trip is accepted until the vehicle 
arrives). Response time is the elapsed time between when a trip is 
requested and when the passenger is picked-up (Period A plus Period 
B). The Access Provider shall provide WAV trip response times in 
deciles, as well as Periods A and B in deciles, by quarter. 

D. Trip completion rate. Contractor shall provide the COMMISSION 
the percentage of completed WAV trip requests in an Excel document 
supplied to the Contractor by the COMMISSION. Trip completion rate 
is calculated by dividing total trips completed by total requested 
unique trips, multiplied by 100. 

E. Evidence of outreach. Contractor shall provide proof of their effort 
to publicize and promote available WAV services to disability 

9-9



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –5 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

communities, how the partnership promoted WAV services, and 
marketing or promotional materials of those activities. This 
information can be provided in the form of an Excel spreadsheet or a 
PDF. 

F. Certification of driver training. Contractor shall provide 
certification that all WAV drivers operating on its platform have 
completed driver training on transporting peoples with disabilities 
within the past three years, including sensitivity training, passenger 
assistance techniques, accessibility equipment use, door-to-door 
service, and safety procedures. This certification shall be provided in 
the form of a PDF. 

G. Report of WAV driver training programs. Contractor shall provide 
list of driver training programs completed and number of WAV 
drivers that completed each training in that quarter. The report of 
WAV driver training programs shall be submitted in an Excel 
spreadsheet. 

H. Certification of inspection. Contractor shall submit a certification 
in the form of a PDF that all WAVs operating on its platform have 
been inspected and approved to conform with the ADA Accessibility 
Guidelines for Transportation Vehicles within the past year. Title 49 
Code of Federal Regulations, Chapter 38, Subpart B available at 
Electronic Code of Federal Regulations (eCFR) 

I. Number of complaints. Contractor shall provide the number of 
complaints received related to WAV driver or WAV services, 
categorized as follows: securement issues, driving training, vehicle 
safety and comfort, Service animal issue, stranded passenger, and 
others. This information shall be submitted in the form of an Excel 
spreadsheet provided by the COMMISSION. 

J. Funds expended. Contractor shall submit an Excel spreadsheet 
listing funds expended during the quarter, categorized by the types 
of costs listed in Eligible WAV Expenses (Exhibit A: Scope of Services, 
Attachment A). 

K. Safety protocol declaration form. Contractor shall certify under 
penalty of perjury to comply with safety protocols as listed in PUBLIC 
UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA ACCESS FOR 
ALL SAFETY PROTOCOL DECLARATION FORM. 

4. TERM OF AGREEMENT.    Unless earlier terminated as provided herein, 
this AGREEMENT shall remain in force until June 30, 2025.  

5. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT FOR CONVENIENCE OF EITHER 
PARTY.    Either party may terminate this AGREEMENT at any time by 
giving to the other party thirty (30) days written notice of such 

9-10

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-A/part-38?toc=1
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-49/subtitle-A/part-38?toc=1
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/www.cpuc.ca.gov/-/media/cpuc-website/divisions/consumer-protection-and-enforcement-division/documents/tlab/accessforall/tnc-access-for-all-program-access-provider/safety-protocols-declaration-final.pdf
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/www.cpuc.ca.gov/-/media/cpuc-website/divisions/consumer-protection-and-enforcement-division/documents/tlab/accessforall/tnc-access-for-all-program-access-provider/safety-protocols-declaration-final.pdf
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/www.cpuc.ca.gov/-/media/cpuc-website/divisions/consumer-protection-and-enforcement-division/documents/tlab/accessforall/tnc-access-for-all-program-access-provider/safety-protocols-declaration-final.pdf


Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –6 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

termination. Termination shall have no effect upon the rights and 
obligations of the parties arising out of the transaction occurring prior to 
the effective date of such termination. CONTRACTOR shall be paid for all 
work satisfactorily completed in accordance with this AGREEMENT prior 
to the effective dates of such termination. 

6. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT FOR CAUSE.    If through any cause 
within its control CONTRACTOR fails to fulfill in a timely and professional 
manner its obligations under this AGREEMENT, or if CONTRACTOR 
violates any of the terms or provisions of this AGREEMENT, 
COMMISSION shall have the right to terminate this AGREEMENT 
effective immediately upon COMMISSION giving written notice thereof 
to the CONTRACTOR. Termination shall have no effect upon the rights 
and obligations of the parties arising out of any transaction occurring 
prior to the effective date of such termination. CONTRACTOR shall be 
paid for all work completed satisfactorily in accordance with this 
AGREEMENT prior to the effective date of such termination. 

7. NON-ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT.    Inasmuch as this AGREEMENT is 
intended to secure the specialized services of the CONTRACTOR, 
CONTRACTOR shall not assign, transfer, delegate, or sublet this 
AGREEMENT or any interest herein with the exception of that outlined in 
the CONTRACTOR’S proposal without the prior written consent of the 
COMMISSION Executive Director, and any such assignment, transfer, 
delegation, or sublet without COMMISSION’S prior written consent shall 
be considered null and void. 

8. GOVERNING LAW.    The validity, enforceability and interpretation of 
any of the clauses of this AGREEMENT shall be determined and 
governed by the laws of the State of California. 

9. SEVERABILITY.    The invalidity and unenforceability of any terms or 
provisions hereof shall in no way affect the validity or enforceability of 
any other terms or provisions of this AGREEMENT. 

10. EMPLOYMENT STATUS.    CONTRACTOR shall, during the entire term of 
the AGREEMENT, be construed to be an Independent CONTRACTOR, and 
shall in no event be construed to be an employee of COMMISSION. 
CONTRACTOR understands and agrees that neither CONTRACTOR nor its 
employees will be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any 
COMMISSION group plan for hospital, surgical, or medical insurance, or 
for membership in any COMMISSION retirement program, including any 
pension or PERS benefit, or for paid vacation, paid sick leave, or other 
leave, with or without pay, or for any other benefit which accrues to a 
COMMISSION employee. 

9-11



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –7 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

11. WARRANTY OF CONTRACTOR.    CONTRACTOR warrants that it and its 
employees are properly certified and licensed under the laws and 
regulations of the State of California to provide the services agreed to 
herein. 

12. INDEMNIFICATION FOR DAMAGES, TAXES, AND 
CONTRIBUTIONS.    To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
CONTRACTOR shall exonerate, indemnify, defend, protect, and hold 
harmless the COMMISSION, its governing body, officers, officials, 
agents, employees and volunteers from and against: 

A. Any and all claims, demands, costs, damages, losses, expenses, or 
liability arising from or connected with the services provided under 
this AGREEMENT due to the recklessness, willful misconduct or 
negligent acts, errors, or omissions of the CONTRACTOR, its officers, 
subcontractors, employees, volunteers, or agents. The CONTRACTOR 
will reimburse COMMISSION for any expenditure, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by COMMISSION in defending 
against claims ultimately determined to be due to recklessness, 
willful misconduct or to negligent acts, errors, or omissions of the 
CONTRACTOR, its officers, subcontractors, employees, volunteers, or 
agents. 

B. Any and all federal, State and local taxes, charges, fees, penalties, or 
contributions required to be paid with respect to CONTRACTOR and 
CONTRACTOR’S officers, subcontractors employees, volunteers, and 
agents engaged in the performance of this AGREEMENT (including, 
without limitation, unemployment insurance, social security, and 
payroll tax withholding). 

C. In the event that CONTRACTOR or any employee, agent, or 
subcontractor of CONTRACTOR providing services under this 
AGREEMENT is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the 
California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) to be eligible 
for enrollment in PERS as an employee of COMMISSION, 
CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 
COMMISSION for the payment of any employee and/or employer 
contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of CONTRACTOR or its 
employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of 
any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would 
otherwise be the responsibility of COMMISSION. 

9-12



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –8 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

D. The provisions of this section shall survive expiration, termination, or 
suspension of this AGREEMENT.  

13. WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES.    Neither party shall have 
any claim or right against the other, whether in AGREEMENT, warranty, 
tort (including negligence), strict liability or otherwise, for any special, 
indirect, incidental, or consequential damages of any kind or nature 
whatsoever, such as, but not limited to, loss of revenue, loss of profits 
on revenue, loss of customers or contracts, loss of use of equipment or 
loss of data, work interruption, increased cost of work or cost of any 
financing, howsoever caused, even if same were reasonably 
foreseeable. 

14. INSURANCE.    CONTRACTOR, at its sole cost and expense, for the full 
term of this CONTRACT, and any extensions thereof, shall obtain and 
maintain at minimum compliance with all of the following insurance 
coverage(s) and requirements. Such insurance coverage shall be 
primary coverage as respects COMMISSION and any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by COMMISSION shall be excess of 
CONTRACTOR’S insurance coverage and shall not contribute to it. 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers reasonably acceptable to 
COMMISSION. 
A. Types of Insurance and Minimum Limits  

1. Workers’ Compensation in the minimum statutorily required 
coverage amounts.  

2. Automobile Liability Insurance for each of CONTRACTOR’S 
vehicles used in the performance of this CONTRACT, including 
owned, non-owned (e.g., owned by CONTRACTOR’S employees), 
leased or hired vehicles, in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 
combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and 
property damage.   

3. Comprehensive or Commercial General Liability Insurance 
coverage at least as broad as ISO form CG 00 01, with a 
minimum limit of two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence, 
and $4,000,000 in the aggregate, including coverage for: (a) 
products and completed operations, (b) bodily and personal 
injury, (c) broad form property damage, (d) contractual liability, 
and (e) cross-liability. 

4. If the CONTRACTOR maintains broader coverage and/or higher 
limits than the minimums shown above, the COMMISSION 
requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the 
higher limits maintained by CONTRACTOR. Policy should include 
coverage for completed operations for 10 years or the term 

9-13



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –9 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

matching statute of limitations. Any available insurance proceeds 
in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and 
coverage shall be available to the COMMISSION. CONTRACTOR 
hereby acknowledges and agrees that any and all insurances 
carried by it shall be deemed liability coverage for any and all 
actions it performs in connection with this AGREEMENT. 

Other Insurance Provisions 

1. If any insurance coverage required in this AGREEMENT is 
provided on a “Claims Made” rather than “Occurrence” form, 
CONTRACTOR agrees that the retroactive date thereof shall be no 
later than the effective date of this AGREEMENT, and that it shall 
maintain the required coverage for a period of three (3) years 
after the expiration of this AGREEMENT (hereinafter “post 
agreement coverage”) and any extensions thereof. CONTRACTOR 
may maintain the required post agreement coverage by renewal 
or purchase of prior acts or tail coverage. The COMMISSION will 
not be responsible for any premiums or assessments on the 
policy. 

2. All policies of Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be 
endorsed to cover the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation 
Commission, its officials, employees, agents, and volunteers as 
additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of the work 
or operations and activities performed by or on behalf of, the 
CONTRACTOR, including materials, parts or equipment furnished 
in connection with such work or operations. Endorsements shall 
be at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 
10 10 01 and CG 20 37 10 01, covering ongoing operations and 
products and completed operations.   

3. Should CONTRACTOR fail to obtain such an endorsement to any 
policy required hereunder, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible to 
provide at least thirty (30) days’ notice (10 days for non-payment 
of premium) of cancellation of such policy to the COMMISSION as 
a material term of this AGREEMENT. 

4. CONTRACTOR agrees to provide its insurance broker(s) with a full 
copy of these insurance provisions and provide COMMISSION on 
or before the effective date of this AGREEMENT with Certificates 
of Insurance and endorsements for all required coverages. The 
Certificates of Insurance must note whether the policy does or 
does not include any self-insured retention and also must disclose 
the deductible. The certificates shall require the carrier to notify 
COMMISSION in writing of any material change, cancellation, 
termination or non-renewal of the coverage at least thirty days 

9-14



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –10 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

(30) days in advance of the effective date of such cancellation or 
material change, or non-renewal. Insurance shall not be canceled 
until after ten (10) days prior written notice in the event of 
nonpayment of premium. Failure to obtain the required 
documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the 
CONTRACTOR’S obligation to provide them. All Certificates of 
Insurance and endorsements shall be sent via email to: 

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
contracts@sccrtc.org 

5. The CONTRACTOR agrees that the insurance herein provided for, 
shall be in effect at all times during the term of this AGREEMENT. 
In the event said insurance coverage expires at any time or times 
during the term of this AGREEMENT, the CONTRACTOR agrees to 
provide at least thirty (30) days prior notice to said expiration 
date; and a new Certificate of Insurance evidencing insurance 
coverage as provided for herein, for not less than either the 
remainder of the term of the AGREEMENT, or for a period of not 
less than one (1) year. New Certificates of Insurance are subject 
to the approval of the COMMISSION. In the event the 
CONTRACTOR fails to keep in effect at all times insurance 
coverage as herein provided, the COMMISSION may, in addition 
to any other remedies it may have, terminate this AGREEMENT 
upon occurrence of such event. 

6. If any insurance policy of CONTRACTOR required by this 
document includes language conditioning the insurer’s legal 
obligation to defend or indemnify COMMISSION on the 
performance of any act(s) by the named insured, then said 
insurance policy, by endorsement, shall also name the 
COMMISSION as a named insured. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, both the CONTRACTOR and its insurers agree that by 
naming the COMMISSION as a named insured, the COMMISSION 
may at its sole direction, but is not obligated to, perform any act 
required by the named insured under said insurance policies. 

7. CONTRACTOR shall do all things required to be performed by it 
pursuant to its insurance policies including but not limited to 
paying within five (5) workdays, all deductibles and self-insured 
retentions (SIR) required to be paid under any insurance policy 
that may provide defense or indemnity coverage to COMMISSION 
or any additional insured. 

8. CONTRACTOR hereby grants to COMMISSION a waiver of any 
right of subrogation which any insurer of said CONTRACTOR may 

9-15

mailto:contracts@sccrtc.org


Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –11 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

acquire against the COMMISSION by virtue of the payment of any 
loss under such insurance. CONTRACTOR agrees to obtain any 
endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of 
subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or 
not the COMMISSION has received a waiver of subrogation 
endorsement from the insurer. 

9. CONTRACTOR shall cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted 
in all subcontracts for any work covered under this CONTRACT, 
provided that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to contracts 
or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw 
materials. 

15. NOTICES.    All notices hereunder and communications regarding 
interpretation of the terms of this AGREEMENT and changes thereto, 
shall be effected by the mailing thereof by registered or certified mail, 
return receipt requested, postage prepaid, and addressed or emailing 
with delivery receipt requested as follows: 

COMMISSION: 
Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Amanda Marino, Transportation Planner 
1101 Pacific Avenue, Suite 250 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
amarino@sccrtc.org 
 
CONTRACTOR: 
Community Bridges 
Raymon Cancino, Chief Executive Officer 
519 Main St., Watsonville, CA 95076 
raymonc@cbridges.org 

16. NON-DISCRIMINATION AND COMPLIANCE PROVISIONS.  
A. The CONTRACTOR’S signature affixed herein and dated shall 

constitute a certification under penalty of perjury under the laws of 
the State of California that the CONTRACTOR has, unless exempt, 
complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements of 
Government Code 12990 et seq. and 2 CCR 8103. CONTRACTOR and 
subcontractors shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of their 
employees and applicants for employment are free from such 
discrimination and harassment. 

B. During the performance of this AGREEMENT, the CONTRACTOR and 
its subcontractors shall not deny the AGREEMENT benefits to any 
person on the basis of race, color, sex, gender, religious creed, 
national origin, ancestry, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS 

9-16

mailto:amarino@sccrtc.org


Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –12 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

status), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), genetic 
information, marital status, gender, gender identity, gender 
expression, age, sexual orientation, military, or veteran status. 
CONTRACTOR and subcontractors shall ensure that the evaluation and 
treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are free 
from such discrimination and harassment. Such action shall include, 
but not be limited to, the following: recruitment; advertising, layoff 
or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and 
selection for training (including apprenticeship), employment, 
upgrading, demotion, or transfer. The CONTRACTOR agrees to post 
in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, notice setting forth the provisions of this non-
discrimination clause. 

C. CONTRACTOR and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of 
the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government. Code §12990 et 
seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (.2 CCR 
11000et seq.), the provisions of Government Code section 11135 to 
11139.5, and the regulations of standards adopted by the 
COMMISSION to implement such article.  

D. CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their 
obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they 
have a collective bargaining or other AGREEMENT. 

E. CONTRACTOR shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance 
provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform work under 
this AGREEMENT. 

F. The CONTRACTOR, with regard to the work performed under this 
AGREEMENT, shall act in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §2000d et seq.). Title VI provides that the 
recipients of federal assistance will implement and maintain a policy 
of nondiscrimination in which no person in the United States shall, on 
the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, disability, 
be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of or subject to 
discrimination under any program or activity by the recipients of 
federal assistance or their assignees and successors in interest. 

G. CONTRACTOR and its subcontractors shall permit access to all 
records of employment, employment advertisements, application 
forms, and other pertinent data and records by the State Fair 
Employment Practices and Housing Commission or any other agency 
of the State of California designated by State to investigate 
compliance with this Article. 

9-17



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –13 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

H. In the event of CONTRACTOR’S non-compliance with the non-
discrimination clauses of this AGREEMENT or with any of the said 
rules, regulations or orders, the COMMISSION may cancel, terminate 
or suspend the AGREEMENT in whole or in part. CONTRACTOR may 
also be declared ineligible for further agreements with the 
COMMISSION. 

17. DOCUMENTATION; RETENTION OF MATERIALS 
A. CONTRACTOR shall maintain adequate documentation to substantiate 

all charges as required under Section 2 of this AGREEMENT. 

B. CONTRACTOR shall maintain the records and any other records 
related to the performance of this AGREEMENT and shall allow 
COMMISSION access to such records during the performance of this 
AGREEMENT and for a period of three (3) years after completion of 
all services hereunder. 

18. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.    CONTRACTOR shall perform all services 
described herein in compliance with all applicable federal, state and 
local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances, including but not limited 
to the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101, et seq.) 
(“ADA”). 

19. COMPLIANCE WITH TERMS OF FEDERAL OR STATE GRANT.    If 
any part of this AGREEMENT has been or will be funded pursuant to a 
grant from the federal or State government in which COMMISSION is 
the grantee, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all provisions of such grant 
applicable to CONTRACTOR’S work hereunder and said provisions shall 
be deemed a part of this AGREEMENT as though fully set forth herein. 

20. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.     

A. CONTRACTOR shall disclose any financial, business, or other 
relationship with COMMISSION that may have an impact upon the 
outcome of this AGREEMENT, or any ensuing COMMISSION project. 
CONTRACTOR shall also list current clients who may have a financial 
interest in the outcome of this AGREEMENT, or any ensuing 
COMMISSION project, which will follow. 

B. CONTRACTOR hereby certifies that it does not now have, nor shall it 
acquire any financial or business interest that would conflict with the 
performance of services under this AGREEMENT. 

21. OWNERSHIP AND USE OF PROPERTY RIGHTS.    Unless otherwise 
expressly provided herein, all original works created by CONTRACTOR 
for COMMISSION hereunder shall be and remain the property of 
COMMISSION. CONTRACTOR agrees that any patentable or 

9-18



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –14 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

copyrightable property rights, to the extent created for COMMISSION as 
part of the services provided hereunder, shall be in the public domain 
and may be used by anyone for any lawful purpose. COMMISSION 
agrees to hold CONTRACTOR harmless from all damages, claims, 
expenses, and losses arising out of any COMMISSION member reuse of 
the plans, specifications, drawings, maps, models, computer files and 
other documents for purposes other than those described in this 
AGREEMENT, unless written authorization of CONTRACTOR is first 
obtained. 

22. ACCESSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS.    COMMISSION requires that all 
COMMISSION telecommunication services, websites and web- based 
applications and services are accessible to, and usable by, persons with 
disabilities. CONTRACTOR shall provide all electronic, 
telecommunication, and information technology products and services to 
be provided under this AGREEMENT in conformance with title 28, Part 
35 of the Code of Federal Regulations, 28 C.F.R. §§ 35.130, et seq., and 
the accessibility standards set forth in Section 508 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended. Section 508 standards are 
viewable at http://access-board.gov/sec508/standards.htm. 

23. COMPLETE AGREEMENT. 
A. The two parties to this AGREEMENT, who are the before named 

CONTRACTOR and the before named COMMISSION, hereby agree 
that this AGREEMENT constitutes the entire AGREEMENT which is 
made and concluded in duplicate between the two parties. Both of 
these parties for and in consideration of the payments to be made, 
conditions mentioned, and work to be performed; each agree to 
diligently perform in accordance with the terms and conditions of this 
AGREEMENT as evidenced by the signatures below.  

B. COMMISSION DESIGNEE. The Executive Director of COMMISSION, or 
his or her designee, shall have the authority to act for and exercise 
any of the rights of COMMISSION as set forth in this AGREEMENT 
subsequent to, and in accordance with the authorization granted by 
the COMMISSION.  

C. COMPLETE AGREEMENT, INCLUDING ATTACHMENTS. This 
AGREEMENT includes all exhibits, attachments, and documents 
incorporated herein and made applicable by reference, constitutes 
the complete and exclusive statement of the terms and conditions of 
the AGREEMENT between COMMISSION and CONTRACTOR, and 
supersedes all prior representations, understandings and 
communications. The invalidity in whole or in part of any term or 
condition of this AGREEMENT shall not affect the validity of other 
terms or conditions. The COMMISSION’s waiver of CONTRACTOR 'S 

9-19

http://access-board.gov/sec508/standards.htm


Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –15 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

performance of any term(s) or condition(s) of this AGREEMENT shall 
not be construed as a waiver for any future performance of such 
term(s) or conditions. 

Attachments are:  
 
Exhibit A Scope of Services 
Exhibit B Cost Proposal  
Exhibit C Certification of Indirect Costs and Financial Management 

System 
Exhibit D Levine Act Statement 

 
Each of the undersigned represents and warrants that he or she is duly 
authorized to execute and deliver this AGREEMENT and that such execution 
is binding upon the entity for which he or she is executing this document. 
 
 

9-20

https://ig.dot.ca.gov/-/media/ig-media/documents/fdr/ig_certification_indirect_costs_financial_management_system_v2.pdf
https://ig.dot.ca.gov/-/media/ig-media/documents/fdr/ig_certification_indirect_costs_financial_management_system_v2.pdf


Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –16 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

Exhibit A: Scope of Services  
 
Project Title: Wheels on Lift Line 
Contractor: Community Bridges 
Program Manager: Jesus Bojorquez  
 
CONTRACTOR tasks include, but are not limited to:  

Community Bridges shall provide on-demand and demand response 
wheelchair accessible vehicle services within Santa Cruz County and be able 
to provide responses within 24 hours of a ride request. Wheelchair accessible 
vehicle (WAV) transportation services shall not be on a fixed route or 
schedule. WAV transportation service will be available to all Santa Cruz 
County residents with disabilities requiring a WAV regardless of income and 
age costing a flat fee of $5 per ride. 

WAV rides are scheduled using a scheduling and dispatching paratransit 
software application used to support the transportation management efforts 
of demand response transit services. Community Bridges will additionally 
have 2 schedulers who can provide assistance over the phone within the 
operating hours of 8:00 am to 5:00 pm. 

Ride requests should be taken for immediate pick-up and with advance 
notice if requested by the rider. Community Bridges should provide the rider 
with the estimated wait time for pick-up while scheduling a ride.   

Community Bridges shall use funding only for eligible expenses listed in 
Attachment A, Eligible WAV Expenses. 

Project Schedule: 

August 3, 2023  RTC Board Meeting and 
Recommended Approval of Contract  

September 1, 2023  Contract Begins  
June 30, 2025 Contract Ends 

Reporting Requirements: 

Contractor shall submit quarterly reports within 30 days of the end of each 
quarter and report data required by the CPUC. The term of this contract 
spans eight quarters. Quarter 1 spans from July 1, 2023 to September 30, 
2023, quarter 2 spans from October 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023, quarter 
3 spans from January 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024, quarter 4 spans from April 
1, 2024 to June 30, 2024, quarter 5 spans from July 1, 2024 to September 

9-21



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –17 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

30, 2024, quarter 6 spans from October 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024, 
quarter 7 spans from January 1, 2025 to March 31, 2025, and quarter 8 
spans from April 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025 . The reports shall include: 

• Number of unique wheelchair accessible vehicles (WAVs) in 
operation. This information should be provided in an Excel document 
supplied to the Contractor by the COMMISSION. The number of unique 
wheelchair accessible vehicles in operation shall be provided by 
quarter and aggregated by hour of the day and day of the week. “In 
operation” is defined when a WAV: (a) is available to receive a trip 
request in that quarter/hour/day or (b) has accepted a trip request in 
that quarter/hour/day. 

• Number and percentage of WAV trips completed, not accepted, 
cancelled by passenger, cancelled due to passenger no-show, 
and cancelled by driver. This information should be provided in an 
Excel document supplied to the Contractor by the COMMISSION. The 
number and percentage of WAV trips completed, not accepted, 
cancelled by passenger, cancelled due to passenger no-show, and 
cancelled by driver shall be provided by quarter and aggregated by 
hour of the day and day of the week. 

• Completed WAV trip request response times. “Completed WAV 
trip” is defined as a WAV trip request that results in a passenger being 
dropped-off at the requested location. This information should be 
provided in an Excel document supplied to the Contractor by the 
COMMISSION. The completed WAV trip request response times shall 
be provided in deciles, as well as broken out by Period A (time elapsed 
from when a trip is requested until the trip is accepted) and B (time 
elapsed from when a trip is accepted until the vehicle arrives). 
Response time is the elapsed time between when a trip is requested 
and when the passenger is picked-up (Period A plus Period B). The 
Access Provider shall provide WAV trip response times in deciles, as 
well as Periods A and B in deciles, by quarter. 

• Trip completion rate. Contractor shall provide the COMMISSION the 
percentage of completed WAV trip requests in an Excel document 
supplied to the Contractor by the COMMISSION. Trip completion rate is 
calculated by dividing total trips completed by total requested unique 
trips, multiplied by 100. 

• Evidence of outreach. Contractor shall provide proof of their effort to 
publicize and promote available WAV services to disability 
communities, how the partnership promoted WAV services, and 
marketing or promotional materials of those activities. This information 
can be provided in the form of an Excel spreadsheet or a PDF. 

• Certification of driver training. Contractor shall provide certification 
that all WAV drivers operating on its platform have completed driver 

9-22



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –18 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

training on transporting peoples with disabilities within the past three 
years, including sensitivity training, passenger assistance techniques, 
accessibility equipment use, door-to-door service, and safety 
procedures. This certification shall be provided in the form of a PDF. 

• Report of WAV driver training programs. Contractor shall provide 
list of driver training programs completed and number of WAV drivers 
that completed each training in that quarter. The report of WAV driver 
training programs shall be submitted in an Excel spreadsheet. 

• Certification of inspection. Contractor shall submit a certification in 
the form of a PDF that all WAVs operating on its platform have been 
inspected and approved to conform with the ADA Accessibility 
Guidelines for Transportation Vehicles within the past year. Title 49 
Code of Federal Regulations, Chapter 38, Subpart B available at 
Electronic Code of Federal Regulations (eCFR) 

• Number of complaints. Contractor shall provide the number of 
complaints received related to WAV driver or WAV services, 
categorized as follows: securement issues, driving training, vehicle 
safety and comfort, Service animal issue, stranded passenger, and 
others. This information shall be submitted in the form of an Excel 
spreadsheet provided by the COMMISSION. 

• Funds expended. Contractor shall submit an Excel spreadsheet 
listing funds expended during the quarter, categorized by the types of 
costs listed in Eligible WAV Expenses (Exhibit A: Scope of Services, 
Attachment A).  

• Safety protocol declaration form. Contractor shall certify under 
penalty of perjury to comply with safety protocols as listed in PUBLIC 
UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA ACCESS FOR 
ALL SAFETY PROTOCOL DECLARATION FORM. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

9-23

chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/www.cpuc.ca.gov/-/media/cpuc-website/divisions/consumer-protection-and-enforcement-division/documents/tlab/accessforall/tnc-access-for-all-program-access-provider/safety-protocols-declaration-final.pdf
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/www.cpuc.ca.gov/-/media/cpuc-website/divisions/consumer-protection-and-enforcement-division/documents/tlab/accessforall/tnc-access-for-all-program-access-provider/safety-protocols-declaration-final.pdf
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/www.cpuc.ca.gov/-/media/cpuc-website/divisions/consumer-protection-and-enforcement-division/documents/tlab/accessforall/tnc-access-for-all-program-access-provider/safety-protocols-declaration-final.pdf


Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –19 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

 
Attachment A: Eligible WAV Expenses 

 
Eligible WAV Expenses Adopted in  

D.20-03 007 
 
Vehicle Costs 
Lease/Rental/Purchase Costs 
Rental Subsidies for Driver 
Inspections 
Maintenance, Service, & Warranty 
Fuel Cost 
Cleaning Supplies/Services 
Other (Describe) 

 
Partnership Costs 
Transportation Service Partner Fees/Incentives and/or Management Fees 
Vehicle Subsidies 
Consultants/Legal 
Other (Describe) 

 
Marketplace Costs 
Recruiting 
Driver Onboarding 
Training Costs 
Driver Incentives 
Promo Codes for WAV 
Other (Describe) 

 
Operational Costs 
Marketing Costs 
Technology Investments/Engineering Costs/Enhancements 
Community Partnership/Engagement Costs 
Rental Management 
Pilot Management 
Wages, Salaries, and Benefits (non-maintenance personnel) 
Other (Describe) 

 
Other (Describe) 

 
 
 
 

9-24



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –20 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

 
Exhibit B: Cost Proposal 

 
Organization Name: COMMUNITY BRIDGES 
PROGRAM NAME: LIFT LINE 
Program Date: September 1, 2023 - June 30, 2025 

 
 

INCOME: 
 

Year 1 
 

Year 2 
 

TOTAL 

SCCRTC Funding over two years $ 56,051.50 $ 58,051.50 $ 114,103.00 
Program Income $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00 $ 10,000.00 
TOTAL PROGRAM REVENUE $ 61,051.50 $ 63,051.50 $ 124,103.00 
EXPENSES    
1. Driver Pool $ 29,797.00 $ 30,839.90 $ 60,636.90 
2. Dispatch $ 2,735.91 $ 2,831.67 $ 5,567.58 
3. Management & Overhead $ 8,896.59 $ 9,188.03 $ 18,084.62 
4. Vehicle Operating $ 13,596.00 $ 13,972.00 $ 27,568.00 
5. Outreach $ 6,026.00 $ 6,219.91 $ 12,245.91 
TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES $ 61,051.50 $ 63,051.50 $ 124,103.00 

 
REV OVER/UNDER EXPS 0 0 0 

 
 
 

Notes 
Program Income is 1000 rides @ $5/ride 
1. Includes 1000 hours of driver salaries & benefits (each year) 
2.100 hours of dispatch personnel (each year) 
3. Includes Management, Payroll, Reporting, etc. 
4. Includes fuel, insurance, MDT, communications & maintenance 
5. Publicity/Media 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

9-25



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Page A –21 
LAFA for Existing and Emerging Transportation Providers of Wheelchair- 
Accessible On-Demand Transportation 

 
SIGNATURE PAGE 

 
Agreement No. TPXXXX 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands the day and 
year first above written. 
 
 

1. CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
 
By 

Name 
Title 

 
Date 

 
Firm Name 
Address 
City, State, Zip 
Telephone 

 Email 
 
3.APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By 

Steve Mattas 
RTC Counsel 

 
Date 
 

2. SANTA CRUZ COUNTY REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION: 

 
 
By 

Guy Preston 
Executive Director 

 
Date 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
4. APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE: 
 
 
By 

Yesenia Parra 
RTC Administrative Services Officer 

 
Date 

 
 
 
Distribution: RTC Contract Manager, RTC Contracts, CONTRACTOR

9-26



AGENDA: August 3, 2023 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission (RTC)  

FROM: Brianna Goodman, Transportation Planner 

RE: San Lorenzo Valley Schools Complex Circulation and Access 
Study Final Report 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Staff recommends that the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation 
Commission (RTC) accept the San Lorenzo Valley Schools Circulation and 
Access Study. 

BACKGROUND 

In 2019 the RTC, in partnership with Caltrans, the County of Santa Cruz, 
and the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO), completed the 
Highway 9/San Lorenzo Valley Complete Streets Corridor Plan (SLV Plan) to 
help coordinate and prioritize transportation investments for this important 
corridor. The plan identified the Highway 9 corridor adjacent to and the 
circulation within the San Lorenzo Valley Unified School District (SLVUSD) 
elementary, middle, and high schools combined campus (SLV Schools) north 
of Felton as a top priority in need of dedicated active transportation facilities, 
improved access to transit, and optimized vehicle throughput. Projects 9, 10, 
11, and 12 of the SLV Plan defined the focus for the San Lorenzo Valley 
Schools Circulation and Access Study (Schools Access Study). 

In January 2022, RTC entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with 
SLVUSD, Caltrans, METRO, and the County of Santa Cruz to coordinate 
delivery of the SLV Schools Circulation and Access Improvements. RTC staff 
in conjunction with Caltrans and the SLVUSD identified the need to carry out 
more thorough analysis for this project as the next step toward 
implementing improvements along Highway 9 and serving access to the SLV 
Schools. 

The Schools Access Study began in March of 2022 and included public input, 
needs assessment, traffic analysis, preliminary engineering, and feasible 
recommendations for SLV Schools access improvements and along Highway 
9 between Graham Hill Road in downtown Felton and the southerly 
intersection of Glen Arbor Road. Concurrently, Caltrans is implementing the 

10-1



San Lorenzo Valley (SLV) Schools Access Study Page 2 

Felton Safety Project (05-1M400) which will provide a continuous shoulder 
and sidewalk for pedestrian and bicycle safety improvements along the 
westerly side of Highway 9 between the SLV Schools and the Highway 
9/Graham Hill Road/Felton Empire Road intersection. 

DISCUSSION 
In March 2022, the Schools Access Study was initiated through coordination 
with key stakeholders - the California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans), RTC, County of Santa Cruz Department of Public Works (DPW), 
San Lorenzo Valley Unified School District (SLVUSD), METRO, with technical 
support from professional traffic and engineering consultants. This 
stakeholder group is jointly referred to as the Circulation Project 
Management Team (CPMT). The CPMT met monthly to review existing 
conditions, data analyses, and discuss potential infrastructure and non-
infrastructure solutions. 

Two rounds of public engagement activities were hosted in Spring/Summer 
2022 and in Fall 2022.  During Spring/Summer 2022, four public outreach 
activities were hosted between May 17 and June 30, 2022, with input from 
elementary, middle, and high school students, school faculty and staff, and 
the public. During Fall 2022, two outreach activities were hosted on 
November 2 and 3, 2022, with input from members of the public during a 
virtual and in-person community workshop.  

Additionally, presentations on the Schools Access Study were given to the 
following groups at pre-scheduled meetings: 

1. October 3, 2022: RTC Bicycle Advisory Committee
2. October 18, 2022: Valley Women’s Club of San Lorenzo Valley
3. October 20, 2022: RTC Interagency Technical Advisory Committee
4. October 26, 2022: SLVUSD Board of Trustees
5. December 13, 2022: RTC Elderly/Disabled TAC
6. June 7, 2023: SLVUSD Board of Trustees

Based on findings during public and community engagement and CPMT 
monthly meetings, circulation improvements were developed for the project 
area, including Highway 9 between the southerly Glen Arbor Road 
intersection and Graham Hill Road, El Solyo Heights Drive, Hacienda Way, 
and on SLV campuses.  

On May 5, 2023, RTC released the draft San Lorenzo Valley Schools 
Circulation and Access Study for review and public comment. Comments 
from stakeholders and the public were received through July 30, 2023, for 
consideration by the project team in the Final Report.  

10-2



San Lorenzo Valley (SLV) Schools Access Study Page 3 

The Schools Access Study includes recommendations such as: 
1. Pedestrian Improvements – Paved sidewalks and soft-surface paths, ,

ADA curb ramps, pedestrian fencing, and high visibility crosswalks.
2. Bicycle improvements - Improved on-street bike lanes and shoulders,

bike lane enhancements at intersections, and secure bicycle parking.
3. Transit improvements - Formalized curb side pull-out stops, enhanced

sidewalk connections to transit stops, Transit Only lanes, bus exclusive
loading/unloading areas.

4. Operational improvements - Formalized parking, expanding parking
capacity, new left- and right-turn pockets, modified driveway access to
the SLV High School, additional turning lanes onto Highway 9, larger
student pick-up/drop-off areas, potential new and modified traffic
signals.

The full final report is available at: https://sccrtc.org/slvplan 

Staff recommends that the Commission accept the San Lorenzo 
Valley Schools Complex Circulation and Access Study Final Report. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There are no new fiscal impacts associated with RTC accepting the Schools 
Access Study. Potential funding options for subsequent phases of 
improvements including environmental, final design, right of way, and 
construction are identified in the Study. Staff will continue partnering with 
SLVUSD, Caltrans, Metro, and County DPW to seek and apply for funding 
opportunities to fund the identified improvements. 

NEXT STEPS 

Staff will continue partnering with SLVUSD, Caltrans, Metro, and County 
DPW to seek and apply for funding opportunities to fund the identified 
improvements. Currently RTC and Caltrans staff are in discussions 
regarding potential inclusion of complete streets and safety elements within  
Caltrans repaving projects under development. Other near-term 
implementation opportunities include identifying project components that 
can seek grant funding opportunities, including RTC controlled RTIP funds 
such as STIP, LPP-p, and STBG/RSTPX.   

SUMMARY 

The Schools Access Study was initiated in collaboration with multiple agency 
stakeholders as the next step to advancing priority projects from the 

10-3

https://sccrtc.org/slvplan


San Lorenzo Valley (SLV) Schools Access Study Page 4 

Highway 9/San Lorenzo Valley Complete Streets Corridor Plan to improve 
access and operations along Highway 9 and at the SLV Schools campus for 
all modes of transportation.  

Attachments: 
1. Key exhibits from the San Lorenzo Valley Schools Circulation and

Access Study

10-4



SLV Schools
Circulation and Access Study

SCCRTC Board: August 3, 2023

ATTACHMENT 1

10-5



Bicyclists on Highway 9 in the Project Area

Sidewalk End on Highway 9 (Left) and Lack of Sidewalks Accessing SLV Middle School (Right)

10-6



Constrained shoulders on southbound Highway 9 approaching Graham Hill Road intersection (Left and Right)

RRFB at SLV Elementary School Driveway/Highway 9 (Left) & 200-feet South of El Solyo Heights Drive/Highway 9 (Right)

10-7



10-8



HIGH SCHOOL CONCEPT

10-9



ELEMENTARY SCHOOL CONCEPT

10-10



MIDDLE SCHOOL CONCEPT

10-11



WILLOWBROOK DR AREA CONCEPT

10-12



10-13



AGENDA: August 3, 2023 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission  

FROM: Amy Naranjo & Tommy Travers, Transportation Planners 

RE: Work Plan for 2050 Regional Transportation Plan 

Recommendations 

Staff recommends that the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) receive 
information on the development of the 2050 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). 

Background 

As the regional transportation planning agency (RTPA) for Santa Cruz County, the 
Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) is responsible for developing, 
implementing, and regularly updating the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) for 
Santa Cruz County. The RTP is a state-mandated plan that identifies transportation 
needs in Santa Cruz County over the next twenty-plus years. It estimates the 
amount of funding that will be available over this timeframe and identifies a 
financially constrained priority list of projects. This planning effort is a critical 
component of project implementation as it provides a forum for setting the 
direction of transportation in our county, positions our community to receive various 
federal, state, and local funding for projects, and helps facilitate collaboration on 
projects. Individual projects listed in the RTP must still undergo separate design 
and environmental processes, and can only be implemented as funds become 
available. The RTP also includes information on the state of the transportation 
system in Santa Cruz County with discussions on highways, local streets and roads, 
bicycle and pedestrian facilities, transit services, specialized transportation services 
for seniors and people with disabilities, and airports.  

The RTPs adopted by RTPAs in Santa Cruz, Monterey, and San Benito counties are 
incorporated into the federally mandated Metropolitan Transportation Plan/state-
mandated Sustainable Communities Strategy (MTP/SCS), which is prepared by the 
Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG). In June 2022, the RTC 
adopted the current 2045 RTP for Santa Cruz County after AMBAG's adoption of the 
2045 MTP/SCS.  

Discussion 

The next Santa Cruz County RTP and AMBAG MTP/SCS are scheduled for adoption 
in June 2026. These documents will account for transportation needs through 2050 
and will be referred to as the 2050 RTP and 2050 MTP/SCS. The RTP and MTP/SCS 
are being updated after four years based on state law requirements to update the 

11-1



2050 RTP Work Plan Page 2 

RTP every four or five years and Senate Bill 375 requirements to sync the adoption 
of the Regional Housing Needs Assessment (RHNA) that occurs every 8 years with 
the adoption of the MTP. 

Regional coordination between AMBAG, RTC, TAMC and SBCOG is required for 
development of the 2050 MTP/SCS and RTPs. The Santa Cruz County RTP must be 
consistent with and plan for a transportation system that supports the Senate Bill 
375-mandated Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS), which is included in the
MTP. In May 2023, staff presented on and the RTC authorized the executive director
to enter into an agreement with AMBAG for the production of the programmatic
environmental impact report for both the 2050 MTP/SCS and the 2050 RTP, which
will inform decision makers, responsible and interested agencies, and the public of
the potential environmental effects of the plans.

To ensure that Santa Cruz County’s transportation needs are adequately 
represented, and to promote consistency, RTC staff meets regularly with AMBAG, 
TAMC, and SBCOG regarding the RTPs and MTP/SCS development. As has been the 
case for many years, RTC will continue this regional coordination. 

2050 RTP Work Plan 
The Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Plan consists of three main 
elements, each of which will rely on the participation of the local jurisdictions and 
the public to develop: the Policy Element, the Financial Element, and the Action 
Element.  

The Policy Element identifies the goals, policies, and targets (i.e. measurable 
outcomes) that guide transportation funding decisions and prioritization.  

The Financial Element identifies funds anticipated to be available for transportation 
projects, as well as the outstanding funding needs, over the next 20 plus years.  

The Action Element of the RTP identifies specific projects, programs, and actions 
necessary to implement the policy element of the RTP. As required by state and 
federal law, the project list shows which projects could be funded within the 
projected funds identified in the Financial Element (these are called Constrained) 
and which would require new revenues above and beyond those anticipated over 
the next twenty-plus years (these are called Unconstrained).   

The draft work plan for the 2050 RTP is outlined in Attachment 1 and the draft 
schedule is provided in Attachment 2. Public participation will be emphasized in all 
aspects of plan development through public hearings, fact sheets, web pages, email 
distributions, news releases, Advisory Committee meetings, RTC meetings, and 
public workshops in coordination with AMBAG. 

Fiscal Impact 

The development of the 2050 Regional Transportation Plan is funded through Rural 
Planning Assistance (RPA), Transportation Development Act (TDA), State 

11-2



2050 RTP Work Plan Page 3 

Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) Planning, Programming and 
Monitoring (PPM), and other funds available to the RTC. 

The total cost to the RTC for the development of the 2050 Regional Transportation 
Plan is estimated at between $750,000 to $900,000 based on the following: 

1. Cost of staff time over the next three fiscal years

The cost of staff time over the next three fiscal years is estimated at $220,000 to 
$260,000 per year. $260,000 for staff time is included in RTC’s FY 23/24 budget 
which was approved by the RTC in April 2023. Funds for future years will be 
provided in the FY 24/25 budget and the FY 25/26 budget.   

2. RTC’s share of the cost for the EIR

As approved in May 2023, RTC’s share of the cost for the EIR prepared by AMBAG is 
set at $75,000. $30,000 toward RTC’s share of the cost of the EIR is included in the 
approved FY 23/24 budget. The remainder of RTC’s share will be included in the 
budgets for FY 24/25 and 25/26. 

Summary 

The RTC is responsible for developing the Regional Transportation Plan for Santa 
Cruz County. The next RTP will be an update to the 2045 RTP, and is planned for 
adoption in June 2026 in coordination with AMBAG and the 2050 MTP/SCS. The 
2050 RTP will be developed to identify the transportation needs for the county over 
the next 20 plus years. Regional coordination between RTC and AMBAG in 
developing the plans will ensure consistency and provide cost savings. 

Attachments 

1. 2050 RTP Work Plan
2. 2050 RTP Schedule

11-3



Attachment 1 

2050 Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Work Plan 
1 Develop Work Plan and Public Participation Plan (PPP) 

a. Seek RTC input on the work plan for the RTP
b. Collaborate with the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments

(AMBAG) and the other RTPAs (TAMC, SBCOG) on the 2023 Public
Participation Plan that will serve as the PPP for both AMBAG and for the RTC
along with the other two RTPAs in the Monterey Bay region. Assure the PPP
meets requirements of the new California Transportation Commission RTP
Guidelines (scheduled for adoption in January 2024), SB 375 and IIJA
requirements for public participation

c. Seek adoption of the PPP by the RTC

2 Coordination with Partner Agencies 

a. Meet regularly with AMBAG, TAMC, and SBCOG to discuss development of
the 2050 RTPs and 2050 Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable
Communities Strategy (MTP/SCS)

b. Provide data to AMBAG as necessary to incorporate Santa Cruz County
projects into the AMBAG regional travel demand model (RTDM) and the 2050
MTP/SCS

c. Review draft 2050 MTP/SCS produced by AMBAG in 2025

3 Public Outreach and Involvement 

a. Utilize the 2023 Public Participation Plan to guide public and stakeholder
participation in development of the 2050 RTP

b. Incorporate best practices identified in the RTC Equity Action Plan (expected
2024) to ensure meaningful and equitable public engagement throughout
the development of the 2050 RTP

c. Develop outreach materials in English and Spanish throughout RTP
development including fact sheets, website updates, email notices, news
releases, surveys, and executive summaries.

d. Encourage public participation on the main elements of the RTP; includes
soliciting input from RTC Advisory Committees, interest groups, and the public

e. With AMBAG as the lead, coordinate the consultation with resource agencies
as required by the RTP Guidelines

f. Consult with local jurisdictions public works and planning staff, Caltrans, UCSC
transportation staff, METRO staff, and other project sponsors

g. Assist AMBAG with public workshops regarding investment priorities for the
2050 RTP and MTP/SCS

h. Analyze feedback and update the regional transportation plan where
appropriate based on comments received

11-4



4 Review Policy Element - Goals, Policies, & Targets 

a. Update goals, policies, and targets (performance measures) to incorporate
lessons learned from the 2045 RTP and 2023 RTP Guidelines as needed

b. Review and incorporate new federal transportation act requirements as
appropriate

c. Update targets to inform evaluation criteria for funds distributed by RTC (e.g.,
STIP, STBG, transit, and other funds)

d. Ensure policies are consistent with the SCS
e. Review goals, policies, and targets with RTC board, advisory committees, and

the public
f. Incorporate 2023 California Transportation Commission RTP Guidelines

(scheduled for adoption in December 2023/January 2024)
g. Recommend changes to goals, policies, and targets based on input

received
h. Seek RTC approval of draft goals, policies, and targets and provide to

AMBAG and EIR consultant

5 Update Financial Element – Revenue and Cost Projections 

a. Identify funding sources available (dedicated and discretionary), including
sources used by project sponsors to operate, maintain, and construct
transportation projects and programs

b. Identify any new potential funding sources
c. Coordinate with AMBAG, TAMC, and SBCOG to establish assumptions for

financial projections and develop projections
d. Update financial projections through 2050
e. Escalate project and program costs to expected year of delivery
f. Review funding projections and assumptions with RTC board
g. Provide financial projections to EIR consultant
h. Include updated discussion about state and federal funding trends

6 Update Action Element – Project List 

a. Solicit project ideas and costs from local jurisdictions and other project
sponsors, sharing ideas from the public and RTC advisory committees

b. Incorporate projects and policies as appropriate from
regional/corridor/subregional studies into development of the RTP. Studies
include, but are not limited to:

i. Unified Corridor Investment Study
ii. Measure D Implementation Plan
iii. Highway 9 – San Lorenzo Valley Complete Streets Corridor Plan
iv. Central Coast Highway 1 Climate Resiliency Study
v. Santa Cruz County Strategic Plan
vi. California Transportation Plan

11-5



vii. Caltrans: Freight Plans, Asset Management Plan and 10-Year Project
Book, State Rail Plan, active transportation plans, etc.

viii. Short Range Transit Plans, Santa Cruz METRO Strategic Business Plan, and
Transit Corridor Alternatives Analysis

ix. Active transportation plans/studies
x. Airport planning studies
xi. Transportation demand management studies

c. Work with AMBAG to provide input on the database for organizing project
lists and update the database

d. Develop complete list of projects (both constrained and unconstrained)
e. Evaluate projects for consistency with goals and policies, SCS, and local plans
f. Seek approval from RTC on 2050 RTP complete project list
g. Work with AMBAG on scenario analysis to differentiate financially constrained

and unconstrained projects
h. Create draft Constrained and Unconstrained Project Lists, with input from

RTC, RTC Advisory Committees, project sponsors, stakeholders, and members
of the public

i. Assist AMBAG with public workshops for public input on constrained project
list

j. Seek input and approval from RTC on constrained project list
k. Assign projects to time frames evaluated in plan

7 Plan Performance 

a. Plan performance of the AMBAG MTP/SCS will be evaluated for the tri-county
region, and this analysis will be referred to in the 2050 RTP

b. For the 2050 MTP/SCS, VMT and GHG measures will be analyzed by AMBAG
using the regional travel demand model (RTDM) to assess our ability to meet
revised SB 375 targets for the AMBAG region

c. Santa Cruz County VMT and GHG reductions will be provided by AMBAG
from the RTDM results to assess performance of the 2050 RTP

d. Baseline performance monitoring will be discussed based on available data
e. Re-evaluate and update performance measures to be consistent with 2050

RTP goals and policy objectives and to targets established in FAST Act/
Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL)/Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA)
as well as other required plans and programs.

8 2050 RTP Document 

a. Updates and revisions will be made to the 2045 RTP document
b. Discuss revised California Air Resource Board Targets for AMBAG region
c. Information from new transportation related studies will be incorporated,

where appropriate
d. Previously collected data will be updated, as needed
e. Revise text to address new state and federal requirements

11-6



f. Include discussion on Measure D projects being implemented
g. Provide Executive Summary in English and Spanish versions
h. Release draft for public review
i. Recommend changes for Final based on input received
j. Prepare Final RTP

9 Environmental Impact Report (EIR) Preparation 

a. Develop Agreement with AMBAG for EIR for the 2050 MTP/SCS and RTPs of
Santa Cruz County, Monterey County, and San Benito County with approval
from the RTC

b. Meet regularly with AMBAG, TAMC, SBCOG, and consultant to discuss
development of EIR

c. Address all CEQA updates since 2045 MTP and 2045 RTP adoption
d. Review notice of preparation (NOP) for EIR
e. Review draft EIR
f. Prepare consideration of Final EIR

10 RTP and EIR Release and Distribution 

a. Update email distribution lists
b. Send notice of availability to interested parties
c. Focus on electronic distribution (web, email)
d. Provide a 30-day minimum review period
e. Review draft RTP and EIR with RTC and RTC Committees
f. Hold public hearing on RTP
g. Receive and incorporate comments
h. Present Final RTP/EIR Adoption
i. Complete Notice of Determination

S:\RTP\2050 RTP (2026)\Schedule\2050 RTP Workplan.docx 

11-7



Project Ideas Due* 

Present Work 
Plan for RTP 2050 

August 2023 

Approve Draft Goals, 
Policies, & Targets 

Mar 2024 

AMBAG Scenario 
Analysis* 

Oct 2024-Feb 2025 

Approve Draft Financially 
Constrained Project List 

Update Financial 
Projections 

Approve Draft Complete 
Project List Release Draft 

RTP/MTP-SCS/EIR* Adopt Final RTP/MTP-
SCS/EIR 

2050 Regional Transportation Plan 
Key Milestones 

2023 2026 

* Publ ic part icipation is  always encouraged. Aster i sk indicates when publ ic input i s  formal ly
sol ic i ted and encouraged. 

Solicit Input on Goals, 
Policies, & Targets* 

April 2024 

June 2024 

Apr-Nov 2024 Nov 2023-Feb 2024 

    June 2026 
Dec 2025 

EIR/RTP Public 
Hearing* 
Mar 2026 

Feb 2025 

Attachment 2 

Solicit New  
Projects & Updates* 

Jan-April 2024 

 

11-8



AGENDA: August 3, 2023 

TO:  Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Riley Gerbrandt, P.E., Associate Transportation Engineer 

RE: Rejection of bid and authorize bid package revisions and 
readvertising the Phase 2 Debris Removal and Erosion Repair 
Project along the SCBRL. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Staff recommends that the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) reject 
the bid and authorize staff to make changes to the bid package and 
readvertise the Phase 2 Debris Removal and Erosion Repair Project along the 
SCBRL. 

BACKGROUND 

The 32-mile Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line (SCBRL) has 37 bridges, 100 public 
and private grade crossings, and 92 drainage cross culverts. The 
infrastructure preservation needs of the SCBRL include bridge repairs or 
replacements, drainage improvements, coastal erosion repair, slope 
stabilization, retaining walls, grade crossing improvements and repairs, 
storm-related repairs, and railbed repairs.  

In late December 2022 and January 2023, several severe winter storms 
occurred in Santa Cruz and Monterey Counties. The storms brough heavy 
rains, high winds, large surf, and snow, which resulted in damage to the 
SCBRL. Damages from the severe winter storms included, but were not 
limited to, downed trees, landslides, slip outs, embankment washouts, 
erosion, flooding, bridge damage, and deposition of debris and sediment on 
the SCBRL. On January 4, 2023, the Governor of the State of California 
proclaimed a state of emergency throughout California, and on January 14, 
2023, the President of the United States of American declared a major 
disaster and ordered Federal aid to supplement State, tribal, and local 
recovery efforts in the affected areas. 

Staff presented information relating to the damage caused by the severe 
storms and requested authorization, which was granted via resolution, for 
the Executive Director to make amendments to existing contracts or enter 
into new contracts as necessary to address storm damage at the February 2, 
2023, Commission meeting. 

12-1



Rejection of Bid - Phase 2 Debris Removal and Erosion Control Project Page  2 

During and immediately following the severe winter storms, RTC staff 
responded to the damages and threats to property on the SCBRL. Existing 
on-call and independent contractor contracts were utilized to remove 
downed trees, repair damage at the Manresa Bluffs, and to assess the 
severity and extent of damage throughout the SCBRL. The RTC also entered 
into two emergency contracts: one to repair two embankment washouts, 
and the other to remove debris and to install erosion control.  

On February 9, 2023, RTC staff submitted a Request for Public Assistance to 
the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), and on March 15, 
2023, RTC staff submitted a Request for Public Assistance to the California 
Governor's Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES). These requests were 
approved, and staff subsequently coordinated with representatives of FEMA 
and Cal OES to submit necessary forms and documentation in order to 
progress the receipt of federal and state grant funds to reimburse the RTC 
for eligible expenses related to the severe winter storms. 

On April 5 through 7, 2023, RTC staff and FEMA representatives toured the 
SCBRL to inspect damages relating to the severe winter storms. During 
these site inspections, additional debris, sedimentation, and erosion was 
discovered that was not evident during earlier site inspections conducted by 
staff and on-call consultants.  

Staff determined that the identified additional debris, sedimentation, and 
erosion should be addressed before the beginning of the next winter rainy 
season and prepared a project Scope of Work and Specifications, which were 
adopted June 2023 RTC meeting, to undertake debris removal and 
embankment repairs.  

DISCUSSION 

The project was advertised for construction bids by releasing an Invitation 
for Bid (IFB) number 2177 on June 27, 2023 through BidExpress, which is 
the RTC’s advertisement platform for formally advertised construction 

projects. The engineer’s estimate for the project was $450,778. The 
estimate was based on historic unit prices for similar bid work on other 
construction contracts. Due to the potential presence of listed special-status 
species within the project work area, the project solicitation included 60 
contract working days so that the contract work would be completed before 
the rainy season and subsequent migrations of the of listed special-status 
species. 
A non-mandatory pre-bid walk took place on July 5th, 2023, to review the 
scope of work for the Phase 2 Debris Removal and Erosion Repair project, 

12-2



Rejection of Bid - Phase 2 Debris Removal and Erosion Control Project Page  3 

with one contractor in attendance. On July 21, 2023, the RTC received one 
complete and responsive bid of $611,105 (26% over the Engineer’s 

Estimate) by Irish Excavation. The detailed bid summary is included as 
Attachment 1. 

Through the development of the bid package and advertisement period, staff 
took measure to make the work more attractive to bidders, both by 
increasing the number of contract working days from 50 to 60 and by issuing 
an addendum to change some bid items to unit quantities in order to 
streamline contract administration. Staff worked with on-call consultants to 
develop bid documents that provided the most flexibility for the contract in 
order to increase the likelihood of receiving competitive bids. Staff considers 
the bid received to be unreasonable, and rejection of the bid is in the 
public’s best interest.  

Staff believes that the bid prices may have been higher than the typical unit 
prices for recent construction projects due to lack of competition, risks 
associated with the cost of disposal of debris material, the fact that rail 
mounted equipment (which is specialized equipment that not all potential 
bidders possess in their fleets) is needed to perform the work, and the 
construction window in which bidders were required to complete the work. 
The project schedule was one of the main issues when it came to bid 
competitiveness, since construction projects ramp up in the summer and 
contractors have limited availability.  

Therefore, staff recommends the RTC reject the bid received in 
response to the IFB2177 for the Phase 2 Debris Removal and Erosion 
Repair Project along the Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line. 

After bids were opened and reviewed, staff evaluated ways to re-scope the 
project to make it more attractive to qualified bidders. The original scope of 
work – as amended by addenda issued during the project solicitation – 
included requirements to complete all work within 60 working days in order 
to avoid potential impacts to listed special-status species and requirements 
for the contractor to pay all costs associated with debris disposal, including 
but not limited to waste fees charged by the approved disposal facility. 
These project restrictions and uncertainties limited the pool of potential 
bidders that could undertake the work and likely contributed to the higher 
than expected bid.  

To address these challenges, staff plans to develop a revised Scope of Work 
for the Phase 2 Debris Removal and Erosion Repair Project that takes into 
consideration work windows and durations. The revised scope of work will 

12-3



Rejection of Bid - Phase 2 Debris Removal and Erosion Control Project Page  4 

exclude work at one site (Mile Post 9.51) that requires permits, specifies 
contract first-order work to be completed at six sites (Mile Posts 7.87, 8.25, 
8.32, 23.10, 23.14, and 23.19) before migration of listed special-status 
species, and extends the number of contract working days to complete 
contract work at the remainder of the project sites. Staff plans to make 
revisions to the advertisement package to reduce contract uncertainties 
relating to waste disposal fees.  

The RTC Procurement Policy requires that the Commission adopt the plans, 
specifications, and details for non-emergency construction projects with a 
value greater than $200,000. Due to the nature of the work being debris 
removal and installation of standard Caltrans erosion control measures, staff 
prepared a Scope of Work with quantities and maps rather than a formal 
plan set. Staff recommends the Commission authorize staff to make 
minor changes to the bid package and readvertise the Phase 2 
Debris Removal and Erosion Repair Project. Following approval, staff 
will update the bid package and re-advertise the project inviting construction 
bids. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Rejection of the bid and rebidding has no new fiscal impacts associated with 
the project. The project will be funded by a temporary loan from RSTPX, 
which has sufficient cash flow capacity pending the result of construction 
bids. Staff will seek reimbursement of disaster-relief funds from Cal OES and 
FEMA through their public assistance programs to pay back the loan. Failure 
to receive reimbursement and/or changes in the RSTPX cash flow prior to 
reimbursement may require programming of Measure D-Rail funding. 

SUMMARY 

Staff advertised the Phase 2 Debris Removal and Erosion Repair Project 
along the SCBRL, Invitation for Bids (IFB2177), in July of 2023 and received 
one bid on July 21, 2023. Staff recommends rejecting the bid and 
authorizing staff to make minor changes to the bid package, and readvertise 
the project for construction bids.  

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Bid Summary

12-4



Engineers Estimate

Item No. Item Code Description Units Quantity Unit Price Extension
1 194001A Ditch Excavation and Debris Removal from Railroad Corridor CY 776 $659.86 $512,051.36

2 198019A Imported Borrow (Roadway Embankment) at MP 14.86 CY 10 $1,500.00 $15,000.00

3 204035A Plant at MP 8.49 (Group A, Live Willow Cuttings) EA 35 $250.00 $8,750.00

4 204099 Plant Establishment Work LS 1 $2,503.64 $2,503.64

5 219999A Install Erosion Control Treatment at MP 14.86 (LS) LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

6 2199998 Install Erosion Control Treatment at MP 15.06 (LS) LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

7 710360A Clean, Inspect, and Prepare Culvert (Debris Removal at MP 23.35 Culvert) (LF) LF 58 $600.00 $34,800.00

8 723080A Rock Slope Protection at MP 8.25 (60 lb, Class 11, Method B) (CY) CY 18 $750.00 $13,500.00

9 723095A Rock Slope Protection at MP 16.24 (20 lb, Class I, Method B) (CY) CY 3 $1,500.00 $4,500.00

Totals $611,105.00

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission

Phase 2 Debris Removal and Erosin Repair Project

RTC Project Number: IFB2177

Bids Due: July 20, 2023 at 2:00 PM (Addendum No. 3)

Bids Opened: July 20, 2023 at 2:05 PM

Bid Summary

Irish Excavation

Attachment 1

12-5



CUMULATIVE
FY22 - 23 FY23 - 24 FY23 - 24 DIFFERENCE % OF
 ACTUAL ESTIMATE  ACTUAL AS % OF ACTUAL TO

MONTH REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE DIFFERENCE PROJECTION PROJECTION

JULY 1,159,164 1,167,000    1,144,442.52 -22,557 -1.93% 98.07%

AUGUST 954,929 961,385       

SEPTEMBER 1,013,414 1,020,265    

OCTOBER 1,084,000 1,091,328    

NOVEMBER 1,113,301 1,120,827    

DECEMBER 948,121 954,531       

JANUARY 880,692 1,004,055    

FEBRUARY 1,179,127 1,095,050    

MARCH 868,052 875,469       

APRIL 828,604 906,757       

MAY 1,005,280 1,082,410    

JUNE 920,595 973,582       

TOTAL 11,955,278 12,252,659 1,144,443 -22,557 -0.18% 9%

Note:

I:\FISCAL\7.TDA\MonthlyReceipts\FY2024\[FY2024 TDA Receipts.xlsx]FY2023

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
TDA REVENUE REPORT

FY 2022/2023

13-1



CUMULATIVE
FY21 - 22 FY22 - 23 FY22 - 23 DIFFERENCE % OF
 ACTUAL ESTIMATE  ACTUAL AS % OF ACTUAL TO

MONTH REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE DIFFERENCE PROJECTION PROJECTION

JULY 1,180,089 1,221,370    1,159,164 -62,206 -5.09% 94.91%

AUGUST 947,834 980,991       954,929 -26,062 -2.66% 95.99%

SEPTEMBER 1,008,451 1,043,728    1,013,414 -30,314 -2.90% 96.35%

OCTOBER 1,242,981 1,286,462    1,084,000 -202,462 -15.74% 92.92%

NOVEMBER 835,454 864,680       1,113,301 248,621 28.75% 98.66%

DECEMBER 1,015,997 1,051,538    948,121 -103,417 -9.83% 97.27%

JANUARY 990,616 1,025,270    880,692 -144,578 -14.10% 95.71%

FEBRUARY 1,080,393 1,118,187    1,179,127 60,940 5.45% 96.98%

MARCH 863,751 893,967       868,052 -25,915 -2.90% 96.99%

APRIL 894,620 925,915       828,604 -97,311 -10.51% 96.32%

MAY 1,067,922 1,105,280    1,005,279.71 -100,000 -9.05% 95.81%

JUNE 960,550 994,152       920,595 -73,557 -7.40% 95.55%

TOTAL 12,088,658 12,511,540 11,955,278 -556,262 -4.45% 95.55%

Note:

I:\FISCAL\TDA\MonthlyReceipts\FY2023\[FY2023 TDA Receipts.xlsx]FY2023

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
TDA REVENUE REPORT

FY 2022/2023

13-2



UPDATE EACH MONTH

FY2023 FY2022

YEAR END ADJUSTED ADJUSTED

KEY/OBJECT RATE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE TOTAL ADJUSTMENT TOTAL TOTAL

GROSS 729000/40186 2,595,872.85   2,349,895.40   2,241,845.65   2,421,640.38   2,640,688.55   2,186,840.67   2,129,361.28   2,805,510.17   1,961,216.67   1,894,288.55     2,313,619.54     2,056,818.89    27,597,598.60     0.00 27,597,598.60     27,795,898.38               

BOE FEES -                    (65,160.00)       -                    -                    (65,160.00)       -                    -                    (65,160.00)       -                    -                      (54,980.00)         (250,460.00)         -                   (250,460.00)         (214,910.00)                   

NET 2,595,872.85   2,284,735.40   2,241,845.65   2,421,640.38   2,575,528.55   2,186,840.67   2,129,361.28   2,740,350.17   1,961,216.67   1,894,288.55     2,258,639.54     2,056,818.89   27,347,138.60     0.00 27,347,138.60     27,580,988.38               -0.85%

ADMINISTRATION & IMPLEMENTATION - 729100/75381

ADMINISTRATION - SALARIES & BENEFITS 1% 25,958.73        22,847.35         22,418.46         24,216.40         25,755.29         21,868.41         21,293.61         27,403.50         19,612.17         18,942.89           22,586.40           20,568.19         273,471.39           0.00 273,471.39           275,809.88                     

O/H ADMIN 33,362.16         29,363.42         28,812.20         31,122.92         33,100.69         28,105.28         27,366.55         35,218.98         25,205.56         24,345.40           29,028.04           26,434.24         351,465.43           0.00 351,465.43           311,813.55                     

SALARIES & O/H  IMPLEME& OVERSIGHT 13,056.25         13,056.25         13,056.25         13,056.25         13,056.25         13,056.25         13,056.25         13,056.25         13,056.25         13,056.25           13,056.25           13,056.25         156,675.00           0.00 156,675.00           94,470.00                       

SERVICES & SUPPLIES 4,041.67           4,041.67           4,041.67           4,041.67           4,041.67           4,041.67           4,041.67           4,041.67           4,041.67           4,041.67             4,041.67             4,041.67           48,500.00             0.00 48,500.00             61,055.56                       

Subtotal 76,418.80        69,308.69        68,328.57        72,437.24        75,953.90        67,071.60        65,758.08        79,720.40        61,915.64        60,386.20          68,712.35          64,100.34         830,111.81           0.00 830,111.81           743,148.99                     

TO DISTRIBUTE TO INVESTMENT CATEGORIES 2,519,454.05   2,215,426.71   2,173,517.08   2,349,203.14   2,499,574.65   2,119,769.07   2,063,603.20   2,660,629.77   1,899,301.03   1,833,902.35     2,189,927.19     1,992,718.55   26,517,026.79     -                   26,517,026.79     26,837,839.39               

1.  NEIGHBORHOOD - 729200/75382 30% 755,836.21      664,628.01      652,055.12      704,760.94      749,872.40      635,930.72      619,080.96      798,188.93      569,790.31      550,170.71        656,978.16        597,815.56       7,955,108.04        -                   7,955,108.04        8,051,351.82                 

      SLV SR9 Fixed $ 27,777.78         27,777.78         27,777.78         27,777.78         27,777.78         27,777.78         27,777.78         27,777.78         27,777.78         27,777.78           27,777.78           27,777.78         333,333.33           0.00 333,333.33           333,333.33                     

      HWY 17 Wildlife Fixed $ 13,888.89         13,888.89         13,888.89         13,888.89         13,888.89         13,888.89         13,888.89         13,888.89         13,888.89         13,888.89           13,888.89           13,888.89         166,666.67           0.00 166,666.67           166,666.67                     

41,666.67        41,666.67        41,666.67        41,666.67        41,666.67        41,666.67        41,666.67        41,666.67        41,666.67        41,666.67          41,666.67          41,666.67         500,000.00           0.00 500,000.00           500,000.00                     

      City of Capitola - V100207 4.8540% 34,665.83         30,238.58         29,628.29         32,186.63         34,376.34         28,845.61         28,027.72         36,721.63         25,635.15         24,682.81           29,867.25           26,995.50         361,871.34           -                   361,871.34           384,194.52                     

      City of Santa Cruz - V110467 22.3548% 159,650.96      139,261.57      136,450.93      148,233.20      158,317.76      132,846.36      129,079.63      169,118.81      118,060.82      113,674.91        137,551.47        124,325.80       1,666,572.22        -                   1,666,572.22        1,702,295.46                  

      City of Scotts Valley - V102713 4.8017% 34,292.60         29,913.02         29,309.30         31,840.10         34,006.23         28,535.05         27,725.96         36,326.27         25,359.15         24,417.07           29,545.69           26,704.85         357,975.29           -                   357,975.29           367,191.87                     

      City of Watsonville - V1728 15.6656% 111,879.26      97,590.91         95,621.29         103,877.99      110,944.99      93,095.30         90,455.67         118,514.09      82,733.97         79,660.44           96,392.51           87,124.31         1,167,890.74        -                   1,167,890.74        1,163,500.79                  

      County of Santa Cruz 52.3238% 373,680.90      325,957.27      319,378.65      346,956.36      370,560.40      310,941.75      302,125.30      395,841.46      276,334.55      266,068.82        321,954.57        290,998.43       3,900,798.46        -                   3,900,798.46        3,934,169.19                  

100% 714,169.55 622,961.35 610,388.46 663,094.27 708,205.73 594,264.05 577,414.29 756,522.26 528,123.64 508,504.04 615,311.49 556,148.90 7,455,108.04 0.00 7,455,108.04 7,551,351.82

2.  HWY Corridors - 729300/75383 25% 629,863.51      553,856.68      543,379.27      587,300.78      624,893.66      529,942.27      515,900.80      665,157.44      474,825.26      458,475.59        547,481.80        498,179.64       6,629,256.70        -                   6,629,256.70        6,709,459.85                 

3.  TRANSIT/PARATRANSIT - 729400/75384 20% 503,890.81      443,085.34      434,703.42      469,840.63      499,914.93      423,953.81      412,720.64      532,125.95      379,860.21      366,780.47        437,985.44        398,543.71       5,303,405.36        -                   5,303,405.36        5,367,567.88                 

      Santa Cruz Metro (SCMTD) 16% 80% 403,112.65      354,468.27      347,762.73      375,872.50      399,931.94      339,163.05      330,176.51      425,700.76      303,888.16      293,424.38        350,388.35        318,834.97       4,242,724.29        -                   4,242,724.29        4,294,054.30                  

      Community Bridges - V127587 - 4% 20% 100,778.16      88,617.07         86,940.68         93,968.13         99,982.99         84,790.76         82,544.13         106,425.19      75,972.04         73,356.09           87,597.09           79,708.74         1,060,681.07        -                   1,060,681.07        1,073,513.58                  

4.  ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION - 729500/75385 17% 428,307.19      376,622.54      369,497.90      399,364.53      424,927.69      360,360.74      350,812.54      452,307.06      322,881.18      311,763.40        372,287.62        338,762.15       4,507,894.55        -                   4,507,894.55        4,562,432.70                 

5.  RAIL CORRIDOR - 729600/75386 8% 201,556.32      177,234.14      173,881.37      187,936.25      199,965.97      169,581.53      165,088.26      212,850.38      151,944.08      146,712.19        175,194.18        159,417.48       2,121,362.14        -                   2,121,362.14        2,147,027.15                 

        DISTRIBUTED TO INVESTMENT CATEGORIES 100% 2,519,454.05   2,215,426.71   2,173,517.08   2,349,203.14   2,499,574.65   2,119,769.07   2,063,603.20   2,660,629.77   1,899,301.03   1,833,902.35     2,189,927.19     1,992,718.55   26,517,026.79     -                   26,517,026.79     26,837,839.39               

TOTAL ADMIN & IMPLEM AND INVESTMENT CATEGORIES 2,595,872.85   2,284,735.40   2,241,845.65   2,421,640.38   2,575,528.55   2,186,840.67   2,129,361.28   2,740,350.17   1,961,216.67   1,894,288.55     2,258,639.54     2,056,818.89   27,347,138.60     0.00 27,347,138.60     27,580,988.38               

SCCRTC
TRANSPORTATION TAX REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION FUND (TTRTF) - MEASURE D

SUMMARY OF REVENUE ALLOCATION BY MONTH
FY2023 ENDING JUNE 30, 2023

 FY2022 to 

FY2023

% Increase 

(+)/Decrease (-

14-1



FY2024 FY2023
ADJUSTED ADJUSTED

KEY/OBJECT RATE JULY JUNE TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL
GROSS 729000/40186 2,455,327.27   - 2,455,327.27 2,455,327.27     2,595,872.85  
BOE FEES -    -    -    -    -     

NET 2,455,327.27   - 2,455,327.27 2,455,327.27     2,595,872.85  -5.41%

ADMINISTRATION & IMPLEMENTATION - 729100/75381

ADMINISTRATION - SALARIES & BENEFITS 1% 24,553.27    - 24,553.27 24,553.27    25,958.73  
O/H ADMIN 26,100.13    - 26,100.13 26,100.13    33,362.16  
SALARIES & O/H  IMPLEME& OVERSIGHT 13,056.21    - 13,056.21 13,056.21    13,056.25  
SERVICES & SUPPLIES 4,041.67   - 4,041.67 4,041.67   4,041.67    

Subtotal 67,751.28    - 67,751.28 67,751.28    76,418.80  

TO DISTRIBUTE TO INVESTMENT CATEGORIES 2,387,575.99   - 2,387,575.99 2,387,575.99     2,519,454.05  

1. NEIGHBORHOOD - 729200/75382 30% 716,272.80  - 716,272.80 716,272.80    755,836.21   

    SLV SR9 Fixed $ 27,777.78    - 27,777.78 27,777.78    27,777.78  
    HWY 17 Wildlife Fixed $ 13,888.89    - 13,888.89 13,888.89    13,888.89  

41,666.67    - 41,666.67 41,666.67    41,666.67  

    City of Capitola - V100207 4.7572% 32,092.48    - 32,092.48 32,092.48    34,665.83  
    City of Santa Cruz - V110467 22.6813% 153,009.64  - 153,009.64  153,009.64     159,650.96   
    City of Scotts Valley - V102713 4.9074% 33,105.91    - 33,105.91 33,105.91    34,292.60  
    City of Watsonville - V1728 15.6465% 105,552.35  - 105,552.35  105,552.35     111,879.26   
    County of Santa Cruz 52.0075% 350,845.75  - 350,845.75  350,845.75     373,680.90   

100% 674,606.13 0.00 674,606.13 674,606.13 714,169.55

2. HWY Corridors - 729300/75383 25% 596,894.00  - 596,894.00 596,894.00    629,863.51   

3. TRANSIT/PARATRANSIT - 729400/75384 20% 477,515.20  - 477,515.20 477,515.20    503,890.81   
Santa Cruz Metro (SCMTD) 16% 80% 382,012.16  - 382,012.16  382,012.16     403,112.65   
Community Bridges - V127587 - 4% 20% 95,503.04    - 95,503.04 95,503.04    100,778.16   

4. ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION - 729500/75385 17% 405,887.92  - 405,887.92 405,887.92    428,307.19   

5. RAIL CORRIDOR - 729600/75386 8% 191,006.08  - 191,006.08 191,006.08    201,556.32   

DISTRIBUTED TO INVESTMENT CATEGORIES 100% 2,387,575.99   - 2,387,575.99 2,387,575.99     2,519,454.05  

TOTAL ADMIN & IMPLEM AND INVESTMENT CATEGORIES 2,455,327.27   - 2,455,327.27 2,455,327.27     2,595,872.85  

SCCRTC
TRANSPORTATION TAX REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION FUND (TTRTF) - MEASURE D

SUMMARY OF REVENUE ALLOCATION BY MONTH
FY2024 ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

 FY2023 to 
FY2024

% Increase 
(+)/Decrease (-

14-2



AGENDA: August 3, 2023 
 
TO: Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) 
 
FROM: Tracy New, Director of Finance and Budget 
 
RE: Amendments to the Fiscal Years (FYs) 2022-23 and 2023-24 

Budget & Work Program 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Staff recommends that the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) 
approve the attached resolution (Attachment 1) authorizing the following: 
 

1. Amendment of the RTC FY2022-23 budget and work program and 
Measure D FY2022-23 budget as shown on Exhibit A to Attachment 1. 
 

2. Amendment of the RTC FY2023-24 budget and work program and 
Measure D FY2023-24 budget as shown on Exhibit B to Attachment 1. 

 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Due to actual expenditures and work completed in FY2022-23, work trends 
for FY2023-24 and revenue updates, it is currently necessary to consider 
amendments to the RTC’s Fiscal Years (FY) 2022-23 and 2023-24 budgets 
and work programs.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The initial budget that is approved by the RTC each year includes estimates 
for the work that is anticipated to be done in the coming fiscal year. Usually, 
adjustments need to be made due to work trends, revenue updates, and 
other factors. Also after the completion of a fiscal year, it is sometimes 
necessary to make final budget adjustments to account for actual 
expenditures. Therefore, a number of adjustments are included in the 
budget amendments as a result of more or less work than was estimated 
for various projects and planning efforts.  
 
Adjustments proposed for FY2022-23 are based on actual costs incurred, 
actual work completed, actual revenues received, and reallocation of 

15-1



unspent Measure D Admin and Implementation funds for distribution in 
accordance with the expenditure plan.  

Adjustments proposed for FY2023-24 include increase in labor, reallocation 
of labor and overhead due to the indirect cost allocation plan (ICAP) rate 
approved by Caltrans, and reallocating budget.  

Therefore, staff recommends that the RTC approve the: 
1. FY2022-23 RTC budget and work program and Measure D

budget as shown on Exhibit A of Attachment 1
2. FY2023-24 RTC budget and work program and Measure D

budget as shown on Exhibit B of Attachment 1.

FISCAL IMPACT 

The FY2022-23 RTC proposed budget and work program amendment (Exhibit 
A to Attachment 1) includes the following: 

• Freeway Service Patrol (FSP) $47,274 increase for towing services due
to increase in diesel fuel costs and number of hours patrolling.

• Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line - $1,826,392 carryover to FY2023-24 for
shifted work and related costs for the Pajaro River Bridge, Manresa
Coastal Erosion, and Zero Emission Passenger (ZEPR) concept report
and increase of $725,000 for debris removal and erosion control costs
related to the Federally Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
declared disaster for the 2023 winter storms.

• Regional Surface Transportation Exchange (RSTPX) - $4,312,805 loan
to the RTC for the 2017 storm damage ($3,587,805) and 2023 storm
damage ($725,000) project costs associated with the FEMA declared
emergencies approved by the Commission by Resolution 18-17 on April
6, 2017. The RTC is seeking reimbursement from FEMA for these costs.

• Highway Corridor - $3,524,733 carryover to FY2023-24 for shifted work
and related costs for the auxiliary lane projects on Highway 1 including
41st Avenue to Soquel Drive, State Park to Bay/Porter and Freedom
Boulevard to State Park Drive including MBSST Segment 12.

• Monterey Bay Scenic Sanctuary Trail (MBSST) - $5,234,936 carryover
to FY2023-24 for shifted work and related costs for maintenance of the
rail corridor, segments under development, and construction costs
associated with North Coast Segment 5 and City of Santa Cruz Segment
7.

• Planning - $811,984 carryover to FY2023-24 primarily for shifting of
costs related to the Highway 17 Wildlife Crossing project and
adjustments to some planning projects labor budget lines due to more
or less work completed than was originally anticipated.

15-2



• Highway 9 – San Lorenzo Valley (SLV) - $1,035,589 carryover to 
FY2023-24 for work related to the SLV Schools Study and grant funds 
for future projects.  

• Administration - decrease of $143,000 in overall costs including $45,000 
for training, $75,000 vehicle, and $20,000 office equipment 
expenditures shifted to the FY2023-24 RTC Budget approved on April 6, 
2023.    

• Net decrease of $10,876 in staffing costs with reallocation of $100,000 
to lower the unfunded accrued liability (UAL) for Other Post Employment 
Benefit (OPEB) retiree health costs contribution to the CalPERS 
administered California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) 
established by the RTC in 2022. 

 
The FY2022-23 Measure D proposed budget amendment (Exhibit A to 
Attachment 1) includes the following: 
 

• Highway 9 – San Lorenzo Valley (SLV) - $1,035,589 carryover to 
FY2023-24 for costs related to the SLV Schools Study and grant funds 
for future projects.  

• Highway 17 Wildlife Crossing - $807,130 carryover to FY2023-24 for 
project related costs.  

• Highway Corridor - $2,502,863 carryover to FY2023-24 for project costs 
related to the auxiliary lane projects on Highway 1 including 41st Avenue 
to Soquel Drive, State Park to Bay/Porter and Freedom Boulevard to 
State Park Drive including MBSST Segment 12. 

• Active Transportation - $7,203,936 carryover to FY2023-24 including 
$1,829,000 to Hwy 1 Freedom to State Park for Segment 12 project 
costs, $350,000 for the Zero Emission Passenger Rail concept report, 
and $5,024,936 for project costs related to maintenance of the rail 
corridor, segments under development, and construction costs 
associated with North Coast Segment 5 and City of Santa Cruz Segment 
7. 

• Rail - $1,761,635 carryover to FY2023-24 for project costs related to 
the Pajaro River Bridge, Manresa Coastal Erosion, and Zero Emission 
Passenger (ZEPR) concept report. 
 

The FY2023-24 RTC proposed budget amendment (Exhibit B to Attachment 1) 
includes the following: 
 

• Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line - $1,796,000 carryover from FY2022-23 for 
project costs related to the Pajaro River Bridge, Manresa Coastal 
Erosion, and Zero Emission Passenger (ZEPR) concept report.   

15-3



• Highway Corridor - $2,340,733 carryover from FY2022-23 for project 
costs related to the auxiliary lane projects on Highway 1 including 41st 
Avenue to Soquel Drive, State Park to Bay/Porter and Freedom 
Boulevard to State Park Drive including MBSST Segment 12. 

• Monterey Bay Scenic Sanctuary Trail (MBSST) - $5,177,937 carryover 
from FY2022-23 for project costs related to maintenance of the rail 
corridor, segments under development, and construction costs 
associated with North Coast Segment 5 and City of Santa Cruz Segment 
7. 

• Planning - $811,984 carryover from FY2022-23 primarily for shifted 
costs related to the Highway 17 Wildlife Crossing project.  

• Highway 9 – San Lorenzo Valley (SLV) - $1,035,589 carryover from 
FY2022-23 for costs related to the SLV Schools Study and grant funds 
for future projects.  

• Transportation Development Act (TDA) – FY2022-23 revenues received 
were $556,262 lower than estimated. Interest rates were higher than 
expected and reduced the deficit in the reserve balance. The reserve 
fund target is $980,213, the reserve fund balance including FY2023-24 
programmed is $663,206, an additional $317,007 will be programmed 
to replenish the reserve when funds are available. 

 
The FY2023-24 Measure D proposed budget amendment (Exhibit B to 
Attachment 1) includes the following: 
 

• Highway 9 – San Lorenzo Valley (SLV) - $1,035,589 carryover from 
FY2022-23 for costs related to the SLV Schools Study and grant funds 
for future projects.  

• Highway 17 Wildlife Crossing - $807,130 carryover from FY2022-23 for 
project related costs.  

• Highway Corridor - $1,695,733 carryover from FY2022-23 for project 
costs related to the auxiliary lane projects on Highway 1 including 41st 
Avenue to Soquel Drive, State Park to Bay/Porter and Freedom 
Boulevard to State Park Drive including MBSST Segment 12. 

• Active Transportation - $4,967,937 carryover from FY2022-23 for 
project costs related to maintenance of the rail corridor, segments under 
development, and construction costs associated with North Coast 
Segment 5 and City of Santa Cruz Segment 7. 

• Rail - $1,707,000 carryover from FY2022-23 for project costs related to 
the Pajaro River Bridge, Manresa Coastal Erosion, and Zero Emission 
Passenger (ZEPR) concept report. 

 
 

15-4



SUMMARY 
 
Due to work trends in FY2022-23 and carryover of unspent funds, it is 
necessary to consider amendments to the FY2022-23 and FY2023-24 
budgets and work programs.  
 
Staff recommends that the RTC approve the proposed amended FY2022-
23 and FY2023-24 budget and work programs per Exhibit A and Exhibit B 
respectively and amend the Measure D program shifting funds programmed 
in FY2022-23 to FY2023-24. 
 
  
Attachment: 

 
1. Resolution amending the FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24 Budget and Work 

Programs  
• Exhibit A: SCCRTC FY 2022-23 Budget and Work Program and Measure 

D Budget, as amended. 
• Exhibit B: SCCRTC FY 2023-24 RTC Budget and Work Program and 

Measure D Budget and programming, as amended. 
 

S:\RTC\TC2023\08\Consent\FY2022-23 and FY2023-24 Budget Amendment and Work Program\FY2023andFY2024BudgAmend-
SR.docx 

 

15-5



\\rtcserv2\Shared\RTC\TC2023\08\Consent\FY2022-23 and FY2023-24 Budget Amendment and Work 
Program\2.Attachment 1 Resolution FY22-23 and FY23-24 Budget.Amendments.docx 

RESOLUTION NO. 

Adopted by the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
on the date of August 3, 2023 
on the motion of Commissioner  
duly seconded by Commissioner 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24 RTC BUDGETS 
AND WORK PROGRAMS FOR THE REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
(RTC) adopts and periodically amends a budget and work program for each 
fiscal year to guide its expenses and work; 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE SANTA CRUZ COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION: 

1. The FY 2022-23 Budget and Work Program for the Santa Cruz County
Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) and Measure D Budget are
hereby amended as shown in Exhibit A.

2. The FY 2023-24 Budget and Work Program for the Santa Cruz County
Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) and Measure D Budget are
hereby amended as shown in Exhibit B.

AYES:      COMMISSIONERS 

NOES: COMMISSIONERS 

ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS 

______________________________ 
Manu Koenig, Chair 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Guy Preston, Secretary 

Attachment 1

15-6



 

\\rtcserv2\Shared\RTC\TC2023\08\Consent\FY2022-23 and FY2023-24 Budget Amendment and Work 
Program\2.Attachment 1 Resolution FY22-23 and FY23-24 Budget.Amendments.docx 

 
Attachments: Exhibit A – FY 2022-23 SCCRTC Budget and Work Program and 

Measure D Budget as amended 
   Exhibit B - FY 2023-24 SCCRTC Budget and Work Program and 

Measure D Budget as amended 
    
 
Distribution: RTC Fiscal 

15-7



EXHIBIT A 

PROPOSED SCCRTC BUDGET 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 
JUNE 30, 2023 

AUGUST 3, 2023 

Tracy New 
tnew@sccrtc.org 

15-8



Budget Summary by Purpose, Program or Project (with allocated labor and overhead)
Fiscal Year

Proposed for August 3, 2023

Object
Revenues

1 TDA Revenue 40172 -                  -             -             -               897,271      -             778,192      1,675,463     
2 Measure D 40186 183,124           1,538,365   7,264,040   2,995,905     3,259,672   126,860      825,544      16,443,510    
3 Local Assistance (MTC) 40384 -                  -             -             -               -             -             -             50,000          
4 Interest 40430 -                  -             -             -               -             -             -             5,000            
5 Leases, Licenses & Other Rev 40440 -                  83,772        -             -               -             -             -             83,772          
6 SB 1 40465 145,683           -             125,000      -               -             -             -             270,683        
7 DMV Fees 40754 -                  -             -             -               -             -             -             257,750        
8 RSTP Exchange/STBG 40761 -                  -             25,000        215,000        88,016        105,000      -             501,679        
9 STIP 40770 -                  -             530,000      -               118,146      -             -             648,146        
10 Rural Planning Assistance (RPA) 40786 -                  -             -             -               357,181      -             -             357,181        
11 Sustainable Communities - RMRA 40786 -                  -             -             -               583,039      -             -             583,039        
12 Caltrans FSP 40884 167,519           -             -             -               -             -             -             167,519        
13 State-Other 40894 -                  220,243      -             -               55,725        -             -             275,968        
14 Sustainable Communities - FTA 5304 40962 -                  -             -             -               338,000      -             -             338,000        
15 Contr from Other Agencies 41150 -                  -             -             -               -             90,000        -             90,000          
16 Contr from Other Funds 42367 -                  110,000      -             -               -             -             -             160,000        
17 Other revenue 42384 -                  137,545      -             -               -             -             -             137,545        
18 Loan from RSTPX for FEMA Exp 45206 725,000      725,000        
19 Total Revenues 496,326           2,814,925   7,944,040   3,210,905     5,697,050   321,860      1,603,736   22,770,255    
20
21 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
22 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 33,257             315,455      271,523      396,577        558,467      19,824        453,276      2,200,516     
23 Allocated Overhead 62354 42,743             405,423      348,962      509,681        717,741      25,478        566,149      2,811,703     
24 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 76,000             720,878      620,485      906,258        1,276,208   45,302        1,019,425   5,012,218     
25
26 Services & Supplies
27 Telephone & Mobile Device 61221 2,000               480             -             -               -             -             10,500        23,680          
28 Office Equipment 61312 -                  -             -             -               -             -             5,000          5,000            
29 Liability Insurance 61535 4,200               30,023        -             -               -             -             97,985        137,458        
30 Office Equip Repair/Maint 61725 -                  -             -             -               -             -             7,500          7,500            
31 Other Equip Repair/Maint 61730 -                  -             -             -               -             -             -             30,000          
32 Repairs & Maintenance 61845 -                  544,000      -             433,800        -             -             14,900        992,700        
33 Membership 62020 -                  -             -             -               -             -             25,000        25,600          
34 Duplicating 62214 -                  -             -             -               -             -             3,000          3,000            
35 Computer Software 62219 -                  -             -             -               -             -             88,000        88,000          
36 Postage 62221 -                  -             -             -               -             -             3,000          4,000            
38 General Supplies & Expenses 62223 4,000               500             -             -               -             -             14,619        23,119          
39 Accounting & Audit 62301 -                  -             -             -               -             -             41,500        41,500          
40 County Mainframe/Intranet 62325 -                  -             -             -               -             -             6,000          6,000            
41 Commissioners' Stipend 62327 -                  -             -             -               -             -             10,000        10,000          
42 Design and Eng Consult 62340 -                  -             4,735,340   -               -             -             -             4,735,340     
43 Legal Fees 62359 200                 30,000        52,000        30,000          -             -             92,000        205,200        
44 Professional & Special Serv 62381 -                  469,520      204,515      817,846        854,714      276,558      236,040      3,020,193     
46 Office Rent 62610 -                  -             -             -               -             -             135,184      135,184        
47 Adv & Promo Materials 62801 -                  -             -             -               -             -             5,500          55,500          
48 Contingency/Special Exp 62856 3,926               112,000      2,331,700   23,001          491,800      -             11,576        3,144,003     
49 Subscriptions 62890 -                  -             -             -               -             -             -             2,000            
50 Towing 62893 405,000           -             -             -               -             -             -             405,000        
51 Transp/Travel/Educ 62914 1,000               -             -             -               -             -             25,000        30,000          
52 Vehicle Maint, Rentals & Serv 62920 -                  -             -             -               -             -             4,000          4,000            
53 Utilities 63070 -                  -             -             -               -             -             1,000          2,200            
55 Funds to City of Santa Cruz 75204 -                  -             -             -               -             -             -             -               
57 Contribution to Other Agency 75230 -                  -             -             -               3,280,000   -             -             3,280,000     
58 Transfer to Other Funds 75233 -                  -             -             -               110,000      -             -             160,000        
60 CHP Operations 75280 -                  -             -             -               -             -             -             150,600        
61 Funds to SC County 75303 -                  -             -             1,000,000     -             -             -             1,000,000     
62 Construction 86110 -                  555,000      -             -               -             -             -             555,000        
63 Office Equipment 86210 -                  -             -             -               -             -             20,000        20,000          
64 Total Services & Supplies 420,326           1,741,523   7,323,555   2,304,647     4,736,514   276,558      857,304      18,301,777    
65
66 Total Expenditures: 496,326           2,462,401   7,944,040   3,210,905     6,012,722   321,860      1,876,729   23,313,995    
67
68 Excess of Revenues over Expenditures: -                  352,524      -             -               (315,672)     -             (272,993)     (588,665)       
69 *Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 178,146           604,834      154,904      32,013          674,814      973,714      1,680,541     
70 Ending Fund Balance (estimate): 178,146           957,358      154,904      32,013          359,142      -             700,721      1,091,876     
71
72 * Does not include operating reserve and cash flow reserve targets, see fund balances and reserve table

Rail Hwy Total AdminMBSST PlanningFSP Hwy 9-SLV

15-9



Budget Summary by Purpose, Program or Project (with allocated labor and overhead)
Fiscal Year

Proposed As of August 3, 2023

Object
Revenues 5/4/2023 8/3/2023 5/4/2023 8/3/2023 5/4/2023 8/3/2023 5/4/2023 8/3/2023 5/4/2023 8/3/2023 5/4/2023 8/3/2023 5/4/2023 8/3/2023 5/4/2023 8/3/2023

1 TDA Revenue 40172 -                  -          -         -             -             -                -             -               -                -                -               897,271       897,271       -            -             -             -               778,192       778,192       -            1,675,463      1,675,463      -                 
2 Measure D 40186 183,124           183,124   -         3,300,000    1,538,365    (1,761,635)    10,788,773    7,264,040    (3,524,733)    8,020,841      2,995,905      (5,024,936)    4,066,802    3,259,672    (807,130)    1,162,449    126,860       (1,035,589)    825,544       825,544       -            28,597,532    16,443,510    (12,154,023)    
3 Local Assistance (MTC) 40384 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               -             -             -            50,000          50,000          -                 
4 Interest 40430 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               -             -             -            5,000            5,000            -                 
5 Leases, Licenses & Other Rev 40440 -                  -          -         83,772        83,772        -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               -             -             -            83,772          83,772          -                 
6 SB 1 40465 145,683           145,683   -         -             -             -               200,000         125,000       (75,000)        -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               -             -             -            345,683         270,683         (75,000)           
7 DMV Fees 40754 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               -             -             -            257,750         257,750         -                 
8 RSTP Exchange/STBG 40761 -                  -          -         -             -             -               25,000          25,000        -               425,000         215,000         (210,000)       88,016        88,016        -            105,000       105,000       -               -             -             -            711,679         501,679         (210,000)         
9 STIP 40770 -                  -          -         -             -             -               1,100,000      530,000       (570,000)       -                -                -               123,000       118,146       (4,854)       -             -             -               -             -             -            1,223,000      648,146         (574,854)         
10 Rural Planning Assistance (RPA) 40786 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               357,181       357,181       -            -             -             -               -             -             -            357,181         357,181         -                 
11 Sustainable Communities - RMRA 40786 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               583,039       583,039       -            -             -             -               -             -             -            583,039         583,039         -                 
12 Caltrans FSP 40884 168,888           167,519   (1,369)     -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               -             -             -            168,888         167,519         (1,369)            
13 State-Other 40894 -                  -          -         285,000       220,243       (64,757)        -                -             -               -                -                -               55,725        55,725        -            -             -             -               -             -             -            340,725         275,968         (64,757)           
14 Sustainable Communities - FTA 5304 40962 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               338,000       338,000       -            -             -             -               -             -             -            338,000         338,000         -                 
15 Contr from Other Agencies 41150 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            90,000        90,000        -               -             -             -            90,000          90,000          -                 
16 Contr from Other Funds 42367 -                  -          -         110,000       110,000       -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               -             -             -            160,000         160,000         -                 
17 Other revenue 42384 -                  -          -         -             137,545       137,545        -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               -             -             -            -                137,545         137,545          
18 Loan from RSTPX for FEMA Exp 45206 -                  -          -         -             725,000       725,000        -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               -             -             -            -                725,000         725,000          
19 Total Revenues 497,695           496,326   (1,369)     3,778,772    2,814,925    (963,847)       12,113,773    7,944,040    (4,169,733)    8,445,841      3,210,905      (5,234,936)    6,509,034    5,697,050    (811,984)    1,357,449    321,860       (1,035,589)    1,603,736    1,603,736    0               34,987,713    22,770,255    (12,217,458)    
20
21 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
22 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 37,852             33,257     (4,595)     450,726       315,455       (135,271)       262,121         271,523       9,402            431,472         396,577         (34,895)        558,666       558,467       (199)          21,770        19,824        (1,946)          449,196       453,276       4,079        2,363,941      2,200,516      (163,425)         
23 Allocated Overhead 62354 48,648             42,743     (5,905)     579,274       405,423       (173,851)       336,879         348,962       12,083          554,528         509,681         (44,847)        717,997       717,741       (256)          27,979        25,478        (2,501)          567,847       566,149       (1,698)       3,028,677      2,811,703      (216,975)         
24 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 86,500             76,000     (10,500)   1,030,000    720,878       (309,122)       599,000         620,485       21,485          986,000         906,258         (79,742)        1,276,663    1,276,208    (455)          49,749        45,302        (4,447)          1,017,044    1,019,425    2,381        5,392,619      5,012,218      (380,400)         
25
26 Services & Supplies
27 Telephone & Mobile Device 61221 2,000               2,000       -         480             480             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               10,000        10,500        500           23,180          23,680          500                 
28 Office Equipment 61312 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               5,000          5,000          -            5,000            5,000            -                 
29 Liability Insurance 61535 4,200               4,200       -         30,023        30,023        -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               80,061        97,985        17,924       119,534         137,458         17,924            
30 Office Equip Repair/Maint 61725 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               7,500          7,500          -            7,500            7,500            -                 
31 Other Equip Repair/Maint 61730 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               -             -             -            30,000          30,000          -                 
32 Repairs & Maintenance 61845 -                  -          -         -             544,000       544,000        -                -             -               807,800         433,800         (374,000)       -             -             -            -             -             -               14,900        14,900        -            822,700         992,700         170,000          
33 Membership 62020 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               25,000        25,000        -            25,600          25,600          -                 
34 Duplicating 62214 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               3,000          3,000          -            3,000            3,000            -                 
35 Computer Software 62219 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               86,200        88,000        1,800        86,200          88,000          1,800              
36 Postage 62221 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               3,000          3,000          -            4,000            4,000            -                 
37 General Supplies & Expenses 62223 4,000               4,000       -         500             500             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               17,000        14,619        (2,381)       25,500          23,119          (2,381)            
38 Accounting & Audit 62301 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               41,500        41,500        -            41,500          41,500          -                 
39 County Mainframe/Intranet 62325 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               6,000          6,000          -            6,000            6,000            -                 
40 Commissioners' Stipend 62327 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               10,000        10,000        -            10,000          10,000          -                 
41 Design and Eng Consult 62340 -                  -          -         -             -             -               5,064,298      4,735,340    (328,958)       -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               -             -             -            5,064,298      4,735,340      (328,958)         
42 Legal Fees 62359 1,000               200          (800)        30,000        30,000        -               61,000          52,000        (9,000)          40,000          30,000          (10,000)        -             -             -            2,000          -             (2,000)          50,000        92,000        42,000       185,000         205,200         20,200            
43 Professional & Special Serv 62381 -                  -          -         1,894,520    469,520       (1,425,000)    216,000         204,515       (11,485)        1,116,846      817,846         (299,000)       854,714       854,714       -            279,700       276,558       (3,142)          279,840       236,040       (43,800)     4,802,620      3,020,193      (1,782,427)      
44 Office Rent 62610 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               135,184       135,184       -            135,184         135,184         -                 
45 Adv & Promo Materials 62801 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               8,500          5,500          (3,000)       58,500          55,500          (3,000)            
46 Contingency/Special Exp 62856 5,000               3,926       (1,074)     120,000       112,000       (8,000)          6,173,475      2,331,700    (3,841,775)    100,667         23,001          (77,666)        491,800       491,800       -            1,026,000    -             (1,026,000)    30,000        11,576        (18,424)     8,116,942      3,144,003      (4,972,939)      
47 Subscriptions 62890 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               -             -             -            2,000            2,000            -                 
48 Towing 62893 357,726           405,000   47,274    -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               -             -             -            357,726         405,000         47,274            
49 Transp/Travel/Educ 62914 1,000               1,000       -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               70,000        25,000        (45,000)     75,000          30,000          (45,000)           
50 Vehicle Maint, Rentals & Serv 62920 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               4,000          4,000          -            4,000            4,000            -                 
51 Utilities 63070 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               1,000          1,000          -            2,200            2,200            -                 
52 Funds to City of Santa Cruz 75204 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               2,520,000      -                (2,520,000)    -             -             -            -             -             -               -             -             -            2,520,000      -                (2,520,000)      
53 Contribution to Other Agency 75230 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               4,081,000    3,280,000    (801,000)    -             -             -               -             -             -            4,081,000      3,280,000      (801,000)         
54 Transfer to Other Funds 75233 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               110,000       110,000       -            -             -             -               -             -             -            160,000         160,000         -                 
55 CHP Operations 75280 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               -             -             -            150,600         150,600         -                 
56 Funds to SC County 75303 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               2,874,528      1,000,000      (1,874,528)    -             -             -            -             -             -               -             -             -            2,874,528      1,000,000      (1,874,528)      
57 Construction 86110 -                  -          -         850,000       555,000       (295,000)       -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               -             -             -            850,000         555,000         (295,000)         
58 Mobile Equipment 86209 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               75,000        -             (75,000)     75,000          -                (75,000)           
59 Office Equipment 86210 -                  -          -         -             -             -               -                -             -               -                -                -               -             -             -            -             -             -               40,000        20,000        (20,000)     40,000          20,000          (20,000)           
60 Total Services & Supplies 374,926           420,326   45,400    2,925,523    1,741,523    (1,184,000)    11,514,773    7,323,555    (4,191,218)    7,459,841      2,304,647      (5,155,194)    5,537,514    4,736,514    (801,000)    1,307,700    276,558       (1,031,142)    1,002,685    857,304       (145,381)    30,764,312    18,301,777    (12,462,535)    
61 -         -               -               -               -            -               -            -                 
62 Total Expenditures: 461,426           496,326   34,900    3,955,523    2,462,401    (1,493,122)    12,113,773    7,944,040    (4,169,733)    8,445,841      3,210,905      (5,234,936)    6,814,177    6,012,722    (801,455)    1,357,449    321,860       (1,035,589)    2,019,729    1,876,729    (143,000)    36,156,931    23,313,995    (12,842,935)    
63
64 Excess of Revenues over Expenditures: -          (36,269)   352,524       529,275        -             -               -                -               (315,672)     (10,529)     -             -               (272,993)     143,000     (543,741)       625,478          
65 *Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 178,146   441,215       160,502       30,000          674,814       32,013        973,714       1,710,541      
66 Ending Fund Balance (estimate): 178,146   793,739       160,502       30,000          359,142       32,013        700,721       1,121,876      
67
68 * Does not include operating reserve and cash flow reserve targets, see fund balances and reserve table

EXHIBIT A FY2023 BUDGET AMENDMENT

Total DIFFDIFFMBSST DIFFPlanning DIFFHwy 9-SLV DIFFAdminDIFF DIFFRail DIFFHwyFSP

15-10



FY2022/23 FY2022/23
Approved Proposed Note

Object 5/4/23 8/3/23
1 Measure D 40186 183,124     183,124     -          
2 SB 1 40465 145,683     145,683     -          
3 STIP 40770 -            -            -          
4 Caltrans FSP 40884 168,888     167,519     (1,369)     Revised allocation
5 Total Revenues 497,695     496,326     (1,369)     
6
7 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
8 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 37,852       33,257       (4,595)     
9 Allocated Overhead 62354 48,648       42,743       (5,905)     
10 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 86,500       76,000       (10,500)   Reallocate budget
11
12 Services & Supplies
13 Telephone & Mobile Device 61221 2,000        2,000        -          
14 Liability Insurance 61535 4,200        4,200        -          
15 Subscriptions 62222 -            -            -          
16 General Supplies & Expenses 62223 4,000        4,000        -          
17 Legal Fees 62359 1,000        200           (800)        Reallocate budget
18 Contingency/Special Exp 62856 5,000        3,926        (1,074)     Reallocate budget
19 Towing 62893 357,726     405,000     47,274    Increase due to fuel and labor costs
20 Transp/Travel/Educ 62914 1,000        1,000        -          
21 CHP Operations 75280 -            -            -          
22 Total Services & Supplies 374,926     420,326     45,400    
23
24 Total Expenditures: 461,426     496,326     34,900    
25
26 To/(From) reserves: 36,269       -            36,269    FSP and SB1 funds previously budgeted to 

reserves

Freeway Service Patrol (FSP)
Difference

15-11



FY2022/23 FY2022/23
Rail Trail Authority Approved Proposed Note

Object 5/4/23 8/3/23
1 Measure D 40186 3,300,000    1,538,365    (1,761,635)    Carryover to FY2023-24
2 Leases, Licenses & Other Rev 40440 83,772        83,772        -               
3 State-Other 40894 285,000      220,243      (64,757)        
4 Contr from Other Funds 42367 110,000      110,000      -               
5 Other revenue 42384 -             137,545      137,545        
6 RSTPX Loan 45206 -             725,000      725,000        For FEMA 2023 Storm Damage
7 Total Revenues 3,778,772    2,814,925    (963,847)       
8
9 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
10 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 450,726      315,455      (135,271)       
11 Allocated Overhead 62354 579,274      405,423      (173,851)       
12 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 1,030,000    720,878      (309,122)       Carryover to FY2023-24
13
14 Services & Supplies
15 Telephone & Mobile Device 61221 480             480             -               
16 Liability Insurance 61535 30,023        30,023        -               
17 Repairs & Maintenance 61845 -             544,000      544,000        FEMA 2023 Storm Damage project costs
18 General Supplies & Expenses 62223 500             500             -               
19 Legal Fees 62359 30,000        30,000        -               
20 Professional & Special Serv 62381 1,894,520    469,520      (1,425,000)    Zero Emiss Transit/Trail carryover to FY2023-24
21 Contingency/Special Exp 62856 120,000      112,000      (8,000)          
22 Transp/Travel/Educ 62914 -               
23 Construction 86110 850,000      555,000      (295,000)       Manresa and Pajaro carryover to FY2023-24
24 Total Services & Supplies 2,925,523    1,741,523    (1,184,000)    
25
26 Total Expenditures: 3,955,523    2,462,401    (1,493,122)    
27
28 To/(From) Reserves (176,751)     352,524      (529,275)       

Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line
Difference

15-12



 41st to Soquel  
 Bay Porter-
State Park  

 State Park to 
Freedom 

Total
 41st to 
Soquel  

 Bay Porter-
State Park  

 State Park to 
Freedom 

Total Difference Note

1 Revenues Object
2 Measure D 40186 969,775           1,592,958     8,226,040     10,788,773    387,000       730,000       6,147,040    7,264,040        (3,524,733) Includes $1.829m carryover for Seg 12 Meas D 
3 SB1 SCCP 41st/Soquel 40465 200,000           200,000        125,000       125,000       (75,000)        Carryover to FY2023-24
4 Local Partnership Program 40465 -                -              -               
5 RSTPX 40761 25,000          25,000          25,000         25,000         -               
6 STIP 40770 800,000        300,000        1,100,000     230,000       300,000       530,000       (570,000)       Carryover to FY2023-24
7 Total Revenues 1,169,775        2,392,958     8,551,040     12,113,773    512,000       960,000       6,472,040    7,944,040    (4,169,733)    
8 Expenditures
9 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 55,575             63,452          143,095        262,121        62,914         59,263         149,346       271,523       9,402            
10 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 71,425             81,548          183,905        336,879        80,858         76,164         191,940       348,962       12,083          

11
Total Salaries, benefits, & overhead 127,000           145,000        327,000        599,000        143,772       135,427       341,286       620,485       21,485          Carryover to FY2023-24

12 Design support during construction 62381 200,000           -                -                200,000        125,000       -              -              125,000       (75,000)        
13 PA/ED Consultants 62381 -                  -                1,304,802     1,304,802     -              -              1,054,802    1,054,802    (250,000)       
14 PS&E Consultant 62340 -                  397,958        3,161,538     3,559,496     -              394,000       3,161,538    3,555,538    (3,958)          
15 Legal Fees 62359 1,000               10,000          50,000          61,000          1,000           1,000           50,000         52,000         (9,000)          
16 Project Management Consultant 62381 23,000             90,000          53,000          166,000        30,000         90,000         53,000         173,000       7,000            Increase for additional work performed 
17 Pub Info, materials, & meetings 62381 20,000             10,000          20,000          50,000          16,228         9,573           5,714           31,515         (18,485)        
18 Right of Way Capital and Support 62856 196,000           800,000        3,634,700     4,630,700     196,000       230,000       1,805,700    2,231,700    (2,399,000)    
19 Construction Capital 62856 582,775           840,000        -                1,422,775     -              -              -              -              (1,422,775)    
20 Contingency 62856 20,000             100,000        -                120,000        -              100,000       -              100,000       (20,000)        
21 Total Services & Supplies 1,042,775        2,247,958     8,224,040     11,514,773    368,228       824,573       6,130,754    7,323,555    (4,191,218)    
22
23 Total Expenditures 1,169,775        2,392,958     8,551,040     12,113,773    512,000       960,000       6,472,040    7,944,040    (4,169,733)    
24
25 To/(From) Reserves: -                  -                -                -                -              -              -              -              -               

Carryover to FY2023-24

Carryover to FY2023-24

Highway 1 Corridor FY2022/23
Approved
5/4/2023

FY2022/23
Proposed
8/3/2023

15-13



 General 
Network and 
Maintenance  North Coast 

 City of Santa 
Cruz 

 City of 
Watsonville 

 City of 
Capitola 

 County of 
Santa cruz 

Total
 General 

Network and 
Maintenance  North Coast 

 City of 
Santa Cruz 

 City of 
Watsonville 

 City of 
Capitola 

 County of 
Santa Cruz 

Total Difference Note

1 Revenues Object
2 Measure D 40186 1,741,600    505,013       2,737,500      21,200      1,000   3,014,528    8,020,841    1,336,863    417,347       128,928    21,200      200      1,091,367    2,995,905        (5,024,936)
3 RSTPX 425,000       425,000       215,000       215,000       (210,000)       
4 Coastal Conservancy -              -              -              -               
5 Total Revenues 1,741,600    930,013       2,737,500      21,200      1,000   3,014,528    8,445,841    1,336,863    632,347       128,928    21,200      200      1,091,367    3,210,905    (5,234,936)    Carryover to FY2023-24
6 Expenditures
7 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 271,311       65,640         48,136          4,376        438      41,572         431,472       258,736       81,831         31,257      4,376        88        20,290         396,577       (34,895)         
8 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 348,689       84,360         61,864          5,624        562      53,428         554,528       332,527       105,169       40,171      5,624        112      26,077         509,681       (44,847)         

9
Total Salaries, benefits, & overhead 620,000       150,000       110,000        10,000      1,000   95,000         986,000       591,263       187,000       71,428      10,000      200      46,367         906,258       (79,742)         Carryover to FY2023-24

10 Maintenance 61845 776,600       -              20,000          11,200      807,800       400,600       -              22,000      11,200      433,800       (374,000)       
11 Legal Fees 62359 40,000         40,000         30,000         30,000         (10,000)         
12 Professional Services 62381 345,000       639,346       87,500          45,000         1,116,846    345,000       392,346       35,500      45,000         817,846       (299,000)       
13 Grant Match 62856 -              -              -               
14 Property Acquisitions 62856 100,667       -              100,667       23,001         -              23,001         (77,666)         
15 Contingency 62856 -              -              -               
16 County of Santa Cruz 75303 2,874,528    2,874,528    1,000,000    1,000,000    (1,874,528)    
17 City of Santa Cruz 75204 2,520,000      2,520,000    -           -              (2,520,000)    
18 City of Watsonville 75206 -            -              -            -              -               
19 Construction 86110 -              
20 Total Services & Supplies 1,121,600    780,013       2,627,500      11,200      -      2,919,528    7,459,841    745,600       445,347       57,500      11,200      -      1,045,000    2,304,647    (5,155,194)    
21
22 Total Expenditures 1,741,600    930,013       2,737,500      21,200      1,000   3,014,528    8,445,841    1,336,863    632,347       128,928    21,200      200      1,091,367    3,210,905    (5,234,936)    
23
24 To/(From) Reserves: -              -              -               -            -      -              -              -              -              -           -            -      -              -              -               

Carryover to FY2023-24

5/4/2023 8/3/2023

MBSST Coastal Rail Trail FY2022/23 FY2022/23
Approved Proposed

15-14



FY2022/23 FY2022/23
Proposed Proposed Note

Object 5/4/23 8/3/23
1 Revenues
2 TDA Planning 40172        897,271        897,271                  -   
3 Measure D 40186     4,066,802     3,259,672        (807,130) Carryover to FY2023-24 for Hwy 17
4 RSTP Exchange 40761          88,016          88,016                  -   
5 STIP for Planning (PPM) 40770        123,000        118,146            (4,854)
6 Rural Planning Assistance (RPA) 40786        357,181        357,181                  -   
7 Sustainable Communities - FTA 5304 40786        338,000        338,000                  -   
8 Sustainable Communities - RMRA 40786        448,800        448,800                  -   
9 Sust Transp Planning Grant WCB 40786          55,725          55,725                  -   

10 State TNC Access Fee Funds 40786        134,239        134,239                  -   
11 Total Revenues     6,509,034     5,697,050        (811,984)
12
13 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead  by Program
14 Regional Planning Coordination 155,000      158,890      3,890            
15 Work Program 45,000        46,289        1,289            
16 Public Information 60,000        60,515        515              
17 Bicycle/Pedestrian Planning 75,000        75,157        157              
18 Specialized Transportation 80,000        80,000        -               
19 Regional Transp Plan for MTP 260,000      267,729      7,729            
20 Transp Improv Program (TIP) 215,000      215,000      -               
21 Highway & Roadway Planning 100,000      100,726      726              
22 Highway 17 Wildlife Crossing 10,000        3,870          (6,130)          Carryover to FY2023-24 for Hwy 17
23 Scotts Creek Marsh Restor 25,000        12,909        (12,091)        Project complete
24 TNC Access for All 20,136        20,136        -               
25 Equity Action Plan Grant 90,000        90,000        -               
26 Climate Adaptation–Vulnerability Assessment 110,000      110,000      -               
27 Reg Conserv Invest Strategy (RCIS) 31,527        34,987        3,460            Additional work completed in FY2022-23
28     Allocated Labor Costs 51070 558,666      558,467      (199)             
29     Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 717,997      717,741      (256)             
30 Subtotal Staff and Overhead 1,276,663    1,276,208    (455)             

Planning
Difference

Additional work completed in FY2022-23

15-15



FY2022/23 FY2022/23

Proposed Proposed Note
Object 5/4/23 8/3/23

31 Services & Supplies
32 Passthrough Programs
33 Bike To Work Prog (Ecology Action) 62381 72,000        72,000        -               
34 Bike & Ped Safety (CTSC) 62381 156,000      156,000      -               
35  Ecology Action - Bike Smart and Walk Smart 62381 -             -             -               
36  Ecology Action - Bike Challenge + 62381 31,503        31,503        -               
37  Project Paseo (Bike SC County) 62381 52,258        52,258        -               
38 Professional Services (contracts) -               
39 Legislative Assistant 62381 44,600        44,600        -               
40 Eng and Other Tech Consultants 62381 21,750        21,750        -               
41 AMBAG for RTP/MTP 75230 30,000        30,000        -               
43 RCIS Consultant 62381 30,000        30,000        -               
44 Transportation Equity Action Plan 62381 150,000      150,000      -               
45 Climate Adaption-Vulnerability Assessment 62381 150,000      150,000      -               
46 TNC Access for All 62381 114,103      114,103      -               
46 RTC Work Element Related Items
47 Traffic Monitoring services 62381 20,000        20,000        -               
48 Printing Documents and Pub Info Materials 62381 12,500        12,500        -               
49 Grant funds reserved for future FY 62856 491,800      491,800      -               
50 Transfer to Rail/Trail Authority 75233 110,000      110,000      -               
51 Subtotal Services & Supplies 580,611      1,486,514    -               
52 Other
53 Highway 17 Wildlife Crossing Construction to Caltrans 4,051,000    3,250,000    (801,000)       Carryover to FY2023-24 for Hwy 17
54
55 Total Expenditures 5,908,274    6,012,722    (801,455)       

Planning Continued
Difference

15-16



FY2022/23 FY2022/23
Approved Proposed Note

Object 5/4/23 8/3/23
1 Measure D 40186 1,162,449    126,860         (1,035,589)    Carryover to FY2022-23
2 RSTP Exchange/STBG 40761 105,000      105,000         -               
3 Contr from Other Agencies 41150 90,000        90,000          -               
4 Total Revenues 1,357,449    321,860         (1,035,589)    
5
6 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
7 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 21,770        19,824          (1,946)          
8 Allocated Overhead 62354 27,979        25,478          (2,501)          
9 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 49,749        45,302          (4,447)          Carryover  to FY2023-24
10
11 Services & Supplies
12 Legal Fees 62359 2,000          -               (2,000)          Carryover  to FY2023-24
13 Professional & Special Serv 62381 279,700      276,558         (3,142)          Carryover SLV Schools Study to FY2023-24
14 Contingency/Special Exp 62856 1,026,000    -               (1,026,000)    Carryover future grant match to FY2023-24
15  Contribution to Other Agency 75230 -             -               -               
16 Total Services & Supplies 1,307,700    276,558         (1,031,142)    
17
18 Total Expenditures: 1,357,449    321,860         (1,035,589)    
19
20 Excess of Revenues over Expenditures: -             -               -               

Highway 9 Improvements
Difference

15-17



Staffing - Costs FY2022/23 FY2022/23
Approved Proposed Note

GL Key 721100 Object 5/4/23 8/3/23
1 Regular Pay 51000 2,666,297    2,657,717    (8,580)                        
2 Overtime Pay 51005 25,000        871             (24,129)                      
3 Social Security and Medicare 52010 164,040       163,435      (605)                           

4 PERS Retirement
5 Employer Current Contributions 52015 229,819       229,819      -                            
6 Unfund Acc Liab-UAL req'd pmt* 52015 135,295       116,653      (18,642)                      
7 Unfund Acc Liab-UAL addt'l pmt** 52015 194,672       213,314      18,642                       
8 Total Retirement 559,786       559,786      -                            
9
10 Employee Insur and Ben 527,901       468,514      (59,387)                      

11 Unemployment Insurance 53015 17,550        -             (17,550)                      
12 Workers Comp Insurance 54010 10,753        11,038        285                            
13 Other -Compensation 55021 35,754        44,340        8,586                         
14 Temporary Contract Services 62395 10,000        -             (10,000)                      

15 Unfund Acc Liab-UAL OPEB*** 75273 81,972        181,972      100,000                     

16 Retiree Health Contr to PERS 75273 97,439        97,943        504                            
17 4,196,492    4,185,616    (10,876)                      

***Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) contribution to prefund the retiree health liability

Difference

* The required Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) payment is calculated using the fiscal year liability and amortization base 
schedule by asset and non-asset gains/losses (20-30 years).   

** The most recent valuation for the RTC's Classic Plan UAL as of June 30, 2021, is $449,490 and is 96.1% funded, this is 
up from 81.2% as of June 30, 2020. The most recent valuation for the RTC's PEPRA Plan as of June 30, 2021, shows the 
plan is overfunded by $48,232 due to the 21.3 returns for the period ending June 30,2021.  The budget includes 
Additional Discretionary Payments (ADP) toward the UAL to CalPERS $132,328 and a $62,290 contribution to a Section 
115 Trust to prefund the pension liability. The purpose for continuing to fund the Classic pension UAL is to account for the  
change in valuation methodology due to CalPERS most recent changes to their financial policies.  

Reallocate budget for addtl OPEB trust contribution to pre-
fund retiree health and lower UAL

15-18



RSTPX Current FY Revenues and Unallocated FY2022/23 FY2022/23
Approved Proposed
5/4/23 8/3/23

1 RSTPX revenues programmed in prior FYs  9,295,516  12,532,147 3,236,630  
2 RSTP Exchange Funds Budgeted - Carryover -  -  -  
3 REVENUES:
4 State RSTP Exchange Funds 3,492,418  4,186,323  693,905  
5 Interest 5,000  5,000  -  
6 Total RSTPX funding for projects 12,792,934  16,723,470  3,930,535  
7
8 Approved RSTP Exchange - All Projects
9 Allocations budgeted for disbursement in fiscal year:
10 City of Capitola
11 Clares Street Traffic Calming & Roadway Rehab  870,264 - (870,264) Funds disbursed in FY2022-23

12
Upper Pacific Cove Parking Lot Pedestrian Trail and 
Depot Park bus stop  200,000  200,000  - 

13 Kennedy Drive Sidewalk  197,000  197,000  - 
14 City of Santa Cruz

15
Ocean Street Pavement Rehab and Safety 
Improvements  600,000  600,000  - 

16 City of Scotts Valley
17 Bean Creek Road Rehab  429,769  429,769  - 
18 Bluebonnet Sidewalk Improvements  - -  - 
19 Granite Creek Rd Overcrossing  500,000  500,000  - 
20 City of Watsonville

21
Freedom Blvd Plan Line (Green Valley to Buena 
Vista)

 70,322  70,322 
 - 

22 Road Rehab/Reconstruction (various locations)  1,129,518  1,129,518  - 
23 Complete Streets Downtown  352,000  352,000  - 
24 County of Santa Cruz
25 Aptos Village Plan Improvements  164,728  164,728  - 
26 Aptos Creek Road Traffic Signal  405,402  405,402  - 
27 Hwy 152/Holohan - College Intersection  1,277,243  1,277,243  - 
28 Hwy 1 Mar Vista Overcrossing (co-op)  32,899  32,899  - 
29 Hwy 17 to Soquel Corridor Resurfacing  335,356  335,356  - 
30 Pioneer-Varni Road Resurfacing  322,315  322,315  - 

31
Emergency Routes Resurfacing: Alba & Jamison 
Creek Roads & Empire Grade  324,221  324,221  - 

32
Soquel Drive Buffered Bike Lanes & Congestion 
Mitigation  1,000,000  1,000,000  - 

33 San Andreas Road Resurfacing  5,000  5,000  - 
34 Holohan Road Resurfacing  440,000  440,000  - 
35 SCCRTC

36
MBSST - North Coast Phase 2 Environmental 
Review  19,756  19,756  - 

37 Scotts Creek  4,255 - (4,255)
38 Bike Santa Cruz County  8,264 - (8,264)
39 Project Paseo (Bike Santa Cruz County)  47,421  6,690 (40,731)

40
Youth Safe Route to Schools Bike/Pedestrian 
Education

 54,783  7,122 (47,661)

41 SLV Schools Complex Circulation and Access Study
 105,000 - (105,000)

42 Davenport - Highway 1 Crosswalk  125,000  125,000  - 
43 State Route 1-41st to Soq HOV EIR  250,000  250,000  - 

44 State Route 1-Freedom to State Park Aux Lanes, 
Bus in Shoulder, Coastal Rail Trail Segment 12

 25,000  25,000 
 - 

45 Loan to RTC for 2017 Storm Damage/FEMA - 3,587,805  3,587,805 Res 18-17 adopted April 6, 2017
46 Loan to RTC for 2023 Storm Damage/FEMA - 725,000     725,000 Res 18-17 adopted April 6, 2017
47 Total Project Expenditures  9,295,516  12,532,147  3,236,630 
48
49 Funds not Programmed/Appropriated  3,497,418  4,191,323  693,905 

Difference Note

Funds disbursed in FY2022-23

15-19



Fund Balances and Reserves for Special Revenue Funds
TDA RSTP STA LCTOP TOTAL

Description FUND EXCHANGE FUND Fund ALL
(1) FUND (2) (3) (3) FUNDS

1
2 Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 4,112,802      6,172,172      376          295,469   10,580,818        
3   FY 2022-23 Revenues budgeted 12,002,492    4,191,323      -          16,193,815        
4   FEMA Reimbursement for 2017 Storm Damage 3,587,805      -          -          3,587,805          
5   Restricted Reserve carried over (936,183)       -                -          -          (936,183)           
6   Funds Not Yet Programmed -                -                -          -          -                   
7   Funds programmed - Prior FY (1,806,536)    (9,505,761)    (11,312,297)       
8   Funds programmed - Current FY (12,456,800)   (3,026,386)    -          (285,985)  (15,769,171)       
9 Subtotal Fund Balance 915,776         1,419,153      376          9,484       2,344,788          

10
11 To Restricted Reserve Fund (64,740)         (64,740)             

12 Total Fund Balance 851,036         1,419,153      376          9,484       2,280,048          
13
14
15 Reserve Funds
16  Reserve Target (8% target for TDA fund; 30% target for others) 1,065,869      -                -          -          1,065,869          

17
18  Restricted Reserve (8% target for TDA fund) 936,183         936,183            
19 Restricted Reserve Budgeted in Current FY (8% target for TDA fund) 64,740           -    -    -   64,740              
20 Total Reserve Funds 1,000,923      -                -          -          1,000,923          

21
22 Reserve Fund Difference from Target (64,946)         -                -          -          (64,946)             
23
24 Notes:
25 Numbers in parentheses are negative numbers. All other numbers are positive numbers.
26 Funds within each category (column) are restricted for use on projects/programs within that category. 
27 Fund Balance = Balances of Funds not used at the end of prior fiscal year.
28 Budgeted Carryover = Portion of Fund Balance used in current fiscal year budget.
29
30    (1)  8% reserve established in RTC Rules and Regulations for the TDA Fund; % available in this proposed budget
31    (2)  Reserve funds not proposed for capital project funds
32    (3)  This is a pass-through fund, all receipts are paid to Santa Cruz Metro or other transit providers

15-20



Fund Balances and Reserves for RTC Programs & Projects
RTC RIDESHARE RAIL/TRAIL SAFE MBSST HWY 1 TOTAL

Description FUND FUND AUTHORITY OPERATING FSP ACTIVE PA/ED & ENG ALL
(1) (2) FUND (4) FUND (2) FUND (2) TRANSPORTATION FUND (4) FUNDS

1 Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 2,565,468   506,782       604,834      607,779       178,146    32,013                154,904         4,649,925    
2   FY 2022-23 Revenues budgeted -             -              -              -              -           -                     -                -              
3   Reserve carried over (916,940)     (134,929)      -              (161,775)      -           -                     -                (1,213,643)   
4   FY 2022-23 Excess Revenues over Expenditures (588,665)     (127,100)      352,524      (180,500)      -           -                     -                (543,741)      
5 Subtotal Fund Balance 1,059,863   244,753       957,358      265,504       178,146    32,013                154,904         2,892,541    

6 To Cashflow Reserve -             -              -              -              -           -                     -                -              
7 To Restricted Reserve Fund -             -              -              -              -           -                     -                -              

8 Total Fund Balance 1,059,863   244,753       957,358      265,504       178,146    32,013                154,904         2,892,541    
9

10
11 Reserve Funds
12  Reserve Target (30%) 916,940      134,929       -              161,775       -           -                     -                1,213,643    

13
14 Cashflow Reserve ( 8%) 244,517      134,929       -              161,775       -           -                     -                541,221       
15  Restricted Reserve ( 22%) 672,422      -              -              -              -           -                     -                672,422       
16 Total Reserve Funds 916,940      134,929       -              161,775       -           -                     -                1,213,643    

17
18 Reserve Fund Difference from Target -             -              -              -              -           -                -              
19
20 Notes:
21 Numbers in parentheses are negative numbers. All other numbers are positive numbers.
22 Funds within each category (column) are restricted for use on projects/programs within that category. 
23 Fund Balance = Balances of Funds not used at the end of prior fiscal year.
24 Budgeted Carryover = Portion of Fund Balance used in current fiscal year budget.
25
26    (1)  3.6 month (or 30%) operating reserve target established in RTC Rules and Regulations for the RTC Fund ;  months (or %) available in this proposed budget
27    (2)  3.6 month (or 30%) operating reserve target approved for the SAFE Fund to cover SAFE, FSP and Cruz511 operations
28    (3)  Reserve funds not proposed for capital project funds
29
30

15-21



 

PROPOSED MEASURE D BUDGET 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 

JUNE 30, 2023 

15-22



Measure D Regional Funding Program and Project Budget Summary 
Administration and Implementation by RTC - Proposed Budget            

Fiscal Year FY2022/23

Proposed for August 3, 2023

Object
1 Revenues
2 Measure D 40186 825,544                 333,333      166,667          6,683,912           4,545,060      2,138,852    14,693,367    
3 Interest 40430 5,000                     5,000          2,000             50,000                10,000           -              72,000          
4 Operating Transfer In 40462 -                        -             2,098,420       -                     -                -              2,098,420      
5 Total Revenues 830,544                 338,333      2,267,087       6,733,912           4,555,060      2,138,852    16,863,787    
6
7 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
8 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 348,252                 19,824        1,694             327,653              397,700         306,334       1,401,456      
9 Allocated Overhead 62354 431,173                 25,478        2,176             412,253              511,123         393,701       1,775,905      

10 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 779,425                 45,302        3,870             739,906              908,823         700,035       3,177,361      
11
12 Services & Supplies
13 Repairs & Maintenance 61845 -                        -             -                 -                     433,800         -              433,800         
14 Subscriptions 62222 -                        -             -                 2,000                  -                -              2,000            
15 General Supplies & Expenses 62223 2,619                     -             -                 4,000                  -                -              6,619            
16 Accounting & Audit 62301 1,000                     -             -                 -                     -                -              1,000            
17 Legal Fees 62359 1,185                     -             -                 52,200                -                25,000        78,385          
18 Professional & Special Services 62381 38,815                   31,558        -                 4,882,555           597,346         365,000       5,915,274      
19 Adv & Promo Materials 62801 2,500                     -             -                 -                     -                -              2,500            
20 Contingency/Special Exp 62856 -                        50,000        -                 299,926              1,523,001      112,000       1,984,927      
21 Towing 62893 -                        -             -                 167,998              -                -              167,998         
22 Transportation/Travel/Education 62914 -                        -             -                 1,000                  -                -              1,000            
23 Funds to City of Santa Cruz 75204 -                        -             -                 -                     35,500           -              35,500          
24 Contribution to Other Agency 75230 -                        -             3,250,000       -                     -                -              3,250,000      
25 CHP Operations 75280 -                        -             -                 50,000                -                -              50,000          
26 Funds to SC County 75303 -                        -             -                 -                     1,000,000      -              1,000,000      
27 Construction 86110 -                        -             -                 -                     -                337,146       337,146         
28 Intra-Fund Transfer/Program Loan 95046 -                        -             -                 2,098,420           -                -              2,098,420      
29 Total Services & Supplies 46,119                   81,558        3,250,000       7,558,099           3,589,647      839,146       15,364,569    
30
31 Total Expenditures: 825,544                 126,860      3,253,870       8,298,005           4,498,470      1,539,181    18,541,930    
32
33 Excess of Revenues over Expenditures: 5,000                     211,473      (986,783)        (1,564,093)          56,590           599,671       (1,678,143)    
34 Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 510,450                 1,452,260   904,668          20,462,269          10,633,354    3,508,651    37,471,652    
35 Ending Fund Balance (estimate): 515,450                 1,663,733   (82,116)          18,898,176          10,689,944    4,108,322    35,793,509    

TotalAdmin & Impl Hwy 9 Highway Corridor Active Transp Rail Corridor
Hwy 17 Wildlife 

Crossing

15-23



Measure D Regional Funding Program and Project Budget Summary 
Administration and Implementation by RTC - Proposed Budget            

Fiscal Year FY2022/23

Proposed for August 3, 2023

Object
1 Revenues 5/4/2023 8/3/2023 5/4/2023 8/3/2023 5/4/2023 8/3/2023 5/4/2023 8/3/2023 5/4/2023 8/3/2023 5/4/2023 8/3/2023 5/4/2023 8/3/2023
2 Measure D 40186 825,544                 825,544   -       333,333      333,333      -              166,667      166,667      -           6,683,912     6,683,912     -              4,545,060     4,545,060     -              2,138,852   2,138,852   -              14,693,367    14,693,367    -                
3 Interest 40430 5,000                     5,000      -       5,000          5,000          -              2,000          2,000          -           50,000          50,000          -              10,000          10,000          -              -             -             -              72,000          72,000          -                
4 Other Revenue 42386 -                        -          -       -             -             -              3,023,420   2,098,420   (925,000)   -               -               -              -               -               -              1,503,318   -             (1,503,318)    4,526,738     2,098,420     (2,428,318)      
5 Total Revenues 830,544                 830,544   -       338,333      338,333      -              3,192,087   2,267,087   (925,000)   6,733,912     6,733,912     -              4,555,060     4,555,060     -              3,642,170   2,138,852   (1,503,318)    14,765,367    14,765,367    -                
6
7 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
8 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 344,173                 348,252   4,079    21,770        19,824        (1,946)          4,376          1,694          (2,682)       322,789        327,653        4,864           432,595        397,700        (34,895)        402,948      306,334      (96,613)        1,528,649     1,401,456     (127,193)        
9 Allocated Overhead 62354 432,871                 431,173   (1,698)   27,979        25,478        (2,501)          5,624          2,176          (3,448)       406,132        412,253        6,121           555,970        511,123        (44,847)        517,868      393,701      (124,168)      1,946,445     1,775,905     (170,541)        

10 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 777,044                 779,425   2,381    49,749        45,302        (4,447)          10,000        3,870          (6,130)       728,921        739,906        10,985         988,565        908,823        (79,742)        920,816      700,035      (220,781)      3,475,095     3,177,361     (297,734)        
11
12 Services & Supplies -             
13 Repairs & Maintenance 61845 -                        -          -       -             -             -              -             -             -           -               -               -              807,800        433,800        (374,000)      -             -             -              807,800        433,800        (374,000)        
14 Subscriptions 62222 -                        -          -       -             -             -              -             -             -           2,000            2,000            -              -               -               -              -             -             -              2,000            2,000            -                
15 General Supplies & Expenses 62223 5,000                     2,619      (2,381)   -             -             -              -             -             -           4,000            4,000            -              -               -               -              -             -             -              9,000            6,619            (2,381)            
16 Accounting & Audit 62301 1,000                     1,000      -       -             -             -              -             -             -           -               -               -              -               -               -              -             -             -              1,000            1,000            -                
17 Legal Fees 62359 -                        1,185      1,185    2,000          -             (2,000)          -             -             -           62,000          52,200          (9,800)          -               -               -              25,000        25,000        -              89,000          78,385          (10,615)          
18 Professional & Special Services 62381 40,000                   38,815     (1,185)   36,558        31,558        (5,000)          -             -             -           5,147,998     4,882,555     (265,443)      994,346        597,346        (397,000)      1,790,000   365,000      (1,425,000)    8,008,902     5,915,274     (2,093,628)      
19 Adv & Promo Materials 62801 2,500                     2,500      -       -             -             -              -             -             -           -               -               -              -               -               -              -             -             -              2,500            2,500            -                
20 Contingency/Special Exp 62856 -                        -          -       125,000      50,000        (75,000)        -             -             -           1,743,775     299,926        (1,443,849)    3,429,667     1,523,001     (1,906,666)    120,000      112,000      (8,000)          5,418,442     1,984,927     (3,433,515)      
21 Towing 62893 -                        -          -       -             -             -              -             -             -           155,624        167,998        12,374         -               -               -              -             -             -              155,624        167,998        12,374           
22 Transportation/Travel/Education 62914 -                        -          -       -             -             -              -             -             -           1,000            1,000            -              -               -               -              -             -             -              1,000            1,000            -                
23 Funds to City of Santa Cruz 75204 -                        -          -       -             -             -              -             -             -           -               -               -              2,607,500     35,500          (2,572,000)    -             -             -              2,607,500     35,500          (2,572,000)      
24 Contribution to Other Agency 75230 -                        -          -       949,142      -             (949,142)      4,051,000   3,250,000   (801,000)   -               -               -              -               -               -              -             -             -              5,000,142     3,250,000     (1,750,142)      
25 CHP Operations 75280 -                        -          -       -             -             -              -             -             -           50,000          50,000          -              -               -               -              -             -             -              50,000          50,000          -                
26 Funds to SC County 75303 -                        -          -       -             -             -              -             -             -           -               -               -              2,874,528     1,000,000     (1,874,528)    -             -             -              2,874,528     1,000,000     (1,874,528)      
27 Construction 86110 -                        -          -       -             -             -              -             -             -           -               -               -              -               -               -              445,000      337,146      (107,854)      445,000        337,146        (107,854)        
28 Intra-Fund Transfer/Program Loan 95046 -                        -          -       -             -             -              -             -             -           3,023,420     2,098,420     (925,000)      -               -               -              -             -             -              3,023,420     2,098,420     (925,000)        
29 Total Services & Supplies 48,500                   46,119     (2,381)   1,112,700   81,558        (1,031,142)    4,051,000   3,250,000   (801,000)   10,189,817    7,558,099     (2,631,718)    10,713,841    3,589,647     (7,124,194)    2,380,000   839,146      (1,540,854)    28,495,858    15,364,569    (13,131,289)    
30
31 Total Expenditures: 825,544                 825,544   0          1,162,449   126,860      (1,035,589)    4,061,000   3,253,870   (807,130)   10,918,738    8,298,005     (2,620,733)    11,702,406    4,498,470     (7,203,936)    3,300,816   1,539,181   (1,761,635)    31,970,953    18,541,930    (13,429,023)    
32
33 Excess of Revenues over Expenditures: 5,000      211,473      (986,783)     (1,564,093)    56,590          599,671      (1,678,143)    
34 Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 510,450   1,452,260   904,668      20,462,269    10,633,354    3,508,651   37,471,652    
35 Ending Fund Balance (estimate): 515,450   1,663,733   (82,116)       18,898,176    10,689,944    4,108,322   35,793,509    
36
37

DIFFTotalAdmin & Impl DIFF DIFFHwy 9 DIFFHwy 17 Wildlife Crossing DIFFHighway Corridor DIFFActive Transp DIFFRail Corridor

15-24



FY2022/23 FY2022/23
SLV SR9 Improvements Approved Proposed Note

Object 5/4/23 8/3/23
1 Measure D 40186 333,333         333,333      -               
2 Interest 40430 5,000             5,000          -               
3 Total Revenues 338,333         338,333      -               
4
5 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
6 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 21,770           19,824        (1,946)          
7 Allocated Overhead 62354 27,979           25,478        (2,501)          
8 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 49,749           45,302        (4,447)          Carryover to FY2022-23
9
10 Services & Supplies
11 Legal Fees 62359 2,000             -             (2,000)          
12 Professional & Special Services 62381 36,558           31,558        (5,000)          
13 Contingency/Special Exp 62856 125,000         50,000        (75,000)        
14 Grant Match 75230 949,142         -             (949,142)       
15 Total Services & Supplies 1,112,700      81,558        (1,031,142)    
16
17 Total Expenditures: 1,162,449      126,860      (1,035,589)    
18
19 To/(From) Reserves: (824,116)        211,473      1,035,589     
20 Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 1,452,260      1,452,260    -               
21 Ending Fund Balance (estimate): 628,144         1,663,733    1,035,589     

Difference
Measure D 

Carryover to FY2022-23

15-25



Measure D FY2022/23 FY2022/23
Approved Proposed Note

Object 5/4/23 8/3/23
1 Measure D 40186 166,667        166,667       -               
2 Interest 40430 2,000            2,000           -               
3 Transfer from Highway GL Key 729300 42462 3,023,420     2,098,420    (925,000)       
4 Total Revenues 3,192,087     2,267,087    (925,000)       
5
6 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
7 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 4,376            1,694           (2,682)          
8 Allocated Overhead 62354 5,624            2,176           (3,448)          
9 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 10,000          3,870           (6,130)          
10
11 Services & Supplies
12 Contribution to Other Agency 75230 4,051,000     3,250,000    (801,000)       
13 Total Services & Supplies 4,051,000     3,250,000    (801,000)       
14
15 Total Expenditures: 4,061,000     3,253,870    (807,130)       
16
17 To/(From) Reserves: (868,913)       (986,783)      (124,000)       
18 Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 904,668        904,668       -             
19 Ending Fund Balance (estimate): 35,754          (82,116)        (124,000)       

DifferenceHighway 17 Wildlife Crossing

15-26



FY2022/23 FY2022/23
Highway Corridor Approved Proposed

Object 5/4/23 8/3/23
1 Revenues
2 Measure D 40186 6,683,912      6,683,912      -               
3 Interest 40430 50,000          50,000          -               
4 Total Revenues 6,733,912      6,733,912      -               
5
6 Program and Project Expenditures
7 Planning- Regional Conservation Investment Strategy
8 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 1,059            1,059            -               
9 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 1,362            1,362            -               

10  Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 2,421            2,421            -               

11 Freeway Service Patrol (FSP)
12 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 7,220            2,626            (4,595)          
13 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 9,280            3,374            (5,905)          

14  Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 16,500          6,000            (10,500)        
15 Supplies 62223 4,000            4,000            -               
16 Legal Fees 62359 1,000            200               (800)             
17 Contingency/Special Exp 62856 5,000            3,926            (1,074)          
18 Towing 62893 155,624        167,998        12,374          
19 Transportation/Travel/Education 62914 1,000            1,000            -               
20 Subtotal Services & Supplies 166,624        177,124        10,500          
21 SAFE
22 CHP 75280 50,000          50,000          -               
23 Subtotal Services & Supplies 50,000          50,000          -               

24 Cruz 511 -               
25 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 48,573          48,573          -               
26 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 62,427          62,427          -               
27  Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 111,000        111,000        -               

28 Subscriptions - Data Collecting 62222 2,000            2,000            -               
29 Website Maintenance and Tech Supp 62381 8,000            8,000            
30 Commute Manager 62381 29,000          29,000          
31 Transportation Demand Management 62381 50,000          50,000          -               
32 Subtotal Services & Supplies 89,000          89,000          -               

33 41st to Soquel Aux Lanes & Bike/Ped Xing:
34 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 55,575          62,914          7,339            
35 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 71,425          80,858          9,433            
36  Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 127,000        143,772        16,772          Reallocate from prof services and contingency
37 Design and Engineering Consult 62340 -                -                -               

NoteDifference
Measure D 

Reallocate budget to towing costs

15-27



FY2022/23 FY2022/23
41st to Soquel Aux Lanes & Bike/Ped Xing: Approved Proposed

Object 5/4/23 8/3/23
38 Legal Fees 62359 1,000            1,000            -               
39 Project Management Consultant 62381 23,000          30,000          7,000            Reallocate from contingency
40 Pub Info, materials, & meetings 62381 20,000          16,228          (3,772)          Reallocate to labor and overhead
41 Construction & Contingency 62856 602,775        -                (602,775)       Carryover to FY2023-24 
42 Subtotal Services & Supplies 842,775        243,228        (599,547)       

43 State Park Dr to Bay Porter Aux Lanes and Mar Vista Overcrossing: -               
44 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 63,452          59,263          (4,189)          
45 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 81,548          76,164          (5,384)          
46  Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 145,000        135,427        (9,573)          
47 Legal Fees 62359 10,000          1,000            (9,000)          
48 PS&E Consultant 62381 397,958        394,000        (3,958)          
49 Project Management Consultant 62381 90,000          90,000          -               
50 Pub Info, materials, & meetings 62381 10,000          9,573            (427)             
51 Contingency & Supplies 62856 100,000        100,000        -               
52 Construction Capital 62856 840,000        -                (840,000)       
53 Subtotal Services & Supplies 1,447,958      594,573        (853,385)       
54 Freedom to State Park Dr Aux Lanes:
55 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 143,095        149,346        6,252            
56 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 183,905        191,940        8,034            
57  Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 327,000        341,286        14,286          Reallocate from prof services
58 Legal Fees 62359 50,000          50,000          -               
59 PA/ED Consultant 62381 979,802        729,802        (250,000)       Carryover to FY2023-24
60 PS&E Consultant 62381 3,161,538      3,161,538      -               
61 Project Management Consultant 62381 53,000          53,000          -               
62 Pub Info, materials, & meetings 62381 20,000          5,714            (14,286)        Reallocate to labor
63 ROW SUPPORT 62381 305,700        305,700        -               
66 Subtotal Services & Supplies 4,570,040      4,305,754      (264,286)       
67
68 Interprogram loan to Highway 17 95046 3,023,420      2,098,420      (925,000)       Carryover to FY2023-24
69
70 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 728,921        739,906        10,985          
71 Subtotal Services & Supplies 7,166,397      5,459,679      (1,706,718)    
72 -               
73 Total Expenditures 10,918,738    8,298,005      (2,620,733)    
74
75 To/(From) Reserves: (4,184,826)    (1,564,093)    2,620,733     

Carryover to FY2023-24 

Measure D Highway Corridor - Continued

Difference

15-28



FY2022/23 FY2022/23
Active Transportation Approved Proposed Note

Object 5/4/23 8/3/23
1 Revenues
2 Measure D 40186 4,545,060    4,545,060    -             
3 Interest 40430 10,000         10,000         -             
4 Total Revenues 4,555,060    4,555,060    -             
5 Expenditures
6 MBSST Corridor and RCIS 
7 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 432,595       397,700       (34,895)       
8 Allocated Overhead (indirect) 62354 555,970       511,123       (44,847)       
9 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 988,565       908,823       (79,742)       
10 Services and Supplies:
11 Corridor encroach & maint 61845 776,600       400,600       (376,000)     
12 Legal Fees 62359 -              -              -             
12 General Tech Assist 62381 20,000         20,000         -             
13 Electric Rail Transit & Trail 62381 350,000       -              (350,000)     
14 Boundary Survey & Encroachments 62381 325,000       325,000       -             
15 Subtotal Services & Supplies 1,471,600    745,600       (726,000)     
16 MBSST North Coast Segment 5: 
18 Davenport Crosswalk 62381 -              -              -             
21 Tech Asst (envl, surv, EHS, etc.) 62381 254,346       207,346       (47,000)       
20 Acquisitions 62856 100,667       23,001         (77,666)       
22 Subtotal Services & Supplies 355,013       230,347       (124,666)     

23 MBSST City of Santa Cruz Segments 7, 8 & 9:
24 Ongoing Maintenance 61845 20,000         22,000         2,000          
25 Tech Asst (envl, surv, EHS, etc.) 62381 457,500       35,500         (422,000)     
26 Seg 7 Phase 2 to SC City 75204 2,150,000    -              (2,150,000)  
27 Seg 8 SL River trestle to SC City 75204 -              -              -             
28 Subtotal Services & Supplies 2,627,500    57,500         (2,570,000)  
29 MBSST County of Santa Cruz Segments 10, 11 &12
30 Prelim Eng & enviro clearance 62381 -             
31 Professional & Special Services 62381 45,000         45,000         -             
32 Seg 12 ROW w/ Freedom -State Park 62856 3,329,000    1,500,000    (1,829,000)  
33 Env Review and Design to SCC 75303 2,874,528    1,000,000    (1,874,528)  
34 Subtotal Services & Supplies 6,248,528    2,545,000    (3,703,528)  
35 MBSST City of Watsonville Segment 18:
36 Legal Fees 62359 -             
37 Tech Asst (envl, surv, EHS, etc.) 62381 -              -              -             
38 Ongoing Maintenance 61845 11,200         11,200         -             
39 Seg 18 Constr - to City of Wats 75206 -              -              -             
40 Subtotal Services & Supplies 11,200         11,200         -             
41 MBSST City of Capitola City Hall to Monterey Ave:
43 Tech Asst (envl, surv, EHS, etc.) 62381 -              -              -             
44 Subtotal Services & Supplies -              -              -             
45
46 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 988,565       908,823       (79,742)       
47 Subtotal Services & Supplies 10,713,841  3,589,647    (7,124,194)  
48 -             
49 Total Expenditures 11,702,406  4,498,470    (7,203,936)  
50
51 To/(From) Reserve Funds (7,147,346)   -              7,147,346   

Carryover to FY2023-24

 Carryover to FY2023-24 
$1,829,000 to Hwy 1 - Seg 12 

Difference
Measure D 

Carryover to FY2023-24

Carryover to FY2023-24

15-29



FY2022/23 FY2022/23
Approved Proposed Note

Object 5/4/23 8/3/23
1 Measure D 40186 2,138,852    2,138,852    -               
2 Interest 40430 -              -              -               
3 Other-FEMA Reimbursement 42384 1,503,318    -              (1,503,318)    
4 Total Revenues 3,642,170    2,138,852    (1,503,318)    
5
6 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
7 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 402,948       306,334       (96,613)        
8 Allocated Overhead 62354 517,868       393,701       (124,168)       
9 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 920,816       700,035       (220,781)       Carryover to FY2022-23
10
11 Services & Supplies
13 Legal Fees 62359 25,000         25,000         -               
14 Professional & Special Services 62381 1,790,000    365,000       (1,425,000)    Electric Rail Transit/Trail carryover
15 Contingency/Special Exp 62856 120,000       112,000       (8,000)          Carryover to FY2022-23
16 Construction 86110 445,000       337,146       (107,854)       Manresa and Pajaro Bridge carryover
17 Total Services & Supplies 2,380,000    839,146       (1,540,854)    
18
19 3,300,816    1,539,181    (1,761,635)    
20
21 To/(From) Reserves: 341,354       599,671       -               

Difference
Meas D Rail Corridor

15-30



EXHIBIT B 

PROPOSED SCCRTC BUDGET 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 
JUNE 30, 2024 

AUGUST 3, 2023 

Tracy New 
tnew@sccrtc.org 

15-31



Budget Summary by Purpose, Program or Project (with allocated labor and overhead)
Fiscal Year

Proposed August 3, 2023

Object
Revenues

1 TDA Revenue 40172 -                  -               -               875,054      -             1,627,414     
2 Measure D 40186 5,413,635        20,864,508    10,666,758    807,130      1,290,589   40,321,877    
3 Local Assistance (MTC) 40384 -                  -               -               -             -             50,000          
4 Interest 40430 -                  -               -               -             -             5,000            
5 Leases, Licenses & Other Rev 40440 83,772             -               -               -             -             83,772          
6 SB 1 40465 -                  75,000          -               -             -             220,683        
7 DMV Fees 40754 -                  -               -               -             -             257,750        
8 RSTP Exchange/STBG 40761 -                  -               125,000        13,812        -             207,475        
9 STIP 40770 -                  570,000        -               139,579      -             709,579        
10 Rural Planning Assistance (RPA) 40786 -                  -               -               359,725      -             359,725        
11 Sustainable Communities - RMRA 40786 -                  -               -               677,560      -             677,560        
12 Caltrans FSP 40884 -                  -               -               -             -             163,871        
13 State-Other 40894 64,757             -               -               -             -             64,757          
14 Sustainable Communities - FTA 5304 40962 -                  -               -               473,220      -             473,220        
15 Contr from Other Funds 42367 110,000           -               -               -             -             160,000        
16 Other revenue 42384 -                  -               80,000          -             -             80,000          
17 Total Revenues 5,672,164        21,509,508    10,871,758    3,346,081   1,290,589   45,462,683    
18
19 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
20 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 581,252           234,888        477,093        622,390      16,698        2,637,564     
21 Allocated Overhead 62354 617,870           249,685        507,149        661,601      17,749        2,803,731     
22 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 1,199,122        484,573        984,242        1,283,991   34,447        5,441,295     
23
24 Services & Supplies
25 Telephone & Mobile Device 61221 480                 -               -               -             -             23,180          
26 Office Equipment 61312 -                  -               -               -             -             5,000            
27 Liability Insurance 61535 32,425             -               -               -             -             151,875        
28 Office Equip Repair/Maint 61725 -                  -               -               -             -             7,500            
29 Other Equip Repair/Maint 61730 -                  -               -               -             -             30,000          
30 Repairs & Maintenance 61845 -                  -               1,394,650     -             -             1,410,650     
31 Membership 62020 -                  -               -               -             -             25,600          
32 Duplicating 62214 -                  -               -               -             -             3,000            
33 Computer Software 62219 -                  -               -               -             -             86,200          
34 Postage 62221 -                  -               -               -             -             4,000            
34 General Supplies & Expenses 62223 500                 -               -               -             -             20,500          
35 Accounting & Audit 62301 -                  -               -               -             -             40,500          
36 County Mainframe/Intranet 62325 -                  -               -               -             -             6,000            
37 Commissioners' Stipend 62327 -                  -               -               -             -             10,000          
38 Legal Fees 62359 30,000             39,000          10,000          -             2,000          133,000        
39 Professional & Special Serv 62381 3,541,520        7,475,978     610,000        734,765      33,142        12,766,245    
40 Office Rent 62610 -                  -               -               -             -             139,239        
41 Adv & Promo Materials 62801 -                  -               -               -             -             56,000          
42 Contingency/Special Exp 62856 108,000           13,509,957    77,666          712,850      1,221,000   15,882,973    
43 Subscriptions 62890 -                  -               -               -             -             2,000            
44 Towing 62893 -                  -               -               -             -             357,726        
45 Transp/Travel/Educ 62914 -                  -               -               -             -             75,000          
46 Vehicle Maint, Rentals & Serv 62920 -                  -               -               -             -             4,000            
47 Utilities 63070 -                  -               -               -             -             1,700            
49 Funds to City of Capitola 75203 -                  -               2,554,000     -             -             2,554,000     
50 Funds to City of Santa Cruz 75204 -                  -               11,200          -             -             11,200          
51 Funds to City of Watsonville 75206 -                  -               -               831,000      -             831,000        
52 Contribution to Other Agency 75230 -                  -               -               110,000      -             110,000        
53 Transfer to Other Funds 75233 -                  -               -               -             -             50,000          
54 CHP Operations 75280 -                  -               2,000,000     -             -             2,150,600     
55 Construction 86110 980,000           -               3,230,000     -             -             4,210,000     
56 Mobile Equipment 86209 -                  -               -               -             -             75,000          
57 Office Equipment 86210 -                  -               -               -             -             40,000          
58 Total Services & Supplies 4,692,925        21,024,935    9,887,516     2,388,615   1,256,142   41,273,688    
59
60 Total Expenditures: 5,892,047        21,509,508    10,871,758    3,672,606   1,290,589   46,714,983    
61
62 Excess of Revenues over Expenditures: (219,883)          -               -               (326,525)     -             (773,637)       
63 *Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 604,834           154,904        2,013            674,814      1,791,361     
64 Ending Fund Balance (estimate): 384,951           154,904        2,013            348,289      -             988,416        
65
66 * Does not include operating reserve and cash flow reserve targets, see fund balances and reserve table

Planning Hwy 9-SLV Total Rail Hwy MBSST

15-32



Budget Summary by Purpose, Program or Project (with allocated labor and overhead)
Fiscal Year

Proposed August 3, 2023

Object
Revenues 4/6/2023 8/3/2023 4/6/2023 8/3/2023 4/6/2023 8/3/2023 4/6/2023 8/3/2023 4/6/2023 8/3/2023 4/6/2023 8/3/2023

1 TDA Revenue 40172 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               875,054       875,054       -               -             -             -               1,627,414      1,627,414      -               
2 Measure D 40186 3,652,000        5,413,635    1,761,635    17,468,733    20,864,508    3,395,775     5,320,550    10,666,758    5,346,208     860,030       807,130       (52,900)        255,000       1,290,589    1,035,589     28,835,570    40,321,877    11,486,307    
3 Local Assistance (MTC) 40384 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               50,000          50,000          -               
4 Interest 40430 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               5,000            5,000            -               
5 Leases, Licenses & Other Rev 40440 83,772             83,772        -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               83,772          83,772          -               
6 SB 1 40465 -                  -             -             200,000        75,000          (125,000)       -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               345,683         220,683         (125,000)       
7 DMV Fees 40754 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               257,750         257,750         -               
8 RSTP Exchange/STBG 40761 -                  -             -             25,000          -               (25,000)        125,000       125,000        -               28,782        13,812        (14,970)        -             -             -               247,445         207,475         (39,970)         
9 STIP 40770 -                  -             -             -               570,000         570,000        -             -               -               123,000       139,579       16,579          -             -             -               123,000         709,579         586,579        
10 Rural Planning Assistance (RPA) 40786 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               337,000       359,725       22,725          -             -             -               337,000         359,725         22,725          
11 Sustainable Communities - RMRA 40786 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               521,039       677,560       156,521        -             -             -               521,039         677,560         156,521        
12 Caltrans FSP 40884 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               168,888         163,871         (5,017)           
13 State-Other 40894 285,000           64,757        (220,243)     -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               285,000         64,757          (220,243)       
14 Sustainable Communities - FTA 5304 40962 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               318,000       473,220       155,220        -             -             -               318,000         473,220         155,220        
15 Contr from Other Funds 42367 110,000           110,000       -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               160,000         160,000         -               
16 Other revenue 42384 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             80,000          80,000          -             -             -               -             -             -               -               80,000          80,000          
17 Total Revenues 4,130,772        5,672,164    1,541,392    17,693,733    21,509,508    3,815,775     5,445,550    10,871,758    5,426,208     3,062,905    3,346,081    283,176        255,000       1,290,589    1,035,589     33,365,560    45,462,683    12,097,123    
18
19 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
20 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 389,463           581,252       191,789      207,859        234,888         27,028          376,772       477,093        100,320        553,621       622,390       68,769          -             16,698        16,698          2,168,526      2,637,564      469,038        
21 Allocated Overhead 62354 500,537           617,870       117,333      267,141        249,685         (17,455)        484,228       507,149        22,922          711,514       661,601       (49,913)        -             17,749        17,749          2,777,530      2,803,731      26,201          
22 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 890,000           1,199,122    309,122      475,000        484,573         9,573            861,000       984,242        123,242        1,265,136    1,283,991    18,855          -             34,447        34,447          4,946,056      5,441,295      495,240        
23
24 Services & Supplies
25 Telephone & Mobile Device 61221 480                  480             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               23,180          23,180          -               
26 Office Equipment 61312 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               5,000            5,000            -               
27 Liability Insurance 61535 32,425             32,425        -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               151,875         151,875         -               
28 Office Equip Repair/Maint 61725 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               7,500            7,500            -               
29 Other Equip Repair/Maint 61730 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               30,000          30,000          -               
30 Repairs & Maintenance 61845 -                  -             -             -               -               -               779,350       1,394,650      615,300        -             -             -               -             -             -               795,350         1,410,650      615,300        
31 Membership 62020 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               25,600          25,600          -               
32 Duplicating 62214 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               3,000            3,000            -               
33 Computer Software 62219 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               86,200          86,200          -               
34 Postage 62221 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               4,000            4,000            -               
35 General Supplies & Expenses 62223 500                  500             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               20,500          20,500          -               
36 Accounting & Audit 62301 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               40,500          40,500          -               
37 County Mainframe/Intranet 62325 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               6,000            6,000            -               
38 Commissioners' Stipend 62327 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               10,000          10,000          -               
39 Legal Fees 62359 30,000             30,000        -             30,000          39,000          9,000            -             10,000          10,000          -             -             -               -             2,000          2,000            112,000         133,000         21,000          
40 Professional & Special Serv 62381 2,116,520        3,541,520    1,425,000    8,013,191      7,475,978      (537,213)       610,000       610,000        -               779,735       734,765       (44,970)        30,000        33,142        3,142            11,920,286    12,766,245    845,959        
41 Office Rent 62610 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               139,239         139,239         -               
42 Adv & Promo Materials 62801 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               56,000          56,000          -               
43 Contingency/Special Exp 62856 100,000           108,000       8,000          9,175,542      13,509,957    4,334,415     -             77,666          77,666          371,800       712,850       341,050        225,000       1,221,000    996,000        10,125,842    15,882,973    5,757,131      
44 Subscriptions 62890 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               2,000            2,000            -               
45 Towing 62893 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               357,726         357,726         -               
46 Transp/Travel/Educ 62914 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               75,000          75,000          -               
47 Vehicle Maint, Rentals & Serv 62920 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               4,000            4,000            -               
48 Utilities 63070 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               1,700            1,700            -               
49 Funds to City of Capitola 75203 -                  -             -             -               -               -               34,000        2,554,000      2,520,000     -             -             -               -             -             -               34,000          2,554,000      2,520,000      
50 Funds to City of Santa Cruz 75204 -                  -             -             -               -               -               11,200        -               (11,200)        -             -             -               -             -             -               11,200          -               (11,200)         
51 Funds to City of Watsonville 75206 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               30,000        831,000       801,000        -             -             -               30,000          831,000         801,000        
52 Contribution to Other Agency 75230 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               110,000       110,000       -               -             -             -               110,000         110,000         -               
53 Transfer to Other Funds 75233 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               50,000          50,000          -               
54 CHP Operations 75280 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             2,000,000      2,000,000     -             -             -               -             -             -               150,600         2,150,600      2,000,000      
55 Construction 86110 685,000           980,000       295,000      -               -               -               3,150,000    3,230,000      80,000          -             -             -               -             -             -               3,835,000      4,210,000      375,000        
56 Mobile Equipment 86209 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               75,000          75,000          -               
57 Office Equipment 86210 -                  -             -             -               -               -               -             -               -               -             -             -               -             -             -               40,000          40,000          -               
58 Construction 86110 685,000           980,000       295,000      -               -               -               3,150,000    3,230,000      80,000          -             -             -               -             -             -               3,835,000      4,210,000      375,000        
59 Total Services & Supplies 3,649,925        5,672,925    2,023,000    17,218,733    21,024,935    3,806,202     7,734,550    13,106,316    5,371,766     1,291,535    2,388,615    1,097,080     255,000       1,256,142    1,001,142     32,173,298    45,472,488    13,299,190    
60 -             -               -               -               -               -               
61 Total Expenditures: 4,539,925        6,872,047    2,332,122    17,693,733    21,509,508    3,815,775     8,595,550    14,090,558    5,495,008     2,556,671    3,672,606    1,115,935     255,000       1,290,589    1,035,589     37,119,354    50,913,783    13,794,429    
62
63 Excess of Revenues over Expenditures: (1,199,883)  (790,730)     -               -               (3,218,800)    (68,800)        (326,525)     (832,759)       -             -               (5,451,100)     (1,697,306)    
64 *Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 441,215       160,502         30,000          674,814       2,013          1,821,361      
65 Ending Fund Balance (estimate): (758,668)     160,502         (3,188,800)    348,289       2,013          (2,200,384)     
66
67 * Does not include operating reserve and cash flow reserve targets, see fund balances and reserve table

Hwy 9-SLVRail DIFF Hwy DIFF MBSST DIFF Planning DIFF DIFF Total DIFF

15-33



Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line FY2023/24 FY2023/24
GL Key 722100 Approved Proposed
Real Property Object 4/6/2023 8/3/2023
Revenues

1 Leases, Licenses & Other Revenue 40440 83,772          83,772          -               
2 Transfer from TC Funds 42367 110,000        110,000        -               
3 Total Revenues 193,772        193,772        -               
4 Expenditures
5 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 48,136          53,320          5,185            
6 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 61,864          56,680          (5,185)          
7 Total Salaries, benefits, & overhead 110,000        110,000        0                  
8 Liability Insurance 61535 32,425          32,425          -               
9 Telephone 61221 480              480              -               
10 Office Expense 62223 500              500              -               
11 Legal Counsel 62359 5,000            5,000            -               
12 Professional Services 62381 54,520          54,520          -               
13 Total Services, Supplies & Other 92,925          92,925          -               
14
15 Total Expenditures 202,925        202,925        -               
16
17 To/(From) Reserves Real Property: (9,153)          (9,153)          (0)                 

Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line FY2023/24 FY2023/24
GL Key 722100 Approved Proposed
Capital Projects Object 4/6/2023 8/3/2023
Revenues

1 Measure D 40186 3,302,000     5,063,635     1,761,635     Electric Transit & Trail 
2 Measure D Active Transportation 40186 350,000        350,000        -               
3 Short-Line RR Improvement Program 40894 285,000        64,757          (220,243)       Grant funds received in FY2022-23
4 Total Revenues 3,937,000     5,478,392     1,541,392     
5 Expenditures
6 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 341,327        527,931        186,604        
7 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 438,673        561,191        122,518        

8
Total Salaries, benefits, & overhead 780,000        1,089,122     309,122        Carryover from FY2022-23

9 Legal Counsel 62359 25,000          25,000          -               
10 Professional Services 62381 2,062,000     3,487,000     1,425,000     Carryover from FY2022-23 for ZEPR*
11 Contingency-General 62856 100,000        100,000        -               
12 Contingency-Construction 62856 -               8,000            8,000            Carryover from FY2022-23
13 Loan Repayment 74244 -               -               
14 Construction 86110 685,000        980,000        295,000        Carryover from FY2022-23
15 Total Services, Supplies & Other 2,872,000     4,600,000     1,728,000     
16
17 Total Expenditures 3,652,000     5,689,122     2,037,122     
18
19 To/(From) Reserves Capital Projects: 285,000        (210,730)       (495,730)       

Total To/(From) Reserves Rail Fund: 275,847        (219,883)       (495,730)       *Zero Emission Passenger Rail

Difference Note

Difference Note

Reallocation of labor for FY2023-24 approved ICAP rate

15-34



FY2023/24 FY2023/24
GL Key 722261 Approved Proposed Difference Note
41st Avenue to Soquel Drive 4/6/2023 8/3/2023

1 Revenues Object
2 Measure D 40186 1,924,993      2,507,768      582,775         
3 SB1 SCCP 41st/Soquel 40465 200,000         75,000           (125,000)        
4 Total Revenues 2,124,993      2,582,768      457,775         
5 Expenditures
6 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 65,640           72,710           7,070            
7 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 84,360           77,290           (7,070)           
8 Total Salaries, benefits, & overhead 150,000         150,000         -                
9 Legal Fees 62359 -                -                -                
10 Engineering Consultant 62381 200,000         75,000           (125,000)        
11 Project Management Consultant 62381 50,000           50,000           -                
12 Pub Info, materials, & meetings 62381 5,000            5,000            -                
13 Right of Way Capital and Support 62856 295,324         295,324         -                
14 Construction Capital 62856 1,165,550      1,748,325      582,775         
15 Contingency 62856 259,119         259,119         -                
16 Total Services & Supplies 1,974,993      2,432,768      457,775         
17
18 Total Expenditures 2,124,993      2,582,768      457,775         
19
20 To/(From) Reserves: -                -                -                

Highway 1 Corridor

Highway 1 Corridor

Carryover from FY2022-23

15-35



FY2023/24 FY2023/24
GL Key 722262 Approved Proposed Difference Note
Bay/Porter to State Park Drive 4/6/2023 8/3/2023

1 Revenues Object
2 Measure D 40186 6,477,749    7,336,749      859,000         
3 STIP 40770 -              570,000         570,000         
4 Total Revenues 6,477,749    7,906,749      1,429,000      
5 Expenditures
6 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 54,700         65,232           10,532           
7 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 70,300         69,341           (959)              
8 Total Salaries, benefits, & overhead 125,000       134,573         9,573            
9 Legal Fees 62359 10,000         19,000           9,000            
10 Engineering Consultant 62381 -              -                -                
11 Project Management Consultant 62381 100,000       100,000         -                
12 Pub Info, materials, & meetings 62381 10,000         10,427           427               
13 Right of Way Capital and Support 62856 -              570,000         570,000         
14 Construction Capital 62856 5,000,000    5,840,000      840,000         
15 Contingency 62856 1,232,749    1,232,749      -                
16 Total Services & Supplies 6,352,749    7,772,176      1,419,427      
17
18 Total Expenditures 6,477,749    7,906,749      1,429,000      
19
20 To/(From) Reserves: -              -                -                

Highway 1 Corridor

Carryover from FY2022-23

15-36



FY2023/24 FY2023/24
GL Key 722263 Approved Proposed Total Note
State Park Drive to Freedom Boulevard 4/6/2023 8/3/2023

1 Revenues Object
2 Measure D - Highway 40186 8,553,351     8,678,351      125,000        
3 Measure D - Active Transportation 40186 512,640        2,341,640      1,829,000      
4 RSTPX 40761 25,000          -               (25,000)         
5 STIP 40770 -               -               -               
6 Total Revenues 9,090,991     11,019,991    1,929,000      
7 Expenditures -               
8 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 87,520          96,946          9,427            
9 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 112,480        103,054        (9,427)           
10 Total Salaries, benefits, & overhead 200,000        200,000        -               
11 PA/ED Consultants 62381 497,157        597,157        100,000        
12 PS&E Consultant 62381 7,051,102     6,538,462      (512,640)       
13 Legal Fees 62359 20,000          20,000          -               
14 Project Management Consultant 62381 80,000          80,000          -               
15 Pub Info, materials, & meetings 62381 19,932          19,932          -               
16 Right of Way Capital and Support 62856 1,222,800     3,564,440      2,341,640      
17 Construction Capital 62856 -               -               -               
18 Contingency 62856 -               -               -               
19 Total Services & Supplies 8,890,991     10,819,991    1,929,000      
20 -               
21 Total Expenditures 9,090,991     11,019,991    1,929,000      
22
23 To/(From) Reserves: -               -               -               

Carryover from FY2022-23

Highway 1 Corridor

15-37



MBSST Coastal Rail Trail FY2023/24 FY2023/24
GL Key 722280 Approved Proposed
General Network and Maintenance Object 4/6/2023 8/3/2023
Revenues

1 Measure D 40186 1,476,000    2,120,037               644,037 
2 Total Revenues 1,476,000    2,120,037      644,037         
3 Expenditures
4 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 271,311       314,463         43,152          
5 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 348,689       334,274         (14,415)         
6 Total Salaries, benefits, & overhead 620,000       648,737         28,737          
7 Maintenance 61845 776,000       1,391,300      615,300         
8 Professional Services 62381 80,000         80,000          -               
9 Total Services, Supplies & Other 856,000       1,471,300      615,300         
10
11 Total Expenditures 1,476,000    2,120,037      644,037         
12
13 To/(From) Reserves: -              -               -               

MBSST Coastal Rail Trail FY2023/24 FY2023/24
GL Key 722281 Approved Proposed
North Coast Object 4/6/2023 8/3/2023
Revenues

1 Measure D 40186 3,375,000    3,462,666                 87,666 
2 RSTPX 40761 125,000       125,000                           -   
3 Coastal Conservancy 42384 -              80,000          80,000          
4 Total Revenues 3,500,000    3,667,666      167,666         
5 Expenditures
6 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 43,760         48,473          4,713            
7 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 56,240         51,527          (4,713)           
8 Total Salaries, benefits, & overhead 100,000       100,000         -               
9 Legal Fees 62359 -              10,000          10,000          
10 Davenport Crosswalk 62381 250,000       250,000         -               
11 Acquisitions 62856 -              77,666          77,666          
12 Construction 86110 3,150,000    3,230,000      80,000          
13 Total Services, Supplies & Other 3,400,000    3,567,666      167,666         
14
15 Total Expenditures 3,500,000    3,667,666      167,666         
16
17 To/(From) Reserves: -              -               -               

Difference Note

Carryover from FY2022-23

Carryover from FY2022-23

Difference Note

15-38



MBSST Coastal Rail Trail FY2023/24 FY2023/24
GL Key 722282 Approved Proposed
City of Santa Cruz Object 4/6/2023 8/3/2023
Revenues

1 Measure D 40186 124,000      2,682,572         2,558,572 
2 Total Revenues 124,000      2,682,572   2,558,572     
3 Expenditures
4 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 28,444        50,205        21,761          
5 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 36,556        53,367        16,811          
6 Total Salaries, benefits, & overhead 65,000        103,572      38,572          
7 Professional Services 62381 25,000        25,000        -               
8 City of Santa Cruz Maintenance 75204 34,000        34,000        -               
9 City of Santa Cruz Project Sponsor 75204 -             2,520,000   2,520,000     
10 Total Services & Supplies 59,000        2,579,000   2,520,000     
11
12 Total Expenditures 124,000      2,682,572   2,558,572     
13
14 To/(From) Reserves: -             -             -               

MBSST Coastal Rail Trail FY2023/24 FY2023/24
GL Key 722283 Approved Proposed
City of Watsonville Object 4/6/2023 8/3/2023
Revenues

1 Measure D 40186 34,550        41,050                    6,500 
2 Total Revenues 34,550        41,050        6,500            
3 Expenditures
4 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 8,752          12,845        4,093            
5 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 11,248        13,655        2,407            
6 Total Salaries, benefits, & overhead 20,000        26,500        6,500            
7 Professional Services 62381 3,350          3,350          -               
8 City of Watsonville 75206 11,200        11,200        -               
9 Total Services, Supplies & Other 14,550        14,550        -               
10
11 Total Expenditures 34,550        41,050        6,500            
12
13 To/(From) Reserves: -             -             -               

Carryover from FY2022-23

Carryover from FY2022-23

Note

Difference Note

Difference

15-39



MBSST Coastal Rail Trail FY2023/24 FY2023/24
GL Key 722284 Approved Proposed
City of Capitola Object 4/6/2023 8/3/2023
Revenues 40186

1 Measure D 1,000        1,800          800             
2 Total Revenues 1,000        1,800          800             
3 Expenditures
4 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 438           873             435             
5 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 562           927             365             
6 Total Salaries, benefits, & overhead 1,000        1,800          800             
7
8 Total Expenditures 1,000        1,800          800             
9
10 To/(From) Reserves: -            -             -             

MBSST Coastal Rail Trail FY2023/24 FY2023/24
GL Key 722285 Approved Proposed
County of Santa Cruz Object 4/6/2023 8/3/2023
Revenues

1 Measure D 40186 310,000     2,358,633        2,048,633 
2 Total Revenues 310,000     2,358,633    2,048,633    
3 Expenditures
4 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 24,068      50,234        26,166        
5 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 30,932      53,399        22,467        
6 Total Salaries, benefits, & overhead 55,000      103,633      48,633        
7 Professional Services 62381 255,000     255,000      -             
8 County of Santa Cruz Seg 10-11 75303 -            2,000,000    2,000,000    
9 Total Services, Supplies & Other 255,000     2,255,000    2,000,000    
10
11 Total Expenditures 310,000     2,358,633    2,048,633    
12
13 To/(From) Reserves: -            -             -             

Carryover from FY2022-23

Carryover from FY2022-23

Difference Note

Difference Note

15-40



FY2023/24 FY2023/24
Proposed Proposed Note

Object 4/6/23 8/3/23
1 Revenues
2 TDA Planning 40172          875,054        875,054                  -   
3 Measure D 40186          860,030        807,130          (52,900)
4 RSTP Exchange 40761           28,782          13,812          (14,970)
5 STIP for Planning (PPM) 40770          123,000        139,579           16,579 
6 Rural Planning Assistance (RPA) 40786          337,000        359,725           22,725 
7 Sustainable Communities - FTA 5304 40786          318,000        473,220          155,220 
8 Sustainable Communities - RMRA 40786          386,800        543,321          156,521 
9 Sust Transp Planning Grant WCB 40786                  -                   -                    -   

10 State TNC Access Fee Funds 40786          134,239        134,239                  -   
11 Land Trust Grant 42384                  -                   -                    -   
12 Total Revenues       3,062,905     3,346,081          283,176 
13
14 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead  by Program
15 Regional Planning Coordination 155,000        155,000       -               
16 Work Program 45,000          45,000        -               
17 Public Information 60,000          60,000        -               
18 Bicycle/Pedestrian Planning 75,000          75,000        -               
19 Specialized Transportation 80,000          80,000        -               
20 Regional Transp Plan for MTP 260,000        260,000       -               
21 Transp Improv Program (TIP) 215,000        223,636       8,636            
22 Highway & Roadway Planning 100,000        114,089       14,089          
23 Highway 17 Wildlife Crossing 10,000          6,130          (3,870)          
24 Scotts Creek Marsh Restoration 25,000          25,000        -               
25 TNC Access for All 20,136          20,136        -               
26 Equity Action Plan Grant 100,000        100,000       -               
27 Climate Adaptation–Vulnerability Assessment 120,000        120,000       -               
28 Reg Conserv Invest Strategy (RCIS) -               -              -               
29     Allocated Labor Costs 51070 553,621        622,390       68,769          
30     Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 711,514        661,601       (49,913)         
31 Subtotal Staff and Overhead 1,265,136     1,283,991    18,855          

Planning
Difference

Carryover from FY2022-23

15-41



FY2023/24 FY2023/24

Proposed Proposed Note
Object 4/6/23 8/3/23

32 Services & Supplies
33 Passthrough Programs
34 Bike To Work Prog (Ecology Action) 62856 72,000          72,000        -               
35 Bike & Ped Safety (CTSC) 62856 156,000        156,000       -               
36  Ecology Action - Safe Route to Schools 62856 7,811            7,122          (689)             
37  Project Paseo (Bike SC County) 62856 20,971          6,690          (14,281)         
38 Professional Services (contracts) -               
39 Legislative Assistant 62381 44,600          44,600        -               
40 Eng and Other Tech Consultants 62381 21,750          21,750        -               
41 AMBAG for RTP/MTP 75230 30,000          30,000        -               
43 RCIS Consultant 62381 30,000          -              (30,000)         
44 Transportation Equity Action Plan 62381 150,000        150,000       -               
45 Climate Adaption-Vulnerability Assessment 62381 130,000        130,000       -               
46 TNC Access for All 62381 114,103        114,103       -               
47 RTC Work Element Related Items
48 Traffic Monitoring services 62381 20,000          20,000        -               
49 Printing Documents and Pub Info Materials 62381 12,500          12,500        -               
50 Grant funds reserved for future FY 62856 371,800        712,850       341,050        
51 Transfer to Rail/Trail Authority 75233 110,000        110,000       -               
52 Subtotal Services & Supplies 1,291,535     1,587,615    296,080        
53 Other
54 Highway 17 Wildlife Crossing Construction to Caltrans -               801,000       801,000        
55
56 Total Expenditures 2,556,671     3,672,606    1,115,935     
57
58 To/(From) Reserves: 506,234        (326,525)     (832,759)       

Carryover from FY2022-23

Planning Continued
Difference

15-42



FY2023/24 FY2023/24
Approved Proposed Note

Object 4/6/23 8/3/23
1 Measure D 40186 255,000       1,290,589      1,035,589     
4 Total Revenues 255,000       1,290,589      1,035,589     
5
6 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
7 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 -             16,698          16,698          
8 Allocated Overhead 62354 -             17,749          17,749          
9 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead -             34,447          34,447          
10
11 Services & Supplies
12 Professional & Special Serv 62381 30,000        33,142          3,142            
13 Contingency/Special Exp 62856 225,000       1,221,000      996,000        
14 Total Services & Supplies 255,000       1,256,142      1,001,142     
15
16 Total Expenditures: 255,000       1,290,589      1,035,589     
17
18 Excess of Revenues over Expenditures: -             -               -               

Highway 9 Improvements
Difference

Carryover from FY2022-23

15-43



Proposed August 3, 2023
Fund Balances and Reserves for RTC Programs & Projects

RTC RIDESHARE RAIL/TRAIL SAFE MBSST HWY 1 TOTAL
Description FUND FUND AUTHORITY OPERATING FSP ACTIVE PA/ED & ENG ALL

(1) (2) FUND (4) FUND (2) FUND (2) TRANSPORTATION FUND (4) FUNDS

1 Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 2,706,288       496,630       604,834      510,621       141,127    2,013                  154,904         4,616,416    
2   FY 2023/24 Revenues budgeted -                 -              -              -              -           -                     -                -              
3   Reserve carried over (916,940)         (125,929)      -              (161,775)      -           -                     -                (1,204,644)   
4   FY 2023/24 Excess Revenues over Expenditures (802,945)         (87,100)        (219,883)     (180,500)      38,128      (0)                       -                (1,252,300)   
5 Subtotal Fund Balance 986,404          283,601       384,951      168,346       179,255    2,013                  154,904         2,159,473    
6 To Cashflow Reserve -                 -              -              -              -           -                     -                -              
7 To Restricted Reserve Fund (7,723)            -              -              -              -           -                     -                (7,723)         
8 Total Fund Balance 978,681          283,601       384,951      168,346       179,255    2,013                  154,904         2,151,750    
9

10
11 Reserve Funds
12  Reserve Target (30%) 909,217          125,929       -              161,775       -           -                     -                1,196,921    
13
14 Cashflow Reserve ( 8%) 242,458          125,929       -              161,775       -           -                     -                530,162       
15  Restricted Reserve ( 22%) 666,759          -              -              -              -           -                     -                666,759       
16 Total Reserve Funds 909,217          125,929       -              161,775       -           -                     -                1,196,921    
17
18 Reserve Fund Difference from Target 7,723              -              -              -              -           -                -              
19
20 Notes:
21 Numbers in parentheses are negative numbers. All other numbers are positive numbers.
22 Funds within each category (column) are restricted for use on projects/programs within that category. 
23 Fund Balance = Balances of Funds not used at the end of prior fiscal year.
24 Budgeted Carryover = Portion of Fund Balance used in current fiscal year budget.
25
26    (1)  3.6 month (or 30%) operating reserve target established in RTC Rules and Regulations for the RTC Fund ;  months (or %) available in this proposed budget
27    (2)  3.6 month (or 30%) operating reserve target approved for the SAFE Fund to cover SAFE, FSP and Cruz511 operations
28    (3)  Reserve funds not proposed for capital project funds
29
30

15-44



Proposed August 3, 2023
Fund Balances and Reserves for Special Revenue Funds

TDA RSTP STA LCTOP TOTAL
Description FUND EXCHANGE FUND Fund ALL

(1) FUND (2) (3) (3) FUNDS
1
2 Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 2,774,246            4,491,179      43           53,902     7,319,370          
3   FY 2023/24 Revenues budgeted 12,262,659           4,191,323      -          16,453,982        
4   FEMA Reimbursement for 2017 Storm Damage 3,587,805      -          -          3,587,805          

  FEMA Reimbursement for 2023 Storm Damage 725,000         
5   Restricted Reserve carried over (554,108)              -                -          -          (554,108)           
6   Funds Not Yet Programmed -                      -                -          -          -                    
7   Funds programmed - Prior FY (2,322,840)           (9,115,922)     (11,438,762)       
8   Funds programmed - Current FY (12,050,859)         (3,916,225)     -          (285,985)  (16,253,069)       
9 Subtotal Fund Balance 109,098               (36,840)         43           (232,083)  (884,783)           

10
11 To Restricted Reserve Fund (211,800)              (211,800)           
12 Total Fund Balance (102,702)              (36,840)         43           (232,083)  (1,096,583)         
13
14
15 Reserve Funds
16  Reserve Target (8% target for TDA fund; 30% target for others) 980,213               -                -          -          980,213             
17
18 Restricted Reserve Carryover from prior FY (8% target for TDA fund) 554,108               554,108             
19 Restricted Reserve Budgeted in Current FY (8% target for TDA fund) 211,800                -    -    -   211,800             
20 Total Reserve Funds 765,908               -                -          -          765,908             
21
22 Reserve Fund Difference from Target (214,305)              -                -          -          (214,305)           
23
24 Notes:
25 FY2022-23 TDA revenues were $556,262 lower than estimated creating a deficit in the 8% reserve fund target. 
26 Numbers in parentheses are negative numbers. All other numbers are positive numbers.
27 Funds within each category (column) are restricted for use on projects/programs within that category. 
28 Fund Balance = Balances of Funds not used at the end of prior fiscal year.
29 Budgeted Carryover = Portion of Fund Balance used in current fiscal year budget.
30
31    (1)  8% reserve established in RTC Rules and Regulations for the TDA Fund; % available in this proposed budget
32    (2)  Reserve funds not proposed for capital project funds
33    (3)  This is a pass-through fund, all receipts are paid to Santa Cruz Metro or other transit providers

15-45



PROPOSED MEASURE D BUDGET 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 

JUNE 30, 2024 

15-46



Measure D Regional Funding Program and Project Budget Summary 
Administration and Implementation by RTC - Proposed Budget            

Fiscal Year

Proposed

Object
Revenues

1 Measure D 40186 333,333        166,667                         6,723,607           4,572,052      2,151,554     14,776,470     
2 Interest 40430 5,000            2,000                             50,000                10,000          -               68,000            
3 Other Revenue 42386 -               -                                -                     -               -               -                 
4 Total Revenues 338,333        1,093,667                       6,773,607           4,582,052      2,151,554     15,769,470     
5
6 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
7 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 16,698          2,682                             234,888              477,093         341,327        1,418,485       
8 Allocated Overhead 62354 17,749          3,448                             249,685              507,149         438,673        1,651,663       
9 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 34,447          6,130                             484,573              984,242         780,000        3,070,149       
10
11 Services & Supplies
12 Repairs & Maintenance 61845 -               -                                -                     1,391,300      -               1,391,300       
13 Subscriptions 62222 -               -                                2,000                  -               -               2,000              
14 General Supplies & Expenses 62223 -               -                                4,000                  -               -               9,000              
15 Accounting & Audit 62301 -               -                                -                     -               -               1,000              
16 Design and Eng Consult 62340 -               -                                -                     -               -               -                 
16 Legal Fees 62359 2,000            -                                39,000                10,000          25,000          76,000            
17 Professional & Special Services 62381 33,142          -                                6,190,117           846,200         1,712,000     8,821,459       
18 Adv & Promo Materials 62801 -               -                                -                     -               -               2,500              
19 Contingency/Special Exp 62856 225,000        -                                8,333,545           2,419,666      100,000        11,078,211     
26 Subscriptions 62890 -               -                                -                     -               -               -                 
20 Towing 62893 -               -                                162,500              -               -               162,500          
21 Transportation/Travel/Education 62914 -               -                                1,000                  -               -               1,000              
22 Princ & Int Trans Repayment 74244 -               -                                -                     -               -               -                 
23 Funds to City of Capitola 75203 -               -                                -                     -               -               -                 
24 Funds to City of Santa Cruz 75204 -               -                                -                     2,554,000      -               2,554,000       
23 Funds to City of Scotts Valley 75205 -               -                                -                     -               -               -                 
24 Funds to City of Watsonville 75206 -               -                                -                     3,350            -               3,350              
24 Contribution to Other Agency 75230 996,000        1,231,015                       -                     -               -               2,227,015       
25 Transfer to Other Funds 75233 -               -                                -                     -               -               -                 
25 CHP Operations 75280 -               -                                50,000                -               -               50,000            
26 Funds to SC County 75303 -               -                                -                     2,000,000      -               2,000,000       
26 Construction 86110 -               -                                -                     3,150,000      685,000        3,835,000       
27 Total Services & Supplies 1,256,142      1,231,015                       15,707,162         12,374,516    2,522,000     33,139,335     
28
29 Total Expenditures: 1,290,589      1,237,145                       16,191,735         13,358,758    3,302,000     36,209,484     
30
31 Excess of Revenues over Expenditures: (952,256)       (143,478)                        (9,418,128)          (8,776,706)    (1,150,446)    (20,440,014)    
32 Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 1,535,593      204,421                         13,027,442         9,115,564      1,995,766     25,883,785     
33 Ending Fund Balance (estimate): 583,337        60,942                           3,609,313           338,859         845,320        5,443,771       

TotalHwy 9 Highway Corridor Active Transp Rail CorridorHwy 17 Wildlife Crossing

15-47



Measure D Regional Funding Program and Project Budget Summary 
Administration and Implementation by RTC - Proposed Budget            

Fiscal Year

Proposed for 

Revenues Object 3/2/2023 4/6/2023 3/2/2023 4/6/2023 3/2/2023 4/6/2023 3/2/2023 4/6/2023 3/2/2023 4/6/2023 3/2/2023 4/6/2023
1 Measure D 40186 333,333       333,333       -             166,667   166,667       -             6,683,912      6,723,607      39,695          4,545,060    4,572,052      26,992        2,138,852    2,151,554     12,702          14,697,080    14,776,470     79,389                
2 Interest 40430 5,000          5,000          -             2,000       2,000          -             50,000          50,000          -               10,000        10,000          -             -             -               -               72,000          68,000            (4,000)                
3 Other Revenue 42386 -             -             -             -          925,000       925,000       -                -                -               -             -                -             -             -               -               -                925,000          925,000              
4 Loan Proceeds 42506 -           -           -           -        -           -           -                -                -             -           -                -           1,503,318    -               (1,503,318)  1,503,318      -                 (1,503,318.00)   
5 Total Revenues 338,333       338,333       -             168,667   1,093,667    925,000       6,733,912      6,773,607      39,695          4,555,060    4,582,052      26,992        3,642,170    2,151,554     (1,490,616)    16,272,398    15,769,470     (502,929)             
6
7 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
8 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 -             16,698        16,698        -          2,682          2,682          207,859         234,888         27,029          376,772       477,093         100,321       227,908       341,327        113,419        1,158,337      1,418,485       260,149              
9 Allocated Overhead 62354 -             17,749        17,749        -          3,448          3,448          267,141         249,685         (17,456)        484,228       507,149         22,921        292,908       438,673        145,765        1,479,236      1,651,663       172,427              

10 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead -             34,447        34,447        -          6,130          6,130          475,000         484,573         9,573            861,000       984,242         123,242       520,816       780,000        259,184        2,637,573      3,070,149       432,576              
11
12 Services & Supplies -          
13 Repairs & Maintenance 61845 -             -             -             -          -             -             -                -                -               1,015,300    1,391,300      376,000       -             -               -               1,015,300      1,391,300       376,000              
14 Subscriptions 62222 -             -             -             -          -             -             2,000            2,000            -               -             -                -             -             -               -               2,000            2,000              -                     
15 General Supplies & Expenses 62223 -             -             -             -          -             -             4,000            4,000            -               -             -                -             -             -               -               9,000            9,000              -                     
16 Accounting & Audit 62301 -             -             -             -          -             -             -                -                -               -             -                -             -             -               -               1,000            1,000              -                     
17 Legal Fees 62359 -             2,000          2,000          -          -             -             30,000          39,000          9,000            -             10,000          10,000        25,000        25,000          -               55,000          76,000            21,000                
18 Professional & Special Services 62381 30,000        33,142        3,142          -          -             -             5,221,998      6,190,117      968,119        496,200       846,200         350,000       1,665,000    1,712,000     47,000          7,453,198      8,821,459       1,368,261           
19 Adv & Promo Materials 62801 -             -             -             -          -             -             -                -                -               -             -                -             -             -               -               2,500            2,500              -                     
20 Contingency/Special Exp 62856 225,000       225,000       -             -          -             -             5,043,775      8,333,545      3,289,770     513,000       2,419,666      1,906,666    120,000       100,000        (20,000)         5,901,775      11,078,211     5,176,436           
21 Towing 62893 -             -             -             -          -             -             155,624         162,500         6,876            -             -                -             -             -               -               155,624         162,500          6,876                  
22 Transportation/Travel/Education 62914 -             -             -             -          -             -             1,000            1,000            -               -             -                -             -             -               -               1,000            1,000              -                     
23 Funds to City of Santa Cruz 75204 -             -             -             -          -             -             -                -                -               34,000        2,554,000      2,520,000    -             -               -               34,000          2,554,000       2,520,000           
24 Funds to City of Scotts Valley 75205 -             -             -             -          -             -             -                -                -               -             -                -             -             -               -               -                -                 -                     
25 Contribution to Other Agency 75230 -             996,000       996,000       -          1,231,015    1,231,015    -                -                -               -             -                -             -             -               -               -                2,227,015       2,227,015           
26 Funds to SC County 75303 -             -             -             -          -             -             50,000          50,000          -               -             -                -             -             -               -               50,000          50,000            -                     
27 Construction 86110 -             -             -             -          -             -             -                -                -               3,150,000    3,150,000      -             395,000       685,000        290,000        3,545,000      3,835,000       290,000              
28 Intra-Fund Transfer/Program Loan 95046 -             -             -             -          -             -             3,023,420      925,000         (2,098,420)    -             -                -             -             -               -               3,023,420      925,000          (2,098,420)          
29 Total Services & Supplies 255,000       1,256,142    1,001,142    -          1,231,015    1,231,015    13,531,817    15,707,162    2,175,345     5,211,850    12,374,516    7,162,666    2,205,000    2,522,000     317,000        21,252,167    33,139,335     11,887,168         
30
31 Total Expenditures: 255,000       1,290,589    1,035,589    -          1,237,145    1,237,145    14,006,817    16,191,735    2,184,918     6,072,850    13,358,758    7,285,908    2,725,816    3,302,000     576,184        23,889,740    36,209,484     12,319,744         
32
33 Excess of Revenues over Expenditures: (952,256)     (143,478)     (9,418,128)    (8,776,706)    (1,150,446)    (20,440,014)    
34 Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 1,535,593    204,421       13,027,442    9,115,564      1,995,766     25,883,785     
35 Ending Fund Balance (estimate): 583,337       60,942        3,609,313      338,859         845,320        5,443,771       

DIFFActive Transp DIFFRail Corridor DIFFTotalDIFFHighway CorridorDIFFHwy 9 DIFFHwy 17 Wildlife Crossing

15-48



FY2022/23 FY2023/24
SLV SR9 Improvements Approved Proposed Note

Object 5/4/23 8/3/23
1 Measure D 40186 333,333         333,333      -               
2 Interest 40430 5,000             5,000          -               
3 Total Revenues 338,333         338,333      -               
4
5 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
6 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 -                16,698        16,698          
7 Allocated Overhead 62354 -                17,749        17,749          
8 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead -                34,447        34,447          
9
10 Services & Supplies
11 Legal Fees 62359 -                2,000          2,000            
12 Professional & Special Services 62381 30,000           33,142        3,142            
13 Adv & Promo Materials 62801 -               
14 Contingency/Special Exp 62856 225,000         225,000      -               
15 Grant Match 75230 -                996,000      996,000        
16 Total Services & Supplies 255,000         1,256,142    1,001,142     
17
18 Total Expenditures: 255,000         1,290,589    1,035,589     
19
20 To/(From) Reserves: 83,333           (952,256)     (1,035,589)    
21 Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 1,452,260      1,535,593    83,333          
22 Ending Fund Balance (estimate): 1,535,593      583,337      (952,256)       

Difference
Measure D 

Carryover from FY2022-23

15-49



Measure D FY2022/23 FY2023/24
Approved Proposed

Object 5/4/23 8/3/23
1 Measure D 40186 166,667       166,667       -               
2 Interest 40430 2,000           2,000           -               
3 Loan Proceeds 42506 -              925,000       925,000        
5 Total Revenues 168,667       1,093,667    925,000        
6
7 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
8 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 -              2,682           2,682            
9 Allocated Overhead 62354 -              3,448           3,448            
10 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead -              6,130           6,130            
11
12 Services & Supplies
13 Princ & Int Trans Repayment 74244 -              -              -               
14 Contribution to Other Agency 75230 -              1,231,015    1,231,015     
15 Total Services & Supplies -              1,231,015    1,231,015     
16
17 Total Expenditures: -              1,237,145    1,237,145     
18
19 To/(From) Reserves: 168,667       (143,478)      (312,145)       
20 Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 35,754         204,421       168,667        
21 Ending Fund Balance (estimate): 204,421       60,942         (143,478)       

DifferenceHighway 17 Wildlife Crossing

15-50



FY2022/23 FY2023/24
Highway Corridor Approved Proposed
GL Key 729300 Object 5/4/23 8/3/23

1 Revenues
2 Measure D 40186 6,683,912  6,723,607 39,695  
3 Interest 40430 50,000 50,000  -  
4 Loan Proceeds 42506 166,667  166,667  
5 Total Revenues 6,733,912  6,940,273 206,361  
6
7 Program and Project Expenditures
8 Planning- Regional Conservation Investment Strategy
9 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 1,059  - (1,059) 
10 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 1,362  - (1,362) 
11  Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 2,421  - (2,421) 

12 Freeway Service Patrol (FSP)
13 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 7,220  7,220  -  
14 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 9,280  9,280  -  

15  Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 16,500 16,500  -  
16 Supplies 62223 4,000  4,000  -  
17 Legal Fees 62359 1,000  1,000  -  
18 Contingency/Special Exp 62856 5,000  5,000  -  
19 Towing 62893 155,624  162,500  6,876  
20 Transportation/Travel/Education 62914 1,000  1,000  -  
21 Subtotal Services & Supplies 166,624  173,500  6,876  
22 SAFE
23 CHP 75280 50,000 50,000  -  
24 Subtotal Services & Supplies 50,000 50,000  -  

25 Cruz 511 -  
26 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 48,573 52,949  4,376  
27 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 62,427 68,051  5,624  
28  Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 111,000  121,000  10,000  

29 Subscriptions - Data Collecting 62222 2,000  2,000  -  
30 Website Maintenance and Tech Supp 62381 8,000  8,000  
31 Commute Manager 62381 29,000 29,000  
32 Transportation Demand Management 62381 50,000 50,000  -  
33 Subtotal Services & Supplies 89,000 89,000  -  

34 41st to Soquel Aux Lanes & Bike/Ped Xing:
35 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 43,760 65,640  21,880  
36 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 56,240 84,360  28,120  
37  Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 100,000  150,000  50,000  
38 Legal Fees 62359 1,000  - (1,000) 
39 Project Management Consultant 62381 50,000 50,000  -  
40 Right of Way 62381 - -  
41 Pub Info, materials, & meetings 62381 20,000 5,000  (15,000)  
42 Right of Way Capital and Support 62856 196,000  295,324  99,324  
43 Construction & Contingency 62856 602,775  2,007,444 1,404,669 
44 Subtotal Services & Supplies 869,775  2,357,768 1,487,993 

NoteDifference
Measure D 

Carryover from FY2022-23

15-51



FY2022/23 FY2023/24
Approved Proposed

Object 5/4/23 8/3/23

45 State Park Dr to Bay Porter Aux Lanes and Mar Vista Overcrossing: -  
46 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 54,700 58,889  4,189  
47 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 70,300 75,684  5,384  
48  Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 125,000  134,573  9,573  
49 Legal Fees 62359 10,000 19,000  9,000  
50 PS&E Consultant 62381 397,958  - (397,958) 
51 Project Management Consultant 62381 110,000  100,000  (10,000) 
52 Pub Info, materials, & meetings 62381 10,000 10,427  427  
53 Right of Way Support 62381 - -  -  
54 Right of Way Capital 62856 - -  -  
55 Contingency & Supplies 62856 100,000  1,232,749 1,132,749 
56 Construction Capital 62856 840,000  5,840,000 5,000,000 
57 Subtotal Services & Supplies 1,467,958  7,202,176 5,734,218 

58 Freedom to State Park Dr Aux Lanes: -  
59 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 87,520 87,520  -  
60 Allocated Overhead (indirect costs) 62354 112,480  112,480  -  
61  Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 200,000  200,000  -  

62 Legal Fees 62359 50,000 20,000  (30,000)  
63 PA/ED Consultant 62381 979,802  597,157  (382,645)  
64 PS&E Consultant 62381 3,161,538  6,538,462 3,376,924 
66 Project Management Consultant 62381 80,000 80,000  -  
67 Pub Info, materials, & meetings 62381 20,000 19,932  (68)  
68 ROW SUPPORT 62381 305,700  1,222,800 917,100  
69 ROW Capital, Contingency & Supplies 62856 3,300,000  - (3,300,000) 
70 62856 - -  
71 Subtotal Services & Supplies 7,897,040  8,478,351 581,311  
72
73 Interprogram loan to Highway 17 95046 3,023,420  925,000  (2,098,420)  
74
75 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 554,921  622,073  67,152  
76 Subtotal Services & Supplies 10,540,397  18,350,795  7,810,398 
77 -  
78 Total Expenditures: 14,118,738  19,897,868  5,779,130 
79
80 To/(From) Reserves: (7,384,826) (12,957,595) (5,572,769)  
81 Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 20,462,268  13,077,442  (7,384,826)  
82 Ending Fund Balance (estimate): 13,077,442  119,847  (12,957,595) 

Measure D Highway Corridor - Continued

Difference

Carryover from FY2022-23

15-52



FY2022/23 FY2023/24
Active Transportation Approved Proposed Note
GL Key 729500 Object 5/4/23 8/3/23

32
33
34 Prelim Eng & enviro clearance 62381 255,000            255,000         -               Carryover from FY2022-23
35 Right of Way Capital 62856 513,000            2,342,000      1,829,000     Seg 12/Hwy 1 Freedom-State Park 
36
37 Env Review and Design to SCC 75303 -                   2,000,000      2,000,000     Carryover from FY2022-23
38 Subtotal Services & Supplies 768,000            4,597,000      3,829,000     
39 MBSST City of Watsonville:
39
40 Tech Asst (envl, surv, EHS, etc.) 62381 11,200              11,200          -               
40 Ongoing Maintenance 75206 3,350                3,350            -               
41 Subtotal Services & Supplies 14,550              14,550          -               
42
43 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 861,000            984,242         123,242        
44 Subtotal Services & Supplies 5,211,850          12,374,516    7,162,666     
45 -               
46 Total Expenditures: 6,072,850          13,358,758    7,285,908     
47
48 To/(From) Reserve Funds (1,517,790)        (8,776,706)    (7,258,916)    
49 Beginning Fund Balance (estimate): 10,633,354        9,115,564      (1,517,790)    
50 Ending Fund Balance (estimate): 9,115,564          338,859         (8,776,706)    

RTC Oversight Segment 12

County of Santa Cruz Segments  10 & 11 Project Sponsor

RTC Oversight City of Watsonville 

MBSST County of Santa Cruz:

Measure D Active Transportation - Continued
Difference

15-53



FY2022/23 FY2023/24
Active Transportation Approved Proposed Note
GL Key 729500 Object 5/4/23 8/3/23

1 Revenues
2 Measure D 40186 4,545,060          4,572,052      26,992          
3 Interest 40430 10,000              10,000          -               
4 Total Revenues 4,555,060          4,582,052      26,992          
5 Expenditures
6 MBSST Corridor, RCIS, and Electric Transit & Trail RTC Oversight
7 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 376,772            477,093         100,321        
8 Allocated Overhead (indirect) 62354 484,228            507,149         22,921          
9 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 861,000            984,242         123,242        
10 Services and Supplies:
11 Corridor encroach & maint 61845 1,015,300          1,391,300      376,000        
12 General Tech Assist 62381 20,000              20,000          -               
13 Electric Rail Transit & Trail 62381 -                   350,000         350,000        
14 Boundary Survey & Encroachments 62381 60,000              60,000          -               
15 Subtotal Services & Supplies 1,095,300          1,821,300      726,000        
16 MBSST North Coast Segment 5 (RTC Oversight): 
17 Legal Fees 62359 -                   10,000          10,000          
19 Davenport Crosswalk 62381 125,000            125,000         -               
20 Tech Asst (envl, surv, EHS, etc.) 62381 -                   -               -               
21 Property Acquisitions 62856 -                   77,666          77,666          
22 Construction 86110 3,150,000          3,150,000      -               
23 Subtotal Services & Supplies 3,275,000          3,362,666      87,666          

24 MBSST City of Santa Cruz:
25
26 Legal Fees 62359 -               
27 Tech Asst (envl, surv, EHS, etc.) 62381 25,000              25,000          -               
28
29 Seg 7 Phase 2 to SC City 75204 -                   2,520,000      2,520,000     
30 Ongoing Maintenance 75204 34,000              34,000          -               
31 Subtotal Services & Supplies 59,000              2,579,000      2,520,000     

Difference
Measure D 

RTC Oversight Segments 8 & 9

City of Santa Cruz Seg 7 Project Sponsor

Carryover from FY2022-23

Carryover from FY2022-23

Carryover from FY2022-23

15-54



FY2022/23 FY2023/24
Approved Proposed Note

Object 5/4/23 8/3/23
1 Measure D 40186 2,138,852     2,151,554     12,702          
2 Other Revenue 42386 1,503,318     -               (1,503,318)    FEMA reimbursement not expected in FY2023-24
3 Total Revenues 3,642,170     2,151,554     (1,490,616)    
4
5 Salaries, Benefits & Overhead
6 Allocated Labor Costs 51070 341,327        527,931        186,604        
7 Allocated Overhead 62354 438,673        561,191        122,518        
8 Total Salaries, Benefits & Overhead 780,000        1,089,122     309,122        
9 Services & Supplies
10 Legal Fees 62359 25,000          25,000          -               
11 Professional & Special Services 62381 1,712,000     3,137,000     1,425,000     
12 Towing 62893 100,000        108,000        8,000            
13 Construction 86110 685,000        704,513        19,513          
14 Total Services & Supplies 2,522,000     3,974,513     1,452,513     
15
16 Total Expenditures: 3,302,000     5,063,635     1,761,635     
17 To/(From) Reserve Funds

Difference
Meas D Rail Corridor

Carryover from FY2022-23

15-55



 AGENDA: Aug. 3, 2023 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission  

FROM: Shannon Munz, Communications Specialist 

RE: Fiscal Year 21/22 Measure D Annual Report 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Receive the Measure D Taxpayer Oversight Committee report to the public 
regarding Fiscal Year (FY) 21/22 expenditures and audits.  

BACKGROUND 

In November 2016, over two-thirds of Santa Cruz County voters approved Measure 
D titled the “Santa Cruz County Transportation Improvement Plan Measure.” The 
measure imposed a 0.5% transactions and use tax that went into effect in April 
2017, with the state making the first payments of revenues collected to the Santa 
Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) in summer 2017. The 
Measure D Ordinance recognizes that accountability is of utmost importance and 
includes several safeguards to ensure accountability, transparency, and public 
oversight of all funds collected and allocated (Ordinance Section 32).   

Funding agreements with recipient agencies require each agency receiving Measure 
D revenues to annually provide an expenditure report and audited financial 
statements showing how Measure D funds were spent in the prior fiscal year. 
Agencies that receive allocations of Measure D funds include: Santa Cruz County 
Regional Transportation Commission, cities of Capitola, Santa Cruz, Scotts Valley, 
and Watsonville, the County of Santa Cruz, Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District 
(METRO), and Community Bridges/Lift Line.  

The purpose of the audits and expenditure reports is to help confirm that the 
expenditure of funds is in accordance with the Measure D Ordinance and 
Expenditure Plan adopted by the voters and Measure D Funding Agreement with 
recipient agencies.  

Per Section 32C of the voter approved Ordinance, Measure D requires 
establishment of an oversight committee. The oversight committee is tasked with 
the following responsibilities: 

• Reviewing Expenditure Plan expenditures on an annual basis to ensure they
conform to the Ordinance

• Reviewing annual audits and reports prepared by independent auditors, describing
how funds were spent

16-1



• Producing a publicly available Annual Report of oversight activities

DISCUSSION 

Earlier this year, the Measure D Taxpayer Oversight Committee reviewed audits and 
expenditure reports from each of the agencies allocated Measure D revenues. The 
audits and reports covered FY21/22. The audits and expenditure reports are 
available online at:  
https://sccrtc.org/funding-planning/measured/taxpayer-oversight/  

Based on the oversight committee’s review of the audits and expenditure reports 
from recipient agencies, committee members prepared an annual report that 
includes a letter from them confirming that the provisions and requirements have 
been complied with through FY21/22. The annual report focuses on the financials 
and findings of the audits, and also includes highlights of FY21/22 expenditures. 
Attachment 1 is the FY21/22 Measure D Annual Report in English and Attachment 2 
is the FY21/22 Measure D Annual Report in Spanish. Staff recommends that the 
commission receive the Measure D Annual Report for FY21/22 (Attachment 
1 & Attachment 2).   

FISCAL IMPACTS: 

There are no fiscal impacts associated with receiving the Measure D Taxpayer 
Oversight Committee Annual Report regarding FY21/22 expenditures and audits. 

SUMMARY 

The Measure D Ordinance requires the oversight committee to report to the public 
regarding the FY21/22 expenditures and annual audits. The Measure D Taxpayer 
Oversight Committee concluded that the expenditure of Measure D funds has been 
in accordance with the Measure D Ordinance and Expenditure Plan for the period of 
July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022. The Measure D annual report for fiscal year 
21/22 communicates the findings of the oversight committee and highlights some 
expenditures. 

Attachments: 
1. FY21/22 Measure D Annual Report (English)
2. FY21/22 Measure D Annual Report (Spanish)

16-2

https://sccrtc.org/funding-planning/measured/taxpayer-oversight/


PROJECT FACT SHEET

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission  |  (831) 460-3200  |  www.sccrtc.org

Measure D 
Transportation Sales Tax 

Taxpayer Oversight Committee  
Annual Report: Fiscal Year 2021/2022

Attachment 1

16-3



Since it has been in effect from April 2017 through June 2022, Measure D has generated over $120 million in 
revenues. In Fiscal Year 2021/2022 (FY21/22), Measure D generated $27.6 million and $14.4 million was spent 
by the recipient agencies on over 60 transportation projects that maintain local streets and roads, improve 
bicycle and pedestrian safety, enhance transit and paratransit service, design major infrastructure projects, 
and provide traveler information and assistance. The Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
(RTC) is responsible for implementing the provisions of Measure D and distributes the funds to local recipient 
agencies based on formulas set forth in the voter-approved Measure D Ordinance and Expenditure Plan. 

FY21/22 Measure D Revenues and Expenditures
Investment Category/Recipient Revenues Expenditures
Neighborhood

 San Lorenzo Valley/Hwy 9 – RTC $333,333 $214,296
 Hwy 17 Wildlife – RTC $166,667 $438
 City of Capitola  $381,422 $96,915
 City of Santa Cruz $1,701,343 $237,321
 City of Scotts Valley  $366,715 $66,832
 City of Watsonville  $1,168,017 $505,797
 County of Santa Cruz $3,940,791 $1,935,486

Transit/Paratransit – METRO $4,297,754 $2,014,351
Paratransit – Lift Line $1,074,438 $824,667
Highway Corridors – RTC $6,715,240 $4,077,583
Active Transportation – RTC $4,566,363 $3,136,433
Rail Corridor – RTC $2,148,877 $512,180
Sub Total $26,860,960 $13,622,299
RTC Administration & Implementation $765,013 $634,292
Total $27,625,973 $14,394,706

You may note that more money has come in than has been spent. These unspent funds are often rolled over to 
subsequent years by the recipient agencies in order to fund the construction of larger projects in future years. 
Agencies are maximizing their funds and Measure D is allowing them to move forward with transit, highway, 
bike, pedestrian, trail, roadway, and other projects they may not have otherwise been able to afford. In fact, 
Measure D has also given the county a way to more successfully compete for state and federal grants using the 
funds as a match. 

We are excited about the progress being made using Measure D funds and the leverage this money has given 
agencies in Santa Cruz County to address its most pressing transportation issues. We want to thank county 
taxpayers for approving Measure D and providing the community with a steady, direct source of local funding 
for vital transportation improvements that will work to reduce congestion and greenhouse gas emissions, and 
improve safety, access, and mobility for everyone in our community. 

Thank you, 
Measure D Taxpayer Oversight Committee

(Revenues shown on accrual basis. Does not include interest and adjustments.)

Measure D was approved by over two-thirds of Santa Cruz County voters in 2016. This ½-cent, 30-year 
transactions and use tax (similar to a sales tax) funds five categories of transportation projects:

• Neighborhood/Local Roads
• Transit & Paratransit
• Highway Corridors

• Rail Corridor
• Active Transportation

Executive Summary

Page 1
16-4



 

In November 2016, over two-thirds of Santa Cruz 
County voters approved Measure D, an ordinance 
with a comprehensive and inclusive package of 
transportation improvements to be developed in 
the county that would be funded by the imposition 
of a retail transactions and use tax of one-half of 
one percent (0.5%) for a period of 30 years. 

The tax became effective on April 1, 2017. The 
Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation 
Commission (RTC) is designated as the Local 
Transportation Authority (the Authority) to 
implement the provisions of Measure D. Consistent 
with the Measure D Expenditure Plan, the 
RTC allocates, administers, and oversees the 
expenditure of all Measure D revenues which are 
not directly allocated by formula to other agencies. 

Since the implementation of the tax in April 
2017 through June 2022, over $120 million in 
tax revenues have been generated and over $57 
million of Measure D funds have been expended 
by the RTC and the other local recipient agencies. 
As highlighted on the next page, over $60 million 
of carryover Measure D Funds will be used on 
transportation projects identified in each agency’s 
5-year program of projects (5-year plans).

The voter-approved Measure D Ordinance 
specifies that an independent Taxpayer Oversight 
Committee (Committee) review the annual 
independent fiscal audit of the expenditure of 
Measure D funds and issue an annual report 
on its findings regarding compliance with the 
requirements of the Expenditure Plan and 
Ordinance. The Committee consists of five 
members who are residents of Santa Cruz County 
and are neither elected officials of any government 
nor employees from any agency or organization 
that oversees or implements projects funded from 
the proceeds of the tax.

Committee members are appointed by the RTC 
Board for two-year terms. The current Committee 
Members are:

• Supervisorial District 1: Gail Jack

• Supervisorial District 2: David Culver

• Supervisorial District 3: Philip Hodsdon,
Vice-Chair

• Supervisorial District 4: Trina Coffman
Gomez

• Supervisorial District 5: Andre Duurvoort,
Chair

The Committee held in-person meetings on 
March 23 and May 1, 2023, to review Fiscal Year 
2021/2022 (FY21/22) expenditures. Meeting 
materials and minutes are available for review 
on the RTC website: https://sccrtc.org/meetings/
measure-d-taxpayer-oversight-committee/. 

The Committee reviewed the Measure D Financial 
Statements that were audited by independent 
Certified Public Accounting firms and annual 
reports of the Measure D recipient agencies:

• Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation
Commission

• County of Santa Cruz

• City of Capitola

• City of Santa Cruz

• City of Scotts Valley

• City of Watsonville

• Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District

• Community Bridges/Lift Line

Measure D Annual Report 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022

Page 2

16-5



None of the audits noted any negative 
findings as to the expenditure of the Measure 
D funds nor were any incidents of non-
compliance with the Measure D Ordinance 
noted.

Committee Recommended Updates to Audits 
and Reports from Recipient Agencies 
After reviewing the FY21/22 audited financial 
statements, list of expenditures, and 
documentation of compliance with the Measure 
D Ordinance, the Committee recommends that 
recipient agencies make some updates to future 
audits and reports in order to make it easier to 
understand and reconcile information about how 
agencies are spending Measure D funds. This 
includes: 

• Update audit report content: Audits
should include footnotes or information
in a Management and Admin Discussion
(MDA) to explain plans for unspent fund
balances. Most agencies are carrying
forward large balances. This could include a
narrative summary of planned projects with
reference to 5-year plans that are annually
updated by each agency identifying how
agencies plan to spend Measure D funds.

• Increase transparency on any adjustments
that have been made, such as when other
funds may have been initially used to fund
a project in one fiscal year (such as general
funds), but in the next year those expenses
were instead reimbursed by Measure D or
Measure D funds were initially used, but
then reimbursed by another fund source.

• Reduce Measure D documentation
submitted by each recipient agency, with
the aim to streamline reporting on the tax
measure and focus on actual spending,
planned projects, and key outcomes.

For FY21/22, the RTC allocated $26.8 million in net 
Measure D revenues to cities, the County, Santa 
Cruz METRO, Community Bridges, and regional 
investment categories and projects based on 
formulas set forth in the voter approved Measure 
D Ordinance and Expenditure Plan. Recipient 
agencies expended $13.6 million of Measure D 
revenues on projects and services in FY21/22. 
Additional funds were allocated to and expended 
on administrative and implementation tasks. 
Any balance of allocations not expended through 
FY21/22 are carried over for use in future years.

Page 3

16-6



Summary of Measure D revenues and expenditures from July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022. 

Investment Category % of 
Measure 

D Net 
Revenues

FY21/22
Allocations1 

(accrual 
basis)

Adjustments 
(redistributed 

admin/
implementation 

balances)

FY21/22 
Expenditures  

Balances 
(include 

prior year 
carryovers & 

interest)

Neighborhood 30%
 SLV/Hwy 9 $333,333 $27,778 $214,295 $1,452,260
 Hwy 17 Wildlife $166,667 $13,889 $438 $904,668
 City of Capitola $381,422 $6,650 $96,915 $936,454
 City of Santa Cruz $1,701,343 $27,400 $237,321 $4,020,957
 City of Scotts Valley $366,715 $5,785 $66,832 $224,029
 City of Watsonville $1,168,017 $18,404 $505,797 $3,565,668
 County of Santa Cruz $3,940,791 $62,226 $1,935,486 $6,925,448

Transit/Paratransit – 
Santa Cruz METRO

16% $4,297,754 $84,385 $2,014,351 $7,577,895

Paratransit – Lift Line 4% $1,074,438 $21,096 $824,667 $690,004
Highway Corridors 25% $6,715,240 $131,851 $4,077,583 $20,462,269
Active Transportation 17% $4,566,363 $89,659 $3,136,433 $10,633,354
Rail Corridor 8% $2,148,877 $42,192 $512,180 $3,794,448
Net Revenues 
(net fees, admin/
implementation)

100% $26,860,960 $531,315 $13,622,298 $61,187,454

Admin. Salaries & 
Benefits

1% $276,260 $227,726

Implementation & 
Oversight

Varies $488,753 -$517,696 $406,566

Total $27,625,975 $14,256,590 
State CDTFA (BOE) Fees actuals $226,360 $226,360

Figure 1: FY21/22 Revenue & Expenditures Summary

Notes:   
This table includes a combination of information from the RTC and local agency audited financial information and 
project expenditure reports. Audited financials are typically presented on a modified or full accrual basis which 
means revenues are recognized when earned, not when received. FY21/22 allocations shown reflect RTC payments 
on an accrual basis, whereas audits for some agencies showed revenues on a modified accrual or cash basis 
depending on what month they accrued revenues. Adjustments include prior year admin/implementation unspent 
balances redistributed by the RTC in FY21/22.

Page 4

16-7



As shown in the table on the previous page, the total Measure D funds collected and allocated (on an 
accrual basis) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022 by the RTC were $27,625,975; this is $3,871,468 
higher than in FY20/21. 

Over $60 million in Measure D revenues were carried over to FY22/23 for regional and local projects. 
Each agency develops and annually updates 5-year plans that indicate the projects that will be funded 
with the carryover funding and future anticipated revenues. This information can be found in each 
agency’s FY21/22 reports online at: https://sccrtc.org/funding-planning/measured/taxpayer-oversight/.

Measure D continues to serve as a crucial source of local transportation funding for the Santa Cruz 
County community and has been leveraged to secure more than $250 million in outside funding for our 
transportation system. More details are included in this annual report.

The Measure D Taxpayer Oversight Committee hereby finds that the Authority and Recipient 
Agencies are proceeding in accordance with the Measure D Ordinance, based on our review 
of audits and expenditures for the period from July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022.

Andre Duurvoort, Chair 

Measure D Taxpayer Oversight Committee 
Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission

Page 5

16-8



The following graph provides a comparison of the annual revenues and expenditures for regional projects 
and cities, County, METRO, and Lift Line from Fiscal Years 2016 to 2022. Revenues have increased from 

approximately $20 million in 2017 to over $27 million in FY21/22. Expenditures varied more widely 
between $4.5 million and $16 million, with many agencies saving Measure D funds for major projects 
going to construction in FY22/23-26/27. Agencies show how they plan to use programming in their 

annually updated 5-year plans. In the first years of the tax measure, several agencies used funds on 
pre-construction development of projects, including leveraging grants, environmental review, and design 

phases. Many agencies have used grants to cover initial project costs with Measure D balances to be 
expended as major infrastructure projects go to and complete construction.

Figure 2: Comparison of Annual Revenues & Expenditures 
(Revenues shown do not include interest and adjustments.)

Annual Revenues & Expenditures

Page 6

16-9



In FY21/22, recipients used Measure D funds to provide comprehensive and inclusive transportation 
projects throughout Santa Cruz County. In addition to addressing local street and road maintenance, 
improving bicycle and pedestrian safety, enhancing transit and paratransit service, designing major 

infrastructure projects, and providing traveler information and assistance programs, the funds were used 
as leverage to secure outside grant funding, to prepare upcoming projects for future construction, improve 

sustainability, and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 

Your Measure D Dollars at Work

Figure 3: Comparison of 
FY21/22 Expenditures

Note: Rounded

Leveraging Measure D Funds 
One of the benefits of Measure D is the ability to 
use the funds to bring more money into the county 
for transportation projects. For example, Measure D 
funds have been used to leverage additional grant 
funds for the following projects through June 2023: 

f Over $40M from the Federal Lands Access
Program, Land Trust of Santa Cruz County,
Regional Surface Transportation Program
Exchange (RSTPX), and Coastal Conservancy
for the North Coast Rail Trail (Segment 5)

f $67.6M in Active Transportation Program (ATP)
funding for Coastal Rail Trail Segments 10-11

f $39M in ATP funding for Coastal Rail Trail
Segments 8-9

f $30M in Federal MEGA funding for the Highway
1 auxiliary lane, bus-on-shoulder, and Coastal
Rail Trail Segment 12 project

f $11.8M in ATP and State Transportation
Improvement Program (STIP) funding for
Coastal Rail Trail Segment 7

f $2.7M in STIP, Local Partnership Program
(LPP), Low or No Emission Vehicle Program,
and Caltrans 5339 Discretionary funding for
METRO electric and CNG buses

f $1.5M in Congressionally Directed Spending
earmark from Congresswoman Anna Eshoo for
the Boulder Creek Complete Streets project

f $1.5M in STIP funding for the Freedom
Boulevard Reconstruction Project

f $34,296 in Low Carbon Transit Operations
Program funding for Community Bridges/Lift
Line electric chargers

f $4,995 in California Air Resources Board
program funding for Community Bridges/Lift
Line electric vehicles

f $105,000 in RSTPX funding and $90,000
from the San Lorenzo Valley School District
for the San Lorenzo Valley Schools Complex
Circulation & Access Study

f $3M from the Land Trust and $4 million in
SHOPP funds for the Wildlife Crossing

Page 7

16-10



Local Neighborhood Projects

Below: San Lorenzo Riverwalk 
LED lighting installation, City of 

Santa Cruz

Street Smarts Traffic Safety Program outreach, City of Santa Cruz

Santa Cruz
f Youth Bicycle/Pedestrian Safety Programs:

Contracted with Ecology Action to provide
comprehensive youth bicycle and pedestrian
training to elementary students at Santa
Cruz City public schools. Delivered
WalkSmart education to six second-grade
classes and BikeSmart education to 11 fifth-
grade classes.

f Street Smarts Traffic Safety Program: Media
and public outreach for the ongoing regional
traffic safety campaign.

f Downtown Bike Locker Replacement
Program: Provided maintenance and
upgrades of downtown bike lockers.

f San Lorenzo Riverwalk Lighting Project:
Completed the installation of decorative LED
pedestrian scale lighting on the east and
west banks of the riverwalk between Water
Street and Highway 1.

County of Santa Cruz
f Roadway Resurfacing Program: Resurfaced 6.4 miles of roads

throughout the county, including in the River Street, Soquel, Corralitos,
Boulder Creek, and Ben Lomond areas.

City and county public works departments used their apportionments of Measure D funds to repair local 
roads, improve bicycle and pedestrian facilities, and provide transportation safety programs throughout 
the county. Additional information on expenditures in FY21/22 is included in each recipient agency’s annual 
Expenditure Report, available online at: sccrtc.org/funding-planning/measured/taxpayer-oversight/.

 Before and after road 
resurfacing, County of Santa 

Cruz. Above: Santa Cruz 
Avenue. Left: Riverside Drive.

Highlights of Projects Funded by Measure D in FY21/22

Page 8

16-11



Scotts Valley 
f Bean Creek Road Pavement Rehabilitation: Completed

design and started construction on roadway and bicycle
improvements on Bean Creek Road from Blue Bonnet
Lane to Redwood Drive.

f Citywide Roadway Repairs: Completed miscellaneous
roadway and asphalt repairs throughout the city.

 Diamond Street road rehabilitation (before & after), 
City of Capitola

Capitola
f Road Rehabilitation: Partnered with the County to

remove and replace some of the most structurally
deficient sections of roadway in the city, including Ruby
Court, Diamond Street, Bay Avenue, Fanmar Way, and
portions of Capitola Road.

f Pavement Management Plan: Capitola used Measure
D funds to update its pavement management system
report which identifies near- and long-term paving
needs.

Watsonville
f Downtown Revitilization: Repaired sidewalks on West

Fifth Street from Main Street to Brennan Street.

f Bicycle Safety: Provided bicycle and pedestrian safety training
at various Watsonville schools.

f Lee Road Trail: Ongoing design for the Lee Road Trail (Harkins
Slough Road from the Pajaro Valley High School driveway
to Lee Road, and Lee Road from Harkins Slough Road to the
railroad crossing).

f Lincoln Street Safety Improvements: Bicycle and pedestrian
safety facility construction near Watsonville High School.

f Highway 1/Harkins Slough Road Pedestrian Bridge and Safe
Routes to School Project: Continued design of the project,
which is being developed in partnership with Caltrans.

Speed hump installation, City of Watsonville

f Roadway Reconstruction Projects:

• Continued design for projects on Pennsylvania Drive and
Bridge Street.

• Completed design for Freedom Boulevard project.

Left: Sidewalk 
replacement, 

City of 
Watsonville

Page 9
16-12



Community Bridges/Lift Line – Paratransit 

Santa Cruz METRO 
f Purchased new electric and CNG buses

that are more efficient, improve fleet
reliability, and reflect METRO’s continued
commitment to the transition to clean air
buses

f Continued to provide additional bus and
paratransit service

f Pacific Station/METRO Transit Center
redevelopment design

f Lift Line continued to use Measure D funds to:

• Expand service hours and provide additional
rides

• Support safety and service training for
drivers

• Promote paratransit ride availability

• Purchase vehicle/equipment replacements

• Finance the Lift Line operations facility in
Watsonville

METRO purchased new electric buses and continued to provide 
vital paratransit service to the community.

Transit & Paratransit  

Above: Lift Line facility in Watsonville. Left: Lift Line 
paratransit service. 

Page 10

16-13



Active Transportation - Monterey Bay Sanctuary Scenic Trail Network 
(MBSST) Rail Trail 

During FY21/22, Measure D funds were used on environmental review, permitting, 
design, coordination, and other actions required for Coastal Rail Trail projects, 
including:

f RTC staff provided ongoing oversight and technical assistance for
implementation of the MBSST.

f Various alignments were analyzed, and public input was solicited.

f The City of Santa Cruz completed final design and started construction on
Segment 7, Phase II from Bay Street/California Avenue to the Santa Cruz Wharf.

f In coordination with the RTC, Federal Highway Administration Central Federal
Lands Highway Division continued development of Segment 5 from Davenport to
Wilder Ranch State Park with pre-construction activities, including environmental
review, design, right-of-way, and permitting.

Regional Projects
About 50% of Measure D revenues are allocated to regional expenditure categories. The RTC is responsible 

for programming and allocating those funds to specific projects. 

Above: Segment 7, Phase II construction, City of 
Santa Cruz. Below: Segment 18, Phase I, ribbon 

cutting, City of Watsonville

f The City of Santa Cruz, in partnership with the County
of Santa Cruz, continued preliminary design and
environmental review of Segments 8 & 9 between the
Santa Cruz Wharf and 17th Avenue.

f The County of Santa Cruz, in partnership with the City of
Capitola, initiated environmental review and preliminary
design of Segments 10 & 11 from 17th Avenue to State
Park Drive.

f The RTC continued environmental review and preliminary
design of Segment 12 between State Park Drive and Rio
Del Mar Boulevard as part of the Highway 1 Freedom-
State Park Auxiliary Lanes and Bus-on-Shoulder project,
which is being implemented in partnership with Caltrans.
This section of trail includes bicycle/pedestrian bridges
over Highway 1 and Soquel Drive, connecting coastal
neighborhoods and Aptos Village.

f Construction of Segment 18, Phase I between
Ohlone Parkway and the Watsonville Slough Trail was
completed, and the official ribbon cutting was in July
2021.

f The RTC continued to use Measure D funds to
maintain the Rail Trail corridor, including vegetation
control; tree maintenance; trash and dumping
abatement; encampments; drainage maintenance
and repairs; and managing, renegotiating, or clearing
of unpermitted encroachments. The RTC also initiated
work to secure environmental permits to support maintenance activities.

f Through a contract with a surveying consultant, the RTC has been conducting boundary survey work
for Segments 9-12. As surveys are completed records of survey will be filed with the County.

Page 11

16-14



Highway 9/SLV Corridor and Highway 17 Wildlife Crossing
 f Caltrans began construction of the wildlife crossing 

under Highway 17 near Laurel Curve in February 
2022. Construction is expected to be completed 
in summer 2023. The project will provide long-
ranging wildlife—most notably Santa Cruz’s mountain 
lions—with safe passage under the heavily trafficked 
highway, reducing crashes between people driving on 
the highway and the wildlife crossing it. The project 
is funded by a combination of Measure D, State 
Highway Operation and Protection Program (SHOPP), 
and Land Trust funds. 

 f Building off the community-based Highway 9/San Lorenzo Valley (SLV) Complete Streets Corridor 
Plan, Caltrans and the RTC used Measure D funds in FY21/22 to scope and identify priority projects 
for implementation along the corridor through preparation of a Project Initiation Document (PID). 
The PID was completed in 2022 and Measure D revenues will be used to leverage other funds and 
initiate future phases of priority projects to get them construction-ready. 

 f In Spring 2022, the RTC worked with the San Lorenzo Valley Unified School District (SLVUSD) and 
Caltrans to initiate the SLV Schools Access Study to look at improving access to and circulation 
past the SLV elementary, middle, and high schools north of Felton for all modes of transportation. 

Highway Corridors
Highway 1 - Auxiliary Lanes and Bus-on-Shoulder Projects 
The RTC is sponsoring the development of three contracts to construct five (5) new sets of auxiliary lanes 
and implement a hybrid bus-on-shoulder program along 7.5-miles of Highway 1. 

 f Phase 1: Soquel Drive to 41st Avenue – Measure D funds were used on work related to the 
environmental document and construction contract for auxiliary lanes and bus-on-shoulder facilities 
between Soquel Drive and 41st Avenue. The project includes a new bicycle/pedestrian bridge over 
Highway 1 at Chanticleer Avenue. Construction started in early 2023.

 f Phase 2: Bay/Porter to State Park Drive – Measure D funds were used to continue final design 
and right-of-way activities for auxiliary lanes and bus-on-shoulder facilities between State Park Drive 
and Bay-Porter. The project includes a new bicycle/pedestrian bridge over Highway 1 at Mar Vista 
Drive and replacement of the Capitola Avenue overcrossing. Construction is scheduled to start in 
2023. 

Highway 17 Wildlife Crossing

 f Phase 3: State Park Drive to 
Freedom Boulevard including 
Segment 12 of the Coastal Rail 
Trail – Measure D funds were used 
for environmental and preliminary 
design work for auxiliary lanes and 
bus-on-shoulder facilities between 
State Park Drive and Freedom 
Boulevard. The project includes 
the 1.25-mile Segment 12 of the 
Coastal Rail Trail. The project 
is expected to be construction-
ready in 2025, dependent 
upon competitive grant funding 
applications and awards. Highway 1, Phase I groundbreaking (April 2023)

Page 12

16-15



Cruz511 Program

f The RTC, in partnership with the City of Santa Cruz, UCSC,
Ecology Action, and other entities, used Measure D funds to
continue to promote “Go Santa Cruz County,” a robust demand
management program, including an online commute manager
and rewards platform with dynamic carpool ride matching and
transit, carpool, and bike trip planning. Consultants assisted with
creating marketing materials, employer toolkits, the program website (www.gosantacruzcounty.org),

and social media content. Additionally, consultants assisted 
with employer outreach by engaging with major employers, 
onboarding new employers to the platform, and providing 
virtual and in-person commuter workshops to participants. 

Over 1,363 new participants joined the program in FY21/22. 
RTC staff also attended in-person community events to 
promote the GO Santa Cruz County Program and sign-
up new participants. The RTC also continued to provide 
rideshare, transit, bicycle, traffic information, and county 
road and lane closure information to the public, primarily 
through the www.Cruz511.org website. Staff continued to 
provide traffic safety messaging and active transportation 
mapping resources to community members throughout the 
county. 

Safe on 17 and Freeway Service Patrol

f Measure D continued to provide critical funding for
extra California Highway Patrol (CHP) enforcement on
Highway 17 through the Safe on 17 program.

f Measure D funds were used for the Freeway Service
Patrol (FSP) to provide tow truck patrols on Highway 1
and Highway 17 during peak travel times, which work in
tandem with CHP to reduce incident related congestion,
and improve traffic flow and safety by removing
debris, assisting motorists with broken down vehicles,
clearing collisions, and other incidents. The FSP tow
providers worked a total of 3,787 hours and provided
approximately 1,497 assists, with an average of 0.40
assists per hour. The most frequent types of motorist
aid provided by FSP included assistance with collisions,
mechanical quick fixes, and flat tire repairs.

Rail Corridor
f Measure D funds were expended on final design for Pajaro River Bridge repairs, which are expected

to begin construction in 2023.

f Design work, including consultations with the Coastal Commission, continued for the Manresa
Coastal Erosion Repair project.

f The RTC continues to perform basic maintenance of railroad infrastructure in areas not currently
served by the shortline operator. This includes responding to crossing signal malfunctions.

An FSP tow provider assists a broken down vehicle.

Page 13

16-16



Left: Goats were utilized to perform 
vegetation control on the rail line.

f Storm damage repairs, infrastructure preservation, and preventative maintenance for railroad
infrastructure continue to be funded on the rail corridor.

f The RTC continues to perform ongoing engineering and administrative review, and coordination for
utility companies and other entities to perform maintenance or construction on facilities affecting the
rail line.

Rail Corridor Continued: 

Administrative and Implementation Activities
f Policies and procedures were followed to safeguard taxpayer

dollars and ensure they are expended per voter direction.

f Accounting and fiscal systems were used to manage each of
the accounts and disburse funding to direct recipients per voter
approved formulas.

f Five-year plans were prepared and amended as needed to
delineate planned projects using Measure D revenues.

f Ongoing outreach and community engagement was conducted
via website updates (www.sccrtc.org/move), Facebook, NextDoor,
and eNews.

f Taxpayer Oversight Committee met to review Measure D
expenditures and create the annual report.

Crews work on storm damage repairs 
on the rail line.

Page 14

16-17



Construction of Phase 1 of the Highway 1 projects 
began in April 2023.

Carryover Balances
As Figure 2 shows, revenues have exceeded 
expenditures each year. Funds that are not 
expended can be carried over to use in future 
years on projects identified in Measure D 5-year 
plans. Some agencies build up several years of 
funding for construction of larger projects. For 
example, carryover balances are being used for 
the construction of projects such as Highway 
1 auxiliary/bus-on-shoulder lanes and bicycle/
pedestrian overcrossings, the Highway 17 Wildlife 
Crossing, several segments of the Coastal 
Rail Trail, and other projects that were under 
development in FY21/22 that started or will be 
starting construction in 2022-2026. As large 
projects go to construction, carryover balances 
are expected to decrease across all program 
categories and the RTC may even need to secure 
financing against future Measure D funds as soon 
as FY24/25 for some regional projects.

Projects To Look Forward To
Measure D recipient agencies sometimes save up 
multiple years of Measure D revenues for major 
work on projects, including: 

f Clares Street Complete Streets Project
(Capitola)–construction completed FY22/23

f Highway 17 Wildlife Crossing–construction
expected to be completed in 2023

f Lee Road Trail Project (Watsonville)

f Freedom Boulevard Reconstruction Project
(Watsonville)

f Facility Paving Project (Lift Line)

f Highway 1 Auxiliary Lanes and Bus-on-
Shoulder projects between Soquel Drive in
Santa Cruz/Live Oak and Freedom Boulevard
in Aptos, including new bicycle/pedestrian
bridges over Highway 1 (RTC)

f Coastal Rail Trail projects

f Environmental review of electric passenger
rail on the Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line

Effects of COVID-19 on Measure D 
funds

While the COVID-19 global pandemic has had a 
significant impact on people, local businesses, 
travel, and consumer habits, FY21/22 Measure 
D revenues were 12% higher than in FY20/21, 
30% higher than in FY19/20, and 24% higher 
than in FY18/19. FY22/23 revenues continued 
to be higher than pre-COVID levels. However, 
increases in FY22/23 have been smaller and 

growth is expected to slow in FY23/24 to 0.4% 
over FY22/23. Clares Street Complete Streets Project, City of Capitola 

Sign up for the RTC enews list to stay up-to-date on Measure D projects and for information on 
opportunities to provide public input on planned Measure D projects in the County:  

www.sccrtc.org/about/esubscriptions/.

Page 15
16-18



PROJECT FACT SHEET

Commission Regional de Transporte de Condado de Santa Cruz |  (831) 460-3200  |  www.sccrtc.org

REPORTE ANUAL DEL COMITÉ 
PARA LA SUPERVISIÓN DE LA MEDIDA D

AÑO FISCAL QUE TERMINÓ EL 30 DE JUNIO DEL 
2022

Attachment 2

16-19



Desde que se efectuó la Medida D en abril del 2017 hasta junio de 2022, la Medida D ha generado más de $120 millones en 
ingresos. En el año fiscal 2021/2022 (FY21/22), la Medida D generó $27,6 millones y las agencias receptoras gastaron $14,4 
millones en más de 60 proyectos de transporte para el mantenimiento de calles y caminos locales, mejorar la seguridad de 
ciclistas y peatones, mejorar el servicio de transporte urbano (tránsito y “paratránsito”), diseñar importantes proyectos de 
infraestructura y para proporcionar información y asistencia a los pasajeros. La Comisión Regional de Transporte del Condado de 
Santa Cruz (RTC) tiene la responsabilidad de gestionar las disposiciones de la Medida D y de distribuir los fondos a las agencias 
receptoras locales según las fórmulas establecidas por el Plan de Gastos de la Medida D que fue aprobado por los votantes. 

FY21/22 Ingresos y Gastos de la Medida D
Categoría de inversión/destinatario Ingresos Gastos
Proyectos en Vecindarios
     SLV/Hwy 9 – RTC $333,333 $214,296
     Carretera 17 – Cruce para Animales Silvestres $166,667 $438
     Ciudad de Capitola  $381,422 $96,915
     Ciudad de Santa Cruz $1,701,343 $237,321
     Ciudad de Scotts Valley  $366,715 $66,832
     Ciudad de Watsonville  $1,168,017 $505,797
     Condado de Santa Cruz $3,940,791 $1,935,486
Tránsito y “Paratránsito” - METRO $4,297,754 $2,014,351
“Paratránsito”– Lift Line $1,074,438 $824,667
Carreteras – RTC $6,715,240 $4,077,583
Trasporte Activo – RTC $4,566,363 $3,136,433
Vía de Ferrocarril – RTC $2,148,877 $512,180
Subtotal $26,860,960 $13,622,299
RTC Administración e Implementación $765,013 $634,292
Total $27,625,973 $14,394,706

Podrán ver que ha ingresado más dinero del que se ha gastado. Los fondos que no son gastados a menudo son transferidos 
años siguientes por las agencias receptoras para financiar la construcción de proyectos mayores en el futuro. Las agencias 
acumulan sus fondos y la Medida D les permite avanzar con proyectos de tránsito, carreteras, bicicletas, peatones, senderos, 
calles y otros proyectos que de otro modo no habrían podido pagar. De hecho, la Medida D también le ha dado al condado una 
forma de competir con más éxito por las subvenciones estatales y federales usando los fondos como contrapartida.

Estamos emocionados con el progreso que se ha logrado con los fondos de la Medida D y el apalancamiento que este dinero ha 
brindado a las agencias en el condado para gestionar los problemas de transporte más urgentes.

Queremos agradecerles a todos los contribuyentes del condado por aprobar la Medida D y brindarle a la comunidad una fuente 
constante y directa de financiamiento local para mejoras de transporte vitales. Las mejoras ayudaran a reducir tráfico, reducir la 
emisión de gases de efecto invernadero, y mejorar la seguridad, el acceso y la movilidad para todos en nuestra comunidad.

Gracias, 
El Comité de Supervisión del Contribuyente para la Medida D

(Los ingresos se muestran en valores devengados y no incluyen intereses ni ajustes.)

En 2016 la Medida D fue aprobada por más de dos tercios de los votantes del condado de Santa Cruz. La Medida D es un 
impuesto de ½ centavo sobre transacciones y uso (parecido a un impuesto de ventas) por un periodo de 30 años cuyo propósito 
es financiar cinco categorías de proyectos de transporte:

• Proyectos en vecindarios/calles locales
• Tránsito para ancianos y personas con

incapacidades

• Carreteras
• Vía de ferrocarril
• Transporte activo

Resumen ejecutivo del informe anual sobre la Medida D del Comité 
Independiente de Supervisión

Page 1

16-20



 

En noviembre del 2016, más de dos tercios de los 
votantes del condado de Santa Cruz aprobaron la 
Medida D, una ordenanza con un paquete amplio 
e inclusivo para mejorar el transporte del condado 
y que se financiaría con la imposición de un 
impuesto de medio porcentaje (0,5%) por 30 años 
sobre todas las transacciones de venta y de uso.

El impuesto se efectuó el 1º de abril del 2017. La 
Comisión Regional de Transporte del Condado 
de Santa Cruz (RTC) está designada como la 
Autoridad de Transporte Local (la Autoridad) para 
implementar las estipulaciones de la Medida D. 
De acuerdo con el Plan de Gastos, la RTC asigna, 
administra, y supervisa el gasto de todos los 
ingresos de la Medida D que no han sido asignados 
directamente por fórmula estipulada en la Medida 
D a otras agencias.

Desde la implementación del impuesto en abril 
del 2017 hasta junio de 2022, se han generado 
más de $120 millones en ingresos y la RTC y 
otras agencias locales receptoras han gastado 
más de $57 millones de fondos de la Medida D. 
Como se destaca en la página siguiente, más 
de $60 millones de los fondos remanentes de la 
Medida D se utilizarán en proyectos de transporte 
identificados en el programa de proyectos de 5 
años de cada agencia (planes de 5 años).

La Medida D, aprobada por los votantes, especifica 
que un Comité de Supervisión Independiente 
(Comité) revisara la auditoría fiscal independiente 
anual del gasto de los fondos del impuesto. 
Después el Comité presentara un reporte anual 
sobre el cumplimiento de los requisitos del Plan 
de Gastos y la ordenanza. El Comité incluye cinco 
miembros que son residentes del condado de 
Santa Cruz y que no son funcionarios electos de 
ningún gobierno ni empleados de ninguna agencia 
u organización que supervise o implemente
proyectos financiados con los ingresos del
impuesto.

Los miembros del Comité son designados por 
la Junta de RTC por períodos de dos años. Los 
miembros actuales del Comité son:

• Distrito de Supervisión 1: Gail Jack

• Distrito de Supervisión 2: David Culver

• Distrito de Supervisión 3: Philip Hodsdon,
vicepresidente

• Distrito de Supervisión 4: Trina Coffman
Gomez

• Distrito de Supervisión 5: Andre Duurvoort,
presidente

El Comité tuvo reuniones en persona el 23 de 
marzo y el 1º de mayo del 2023 para revisar 
los gastos del año fiscal 2021/2022 (FY21/22). 
Los materiales y las notas de las reuniones 
están disponibles en la página web de la RTC: 
https://sccrtc.org/meetings/measure-d-taxpayer-
oversight-committee/. 

El Comité revisó los Estados Financieros de la 
Medida D que fueron auditados por empresas 
independientes de Contadores Públicos 
Certificados y los informes anuales de las agencias 
receptoras de la Medida D:

• Comisión Regional de Transporte del
Condado de Santa Cruz

• Condado de Santa Cruz

• Ciudad de Capitola

• Ciudad de Santa Cruz

• Ciudad de Scotts Valley

• Ciudad de Watsonville

REPORTE ANUAL DEL COMITÉ  
PARA LA SUPERVISIÓN DE LA MEDIDA D

AÑO FISCAL TERMINADO EL 30 DE JUNIO DEL 2022

Page 2

16-21



• Distrito de Tránsito Metropolitano de Santa 
Cruz

• Puentes de la Comunidad/Lift Line 

Ninguna de las auditorías encontró 
resultados negativos en cuanto al gasto 
de los fondos de la Medida D y no se 
encontraron incidentes de incumplimiento de 
la Ordenanza de la Medida D.

El Comité Recomienda Actualizar las 
Auditorias e Informes de las Agencias 
Receptoras 
Después de revisar la auditoria de los estados 
financieros del año fiscal 21/22, la lista de gastos 
y la documentación del cumplimiento de la 
Ordenanza de la Medida D, el Comité recomienda 
que las agencias receptoras actualicen algunas 
auditorías e informes en el futuro para que sea 
más fácil comprender y conciliar la información 
sobre cómo las agencias están gastando los 
fondos de la Medida D. Esto incluye:

• Actualizar el informe de la auditoría: las 
auditorías deben incluir notas al pie o 
información en una discusión de gestión 
y administración (MDA) para explicar 
los planes para los saldos de fondos no 
utilizados. La mayoría de las agencias 
transfieren grandes saldos. Esto podría 
incluir un resumen de los proyectos 
planificados con referencia a los planes 
de 5 años que cada agencia actualiza 
anualmente detallando cómo las agencias 

planean utilizar los fondos de la Medida D.

• Aumentar la transparencia sobre cualquier 
ajuste que se haya realizado, por ejemplo 
en casos cuando fondos pudieron ser 
utilizados inicialmente para financiar 
un proyecto en un año fiscal (como los 
fondos generales), pero en el próximo año 
esos gastos fueron reembolsados por la 
Medida D o los fondos de la Medida D se 
usaron inicialmente, pero luego fueron 
reembolsados por otra fuente de fondos.

• Documentación de la Medida D presentada 
por cada agencia receptora con el objetivo 
de simplificar la presentación de informes 
sobre la medida fiscal y mostrar los gastos 
actuales, los proyectos planificados y sus 
resultados.

En el año fiscal 21/22, la RTC asignó $26,8 
millones en ingresos netos de la Medida D a las 
ciudades, el Condado, Santa Cruz METRO, Puentes 
Comunitarios/Lift Line y categorías de proyectos 
de inversión regionales según las fórmulas 
establecidas en el Plan de Gastos y Ordenanza de 
la Medida D. Las agencias beneficiarias gastaron 
$13,6 millones de los ingresos de la Medida D en 
proyectos y servicios en el año fiscal 21/22. Se 
asignaron y gastaron fondos adicionales en tareas 
administrativas y de implementación. Cualquier 
saldo de las asignaciones que no fue gastado en el 
año fiscal 21/22 será transferido para ser utilizado 
en los próximos años.

Page 3

16-22



Resumen de los ingresos y gastos de la Medida D desde el 1º de julio de 2021 hasta el 30 de 
junio de 2022.

Categoría de inversión % Fiscal 21/22
Asignaciones 

(en base 
devengada) 

Ajustes
(redistribución 
de saldos de 

administración e 
implementación)

Fiscal 21/22
Gastos

Saldos 
(incluye 

traspasos del 
ano anterior e 

intereses)

Proyectos en Vecindarios 30%
 SLV/Hwy 9 $333,333 $27,778 $214,295 $1,452,260

     Carretera 17- Cruce de 
Vida Silvestres

$166,667 $13,889 $438 $904,668

 Ciudad de Capitola $381,422 $6,650 $96,915 $936,454
 Ciudad de Santa Cruz $1,701,343 $27,400 $237,321 $4,020,957
 Ciudad de Scotts Valley $366,715 $5,785 $66,832 $224,029
 Ciudad de Watsonville $1,168,017 $18,404 $505,797 $3,565,668
 Condado de  Santa Cruz $3,940,791 $62,226 $1,935,486 $6,925,448

Tránsito/”Paratránsito” – 
METRO

16% $4,297,754 $84,385 $2,014,351 $7,577,895

“Paratránsito” – Lift Line 4% $1,074,438 $21,096 $824,667 $690,004
Carreteras 25% $6,715,240 $131,851 $4,077,583 $20,462,269
Transporte Activo 17% $4,566,363 $89,659 $3,136,433 $10,633,354
Vías de Ferrocarril 8% $2,148,877 $42,192 $512,180 $3,794,448
Ingresos Netos (tarifas 
netas, administración/
implementación)

100% $26,860,960 $531,315 $13,622,298 $61,187,454

Salarios y Beneficios 
Administrativos

1% $276,260 $227,726

Implementación y 
Supervisión

varía $488,753 -$517,696 $406,566

Total $27,625,975 $14,256,590 
Tarifas Estatales CDTFA 
(BOE) 

actuals $226,360 $226,360

Figura 1: FY21/22 Resumen de ingresos y gastos

Notas: Esta tabla incluye una combinación de información de la RTC y la información financiera auditada de la 
agencia local y los informes de gastos del proyecto. Los estados financieros auditados generalmente se presentan 
sobre una base de acumulación modificada o total, lo cual significa que los ingresos se reconocen cuando se 
obtienen, no cuando se reciben. Las asignaciones del año fiscal 21/22 incluidas, reflejan los pagos de la RTC 
sobre una base devengada, mientras que las auditorías de algunas agencias muestran ingresos sobre una base 
devengada modificada o en efectivo, según el mes en que se acumularon ingresos. Los ajustes incluyen los saldos 
no gastados para administración e implementación del año anterior redistribuidos por la RTC en el año fiscal 
21/22.

Page 4

16-23



La tabla anterior detalla que los fondos totales de la Medida D recaudados y asignados (en base 
devengada) para el año fiscal que finalizó el 30 de junio de 2022 por la RTC fueron $27,625,975; esto 
es $3,871,468 más que en el año fiscal 20/21.

Más de $60 millones en ingresos de la Medida D se transfirieron al año fiscal 22/23 para proyectos 
regionales y locales. Cada agencia desarrolla y actualiza anualmente los planes de 5 años que indican 
los proyectos que se financiarán con los fondos remanentes y futuros ingresos. Esta información se 
puede encontrar en los informes FY21/22 de cada agencia en línea en: https://sccrtc.org/funding-
planning/measured/taxpayer-oversight/. 

La Medida D continua siendo una fuente crucial para financiamiento del transporte local para la 
comunidad del condado de Santa Cruz y se ha aprovechado para asegurar más de $250 millones en 
financiación externa para nuestro sistema de transporte. Se incluyen más detalles en este informe 
anual.

De acuerdo a esta información, el Comité de Supervisión de la Medida D determina que la 
Autoridad y las Agencias Receptoras están procediendo de acuerdo con la Ordenanza de la 
Medida D, según nuestra revisión de las auditorías y los gastos del período entre el 1º de 
julio 2021 y el 30 de junio 2022.

Andre Duurvoort, presidente 

El Comité de Supervisión para la Medida D 
La Comisión Regional de Transporte del Condado de Santa Cruz

Page 5

16-24



La siguiente gráfica es una comparación de los ingresos y gastos anuales para proyectos regionales y 
ciudades, condados, METRO y Lift Line desde los años fiscales 2016 hasta 2022. Los ingresos aumentaron 

de aproximadamente $20 millones en 2017 a más de $27 millones en el año fiscal 21/22. Los gastos 
variaron más ampliamente entre $4.5 millones y $16 millones, con muchas agencias ahorrando fondos de 
la Medida D para proyectos importantes que se van a construir en el año fiscal 22/23-26/27. Las agencias 
muestran cómo planean usar la programación en sus planes de 5 años actualizados anualmente. En los 

primeros años de la medida fiscal, varias agencias utilizaron fondos en el desarrollo previo a la construcción 
de proyectos, incluido el apalancamiento de subvenciones, la revisión ambiental y las fases de diseño. 
Varias agencias han utilizado subvenciones para cubrir los costos iniciales del proyecto con saldos de la 

Medida D que se gastarán a medida que los principales proyectos de infraestructura avancen y completen la 
construcción.

Figura 2: Comparación de ingresos y gastos anuales. 
(Los ingresos mostrados no incluyen intereses ni ajustes.)

Ingresos y gastos anuales

Page 6

16-25



En el año fiscal 21/22, los beneficiarios utilizaron los fondos de la Medida D para proporcionar proyectos de 
transporte integrales e inclusivos en todo el condado de Santa Cruz. Además de abordar el mantenimiento 
de calles y caminos locales, mejorar la seguridad de los ciclistas y peatones, mejorar el servicio de tránsito 

y “paratránsito,” diseñar importantes proyectos de infraestructura y brindar información al viajero y 
programas de asistencia, los fondos se usaron para preparar los próximos proyectos para la construcción 

futura, mejorar la sostenibilidad, y reducir las emisiones de gases de efecto invernadero. Estos son algunos 
aspectos destacados de cómo se usaron sus dólares de la Medida D en el año fiscal 21/22:

Como Se Utilizaron Sus Dólares con la Medida D

Figura 3: Comparación 
de los gastos del año 
fiscal 21/22.

*Nota: Redondeado 

La Medida D Atrae Otros Fondos.

Uno de los beneficios de la Medida D es la capacidad de 
usar los fondos para traer más dinero al condado para 
proyectos de transporte. Por ejemplo, los fondos de la 
Medida D se han utilizado para aprovechar fondos de 
subvenciones adicionales para los siguientes proyectos 
hasta junio de 2023:

 f Más de $40M en fondos del Programa de Acceso 
a Tierras Federales, Land Trust of Santa Cruz 
County, Regional Surface Transportation Program 
Exchange (RSTPX) y Coastal Conservancy para 
North Coast Rail Trail (Segmento 5)

 f $67.6M en fondos del Programa de Transporte 
Activo (ATP) para los Segmentos 10-11 del 
Coastal Rail Trail

 f $39M en financiamiento ATP para los segmentos 8 
y 9 del Coastal Rail Trail

 f $30M en fondos federales MEGA para el carril 
auxiliar de la autopista 1, el bus en el arcén y el 
proyecto del segmento 12 del Coastal Rail Trail 

 f $11.8M en financiamiento ATP y del Programa de 
Mejora del Transporte del Estado (STIP) para el 
Segmento 7 del Coastal Rail Trail

 f $2.7M en STIP, Programa de Asociación Local 

(LPP), Programa de vehículos de baja o ninguna 
emisión y Caltrans 5339 Financiamiento 
discrecional para autobuses eléctricos y GNC de 
METRO

 f $1.5M en gastos dirigidos por el Congreso 
asignados por la congresista Anna Eshoo para el 
proyecto Boulder Creek Complete Streets

 f $1.5M en fondos STIP para el Proyecto de 
Reconstrucción de Freedom Boulevard

 f $34,296 en fondos del programa de operaciones 
de tránsito con bajas emisiones de carbono 
(LCTOP, por sus siglas en inglés) para cargadores 
eléctricos de Puentes Comunitarios/Lift Line 

 f $4,995 en fondos del programa de la Junta de 
Recursos del Aire de California (CARB) para 
vehículos eléctricos de Puentes Comunitarios/Lift 
Line

 f $105,000 en fondos RSTPX y $90,000 del Distrito 
Escolar del Valle de San Lorenzo para el Estudio 
de Acceso y Circulación del Complejo Escolar del 
Valle de San Lorenzo

 f $3M del Land Trust y $4 millones en fondos 
estatales SHOPP para el cruce de vida silvestre en 
la carratera 17

Page 7

16-26



Proyectos Locales en los Vecindarios

Abajo: Instalación de 
iluminación LED de San Lorenzo 
Riverwalk, Ciudad de Santa Cruz

Alcance del Programa de Seguridad Vial Street Smarts, Ciudad de Santa 
Cruz

Santa Cruz
 f Programas de seguridad para ciclistas y 

peatones jóvenes: se gestionó un contrato con 
Ecology Action para brindar capacitaciones para 
ciclistas y peatones jóvenes a estudiantes de 
primaria en las escuelas públicas de la ciudad 
de Santa Cruz. Brindó educación WalkSmart 
a seis clases de segundo grado y educación 
BikeSmart a 11 clases de quinto grado.

 f Programa de Seguridad llamada Street Smarts: 
Divulgación por los medios de comunicación 
y directamente al público para la campaña 
regional de seguridad en las calles y carreteras.

 f Programa de reemplazo de casilleros para 
bicicletas en el centro: Se proporcionó mantenimiento 
y mejoras a los casilleros para bicicletas en el centro.

 f Proyecto de iluminación del paseo a lado del Rio de 
San Lorenzo: se completó la instalación de iluminación 
LED decorativa para el camino peatonal en las orillas 
este y oeste del paseo a lado del rio entre Water 
Street y la autopista 1.

Condado de Santa Cruz
 f Programa para repavimentar calles: Repavimentación de 6.4 millas de 

calles y carreteras locales en todo el condado, 
incluyen partes de River Street, Soquel, 
Corralitos, Boulder Creek y Ben Lomond.

Los departamentos de obras públicas de las ciudades y el condado usaron sus asignaciones de fondos de 
la Medida D para reparar calles locales, mejorar las instalaciones para bicicletas y peatones y proporcionar 
programas de seguridad en el transporte en todo el condado.

Información adicional sobre los gastos en el año fiscal 21/22 se encuentra en el Informe de gastos anual 
de cada agencia receptora y están disponibles en la página web: sccrtc.org/funding-planning/measured/
taxpayer-oversight/.

Arriba e izquierda: antes y 
después de la repavimentación 

de carreteras, condado de Santa 
Cruz

Proyectos Financiados por la Medida D en el Año 
Fiscal 20/21

Page 8

16-27



Scotts Valley 
f Rehabilitación del pavimento de Bean Creek Road: Se

completó el diseño y se comenzó la construcción de mejoras
para carreteras y bicicletas en Bean Creek Road desde Blue
Bonnet Lane hasta Redwood Drive.

f Reparaciones de calles en toda la ciudad: Se completaron
varias reparaciones de calles y asfalto en toda la ciudad.

Rehabilitación vial de Diamond Street (antes y 
después), Ciudad de Capitola

Capitola
f Rehabilitación de calles: Capitola se asoció con el condado

para eliminar y reemplazar algunas de las secciones de calles
estructuralmente más deficientes en la ciudad, incluyendo
Ruby Court, Diamond Street, Bay Avenue, Fanmar Way y
partes de Capitola Road.

f Plan de Pavimentación: Capitola utilizó fondos de la Medida
D para actualizar su informe del sistema para gestionar
proyectos de pavimentación y que identifica las necesidades
de pavimentación a corto y largo plazo.

Watsonville
f Revitalización del Centro: Aceras reparadas en West Fifth

Street desde Main Street hasta Brennan Street.

f Seguridad de bicicletas: Capacitación sobre seguridad de ciclistas
y peatones en varias escuelas de Watsonville.

f Lee Road Trail: diseño continuo para Lee Road Trail (Harkins
Slough Road desde la entrada de la escuela secundaria Pajaro
Valley High School hasta Lee Road, y Lee Road desde Harkins
Slough Road hasta el cruce de ferrocarril).

f Mejoras en la seguridad de Lincoln Street: Construcción de
instalaciones de seguridad para ciclistas y peatones cerca de la
escuela secundaria Watsonville.

f Puente peatonal Highway 1/Harkins Slough Road y proyecto de
rutas escolares seguras: diseño continuo del proyecto, que se está
desarrollando en colaboración con Caltrans.

Instalación de lomos de velocidad, 
Ciudad de Watsonville

f Proyectos de Reconstrucción de Calles:

• Diseño continuo para proyectos en Pennsylvania Drive y Bridge
Street.

• Diseño terminado para el proyecto Freedom Boulevard.

Izquierda: 
Reemplazo de 
acera, Ciudad 
de Watsonville

Page 916-28



Puentes comunitarios/Lift Line: servicios de “paratránsito”

Santa Cruz METRO 
 f Compró nuevos autobuses eléctricos y 

de GNC que son más eficientes, mejoran 
la confiabilidad de la flota y reflejan el 
compromiso continuo de METRO con la 
transición a autobuses de aire limpio.

 f Continuó brindando servicios adicionales de 
autobús y “paratránsito”

 f Diseño de reurbanización del Centro de 
Tránsito Pacific Station/METRO

 f Lift Line siguió usando fondos de la Medida D 
para:

• Ampliar el horario de servicio y ofrecer viajes 
adicionales

• Apoyar la capacitación en seguridad y servicio 
para los conductores.

• Promover la disponibilidad de viajes en 
“paratránsito”

• Comprar reemplazos de vehículos/equipos

• Financiar las instalaciones de operaciones de 
Lift Line en Watsonville

METRO compró nuevos autobuses eléctricos y continuó 
brindando un servicio vital de paratránsito a la comunidad.

Transito & Paratransito 

Arriba: instalación de Lift Line en Watsonville. Izquierda: 
Servicio de paratránsito Lift Line. 

Page 10

16-29



Transporte Activo – Sistema de Senderos del Santuario de la Bahía de 
Monterey (MBSST) o el Sendero junto a la Vía de Tren

Durante el año fiscal 21/22, los fondos de la Medida D se utilizaron en la revisión 
ambiental, permisos, diseño, coordinación y otras acciones requeridas para los proyectos 
del Sendero junto a la Vía de Tren, que incluyen:

 f El personal de la RTC superviso y dio asistencia técnica para la implementación de 
la MBSST

 f Se analizaron varias alineaciones y se solicitó la opinión del público.

 f La Ciudad de Santa Cruz completó el diseño final y comenzó la construcción del 
Segmento 7, Fase II desde Bay Street/California Avenue hasta Santa Cruz Wharf.

 f En coordinación con la RTC, la división de Tierras Federales Centrales (Central 
Federal Lands) de la Administración Federal de Carreteras (Federal Highway 
Administration o FHWA) trabajaron juntas para desarrollar el Segmento 5. Este 
proyecto incluye Davenport y lo conecta con el Parque Estatal Wilder Ranch con 
actividades previas a la construcción, tal y como la revisión ambiental, el diseño, el 
derecho de paso y la obtención de permisos.

Categorías de Gastos Regionales
Aproximadamente el 50% de los ingresos de la Medida D se asignan a categorías de gastos regionales. La 
Comisión Regional de Transporte del Condado de Santa Cruz (RTC) es responsable de programar y asignar 

estos fondos a proyectos específicos.

Arriba: Tramo 7, Construcción Fase II, Ciudad de 
Santa Cruz. Abajo: Segmento 18, Fase I, corte de 

cinta, Ciudad de Watsonville

 f La Ciudad de Santa Cruz, en asociación con el Condado de 
Santa Cruz, continuó con el diseño preliminar y la revisión 
ambiental de los Segmentos 8 y 9 entre Santa Cruz Wharf 
y 17th Avenue.

 f El Condado de Santa Cruz, en asociación con la Ciudad de 
Capitola, inició la revisión ambiental y el diseño preliminar 
de los Segmentos 10 y 11 desde 17th Avenue hasta State 
Park Drive.

 f La RTC continuó con la revisión ambiental y el diseño 
preliminar del Segmento 12 entre State Park Drive y Rio 
Del Mar Blvd como parte del proyecto Highway 1 Freedom-
State Park Auxiliary Lanes and Bus-on-Shoulder, que se 
está impletando en asociación con Caltrans. Esta sección 
del sendero incluye puentes para bicicletas y peatones 
sobre la autopista 1 y Soquel Drive, que conectan 
los vecindarios costeros a Aptos Village.

 f Se completó la construcción del Segmento 18, 
Fase I entre Ohlone Parkway y Watsonville Slough 
Trail, y el corte de cinta oficial fue en julio de 
2021.

 f A través de un contrato con una empresa de 
agrimensura, la RTC ha gestionado trabajo 
de agrimensura para los Segmentos 9-12. 
Conforme se complete el trabajo, los registros de 
agrimensura se archivarán con el Condado.

Page 11

16-30



La Autopista 9/Camino del Valle de San Lorenzo y el Cruce de Vida 
Silvestre en la Autopista 17 

 f Caltrans comenzó la construcción del cruce de vida 
silvestre debajo de la autopista 17 cerca de Laurel 
Curve en febrero de 2022. La construcción se completó 
en el verano de 2023. El proyecto proporciona a la vida 
silvestre, en particular a los pumas de Santa Cruz, un 
paso seguro bajo la carretera muy traficada. Lo cual 
reduce los choques entre las personas que conducen en 
la carretera y la vida silvestre que la cruza. El proyecto 
fue financiado por una combinación de la Medida D, 
el Programa de Protección y Operación de Carreteras 
Estatales (SHOPP) y fondos del Fideicomiso de Tierras 
del Condado de Santa Cruz.

 f Basándose en el plan comunitario de Calles Completas de la Autopista 9 en el Valle de San 
Lorenzo (SLV), Caltrans y la RTC utilizaron fondos de la Medida D en el año fiscal 21/22 para 
identificar y bosquejar proyectos prioritarios para su implementación a lo largo del corredor a 
través de la preparación de un “Documento de Iniciación de Proyecto” (PID). El PID se completó 
en 2022 y los ingresos de la Medida D se utilizarán para adquirir fondos adicionales e iniciar 
fases futuras de proyectos prioritarios y prepararlos para construir.

 f En la primavera de 2022, la RTC trabajó con el Distrito Escolar Unificado del Valle de San 
Lorenzo (SLVUSD) y Caltrans para iniciar el estudio de acceso a las escuelas del Valle de San 
Lorenzo para buscar mejorar el acceso a y la circulación más allá de las escuelas primaria, 
intermedia y secundaria al norte de Felton para todos los modos de transporte.

Carreteras 
 
Carretera 1: carriles auxiliares y 
proyectos de autobus en el arcén 
La RTC está patrocinando la construccion 
de cinco (5) nuevos carriles auxiliares y 
tambien planea implementar un programa 
de autobúses hibridos a lo largo de una 
seccion de 7.5 millas en la Carretera 1.

 f Fase 1: Soquel Drive hasta 41st 
Avenue: durante el año fiscal 
21/22, los fondos de la Medida D 
se usaron en trabajos relacionados 
con el documento ambiental y 
el contrato de construcción para 
carriles auxiliares e instalaciones de arcén entre Soquel Drive y 41st Avenue. El proyecto incluye un 
nuevo puente para bicicletas y peatones sobre la autopista 1 en Chanticleer Avenue. La construcción 
comenzó a principios de 2023.

Cruce de vida silvestre de la autopista 17

Primera piedra de la Autopista 1, Fase I (abril de 2023)

Transporte Activo continuada:

 f La RTC continuó utilizando los fondos de la Medida D para mantener el corredor de transporte para 
senderos y via el tren, incluido el control de la vegetación; mantenimiento de árboles; reducción de 
basura y vertidos; campamentos; mantenimiento y reparación de drenajes; y gestionar, renegociar 
o despejar usurpaciones no permitidas. La RTC también inició trabajos para obtener permisos 
ambientales para apoyar las actividades de mantenimiento.

Page 12

16-31



Programa Cruz511

f La RTC, en asociación con la Ciudad de Santa Cruz, UCSC, Ecology
Action y otras entidades, utilizó los fondos de la Medida D para continuar
promoviendo “Go Santa Cruz County”, un programa de gestión de
la demanda de medios de transporte, que incluye un administrador de viajes diarios en línea y
plataforma de recompensas con combinación dinámica de viajes compartidos y planificación de
viajes en tránsito, viajes compartidos y bicicletas. Los consultores ayudaron a crear materiales de
mercadotecnia, herramientas para empleadores, el sitio web del programa (www.gosantacruzcounty.
org) y contenido para las redes sociales. Además, los consultores ayudaron con información a

empresas y sus empleadores interactuando con los principales 
empleados, incorporando nuevas empresas a la plataforma y 
brindando talleres virtuales y en persona para los participantes. 
Más de 1363 nuevos participantes se unieron al programa 
en el año fiscal 21/22. El personal de la RTC también 
asistió a eventos comunitarios en persona para promover el 
Programa GO del condado de Santa Cruz e inscribir a nuevos 
participantes. La RTC también continuó brindando al público 
información sobre viajes compartidos, tránsito, bicicletas, 
tráfico e información sobre el cierre de carriles y carreteras del 
condado, principalmente a través del sitio web www.Cruz511.
org. El personal continuó brindando mensajes de seguridad vial 
y recursos de mapeo de transporte activo a los miembros de la 
comunidad en todo el condado.

Seguridad en la Carretera 17 y el Servicio Auxiliar de Autopistas

f La Medida D continuó brindando fondos críticos para la
aplicación adicional de la Patrulla de Carreteras de California
(CHP) en la Carretera 17 a través del programa “Safe on 17”
(Seguros en la 17).

f Los fondos de la Medida D se usaron para proporcionar grúas
que patrullan (FSP) la Autopista 1 y la Autopista 17 durante
las horas pico de viaje, y que trabajan en conjunto con CHP
para reducir la congestión relacionada con incidentes y mejorar
el flujo de tráfico y la seguridad mediante la eliminación de
escombros, ayudando a los automovilistas con vehículos
averiados, limpieza de choques y otros incidentes. Las gruas de FSP trabajaron un total de 3.787
horas y brindaron aproximadamente 1.497 asistencias, con un promedio de 0,40 asistencias por hora.
Los tipos más frecuentes de ayuda proporcionada a automovilistas por FSP incluyeron asistencia con
colisiones, soluciones mecánicas rápidas y reparaciones de llantas pinchadas.

Carreteras continuada:

f Fase 2: Bay/Porter a State Park Drive: durante el año fiscal 21/22, los fondos de la Medida D se
usaron para continuar el diseño final y las actividades de derecho de paso para carriles auxiliares e
instalaciones de autobuses en arcén entre State Park Drive y Bay-Porter. El proyecto incluye un nuevo
puente para bicicletas y peatones sobre la autopista 1 en Mar Vista Drive y el reemplazo del puente de
Capitola Avenue. La construcción está programada para comenzar en 2023.

f Fase 3: State Park Drive hasta Freedom Boulevard, incluido el segmento 12 de Coastal Rail
Trail: durante el año fiscal 21/22, los fondos de la Medida D se usaron para trabajos ambientales y
de diseño preliminar para carriles auxiliares e instalaciones de autobuses en el arcén entre State Park
Drive y Freedom Boulevard. El proyecto incluye el Segmento 12 de 1.25 millas del Coastal Rail Trail.
Se espera que el proyecto esté listo para la construcción en 2025, dependiendo la disponibilidad de
fondos.

Page 1316-32



Reparación de daños por tormentas en la 
vía férrea.

Izquierda: Se utilizaron cabras 
para controlar la vegetación en 

la vía férrea.

Actividades Administrativas y de Implementación
 f Se siguieron políticas y procedimientos para salvaguardar los dólares de los contribuyentes y 

garantizar que se gasten según las instrucciones de los votantes.

 f Se utilizaron sistemas fiscales para administrar cada una de las cuentas y desembolsar fondos a 
beneficiarios directos según fórmulas aprobadas por los votantes.

 f Se prepararon planes de cinco años y fueron modificados conforme fuera necesario con los ingresos 
de la Medida D.

 f Se proporciono información al público y se solicitaron comentarios a través de la página web (www.
sccrtc.org/move), Facebook, NextDoor y eNews.

 f El Comité Independiente de Supervisión se reunió para revisar los gastos de la Medida D y crear el 
informe anual.

Vía de Ferrocarril
 f Los fondos de la Medida D se gastaron en el diseño final para las 

reparaciones del puente sobre el río Pájaro, cuya construcción se 
espera que comience en 2023.

 f Se ha continuado con los trabajos de diseño, incluyendo 
consultas con la Comisión de Costas, del proyecto de Reparación 
de la Erosión Costera de Manresa.

 f La RTC continúa realizando el mantenimiento básico de la 
infraestructura ferroviaria en áreas que de momento no cuentan 
con el servicio del operador ferroviario. Esto incluye responder al 
mal funcionamiento de las señales de cruceros.

 f La RTC continúa realizando una revisión administrativa y de 
ingeniería, y coordinando a las empresas de servicios públicos y 
otras entidades para realizar el mantenimiento o la construcción 
de las instalaciones que afectan la línea férrea.

 f Las reparaciones de daños por tormentas, la preservación 
de la infraestructura y el mantenimiento preventivo de la 
infraestructura ferroviaria continúan siendo financiados en el 
corredor ferroviario.

Page 14

16-33



La construcción de la Fase 1 de los proyectos de la 
Autopista 1 comenzó en abril de 2023.

Saldos Trasladados
Como muestra la Figura 2, los ingresos han 
superado los gastos cada año. Los fondos que 
no se gastan pueden trasladarse para usarse en 
años futuros en proyectos identificados en los 
planes de 5 años de la Medida D. Algunas agencias 
acumulan varios años de financiación para la 
construcción de proyectos mayores. Por ejemplo, 
los saldos remanentes se están utilizando para 
la construcción de proyectos como los carriles 
auxiliares/para autobuses en el arcén de la 
autopista 1 y los cruces peatonales/de bicicletas, 
el cruce de vida silvestre de la autopista 17, 
varios segmentos del sendero junto a la vía de 
tren costera y otros proyectos que estaban en 
desarrollo en el año fiscal 21/22 y comenzarían 
construcción en 2022-2026. A medida que los 
proyectos grandes pasan a la construcción, se 
espera que los saldos remanentes disminuyan en 
todas las categorías de programas y es posible 
que la RTC incluso necesite obtener financiamiento 
contra futuros fondos de la Medida D tan pronto 
como el año fiscal 24/25 para algunos proyectos 
regionales.

Proyectos a Esperar
Las agencias beneficiarias de la Medida D a veces 
ahorran varios años de ingresos de la Medida D 
para proyectos mayores, que incluyen:

f Proyecto de calles completas de Clares
Street (Capitola): construcción completada
FY22/23

f Carretera 17- Cruce de Vida Silvestres: se
espera que la construcción finalice el año
fiscal 22/23

f Proyecto Lee Road Trail (Watsonville)

f Proyecto de reconstrucción de Freedom
Boulevard (Watsonville)

f Proyecto de Pavimentación de Instalaciones

(Lift Line)

f Carriles auxiliares de la autopista 1 y
autobús en el arcén entre Soquel Drive en
Santa Cruz/Live Oak y Freedom Boulevard
en Aptos, incluidos nuevos puentes para
bicicletas y peatones sobre la autopista 1
(RTC)

f Proyectos de senderos junto a la vía de
tren costera

f Investigación ambiental para el tren
eléctrico de pasajeros en la vía de
ferrocarril de Santa Cruz

Los efectos de COVID-19 a los fondos 
de la Medida D

La pandemia global de COVID-19 ha tenido 
un impacto significativo en las personas, las 

empresas locales, los viajes y los hábitos de los 
consumidores. Los ingresos de la Medida D del 
año fiscal 21/22 fueron un 12 % más altos que 
en el año fiscal 20/21, un 30 % más altos que 

en el año fiscal 2019/20 y 24% más alto que en 
el año fiscal 18/19. Hasta septiembre de 2022, 
los ingresos del año fiscal 22/23 continuaron 

siendo más altos que los niveles anteriores a la 
pandemia COVID. Sin embargo, los aumentos 

en el año fiscal 22/23 han sido más pequeños y 
se espera que el crecimiento se desacelere en el 
año fiscal 23/24 a 0.4% con respecto en el año 

fiscal 22/23.

Proyecto 
de Calles 

Completas 
de Clares 
Street, 

Ciudad de 
Capitola 

Page 1516-34



Three Month Meeting Schedule  RTC 08/03/2023 
www.sccrtc.org/meetings/ August 2023 - October 2023 

Note: Please check website for most up-to-date information. All meetings are 
subject to cancellation when there are no action items to be considered.  

 County BOS – 701 Ocean St., 5th Floor, Room 525, Santa Cruz, CA
 RTC Office – 1101 Pacific Ave., Suite 250, Santa Cruz, CA
 Scotts Valley – 1 Civic Center Dr., Scotts Valley, CA

Date Day Meeting Body Time Place 

08/03/23 Thu Regional Transportation Commission 9:00am County BOS 

08/08/23 Tue 
Elderly & Disabled Transportation 

Advisory Committee 
[Cancelled] 

1:30pm RTC Office 

08/14/23 Mon Bicycle Advisory Committee 6:00pm RTC Office 

08/17/23 Thu Interagency Technical Advisory 
Committee 1:30pm RTC Office 

09/07/23 Thu Regional Transportation Commission 9:00am Scotts 
Valley 

09/21/23 Thu Interagency Technical Advisory 
Committee 1:30pm RTC Office 

10/02/23 Mon Bicycle Advisory Committee 6:00pm RTC Office 

10/05/23 Thu Regional Transportation Commission 9:00am County BOS 

10/10/23 Tue Elderly & Disabled Transportation 
Advisory Committee 1:30pm RTC Office 

10/12/23 Thu Budget & Administration/Personnel 1:30pm RTC Office 

10/19/23 Thu Interagency Technical Advisory 
Committee 1:30pm RTC Office 

17-1

file://RTCSERV2/Shared/RTC/TC2023/04/Consent/www.sccrtc.org/meetings/


Link to Full Comments

Date Letter 
Rec'd/Sent

Type
Incoming/  
Outgoing

Response First Last Organization First Last Organization Subject

05/08/23 Email Incoming 
S.Munz

5.25.2023
RTC SCCRTC Nancy Maynard Resident Stop removing trees… Jade St Park

05/17/23 Email Incoming
C.Convisser
5.25.2023

Yesenia Parra SCCRTC Will McKinney Resident
Public Records Request: agreements re: rights to 

install fiber optic cable along RR corridor

05/25/23 Email Incoming
RTC Staff 
5.25.2023

Grace Blakeslee SCCRTC Glenn Rabenold Resident Letter #4 regarding the Coastal Rail Trail

05/29/23 Email Incoming
RTC Staff 
5.30.2023

Tommy Travers SCCRTC Shelley Silva Resident
Comments on location of Jump Bikes @ Frederick 

and Broadway

05/29/23 Email Incoming
A.Marino

5.31.2023
Amanda Marino SCCRTC Sherree

Resident of 
Toronto, Canada

Visiting wheelchair bus/vehicle

05/29/23 Email Incoming
RTC Staff 
5.30.2023

Sarah Christensen SCCRTC Matt Ferrell
Friends of the 
Rail and Trail

Comments on Item 28: June 1, 2023 SCCRTC 
Meeting

05/30/23 Email Incoming
RTC Staff 
5.30.2023

RTC SCCRTC Tina Andreatta Resident
Preserve, protect, design, and build the complete 

Coastal Rail with Ultimate Trail - including 
Segment 12 project

05/30/23 Email Incoming n/a Sarah Christensen SCCRTC John Hibble
Aptos Chamber 
of Commerce 

Information about history of passenger rail in 
Aptos & historical images

05/31/23 Email Incoming n/a RTC SCCRTC Debbie Bulger Resident
CC'd on Comments on State Park to Freedom Aux 

Lanes, etc.

06/01/23 Email Incoming n/a Sarah Christensen SCCRTC Kevin Newhouse

Santa Cruz 
Historic 

Resources 
Commission

CC'd on correspondence to Caltrans. Comments 
Re: 05-0C734 Section 106 Local Consultation 

Request SR 1 Aux Lanes Coastal Rail Trail 
Segment 12 Project

FromTO

Correspondence Log (05/22/2023-7/24/2023) RTC 08/03/2023

18-1

https://sccrtc.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/RTC-Cmts-5.22.2023-7.24.2023.pdf


Link to Full Comments

Date Letter 
Rec'd/Sent

Type
Incoming/  
Outgoing

Response First Last Organization First Last Organization Subject

FromTO

06/01/23 Email Incoming
S.Munz

6.1.2023
Shannon Munz SCCRTC Thomas O'Reilly

Monterey Bay 
Aquarium 
Research 
Institute

Track usage between Davenport Landing and 
Bonny Doon Beach

06/01/23 Email Incoming pending Sarah Christensen SCCRTC Mark Pertschuk
Environmental 

Protection 
Agency

Contact info for the Highway 1 Auxiliary Lanes - 
State Park Drive to Bay Avenue/Porter Street 

Project

06/02/23 Email Incoming
FWD to Lara 
Bertaina @ 

Caltrans
RTC SCCRTC Annie Murphy County of SC

Comments on Draft EIR for Segment 12 of the Rail 
Trail

06/02/23 Contact us Incoming
RTC Staff 
6.2.2023

RTC SCCRTC Peter Niboli Resident
Comment dEIR - Highway 1 State Park Dr to 
Freedom Blvd Aux Lanes, Bus-on-Shoulder & 

Coastal Rail Trail Segment 12 Project

06/02/23 Email Incoming n/a Sarah Christensen SCCRTC Linda Wilshusen Resident
CC'd on Comments on Draft EIR for Segment 12 of 

the Rail Trail

06/02/23
Email & 
Letter

Outgoing pending Steve McShane
Central Coast 
Community 

Energy
Manu Koenig SCCRTC

Requesting Collaboration on New Bike Voucher 
Program

06/05/23 Email Incoming n/a Sarah Christensen SCCRTC Mark Pertschuk
Environmental 

Protection 
Agency

CC'd on Comments on Draft EIR for Segment 12 of 
the Rail Trail

06/05/23 Email Incoming pending Yesenia Parra SCCRTC Jodi LaCosse
Placer County 
Transportation 

Planning Agency
Benefit Survey Feedback

06/07/23 Email Incoming n/a Manu Koenig SCCRTC Robert Shaw
Centarl Coast 
Community 

Energy

Re: Requesting Collaboration on New Bike 
Voucher Program

06/07/23 Email Incoming
RTC Staff 
6.8.2023

RTC SCCRTC Christer Lindstrom Podcar City Information about Podcar City conference

06/09/23 Email Incoming
C.Convisser
6.15.2023

Yesenia Parra SCCRTC Amy Chen HDR
SCC Climate Adaptation RFP2168 - public records 

request

Correspondence Log (05/22/2023-7/24/2023) RTC 08/03/2023

18-2



Link to Full Comments

Date Letter 
Rec'd/Sent

Type
Incoming/  
Outgoing

Response First Last Organization First Last Organization Subject

FromTO

06/11/23 Email Incoming
Y.Parra

6.12.2023
Yesenia 
Parra

Grace 
Blakeslee

SCCRTC Alexander Taylor UCSC student
Request for internship and/or interview re: Rail 

Trail, environmental review, and GIS

06/12/23 Email Incoming
RTC Staff 
6.12.2023

Amanda Marino SCCRTC J. Ben Vernazza Resident
Ultimate Trail next to Rails fails safety test - 

please forward comments to Elderly & Disabled 
Transportation Advisory Committee

06/12/23 Email Incoming
RTC Staff 
6.12.2023

Rachel Moriconi SCCRTC J. Ben Vernazza Resident Comments on item 12 - ITAC meeting

06/12/23 Email Incoming
RTC Staff 
6.12.2023

Amanda 
Marino

Rachel 
Moriconi

SCCRTC Barry Scott Resident
Comments for Elderly & Disabled Transportation 
Advisory Committee and Interagency Technical 

Advisory Committee

06/14/23 Email Incoming pending
Grace 

Blakeslee
Brianna 

Goodman
SCCRTC Patrick Leipold

Lumiplan 
Innovation

"Demand of Meeting with Brianna Goodman or 
Grace Blakeslee" re: innovative digital real time 

information displays for bike lanes and trails

06/15/23 Email Incoming
RTC Staff 
6.15.2023

RTC SCCRTC Barry Scott Resident
Please include this Guest Editorial, "Ultimate Trail 
Gains National Recognition" as public comment 

and correspondence to your agencies

06/15/23 Email Incoming
RTC Staff 
6.15.2023

RTC SCCRTC Cathy Gamble Resident
I wish to commend the SCCRTC for doing such 
great work towards sensible transportation in 

Santa Cruz County. 

06/15/23 Letter Outgoing n/a Ryan Lynch

Cal West 
Construction 

General 
Building, Inc.

Guy Preston SCCRTC
Re: MP8.85 Retaining Wall and Civil 

Improvements - Manresa Coastal Erosion Repair - 
CLAIM REJECTION NOTICE

06/16/23 Email Incoming
RTC Staff 
6.20.2023

RTC SCCRTC Marilyn Fenn Resident
Preparation of insurance claim for fallen trees. Do 

electronic photos work for you?

06/20/23 Email Incoming
RTC Staff 
6.20.2023

RTC SCCRTC Duncan Pairman Resident
Concern regarding "Unresponsive SC County 

Public Works"

Correspondence Log (05/22/2023-7/24/2023) RTC 08/03/2023

18-3



Link to Full Comments

Date Letter 
Rec'd/Sent

Type
Incoming/  
Outgoing

Response First Last Organization First Last Organization Subject

FromTO

06/20/23 Email Incoming n/a
Amanda 
Marino

Tommy 
Travers

SCCRTC Jean Brocklebank Resident
CC'ed on correspondence to the City of Santa Cruz 

re: Bike Share, enforcement, and bike riding on 
sidewalks

06/20/23 Email Incoming
RTC Staff 
6.20.2023

Shannon Munz SCCRTC J Dunfield Resident
Comments re: RTC Releases Draft 2023 Public 

Paricipation Plan for Public Comment

06/20/23 Email Incoming
RTC Staff 
6.21.2023

RTC SCCRTC Susie Bright Resident Bike map request

06/24/23 Email Incoming
C.Convisser
6.27.2023

RTC SCCRTC David Date Resident FOIA Request

06/27/23 Email Incoming 6/30/2023 Shannon Munz SCCRTC Tom Brock n/a

Request for status update on project RTC 24GSC 
(State Route 1 - Freedom to State Park Auxiliary 
Lanes, Bus on Shoulder, and Coastal Rail Trail 

Segment 12)

06/28/23 Email Incoming
C.Convisser
6.29.2023

Brianna Goodman SCCRTC Hannelore
Keiser-
Deguara

Resident
Comments on the draft San Lorenzo Valley safety 

plan

06/28/23 Email Incoming
C.Convisser
6.29.2023

Brianna Goodman SCCRTC Sophia Lettiere Resident
Comments on San Lorenzo Valley school 

circulation study and access

06/28/23 Email Incoming
C.Convisser
6.29.2023

Brianna Goodman SCCRTC Malcolm Deguara Resident
Comments on San Lorenzo Valley school 

circulation study and access

06/29/23 Email Incoming n/a Luis Mendez SCCRTC Anna Kalthoff Student
Application materials for Transportation Planning 

Intern

06/29/23 Email Incoming
RTC Staff 
7.18.2023

RTC SCCRTC Jack Fontinelli Resident Re: City Planning

Correspondence Log (05/22/2023-7/24/2023) RTC 08/03/2023

18-4



Link to Full Comments

Date Letter 
Rec'd/Sent

Type
Incoming/  
Outgoing

Response First Last Organization First Last Organization Subject

FromTO

06/30/23 Email Incoming
RTC Staff 
7.18.2023

RTC SCCRTC Brian Peoples Trail Now
Southern California relocating existing rail 

inland/build Interim Coastal Trail (Watsonville to 
Davenport)

07/04/23 Email Incoming
C.Convisser

7.5.2023
RTC SCCRTC Gregory Becker Resident

How well a narrow trail works in Pacific Grove (not 
too well)

07/05/23 Email Incoming n/a Luis Mendez SCCRTC Alexander Taylor Student
Application materials for Transportation Planning 

Intern

07/05/23 Email Incoming
B.Goodman
7.6.2023

Brianna Goodman SCCRTC Lesal Quitzau Resident
Inquiry regarding eminent domain actions by 

Caltrans

07/05/23 Email Incoming
C.Convisser

7.5.2023
Yesenia Parra SCCRTC Andy Schiffrin

Board of 
Supervisors

Re: Recommendation for Alex Taylor

07/07/23 Email Incoming
C.Convisser

7.7.2023
RTC SCCRTC Eve Ortiz Property Owner

Request for maintenance or removal of tree 
located near property

07/07/23 Email Incoming
C.C onvisser

7.7.2023
RTC SCCRTC Ginger Stugis Resident Comments on formatting of RTC newsletter emails

07/13/23 Email Outgoing pending Ryan Lynch

Cal West 
Construction 

General 
Building, Inc.

Cindy Convisser SCCRTC
Re: Certified Mail retruned undeliverable - what 

address to re-send?

07/16/23 Email Incoming
L.Bertaina
7.18.2023

Sarah Christensen SCCRTC Annie Murphy County of SC

CC'd on communication to Lara Bertaina of 
Caltrans Re: Commenst from Santa Cruz Couny 

Department of Community Development and 
Infrastructure re: the Draft EIR for Coastal Rail 

Trail Segment 12

07/18/23 Letter Incoming n/a Guy Preston SCCRTC Robert Larsen Cal OES
Response to Time Extension Request - Project 

Number 1311476

07/18/23 Email Incoming
Y.Parra

7.18.2023
Yesenia Parra SCCRTC Timothy McGinnis

RTC of Southern 
Nevada

Inquiry about Mentorship/Job Shadowing program

07/18/23 Email Incoming pending Yesenia Parra SCCRTC Marilyn Fenn Resident
Requesting a status update on claim against RTC 

and questions about the funding and process

Correspondence Log (05/22/2023-7/24/2023) RTC 08/03/2023

18-5



Link to Full Comments

Date Letter 
Rec'd/Sent

Type
Incoming/  
Outgoing

Response First Last Organization First Last Organization Subject

FromTO

07/18/23 Letter Incoming pending Guy Preston SCCRTC Joe Serrano
Santa Cruz 

County LAFCO

Re: Status of Application for the proposed "RTC 
Parcel Annexation" to the Davenport Sanitation 

District (LAFCO Project No. DA 23-12)

07/20/23 Email Incoming
RTC Staff 
7.20.2023

Sarah Christensen SCCRTC Jennifer Shelton

City of Santa 
Cruz Economic 
Development & 
Housing Dept

Can you please verify if the train trestles at Depot 
Park near the Marin Sanctuary are RTC property?

07/21/23 Email Incoming pending Yesenia Parra SCCRTC Lisa Chatar SmartProcure

Public Records Request: agreements re: Purchase 
order number, Purchase date, Line item details, 
Line item quantity, Line item price, Vendor ID 

number, name, address, contact person and their 
email address

Correspondence Log (05/22/2023-7/24/2023) RTC 08/03/2023

18-6



June 1, 2023 

The Honorable Steve McShane 
Chair, Central Coast Community Energy Policy Board 
70 Garden Court 
Monterey, CA 93940 

Subj: Requesting Collaboration on New Bike Voucher Program 

Dear Chair McShane, 

On behalf of the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
(SCCRTC), I am writing to express our sincere gratitude for the remarkable 
efforts of Central Coast Community Energy in initiating and implementing 
the Electrify Your Ride program. This groundbreaking initiative has had a 
significant impact on promoting sustainable transportation options within our 
community, and we commend your team for its successful execution. 

At our most recent meeting on June 1st, 2023, the SCCRTC took a 
momentous step forward in our commitment to fostering sustainable 
mobility by establishing a county-wide bike voucher program. It includes 
vouchers for bikes, e-bikes and bike-share assistance. This program has 
been designed to follow the best practices of utilizing vouchers (as opposed 
to rebates), awarding meaningful amounts, and focusing on low-income 
applicants. We firmly believe that e-bikes can play a vital role in reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions and improving access to transportation for 
underserved communities.  

We were motivated to create the program by seeing the huge demand for 
past e-bike rebate programs including the one offered by Central Coast 
Community Energy, the Monterey Bay Air Resources District and Downtown 
Santa Cruz. We want to make it easier for low income residents to navigate 
the application process. We believe this program will benefit from a unified 
marketing effort and that it can scale with additional local, state and federal 
funding. 

Recognizing the shared vision and goals we hold with Central Coast 
Community Energy, we kindly request your support in re-allocating funding 

19-1



for e-bike rebates. We hope you will also consider the option of grant 
funding to further enhance the impact of regional bike voucher programs like 
ours. Your organization has demonstrated exemplary dedication to 
promoting sustainable practices, and we believe that collaborating on this 
front will be mutually beneficial for our respective initiatives. 

Together, we can make significant strides in reducing carbon emissions and 
promoting equitable access to sustainable transportation options across our 
region. We greatly appreciate your consideration and support in this matter. 
If you require any additional information or would like to arrange a meeting 
to discuss this proposal in more detail, please do not hesitate to reach out to 
me directly. 

Sincerely, 

Manu Koenig 

Chair, Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 

19-2



Prepared for the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s Board Meeting on: 
August 3, 2023 

Page 1 of 17 

PROJECT UPDATE REPORT – SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

The projects below are listed in order of State Route, then by beginning post mile, with all projects covering multiple State Routes listed 
first. There are two tables of projects displayed: 1. “Projects in Construction” (Milestone range: Construction Contract Approval to 
Construction Contract Acceptance) and 2. “Projects in Development” (project phases “Project Initiation Document” (PID), “Project 

Approval & Environmental Documents” (PA&ED), “Plans, Specifications, & Estimates” (PS&E), and “Right of Way” (RW). The Right of Way 
phase often overlaps with the Plans, Specifications, & Estimates phase. Please see a list of Caltrans resources available to the public at 
the end of this document. Oversight Projects are included below when Caltrans is the Lead Agency for a given phase.  

Projects in CONSTRUCTION 

Project Name 
/ EA ID 

State Route / 
Post Mile 
(PM) 

Description Construction 
Timeline 

Construction 
Capital Cost, 
Total Project 
Cost, Fund 
Source 

Project 
Manager Contractor 

Comments & 
Updates to 
Commissioners 

C1 

Santa Cruz & San 
Benito Rumble 
Strip & Striping 
Safety Project 

1M330 

State Route: 
Various: 1, 9, 17, 
129 

PM: Various 

Install centerline and 
edge line rumble strips; 
Restripe some locations 
with enhanced wet 
night thermoplastic 
striping material 

June 2022 - 
July 2024 

C Cap: $3.3 million 

Total: $4.8 million 

010 Safety Funds 

Terry 
Thompson 

Central 
Striping 
Service, Inc. 

Project is in 
construction. 

C2 

Soquel Creek 
Scour Protection 

1H480 

State Route: 1 

PM: 13.31 

At Soquel Creek 
Bridge No 36 
0013 btwn Bay 
Ave & 41st Ave 

Bridge Preventative 
Maintenance - Place 
Scour Protection 

July 2022 – 
February 2024 

C Cap: $1.4 million 

Total: $6.6 million 

SHOPP- Bridge 

Chad 
Stoehr 

Granite 
Construction 
Company 

Construction is in 
progress but has 
experienced some 
delays associated 
with species 
control. 

C3 

Aux Lanes & BOS  
41st to Soquel 
Ave 

0C732 

State Route: 1 

PM: 13.4 to 14.9 

Construct auxiliary 
Lanes, Bus-on-shoulder 
elements, &  
bicycle/pedestrian 
overcrossing near 
Chanticleer Avenue. 

November 
2022 - August 
2024 

C Cap: $28.1 
million 

Total: $35.2 million 

SCCRTC Project- 
Caltrans Lead for 
CON 

Madilyn 
Jacobsen 

Granite 
Construction 
Company 

Project construction 
is ongoing.     

23-1



Prepared for the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s Board Meeting on: 
August 3, 2023 

Page 2 of 17 

PROJECT UPDATE REPORT – SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

Projects in CONSTRUCTION 

Project Name 
/ EA ID 

State Route / 
Post Mile 
(PM) 

Description Construction 
Timeline 

Construction 
Capital Cost, 
Total Project 
Cost, Fund 
Source 

Project 
Manager Contractor 

Comments & 
Updates to 
Commissioners 

C4 

Davenport 
Culvert 
Replacement 

0J200 

State Route: 1 

PM: 31.9 to 35.7 

At various spot 
locations btwn 
the listed 
postmiles 

Culvert replacement 
near Davenport and 
south Waddell Creek 

March 2022 - 
August 2024 

C Cap: $8.1 million 

Total: $13 million 

SHOPP- Drainage 

Mike Lew Serafix 
Engineering 

Construction is 
ongoing. 

C5 
Viaducts 

1K120 

State Route: 9 

PM: 1 & 4 

At 0.5 miles 
north of Vernon 
St & at 0.75 
miles south of 
Glengarry Rd 

Construct side-hill 
viaduct, restore 
roadway and facilities, 
place Water Pollution 
Control BMPs, erosion 
control 

December 
2022 - 
September 
2025 

C Cap: $11.6 
million 

Total: $20 million 

SHOPP- Major 
Damage 

Doug 
Hessing 

Gordon N. 
Ball, Inc. 

Expect one-way 
traffic control and 
intermittent full 
closures with 
advance notice via 
Caltrans’ News 

Releases. 

C6 

Hairpin Tieback 

1K130 

State Route: 9 

PM: 19.97 

Near Boulder 
Creek, about 
1.1 miles south 
of SR 236/9 
Junction 

Construct a Soldier Pile 
Tieback Retaining Wall 

June 2021 - 
July 2024 

C Cap: $3.6 million 

Total: $7.6 million 

SHOPP- Major 
Damage 

Doug 
Hessing 

Gordon N. 
Ball, Inc. 

The primary 
construction 
activities have 
been completed. 
The one-year Plant 
Establishment, 
which began in 
March 2023, is 
ongoing. 

23-2



 Prepared for the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s Board Meeting on: 
 August 3, 2023 
 

Page 3 of 17 
 
 

PROJECT UPDATE REPORT – SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

 Projects in CONSTRUCTION 

 Project Name 
/ EA ID 

State Route / 
Post Mile 
(PM) 

Description Construction 
Timeline 

Construction 
Capital Cost, 
Total Project 
Cost, Fund 
Source 

Project 
Manager Contractor 

Comments & 
Updates to 
Commissioners 

C7 

Jarvis Slide Rock 
Fence 
 
1K070 

 
State Route: 17 
 
PM: 8.2 
 
Near Scotts 
Valley, 0.5 miles 
south of 
Sugarloaf Rd 
 

Construct rock 
fence/barrier at Jarvis 
Slide to stabilize the 
slope 

December 
2022 - 
December 
2023 

C Cap: $4.3 million 
 
Total: $7.4 million 
 
SHOPP- Major 
Damage 

Chad 
Stoehr 

Gordon N. 
Ball, INC 

Construction in 
progress. Nightly 
lane closures 
anticipated. 

C8 

Wildlife Habitat 
Crossing 
 
1G260 
 

 
State Route: 17 
 
PM: 9.4 to 9.6 
 
From 0.6 miles 
south of Laurel 
Rd to 0.25 miles 
north of Laurel 
Rd 
 

Construct wildlife 
undercrossing 

September 
2021 - January 
2024 

C Cap: $6.2 million  
 
Total: $12 million 
 
SHOPP- for project 
development 
 
Local 
Contributions- for 
project 
construction 

Mike Lew Granite Rock 
Construction 

Project will be 
complete once the 
Plant Establishment 
period is over later 
this Winter. 

C9 

 
Corralitos Creek 
ADA 
 
1F620 
 

 
State Route: 152 
 
PM: 1.9 to R2 
 
Near 
Watsonville, 
east of Beverly 
Dr to Holohan /  
College Rd 
 

Construct Accessible 
Pathway, concrete 
barrier, retaining wall, 
curb gutter, and ADA 
standard sidewalk 

December 
2022 - January 
2024 

C Cap: $1.5 million 
 
Total: $7.5 million 
 
SHOPP- Mobility 

Chad 
Stoehr 

Bridgeway 
Civil 
Constructors, 
INC 

Construction in 
progress. Traffic 
control in place 
with limited 
pedestrian access 
across Corralitos 
Creek bridge. 

23-3



 Prepared for the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s Board Meeting on: 
 August 3, 2023 
 

Page 4 of 17 
 
 

PROJECT UPDATE REPORT – SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

 Projects in CONSTRUCTION 

 Project Name 
/ EA ID 

State Route / 
Post Mile 
(PM) 

Description Construction 
Timeline 

Construction 
Capital Cost, 
Total Project 
Cost, Fund 
Source 

Project 
Manager Contractor 

Comments & 
Updates to 
Commissioners 

C10 

 
Heartwood Hill 
Embankment 
Restoration 
 
1M450 
 

 
State Route: 236 
 
PM: 5.4 
 

Restore Embankment 
with a Retaining Wall 

February 2023 
– December 
2024 

C Cap: $2.5 million 
 
Total: $4.9 million 
 
SHOPP- Major 
Damage 

Doug 
Hessing 

GORDON N. 
BALL, INC 

Expect one-way 
traffic control 
during construction.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please continue to the next page for Projects in Development 
  

23-4



 Prepared for the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s Board Meeting on: 
 August 3, 2023 
 

Page 5 of 17 
 
 

PROJECT UPDATE REPORT – SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

 Projects in DEVELOPMENT 

 
Project 
Name / 
EA ID 

State Route 
/ Post Mile 
(PM) 

Description 

Construction 
Target 
(Contract 
Approval to 
Contract 
Acceptance) 

Construction 
Capital Cost, 
Total Project 
Cost, Fund 
Source 

Project 
Manager 

Phase 
(PID, PA&ED, 
PS&E, RW, 
Construction) 

Comments & Updates 
to Commissioners 

D1 

Broadband 
Middle-Mile 
Network 
 
1Q020 

 
State Route: 1 
& 17 
 
PM: From SR-1 
at Mission St to 
SR-17 at the 
Santa Clara 
County Line 
 

Install broadband 
middle-mile fiber lines 
into the shoulder 
and/or outside lane 
when the shoulder is 
unable to fully 
accommodate the 
work. Construct a fiber 
hub location.  

Winter 2023/24 
– Summer 2025 

California 
Department of 
Technology 
project & funds 
 
Caltrans 
assistance with 
implementation 

Genaro 
Diaz PA&ED 

Much of this project is still 
fluid as it is based on 
directive and funds from the 
Office of the Governor. This 
project is planned to install 
conduit & fiber lines in the 
roadway shoulder or outer 
lane.  

D2 

Drainage 
Improvemen
ts 
 
1K640 

 
State Route: 1 
 
PM: MON SR-1 
PM 101.53 to 
SCR County 
Line / SCR PM 
0 to R7.7 
 
From 0.5 miles 
south of the 
Santa Cruz / 
Monterey 
County Line to 
0.2 miles north 
of Larkin Valley 
Rd 
 

Culvert repairs, 
improved lighting, new 
traffic monitoring 
systems, and construct 
maintenance vehicle 
pullouts. 

Fall 2024 – 
Spring 2027 

C Cap: $5.9 
million 
 
Total: $12 million 
 
SHOPP- Drainage 

Madilyn 
Jacobsen PS&E/RW 

The project completed the 
environmental phase 
(PA&ED) at the end of 
January 2023, and has 
begun its Plans, 
Specifications, & Estimates 
(PS&E) phase in February 
2023. Project team working 
towards 95% design- 
anticipated in September 
2023. 

23-5



 Prepared for the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s Board Meeting on: 
 August 3, 2023 
 

Page 6 of 17 
 
 

PROJECT UPDATE REPORT – SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

 Projects in DEVELOPMENT 

 
Project 
Name / 
EA ID 

State Route 
/ Post Mile 
(PM) 

Description 

Construction 
Target 
(Contract 
Approval to 
Contract 
Acceptance) 

Construction 
Capital Cost, 
Total Project 
Cost, Fund 
Source 

Project 
Manager 

Phase 
(PID, PA&ED, 
PS&E, RW, 
Construction) 

Comments & Updates 
to Commissioners 

D3 

Inside 
Shoulder 
Widening 
 
1P180 

State Route: 1 
 
PM: R5 to 8.2 

Widen existing paved 
inside shoulder to 
improve vehicle drift 
recovery 

Winter 2024-25 – 
Summer 2025 

C Cap: $4.5 
million 
 
Total: $8 million 
 
010 Safety Funds 

Chad 
Stoehr RS&E/RW 

The project has moved to 
the design and right of way 
phases (PS&E & RW). 60% 
Design anticipated to be 
reached by Fall 2023. 

D4 

Freedom to 
State Aux 
Lanes 
 
0C734 

State Route: 1 
 
PM: 8.1 to 10.7 

Construct auxiliary 
lanes between State 
Park Dr and Freedom 
Blvd at ramps. 
Construct bus-on-
shoulder facilities, 
bridge replacements, 
and the Class 1 Rail 
Trail 

Summer 2025 – 
Winter 2031-32 

C Cap: $165 
million 
 
Total: $221 million 
 
SCCRTC Project- 
Caltrans Lead for 
PA&ED 

Madilyn 
Jacobsen PA&ED 

Circulation on the Draft 
Environmental Document 
concluded in June 2023 and 
the team is working towards 
the Final Environmental 
Clearance, anticipated in 
late 2023. 

D5 

Roadside 
Safety 
 
1J962 

 
State Route: 1 
 
PM: 8.20 to 26 
 
From 0.5 miles 
north of Larkin 
Valley Rd to 
Laguna Rd 
(North) 
 

Drainage System 
Restoration; Paving at 
40 ramps; Install 
lighting at 
interchanges and 
Install Transportation 
Management System 
(TMS) elements 

Winter 2026-27 – 
Summer 2027 

C Cap: $9.9 
million 
 
Total: $19.3 million  
 
SHOPP- Drainage 

Chad 
Stoehr PS&E 

This project completed the 
PA&ED phase in February 
2023 and is beginning PS&E. 

23-6



 Prepared for the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s Board Meeting on: 
 August 3, 2023 
 

Page 7 of 17 
 
 

PROJECT UPDATE REPORT – SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

 Projects in DEVELOPMENT 

 
Project 
Name / 
EA ID 

State Route 
/ Post Mile 
(PM) 

Description 

Construction 
Target 
(Contract 
Approval to 
Contract 
Acceptance) 

Construction 
Capital Cost, 
Total Project 
Cost, Fund 
Source 

Project 
Manager 

Phase 
(PID, PA&ED, 
PS&E, RW, 
Construction) 

Comments & Updates 
to Commissioners 

D6 

 
SR 1/9 
Junction 
Lighting 
Project 
 
1Q250 

 
State Route: 1 
 
PM: 17.46 to 
17.66 
 

 
Construct continuous 
lighting approaching 
the junction of SR 1 
with SR 9 to improve 
intersection 
illuminance and 
uniformity and to 
enhance motorist and 
pedestrian safety. 
 

Winter 2025-26 – 
Winter 2026-27 

C Cap: $1.6 
million 
 
Total: $3.5 million 
 
010 Safety Funds 

Chad 
Stoehr PS&E/RW 

This project completed the 
PA&ED phase in June 2023 
and is beginning PS&E. 

D7 

 
Santa Cruz 
CAPM 
 
1M110 
 

State Route: 1 
 
PM: 17.5 to 
20.2 
 
In & near the 
City of Santa 
Cruz from 0.06 
miles south of 
SR-1/9 
Junction to 
0.09 miles 
north of the 
Mission St 
intersection 
 

Grinding/ paving 2.7 
miles of pavement, 
upgrading up to 89 
curb ramps, guard rail 
upgrade, sign panel 
upgrade, loop 
detector replacement; 
enhanced crosswalks; 
pedestrian refuge 
islands; 2 new bus stop 
locations. 

Fall 2026 – Fall 
2027 

C Cap: $9.9 
million 
 
Total: $16.8 million 
 
SHOPP- 
Pavement 
 
IIJA Supplement 

Madilyn 
Jacobsen PA&ED 

Environmental Clearance is 
anticipated in Spring 2024. 
The Community 
Engagement Plan is in 
development. 

23-7



 Prepared for the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s Board Meeting on: 
 August 3, 2023 
 

Page 8 of 17 
 
 

PROJECT UPDATE REPORT – SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

 Projects in DEVELOPMENT 

 
Project 
Name / 
EA ID 

State Route 
/ Post Mile 
(PM) 

Description 

Construction 
Target 
(Contract 
Approval to 
Contract 
Acceptance) 

Construction 
Capital Cost, 
Total Project 
Cost, Fund 
Source 

Project 
Manager 

Phase 
(PID, PA&ED, 
PS&E, RW, 
Construction) 

Comments & Updates 
to Commissioners 

D8 

SR-9 South 
CAPM 
 
1K890 

 
State Route: 9 
 
PM: 0.046 to 
7.5 
 
From 0.5 miles 
south of Irwin 
Way to 150 
feet south of El 
Solyd Heights 
Dr 
 

Pavement 
Preservation, Drainage, 
TMS, ADA, Sign Panel 
replacement and 
Stormwater Mitigation 
elements in Santa Cruz 
County on Route 9. 

Spring 2027 – 
Summer 2029 

 
 
C Cap: $14.7 
million 
 
Total: $25 million 
 
SHOPP- 
Pavement 
 
Local 
Contribution 
pending coop 
agreement 
 

Doug 
Hessing PA&ED Long lead project on 

schedule. 

D9 

 
Felton 
Safety 
Improvemen
ts 
 
1M400 
 

 
State Route: 9 
 
PM: 6.3 to 7.2 
 
From Kirby St 
To the San 
Lorenzo Valley 
High School 
signaled 
intersection 
 

Construct Accessible 
Pedestrian Path 

Spring 2025 – 
Summer 2027 

C Cap: $5.8 
million 
 
Total: $17.6 million 
 
010 Safety Funds 

Doug 
Hessing PS&E/RW 

PA&ED phase completed in 
December 2022. The project 
has moved to the design 
and right of way phase 
(PS&E). 

23-8



 Prepared for the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s Board Meeting on: 
 August 3, 2023 
 

Page 9 of 17 
 
 

PROJECT UPDATE REPORT – SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

 Projects in DEVELOPMENT 

 
Project 
Name / 
EA ID 

State Route 
/ Post Mile 
(PM) 

Description 

Construction 
Target 
(Contract 
Approval to 
Contract 
Acceptance) 

Construction 
Capital Cost, 
Total Project 
Cost, Fund 
Source 

Project 
Manager 

Phase 
(PID, PA&ED, 
PS&E, RW, 
Construction) 

Comments & Updates 
to Commissioners 

D10 

 
Upper 
Drainage & 
Erosion 
Control 
Improvemen
ts 
 
1G950 
 

 
State Route: 9 
 
PM: 8.5 to 25.5 
 
In Boulder 
Creek from 
Holiday Ln, just 
south of Ben 
Lomond, to 4.7 
miles north of 
the SR 236/9 
Junction 
 

Upgrade drainage 
and erosion control 

Summer 2024 – 
Summer 2025 

C Cap: $7.2 
million 
 
Total: $14.4 million 
 
SHOPP- 
Sustainability / 
Climate Change 

Chad 
Stoehr PS&E/RW 

The project continues in the 
Design and Right of Way 
phase. Project schedule has 
been delayed due to re-
design, Right of Way, and 
permitting issues. 

D11 

 
San Lorenzo 
River Bridge 
& Kings 
Creek 
Bridge 
Replaceme
nt 
 
1H470 
 

 
State Route: 9 
 
PM: 13.6 &15.5 
 
Near Boulder 
Creek, at the 
San Lorenzo 
River Bridge 
and at Kings 
Creek Bridge 
 

Replace two bridges 
on State Route 9 

Spring 2024 – 
Spring 2027 

C Cap: $14.7 
million 
 
Total: $25.9 million 
 
SHOPP- Bridge 

Doug 
Hessing PS&E/RW 

The project is in the Right of 
Way phase. Work includes 
utility relocation 
coordination and 
associated easement 
requirements. 

23-9



 Prepared for the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s Board Meeting on: 
 August 3, 2023 
 

Page 10 of 17 
 
 

PROJECT UPDATE REPORT – SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

 Projects in DEVELOPMENT 

 
Project 
Name / 
EA ID 

State Route 
/ Post Mile 
(PM) 

Description 

Construction 
Target 
(Contract 
Approval to 
Contract 
Acceptance) 

Construction 
Capital Cost, 
Total Project 
Cost, Fund 
Source 

Project 
Manager 

Phase 
(PID, PA&ED, 
PS&E, RW, 
Construction) 

Comments & Updates 
to Commissioners 

D12 

SR-9 North 
CAPM 
 
1K900 

 
State Route: 9 
 
PM: 18.89 to 
27.09 
 
From 
0.4 miles south 
of 
Saratoga Toll 
Rd to the 
Santa 
Cruz/San 
Mateo 
County Line 
 

Pavement 
preservation 
strategies including but 
not limited to dig-outs, 
profile grinding, 
overlay, 
placing shoulder 
backing and dike. 
Reconstruct guardrail, 
rehabilitate or 
replace 6 culvert and 
replace 67 sign panels 

Summer 2026 – 
Summer 2028 

C Cap: $7.5 
million 
 
Total: $12.8 million 
 
SHOPP- 
Pavement 

Doug 
Hessing PA&ED 

Project programmed in the 
2022 SHOPP. PA&ED phase 
is ongoing. 

D13 

 
SR-17 
Drainage 
Improvemen
ts 
 
1K670 
 

 
State Route: 17 
 
PM: 0 to 12.5 
 
At various 
locations 
within the 
project limits 
 

Stormwater mitigation 
by replacing and 
restoring culverts and 
drainage systems 

Fall 2027 – Fall 
2029 

C Cap: $4.6 
million 
 
Total: $9.5 million 
 
SHOPP- 
Sustainability / 
Climate Change 

Madilyn 
Jacobsen PA&ED 

 
Environmental technical 
studies are on-going.  The 
Draft Environmental 
Document is being 
prepared for public review 
in Fall 2023. The 
environmental phase is 
anticipated to be 
completed in December 
2023.  
 

23-10



 Prepared for the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s Board Meeting on: 
 August 3, 2023 
 

Page 11 of 17 
 
 

PROJECT UPDATE REPORT – SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

 Projects in DEVELOPMENT 

 
Project 
Name / 
EA ID 

State Route 
/ Post Mile 
(PM) 

Description 

Construction 
Target 
(Contract 
Approval to 
Contract 
Acceptance) 

Construction 
Capital Cost, 
Total Project 
Cost, Fund 
Source 

Project 
Manager 

Phase 
(PID, PA&ED, 
PS&E, RW, 
Construction) 

Comments & Updates 
to Commissioners 

D14 

 
SR-17 High 
Friction 
Surface 
Treatment 
(HFST) 
 
1M730 
 

 
State Route: 17 
 
PM: 3.2 to 
11.27 
 
At various 
locations from 
0.2 miles south 
of Scotts 
Valley 
overcrossing to 
1.6 miles south 
of the Summit 
Rd separation 
 

Safety Construction 
includes HFST between 
the left/right edges of 
the travel way and 
cold plane removal of 
Open Grade Asphalt 
Concrete 
(OGAC) and 
replacement with Hot 
Mix Asphalt 

Fall 2023 – Fall 
2024 

C Cap: $6.9 
million 
 
Total: $8.6 million 
 
010 Safety Fund 

Chad 
Stoehr PS&E/RW 

Bids opened in late July 
2023 and are being 
reviewed. 

D15 

 
Replace 
Damaged 
Bridge 
Girder 
 
1P280 
 

 
State Route: 17 
 
PM: 17.02 
 
SR-17 
northbound at 
the 
interchange 
bridge of SR-1 
over SR-17. 
 

Replace damaged 
bridge girder 

Winter 2023-24 – 
Spring 2024 

C Cap: $1.25 
million 
 
Total: $3.8 million 
 
Minor A Program- 
Bridge Health 

Chad 
Stoehr PS&E/RW 

Construction work may 
affect one or more lanes of 
traffic on both SR-17 and on 
SR-1.  

23-11



 Prepared for the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s Board Meeting on: 
 August 3, 2023 
 

Page 12 of 17 
 
 

PROJECT UPDATE REPORT – SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

 Projects in DEVELOPMENT 

 
Project 
Name / 
EA ID 

State Route 
/ Post Mile 
(PM) 

Description 

Construction 
Target 
(Contract 
Approval to 
Contract 
Acceptance) 

Construction 
Capital Cost, 
Total Project 
Cost, Fund 
Source 

Project 
Manager 

Phase 
(PID, PA&ED, 
PS&E, RW, 
Construction) 

Comments & Updates 
to Commissioners 

D16 

SR-129 
CAPM 
 
1J830 

 
State Route: 
129 
 
PM: 0.0 to 0.56 
 
In and neat 
Watsonville 
from the SR 
1/129 junction 
to Salsipuedes 
Creek Bridge 
 

Pavement 
Preservation, Lighting, 
Sign Panel 
Replacement and TMS 
Elements 
improvements 

Winter 2024-25 – 
Fall 2025 

C Cap: $8.4 
million 
 
Total: $17.1 million 
 
SHOPP- 
Pavement 

Madilyn 
Jacobsen PS&E/RW 

 
This project reached 60% 
Design in November 2022 
and is working towards the 
95% Design milestone, 
anticipated Fall 2023. 
 

D17 

 
SR-152 
Rehabilitatio
n Project 
 
1P110 
 

 
State Route: 
152 
 
PM: T0.31 to 
4.14 
 
In and near 
Watsonville, 
from the SR-
1/152 junction 
to 0.5 miles 
east of Carlton 
Rd 
 

Preserve pavement, 
rehabilitate or replace 
Salsipuedes Creek 
Bridge, replace 
culverts, rehabilitate 
traffic signals, 
upgrade curb ramps, 
reconstruct guardrail, 
replace sign panels, 
and 
complete streets 
elements including 
road diet, bike lanes, 
and curb extensions in 
various locations 

Long-lead: 2031 
– 2033  

C Cap: $28.3 
million 
 
Total: $44.7 million 
 
SHOPP- 
Complete 
Streets; 
Pavement 

Madilyn 
Jacobsen 

PID 
Complete- 
Candidate 

The Project Initiation 
Document is complete for 
this project. This project is 
anticipated to be 
programmed into the 2024 
SHOPP in Spring 2024.   

23-12



 Prepared for the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s Board Meeting on: 
 August 3, 2023 
 

Page 13 of 17 
 
 

PROJECT UPDATE REPORT – SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

 Projects in DEVELOPMENT 

 
Project 
Name / 
EA ID 

State Route 
/ Post Mile 
(PM) 

Description 

Construction 
Target 
(Contract 
Approval to 
Contract 
Acceptance) 

Construction 
Capital Cost, 
Total Project 
Cost, Fund 
Source 

Project 
Manager 

Phase 
(PID, PA&ED, 
PS&E, RW, 
Construction) 

Comments & Updates 
to Commissioners 

D18 

Downtown 
Watsonville 
Pedestrian 
Safety 
Project 
 
1Q150 

 
State Route: 
152 
 
PM: T2.45 to 
T2.929 
 
In Watsonville, 
between 
Freedom Blvd 
& Beck St 
 

Construct curb 
extensions & high 
visibility crosswalks to 
enhance pedestrian 
safety 

Winter 2026-27 – 
Summer 2029 

C Cap: $4.6 
million 
 
Total: $10.1 million 
 
010 Safety Fund 

Madilyn 
Jacobsen PA&ED 

The Project Initiation Report 
(PIR) was signed in March 
2023. The PID was amended 
into the 2022 SHOPP cycle in 
May 2023. Preliminary 
design and environmental 
work have begun. 

 
 
  

23-13



 Prepared for the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s Board Meeting on: 
 August 3, 2023 
 

Page 14 of 17 
 
 

PROJECT UPDATE REPORT – SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

ACRONYMS USED IN THIS REPORT: 
  
ADA  Americans with Disabilities Act 
CCA  Construction Contract Acceptance 
CEQA  California Environmental Quality Act 
CMAQ  Congestion Mitigation Air Quality 
CMIA  Corridor Mobility Improvement Account 
CTC  California Transportation Commission 
ED  Environmental Document 
EIR  Environmental Impact Report 
HFST  High Friction Surface Treatment 
PM  Post Mile 
RTL  Ready to List 
SB1 Senate Bill 1, the Road Repair and Accountability 

Act of 2017 

SCL  Santa Clara (County) 
SCR  Santa Cruz (City or County) 
SHOPP  State Highway Operation and Protection Program 
SR  State Route 
STIP  State Transportation Improvement Program 
TMS  Traffic Management System 
 
Project Phases 
PID  Project Initiation Document 
PA&ED  Project Approval and Environmental Document 
PS&E  Plans, Specifications, and Estimates 
RW  Right of Way 
Construction Construction… as a phase title

23-14



 Prepared for the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s Board Meeting on: 
 August 3, 2023 
 

Page 15 of 17 
 
 

PROJECT UPDATE REPORT – SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

-Resources- 
 
Communication: 
 

For General Caltrans’ Inquiries, or to be added to the Santa Cruz County News Release Distribution List: 

 
Kevin Drabinski, Public Information Officer 
Kevin.Drabinski@dot.ca.gov  

 
For Region Specific Questions: 

 
Paul Guirguis, Regional Planning Liaison – Santa Cruz County 
Paul.Guirguis@dot.ca.gov  

 
For Project Specific Questions or Partnering Opportunities: 

 
Please reach out to the Project Manager listed, or to the Regional Planner above.  

 
 
Requests: 
 

To notify Caltrans of specific concerns regarding current roadway or facility conditions, please submit a customer service request 
through the following online portal: https://csr.dot.ca.gov/  

 
Examples of Customer Service Requests:  
Any of the following on the State’s highway system:  

- Streetlight issues 
- Plant over-growth 
- Damaged roadway 
- Fallen trees on the roadway  
- Other maintenance issues 

 
For less specific concerns, please reach out to the Public Information Officer to be directed to the appropriate respondent  

23-15

mailto:Kevin.Drabinski@dot.ca.gov
mailto:Paul.Guirguis@dot.ca.gov
https://csr.dot.ca.gov/


 Prepared for the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s Board Meeting on: 
 August 3, 2023 
 

Page 16 of 17 
 
 

PROJECT UPDATE REPORT – SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

 
Online Resources: 
 

Caltrans CCTV Camera Map: https://cwwp2.dot.ca.gov/vm/iframemap.htm  
- Allows the public to see current conditions along the State Highway System 

 
Caltrans Active Transportation Plans & Webmaps: https://dot.ca.gov/programs/transportation-planning/division-of-
transportation-planning/active-transportation-and-complete-streets/caltrans-active-transportation-plans/  

- We are District 5 
- Shows existing conditions of bicycle and pedestrian facilities along the State Highway System 
- Includes prioritized segments and locations of bicycle and pedestrian needs 

 
The Caltrans District 5 Office of Local Assistance: https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/  

- Includes links to many Federal and State funding opportunities  
- Can help guide interested folks through the above-mentioned program requirements 

 
The Official Caltrans District 5 Webpage: https://dot.ca.gov/caltrans-near-me/district-5  

 
Mobile App/Caltrans Website: “Caltrans QuickMap” 

- Available for free in the Apple App Store and Google Play Store 
- Provides realtime conditions for the State Highway System 
- Desktop Format: https://quickmap.dot.ca.gov/  

 
Caltrans Lane Closures Reporting System: https://lcswebreports.dot.ca.gov/  

- Provides a 7-day look-ahead for planned lane closures 
- Does not include unanticipated emergency closures (see Quickmaps for in-the-moment roadway conditions) 

23-16

https://cwwp2.dot.ca.gov/vm/iframemap.htm
https://dot.ca.gov/programs/transportation-planning/division-of-transportation-planning/active-transportation-and-complete-streets/caltrans-active-transportation-plans/
https://dot.ca.gov/programs/transportation-planning/division-of-transportation-planning/active-transportation-and-complete-streets/caltrans-active-transportation-plans/
https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/
https://dot.ca.gov/caltrans-near-me/district-5
https://quickmap.dot.ca.gov/
https://lcswebreports.dot.ca.gov/


 Prepared for the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission’s Board Meeting on: 
 August 3, 2023 
 

Page 17 of 17 
 
 

PROJECT UPDATE REPORT – SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 

 

23-17



AGENDA: Aug. 3, 2023 

TO: Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Shannon Munz, Communications Specialist 

RE: Public Hearing - Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan for the   
Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG), the Council of San 
Benito County Governments (SBtCOG), the Santa Cruz County Regional 
Transportation Commission (RTC) and the Transportation Agency for 
Monterey County (TAMC) 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) hold a public 
hearing to receive input on the Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan for AMBAG, 
SBtCOG, RTC, and TAMC. 

BACKGROUND 
The federally required 2023 Public Participation Plan is a comprehensive document 
that guides regional planning agencies and local jurisdictions in the public 
participation process for the tri-county Monterey Bay region that either receive 
federal funds or are subject to a federally-required action.  

The Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan (PPP) has been prepared by the Association 
of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG) in collaboration with the Santa Cruz 
County Regional Transportation Commission (RTC), the Council of San Benito 
County Governments (SBtCOG), and the Transportation Agency for Monterey 
County (TAMC). A public participation plan is required to be updated and approved 
by metropolitan planning organizations and regional transportation planning 
agencies every four years. Once adopted by the RTC, the 2023 Public Participation 
Plan will serve as the official public participation plan for the agency for the four-
year period from 2023-2027. The Draft PPP was developed to adhere to the 
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act/Bipartisan Infrastructure Act (IIJA/BIA) of 
2021 and the FAST Act of 2015 legislation and pursuant to changes in the California 
Government Code 65080 that occurred with the passage of Senate Bill (SB) 375 in 
2008. 

The purpose of this plan is to establish the process by which the public can 
participate in transportation planning, programming, and project implementation, 
including the development of the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Plan 
(RTP) as well as the Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities 
Strategy for the AMBAG region and the Regional Transportation Plans for Monterey 
and San Benito counties.  

DISCUSSION 

25-1



Under the 2017 California Transportation Commission Regional Transportation Plan 
Guidelines, a documented public involvement process should be prepared prior to 
each Regional Transportation Planning Agency’s (RTPA’s) development of its 
Regional Transportation Plan. The guidelines state that the documented public 
involvement procedures should have public input during its preparation and have a 
minimum 45-day comment period before being adopted by the RTPA board.  

The requirements for the Public Participation Plan under the IIJA/BIA/FAST Act 
include increased involvement and collaboration with members of the public, 
decision makers and staff from the local jurisdictions and partner agencies within 
the region. 

The Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan incorporates strategies to ensure that, to 
the greatest extent possible, interagency consultation and public participation are 
an integral part of the regional transportation planning and decision-making 
process. The plan emphasizes the transportation decision-making process, including 
the expanded use of visualization techniques and innovative online strategies in 
public outreach. 

The public participation policies and procedures described in this plan are structured 
to comply with all applicable federal and state legislation, rules, and express the 
genuine regional value and interest for all residents of the Monterey Bay region to 
participate in the shaping and implementation of regional policies and decisions 
regarding the region’s multimodal transportation system.  

Key sections of the Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan are listed below: 
• Public Participation Plan Guiding Principles
• 2023 Public Participation Plan Timeline
• Incorporating Limited-English Proficiency (LEP) Populations into the PPP
• PPP Procedures and Development Process
• Interested Parties and Public Engagement
• Online and Visualization Outreach Strategies

In particular, the 2023 Public Participation Plan will play a key role in the public 
outreach strategy for development of the 2050 Santa Cruz County Regional 
Transportation Plan.  

Below are key dates for developing the 2023 Public Participation Plan. The items in 
bold are applicable to RTC. 

• June 14, 2023: AMBAG Board of Directors released the Draft 2023 Public
Participation Plan for public comment.

• August 3, 2023: RTC Public Hearing on Draft 2023 Public
Participation Plan scheduled to be held at the RTC August Meeting.

• August 9, 2023: AMBAG Public Hearing on Draft 2023 Public Participation
Plan scheduled to be held at the AMBAG Board of Directors August Meeting.

• August 23, 2023: Close of the public comment period.
• October 5, 2023: RTC Board of Directors scheduled to adopt the Final

2023 Public Participation Plan.

25-2



• October 11, 2023: AMBAG Board of Directors scheduled to adopt the Final 
2023 Public Participation Plan. 

 
The Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan is attached (Attachment 1).  
 
A summary of public outreach activities utilized by the RTC to provide information 
and solicit public input on the RTC’s plans, programs and projects is attached 
(Attachment 2). The RTC’s existing outreach process includes:  
 

• conducting open public meetings and hearings to consider transportation 
issues with its standing committees and commissioners;  

• opportunity to comment on plans, programs and projects;  
• outreach through the RTC’s websites, social media, enews, news releases, 

tabling at community events; and  
• informational materials prepared for public presentations.  

 
Public participation activities provide a feedback loop for projects to inform and vet 
issues in the project planning and development stages which help mitigate potential 
issues early on.  
 
Commissioners and community members are encouraged to review and 
provide input on the Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan. Input received by 
August 23, 2023, will be considered for incorporation into the final plan. A 
public hearing has been scheduled for 9:30 a.m. to receive input at this 
RTC meeting.  
 

• Written comments can also be submitted via email to hadamson@ambag.org 
with the subject line “2023 PPP,” or mailed to Heather Adamson, AMBAG, 
24580 Silver Cloud Court, Monterey, CA 95340. 
 

FISCAL IMPACTS 
There are no fiscal impacts associated with receiving a presentation, holding a 
public hearing, and providing comments on the Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan.    
 
SUMMARY 
The RTC is required by federal and state regulations to prepare and maintain a 
public participation plan for the RTC to establish the process by which the public 
can participate in transportation planning, programming and project 
implementation, including the development of the 2050 Santa Cruz County Regional 
Transportation Plan. Once adopted, the 2023 Public Participation Plan will meet 
these requirements. The RTC is currently soliciting input on the draft plan and a 
public hearing has been scheduled to receive comments during this meeting. 
Comments submitted by August 23, 2023, will be considered during development of 
the final plan.  
 
Attachments 
1. Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan  
2. RTC Public Participation Practices  

 

25-3

mailto:hadamson@ambag.org


Draft 2023 Public 
Participation Plan 

Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments 
Council of San Benito County Governments 

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Transportation Agency for Monterey County 

June 2023 

Attachment 1

25-4

smunz
Underline



1 

Contents 

I. Introduction ..................................................................................................................... 2 

II. Regional Roles and Responsibilities ................................................................................ 6 

III. Public Participation Requirements .............................................................................. 19 

IV. PPP Procedures and Development Process ................................................................. 35 

V. Interested Parties and Public Engagement .................................................................. 42 

VI. Accountability .............................................................................................................. 47 

Appendices 

Appendix A: List of Acronyms .......................................................................................... A-1 

Appendix B: Public Participation Practices by Agency ..................................................... B-1 

Appendix C: Partner Transportation Agency Contacts .................................................... C-1 

Appendix D: List of Stakeholders ..................................................................................... D-1 

Appendix E: Federal and State Regulations Concerning Interested Parties, Public 
Involvement and Consultation ......................................................................................... E-1 

Appendix F: Best Practices Guide of Public Participation Strategies ............................... F-1 

Appendix G: 2050 MTP/SCS Public Involvment Plan ....................................................... G-1 

Figures 

Figures 1-1 ........................................................................................................................... 5 

Figure 2-1 ............................................................................................................................ 7 

Figure 2-2 .......................................................................................................................... 12 

Figure 3-1 .......................................................................................................................... 24 

Figure 4-1 .......................................................................................................................... 40 

25-5



2 
 

 

I. Introduction 

Background Summary 
The 2023 Public Participation Plan (PPP) has been prepared by the Association of Monterey Bay 
Area Governments (AMBAG) in collaboration with the Council of San Benito County 
Governments (SBtCOG), the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission (SCCRTC), 
the Transportation Agency for Monterey County (TAMC), and the California Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans) District 5, with additional input and review by Monterey-Salinas 
Transit (MST), Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (Santa Cruz METRO or SCMTD), San 
Benito County Express/Local Transportation Authority (LTA) and the cities and counties in the 
tri-county AMBAG metropolitan planning region. The above agencies are defined as Partners in 
this plan. SBtCOG, SCCRTC and TAMC are referred to as Regional Transportation Planning 
Agencies (RTPAs). 

The purpose of this PPP is to establish the process by which the public can participate in 
transportation planning, programming and project implementation including the development 
of the Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy for the AMBAG 
region and the Regional Transportation Plans for Monterey, San Benito, and Santa Cruz 
counties. The 2023 Public Participation Plan incorporates strategies to ensure that, to the 
greatest extent possible, interagency consultation and public participation are an integral part 
of the regional transportation planning and decision-making process.  

The Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG) is the federally designated 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) and serves as the regional forum for the study and 
discussion of regionally significant issues, which include but are not limited to: transportation 
housing, land use, and sustainability and climate change. Elected officials within the region’s 18 
cities and three counties form AMBAG’s Board of Directors.  

In pursuing its mission, “AMBAG provides strategic leadership and services to analyze, plan and 
implement regional policies for the benefit of the Counties and Cities of the Monterey Bay 
region balancing local control with regional collaboration.” AMBAG strives to inform and 
involve its local jurisdictions and the general public throughout the various programs, projects, 
and work activities conducted by the agency.  

The public participation policies and procedures described in this plan are structured to comply 
with all applicable federal and state legislation and express the genuine regional value and 
interest for all residents of the Monterey Bay region to participate in the shaping and 
implementation of regional policies and decisions regarding the region’s multimodal 
transportation system.  

25-6



3 

The 2023 Public Participation Plan was developed to adhere to the Infrastructure Investment 
and Jobs Act/Bipartisan Infrastructure Act (IIJA/BIA) of 2021 and Fixing America’s Surface 
Transportation Act (FAST Act) of 2015 legislation and pursuant to changes in the California 
Government Code 65080 that occurred with the passage of Senate Bill (SB) 375 in 2008. 

AMBAG and the RTPAs in the Monterey Bay region, see Figure 1-1 below, seek the participation 
of a diverse set of communities with an interest in regional planning efforts, including low 
income households, minority populations, Limited English Proficiency (LEP) populations, 
persons with disabilities, representatives from community and service organizations, tribal 
organizations, and other public agencies. 

The policies and procedures in the 2023 PPP were formed with the intent of using effective, 
achievable public outreach methods to increase public participation, and to create and 
maintain a regional transportation network that prioritizes equitable decision-making and 
transparency. Circumstances since the last update, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, have 
advanced the use of certain techniques to enhance input and participation through strategic 
virtual engagement. Due to the pandemic, virtual meeting platforms were essential to engaging 
the public during the development of the 2045 MTP/SCS and other major efforts. AMBAG 
worked diligently to ensure that individuals without devices were engaged through other 
sources by providing physical materials and technical support when necessary or requested. 
AMBAG will continue to engage the public both in person and virtually, even beyond the 
pandemic, due to the success of increased participation with virtual engagement strategies. 

Eight Guiding Principles for Public Participation 
1. Prioritize public engagement methods that increase equitable participation and distribution
of resources in all outreach efforts, projects, and programs.
2. Valuing public participation and promoting broad based involvement by members of the
community.
3. Providing varied opportunities for public review and input.
4. Treating all members of the public fairly, and respecting and considering all public input as an
important component of the planning and implementation process.
5. Promoting a culture of dialogue and partnership among residents, property owners, the
business community, organizations, other interested members of the public, and public
officials.

6. Involving underserved communities and community groups, as well as other organizations.

7. Encouraging active public participation throughout the entire process.

8. Providing communications and agency reports that are clear, timely and broadly distributed.

25-7



4 
 

AMBAG and the RTPAs perform a broad range of public participation and stakeholder 
engagement activities, such as: 

• Conducting public meetings 
• Establishing standing and ad hoc committees 
• Partnering on studies and projects 
• Providing educational and informational programs in accordance with statutory and 

regulatory directives 

All of the activities listed above are open to public involvement and review. AMBAG and the 
RTPAs (TAMC, SBtCOG and SCCRTC) have taken this opportunity to update the 2023 Public 
Participation Plan to further improve transportation decision-making in the region and to reach 
out to underserved communities within the Monterey Bay region more effectively. The goals 
set forth in the 2023 Public Participation Plan are to further equitable participation and 
decision-making regionally by utilizing effective and innovative public outreach methods.  

 

25-8



5 

Figure 1-1: AMBAG Tri-County Region of Monterey, San Benito, and Santa Cruz Counties Map 

25-9



6 
 

II. Regional Roles and Responsibilities 

AMBAG, as the designated MPO, must follow federal and state legislation when developing and 
programming transportation projects. SBtCOG, SCCRTC and TAMC, the RTPAs within the 
AMBAG region, are required to follow federal legislation and state legislation as well if they are 
utilizing federal funding. Federal and state legislation requirements related to the Public 
Participation Plan can be found in Appendix E. 

State Department of Transportation 
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) - District 5 
 
Caltrans oversees the state transportation planning, and the MPO’s transportation planning and 
programming processes. Caltrans’ primary responsibility is to ensure the function of the state 
highway system and develop transportation projects of statewide importance, including 
intercity rail projects.  

The State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) includes transportation projects from 
throughout California, including those from all Monterey Bay Area jurisdictions for approval to 
the California Transportation Commission (CTC), a policy making body appointed by the 
Governor and State legislature. In the Monterey Bay region, Caltrans District 5 is the liaison 
between our partner agencies and Caltrans Headquarters.  

Metropolitan Planning Organization  
Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG)  
 
Established by a joint powers agreement in 1968, AMBAG provides a forum for policy and 
planning issues in the Monterey Bay region. AMBAG acts as the regional Council of 
Governments (COG) for Santa Cruz and Monterey Counties and since 1968 has been designated 
by the Governor as the Metropolitan Planning Organization for the tri-county Monterey Bay 
region.  

Membership of the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments includes 21 jurisdictions 
within Monterey, San Benito, and Santa Cruz Counties. An elected official from each jurisdiction 
is appointed by that jurisdiction’s City Council or Board of Supervisors, with each of the 18 cities 
represented by one member, and each of the three counties by two members, forming the 24 
member AMBAG Board of Directors. A representative from TAMC, SBtCOG, SCCRTC, Caltrans, 
Monterey-Salinas Transit, Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District, Monterey Bay Air Resources 
District, Monterey Peninsula Airport District, and Central Coast Community Energy each serve 
as an ex-officio member. 

25-10



7 
 

AMBAG, as the MPO for the Monterey Bay region, is charged with developing and periodically 
updating a federal long range transportation plan and transportation improvement program for 
the region, as well as developing an annual Overall Work Program (OWP). These statutory 
requirements are satisfied throughout the development process of updating the Metropolitan 
Transportation Plan and Sustainable Communities Strategy (MTP/SCS), the Metropolitan 
Transportation Improvement Program (MTIP) and the OWP.  

Figure 2-1: Organizational Chart of Federal, State and Local Funding Sources and How Each                         
are Distributed to Local Agency’s Projects and Programs  

 

The Metropolitan Transportation Plan and Sustainable Communities Strategy (MTP/SCS) 
Adopted in June 2022, the 2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities 
Strategy (also known as Moving Forward 2045 Monterey Bay, or the MTP/SCS) is the long-range 
transportation plan for the Monterey Bay region that looks ahead at the possible transportation 
needs the region will have alongside the proposed growth of the region for the next 20 years. 
Proposed transportation projects must be included in this plan to be eligible for federal funding. 

25-11



8 
 

The Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS) contained in this Plan requires the proposed 
transportation solutions to meet or further reduce the adopted greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions target goals specifically allocated for the Monterey Bay region set forth by the state. 
AMBAG is beginning the multi-year process to update the 2050 MTP/SCS and anticipates the 
plan to be completed by mid-2026. 

The Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program (MTIP)  
The MTIP is the Monterey Bay region’s short range transportation project programming 
document that contains transportation projects proposed for funding. The MTIP is required to 
be updated at least every four years; AMBAG typically updates this document every two years. 
Federal regulations require that the MTIP be prepared in consultation and coordination with 
our partner agencies in the region and be subject to an adequate public outreach and review 
process.   

The MTIP programs transportation improvement projects are proposed to implement the 
adopted MTP/SCS. The RTIPs and SRTPs are prepared and approved by our partner agencies 
with extensive interagency consultation, as well as formal public review and hearings on the 
documents and their adoptions. The projects in the MTIP are, however, not simply a 
compilation of transportation projects already approved in other programs, but are part of a 
new program, subject to its own interagency consultation and public comments and review 
processes.  

In addition, the MTIP is developed in consultation and coordination with the following agencies: 
Caltrans, San Benito County Express, MST (including their paratransit program RIDES), Santa 
Cruz METRO, SBtCOG, SCCRTC, and TAMC. 

Federal regulations require the MTIP to be prepared by AMBAG staff in cooperation and 
consultation with the above agencies as well as federal (FHWA/FTA) oversight agencies. As per 
federal regulations, AMBAG conducts a proactive interagency consultation and public 
involvement process to ensure that complete information, timely public notice, full public 
access at key decisions, and early and continuing involvement of the public be provided during 
development of this MTIP. Once developed, the MTIP does not become a static document. It 
can be amended through a “Formal Amendment” or an “Administrative Modification” within 
the two-to-four-year cycle.  

Formal amendments are changes to projects that are considered significant in nature such as 
adding or deleting regionally significant or federally funded projects or major changes to the 
cost or scope of projects and therefore must go through a 14-day public review and a comment 
period. Formal amendments require AMBAG Board approval, as well as state and federal 

25-12



9 
 

approval. AMBAG processes formal amendments to the MTIP on a quarterly schedule, and 
more often if warranted by special circumstances.  

Administrative modifications to the MTIP are processed for minor program revisions. The 
criteria for administrative modifications and amendments are defined in IIJA/BIA and FAST Act. 
The administrative modifications are minor changes to projects and are not required to go 
through public review. AMBAG’s Executive Director is authorized to approve administrative 
modifications to the MTIP. 

The use of technical corrections and advancement or delay of funds using Expedited Project 
Selection Procedures (EPSP) can also be utilized to update the MTIP. No public review is 
necessary for AMBAG to use agreed-upon EPSP. EPSP is used to advance projects from the later 
years of the MTIP and delay the implementation of other projects from earlier years. These 
changes occur without modification or amendment, based on agreements between AMBAG, 
Caltrans, local transit operators, and RTPAs. 

Air Quality Conformity Analysis 
Currently, the Monterey Bay region is in attainment for federal air quality standards. However, 
if the region becomes non-attainment for federal air quality standards, additional public 
involvement and interagency consultation is required. 

Interagency Consultation 

The conformity rule∗ requires that Federal, State and local transportation and air quality 
agencies establish formal procedures to ensure interagency coordination on critical issues. 
Typical participants in interagency consultation include the FHWA, FTA, EPA, State DOTs, MPOs, 
and other local transportation agencies, and State and regional air quality agencies. In addition, 
public transportation operators are often active participants in interagency consultation.  

Interagency consultation is a forum for discussing key assumptions to be used in conformity 
analyses, strategies to reduce mobile source emissions, specific impacts of major projects, 
issues associated with travel demand and emissions modeling, and the development of motor 
vehicle emissions budgets. The specific process that will be followed in each area must be 
adopted as part of the SIP and must be used to develop MTPs, TIPS and the SIP. These adopted 
interagency consultation procedures are included in the “conformity SIP.”  

 

 
∗ FHWA’s Transportation Conformity: A Basic Guide for State and Local Officials (Feb. 2017): 
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/air_quality/conformity/2017_guide/fhwahep17034.p
df 

25-13

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/air_quality/conformity/2017_guide/fhwahep17034.pdf
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/air_quality/conformity/2017_guide/fhwahep17034.pdf


10 

Public Involvement 

The air quality conformity analysis must be provided for public review and comment, similar to 
the MTP/SCS and MTIP public outreach process. MPOs must then respond to public comment 
and provide adequate notice of relevant meetings. 

Overall Work Program (OWP) 
OWP, produced by AMBAG and each of the RTPAs, include federal and state funded planning 
activities as well as transportation and air quality planning activities proposed for each fiscal 
year. The OWP incorporates the MPO’s and RTPA’s transportation planning and air quality 
related work to be accomplished by each. AMBAG coordinates the OWP development process 
with the region’s RTPAs, transit operators, Caltrans, and is also available for the general public 
to review and provide comments. 

The OWP establishes transportation, housing, sustainability, air quality, and other regional 
planning objectives, the methods and timing for achieving those objectives, and identifies 
planning responsibilities and funding to complete the work. The OWP also serves as a 
management tool for AMBAG and the RTPA’s in that it identifies all projects and services to be 
provided during the year beyond those mandated by the metropolitan planning process. The 
OWP, therefore, presents an annual guide for the agency’s use of resources for the fiscal year. 

The OWP is a constantly evolving document; changes occur during the year to reflect priority, 
funding, and staffing changes. As a working document, the OWP must be amended prior to 
making changes in work scope, budget, and completion dates for key tasks. 

In the Monterey Bay region, the responsibility for transportation planning and programming 
is shared between: 

• California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)

• Metropolitan Planning Organization (AMBAG)

• Regional Transportation Planning Agencies (RTPAs):

Transportation Agency for Monterey County (TAMC) 
Council of San Benito County Governments (SBtCOG) 
Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission (SCCRTC) 

• Public Transit Operators:
Monterey-Salinas Transit (MST) 
San Benito County Express 
Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (Santa Cruz METRO) 

Collectively, these eight agencies are referred to as AMBAG’s “partner agencies.” 

25-14



11 
 

Regional Transportation Planning 

AMBAG, in consultation and coordination with our partner agencies develop the Monterey Bay 
region’s MTP/SCS to ensure that both state and federal requirements for regional 
transportation planning are met for the Monterey Bay region. The RTPAs are each required to 
prepare a Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) for their respective counties.  

AMBAG and RTPAs work together to make sure that all planning products and programming 
documents are consistent and meets state and federal requirements. The transportation 
improvement projects included in the countywide RTPs are selected to receive State 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) funds and they are incorporated into each RTPA’s 
respective Regional Transportation Improvement Programs (RTIP), then forwarded to the 
California Transportation Commission (CTC) for inclusion in the State Transportation 
Improvement Program (STIP).  

The STIP covers a five-year period and is updated biannually. Federally funded and/or regionally 
significant projects selected to receive a variety of state and federal transportation funds by 
Caltrans, RTPAs, the transit districts, and other entities are included in the federally required 
Monterey Bay region’s MTIP, adopted by AMBAG.  

The public transit operators prepare Short Range Transit Plans (SRTP) and operate and maintain 
scheduled transit services in their respective service areas. AMBAG is responsible for meeting 
federal metropolitan planning and programming requirements for the Monterey Bay region. 
AMBAG’s public involvement activities and public hearing notices for the MTIP will satisfy the 
program of projects requirement of the FTA’s Urbanized Area Formula Program.∗ A flow chart 
illustrating how planning documents relate throughout the AMBAG region is shown in               
Figure 2-2. 

 
 

 
∗ Please refer to FTA’s 49 USC 5307(C) (1)–(C) (7). 

25-15



12 
 

Figure 2-2: AMBAG Regional Planning Document Flow Chart 

Regional Transportation Planning Agencies (RTPAs) 

Regional Transportation Planning Agencies (RTPAs) are designated by the Governor of 
California, are funded directly through local and state funding, and are responsible for selecting 
projects to receive state and federal funds. The three RTPAs within the AMBAG region include: 

Transportation Agency for Monterey County (TAMC)  
The Transportation Agency for Monterey County (TAMC) is the state-designated Regional 
Transportation Planning Agency and Local Transportation Commission for Monterey County. 
TAMC is also the Congestion Management Agency and the Service Authority for Freeways and 
Expressways (SAFE). TAMC is a 24-member agency with 17 voting members on the Board of 
Directors, which is composed of elected officials from each of Monterey County’s 12 
incorporated cities and five county supervisorial districts. TAMC also includes seven ex-officio 
members, one each from the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG), 
California State University, Monterey Bay (CSUMB), Caltrans District 5, the Monterey Bay Air 
Resources District, the Monterey Peninsula Airport District, Monterey-Salinas Transit (MST) and 
the City of Watsonville.  

TAMC is responsible for developing and implementing a Regional Transportation Plan, a 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program, as well as administration of Local 

25-16



13 
 

Transportation Funds and programming of federal funds, including Regional Surface 
Transportation Program (RSTP) funding. TAMC operates a Freeway Service Patrol (FSP) program 
on congested Highway 1 and U.S. 101 segments in Monterey County to clear vehicle collisions 
and respond to other freeway emergencies that are a source of traffic congestion, as well as 
operating and maintaining Monterey County’s call box network on state highways.  

With the passage of the voter-approved “Transportation Safety & Investment Plan” through 
Measure X in November 2016, TAMC and local jurisdictions are investing locally generated sales 
taxes into the community, with 60 percent of the revenues dedicated to local road 
maintenance, pothole repairs and safety projects, and 40 percent dedicated to regional safety 
and mobility projects. 

As the Congestion Management Agency and the Service Authority for Freeways and 
Expressways (SAFE), TAMC operates a Freeway Service Patrol (FSP) program on congested 
Highway 1 and US 101 segments in Monterey County to clear vehicle collisions and respond to 
other freeway emergencies that are a source of traffic congestion. TAMC operates and 
maintains Monterey County’s call box network on state highways.  

As the state-designated rail agency for Monterey County, another major emphasis for TAMC is 
to bring more passenger rail service to Monterey County, so that residents can travel to jobs, 
health services, shopping, and entertainment conveniently, safely, and cheaply, while avoiding 
traffic jams. The rail program includes local commuter service options as well as greater 
regional access. Trains will also be a popular choice for visitors to Monterey County, helping to 
ease traffic during the busiest summer months. The result of this effort will remove vehicle trips 
from Highways 1, 101, and 156. 

The TAMC Board of Directors adopted a racial equity program in 2021. The program integrates 
specific racial equity-based activities into three agency areas, funding, public outreach and 
hiring, with a developed a set of issues, potential solutions, action items and a racial equity goal 
for each area. The funding goal is to provide an equitable share of transportation investments 
to underserved, racially diverse communities to improve their health, safety, and quality of life. 
The hiring goal is to reflect the diversity of the Monterey County community to increase TAMC’s 
success as an agency. The public outreach goal is to design and implement public outreach and 
engagement that is broadly accessible and provides means for all to participate. 

Council of San Benito County Governments (SBtCOG)  
The Council of San Benito County Governments is the state designated RTPA and the Council of 
Governments (COG) for San Benito County. SBtCOG is an eight-member agency with a five-
member Board of Directors, composed of two representatives each from the San Benito County 
Board of Supervisors and the Hollister City Council and one representative from the San Juan 

25-17



14 
 

Bautista City Council. SBtCOG also has one ex-officio representative from Caltrans District 5. 
SBtCOG is responsible for county-level transportation plans and programs.  

SBtCOG adopts a Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) every four years. The RTP is a 20-year 
planning document that establishes transportation goals and policies for the region and 
identifies projects to be implemented with available funding.  

In June 2022, SBtCOG adopted their 2045 RTP which includes chapters that address state and 
federal transportation policies. In addition, topics discussed in SBtCOG’s 2045 RTP include 
Complete Streets, Healthy Communities, Active Transportation, etc.    

SBtCOG is responsible for programming the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 
funding in its biennial Regional Transportation Improvement Program, and administration of 
Transportation Development Act funding. SBtCOG also allocates transportation funds, including 
State Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBG) funds, to local jurisdictions. 
Additionally, on November 6, 2018, Measure G, a 1% sales tax over 30 years, was approved by 
San Benito County voters to fund the implement of the San Benito County Roads and 
Transportation Safety Investment Plan. Measure G will help fund critical transportation safety 
and mobility projects in San Benito County, including up to 50% of the tax revenues committed 
to improving Highway 25.  

SBtCOG solicits public input on the development of all programs and plans, including the 
Regional Transportation Plan, Regional Transportation Improvement Program, and 
Transportation Development Act funding allocations.  

SBtCOG is also responsible for administering several multimodal programs. One such program 
includes the Rideshare Program and the Vanpool Program, which encourages residents to use 
alternative modes of transportation. The Board of Directors also serves as the following 
entities: 

• Service Authority for Freeways and Expressways (SAFE) administers the emergency call 
box program 

• Local Transportation Authority (LTA) administers public transit services 
• Airport Land Use Commission (ALUC) ensures orderly growth around the airport and 

protects the general welfare of local inhabitants, pilots, and members of the public 
• Measure A Authority governs a 1/2 cent sales tax that was established in 1989 to raise 

money for specific transportation projects in San Benito County. The Measure A 
Authority no longer operates as the tax expired.  

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission (SCCRTC)  
The Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission (SCCRTC) is the state-designated 
RTPA and Local Transportation Commission for Santa Cruz County. As an RTPA, SCCRTC is 

25-18



15 
 

responsible for transportation planning, policy, coordination, and programming. The SCCRTC 
Board of Directors consists of all five members of the County Board of Supervisors, one 
representative from each of the four cities in the county, and three representatives appointed 
by the Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District Board of Directors. SCCRTC also has one ex-
officio representative from Caltrans District 5. Board meetings are held the first Thursday of the 
month, with workshops scheduled for the third Thursday of the month, as needed. SCCRTC is 
also the Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies (SAFE) which administers the call box 
program, the Local Transportation Authority which governs the Measure D 1/2 cent sales tax 
established in 2016 for specific transportation projects in Santa Cruz County, and the Rail/Trail 
Authority.   

Members of the public and representatives from local transportation organizations sit on 
SCCRTC’s Bicycle Advisory Committee and Elderly and Disabled Transportation Advisory 
Committee (E&D TAC) which also serves as the state-mandated Social Service Transportation 
Advisory Council. The public is also encouraged to attend meetings and address the Board or 
advisory bodies. With input from the community, SCCRTC develops and implements a Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP), a Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP), and Unmet 
Transit Needs.  

SCCRTC also implements several regional transportation projects and programs. These include 
ongoing programs such as the Cruz511 Traveler Information Service, Go Santa Cruz County 
commuter rewards program, the SAFE Callbox Program, and the Freeway Service Patrol (FSP) 
Program. The Call Box and FSP programs provide assistance to motorists. SCCRTC implements 
and/or evaluates various regional highway, passenger-rail, and bicycle and pedestrian projects. 

In preparing transportation planning and programming documents and implementing specific 
projects and programs, SCCRTC uses a variety of public participation tools, including public 
meetings and workshops, public hearings, committee meetings, public notices, press releases, 
the SCCRTC website, social media, email notifications, newsletters, surveys, door-to-door 
canvasing and televised meetings. 

Public Transit Operators 

Monterey-Salinas Transit (MST) 
Monterey-Salinas Transit (MST) provides public transit service to a 159 square-mile area of 
Monterey County with 34 routes, 131 fixed route fleet buses, 39 minibuses for paratransit 
service, and six trolleys; all of which are Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) compliant and 
serve a service area of approximately 437,325 people. In 2010, MST became the countywide 
transit district overseen by a 13-member voting Board of Directors, composed of one 
representative each from the County of Monterey and all twelve county cities: Carmel-by-the-

25-19



16 
 

Sea, Del Rey Oaks, Gonzales, Greenfield, King City, Marina, Monterey, Pacific Grove, Salinas, 
Sand City, Seaside and Soledad. 

MST’s fixed routes provide service in the Monterey Peninsula jurisdictions, the City of Salinas, 
and south Monterey County cities including Chualar, Gonzales, Soledad, Greenfield, and King 
City. Intercity service is provided via Blanco Road in Salinas, Highway 1, and Highway 101 
between areas of Monterey County. MST provides rural transit service to Carmel Valley, and 
seasonally along the Monterey waterfronts – the MST Trolleys. In addition, intercity routes 
connect MST with Santa Cruz METRO at their Transit Center in Watsonville. Also, MST operates 
service between King City and Paso Robles, with stops in San Lucas, San Ardo, Bradley, and San 
Miguel.  

MST is also responsible, under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), for the provision of 
complementary paratransit service in Monterey County. To that end, MST operates and 
administers the RIDES paratransit program that provides service within ¾ mile of MST fixed 
transit routes. The RIDES program also serves Special Transit service areas in unincorporated 
rural North and South Monterey County by extending paratransit service to rural North 
Monterey County outside the ¾ mile ADA service area, and two miles of fixed route in South 
Monterey County. The RIDES program Special Transit service also extends paratransit service to 
two miles along Highway 68 east between Canyon Del Rey Boulevard and River Road in Salinas. 

In Monterey County, the MST Mobility Advisory Committee serves as the Transportation 
Agency’s Social Services Transportation Advisory Council and advises the agency on the 
transportation needs of the elderly, persons with disabilities and limited means populations. 
The Mobility Advisory Committee includes representatives from the County’s social service 
providers and MST RIDES paratransit program customers. The committee serves as an advisory 
body to MST regarding the delivery of coordinated transportation and mobility management 
services provided through MST’s Consolidated Transportation Services Agency. 

San Benito County Local Transportation Authority (LTA) 
The San Benito County Local Transportation Authority (LTA) is the designated Consolidated 
Transportation Services Agency for San Benito County. The LTA is a Joint Powers Authority 
between the City of Hollister, City of San Juan Bautista, and the County of San Benito. The 
Board of Directors consists of two elected officials each from the City of Hollister City Council 
and the County of San Benito Board of Supervisors; and one elected official from the City of San 
Juan Bautista City Council.  

The LTA is responsible for the administration and operation of County Express, the primary 
public transportation service for the County which operates seven days a week. County Express 
services include Fixed Route service, complementary Paratransit service, Dial-A-Ride, On-

25-20



17 
 

Demand, and Intercounty transit services to the City of Gilroy in Santa Clara County. The LTA 
also provides three specialized transportation services: Out-Of-County non-emergency Medical 
Transportation, Senior Lunch Program Transportation, and a Medical-Shopping Assistance 
Program. The LTA seeks public input on the development of operations and plans, which 
include a Short-Range Transit Plan. The LTA also solicits input on potential route changes, fare 
increases, and other service and policy changes. 

Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (SCMTD or Santa Cruz METRO)  
The Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (SCMTD or Santa Cruz METRO) provides public 
transit service in Santa Cruz County and connects with Monterey-Salinas Transit (MST), the 
Monterey County public transit provider, at the Watsonville Transit Center. Santa Cruz METRO 
provides service using 94 buses on 24 routes throughout the County. In addition to service 
throughout Santa Cruz County, Santa Cruz METRO operates, in coordination with the Santa 
Clara Valley Transportation Authority (VTA), Amtrak, Caltrans and the Capitol Corridor Joint 
Powers Authority, an express bus service to and from Santa Clara County over State Route 17 
(Highway 17) seven days a week.  

Santa Cruz METRO has an 11-member Board of Directors composed of one representative from 
each of the cities of Capitola and Scotts Valley, five approved by the Santa Cruz County Board of 
Supervisors, two representatives from the City of Santa Cruz and two representatives from the 
City of Watsonville. In addition to its regular membership, Santa Cruz METRO also has one ex-
officio member representing the University of California, Santa Cruz (UCSC) and Cabrillo 
College. Board meetings are held on the fourth Friday of each month. Comments from the 
general public on any issue can be made during the public comment period at the Board 
meetings.  

Santa Cruz METRO is also responsible for the provision of complementary paratransit to fixed 
route transit service under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Santa Cruz METRO 
ParaCruz provides shared ride, door-to-door service for people certified as unable to use the 
regular service. 

Local Planning Coordination and Sustainability 

In 2008, Senate Bill 375 (SB 375, Steinberg) was passed, which requires AMBAG to include a 
Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS) in the Metropolitan Transportation Plan. The SCS aims 
to incorporate regional growth and housing demand with long range planning scenarios in the 
joint effort to decrease greenhouse gas emissions at the state and regional level, as set forth by 
the California Air Resource Board (CARB). AMBAG is required to include SB 375 specific public 
participation requirements and process into the official Public Participation Plan (PPP) to 
include greater participation and coordination with local and regional agencies during the 

25-21



18 
 

MTP/SCS development process. The Public Involvement Program (PIP) for the 2050 MTP/SCS is 
included in Appendix G.  

SB 375 also requires AMBAG to conduct a minimum of two informal meetings in each of our 
three counties within the Monterey Bay region for members of the board of supervisors and 
council of governments on the SCS. The purpose of these meetings is to present a draft of the 
SCS to members of the Board of Supervisors and city council members in each county and to 
consider their input and recommendations.  

25-22



19 

III. Public Participation Requirements

AMBAG and partners identified and updated various information, techniques and strategies for 
effective public outreach which were compiled in AMBAG’s 2019 Monterey Bay Public 
Participation Plan to shape and inform the bulk of this 2023 Public Participation Plan (PPP).  

This PPP provides interested parties with reasonable opportunities to be involved in the MPO 
transportation planning∗ and countywide transportation planning process. To accomplish the 
consultation requirements of the IIJA/BIA, FAST Act, AMBAG and RTPAs conducted the 
following actions to ensure all public participation requirements would be met. 

Research 
AMBAG and RTPAs regularly gather information about how to improve public participation for 
our major plans and projects throughout the planning process. For instance, as part of outreach 
efforts for AMBAG’s 2045 MTP/SCS update, a list of key stakeholders was compiled to be 
contacted regularly regarding MTP/SCS programs and policies. In fall 2022, AMBAG went 
through an extensive effort to update the list, comprised of a large variety of individuals and 
organizations ranging from community groups, interest groups, environmental groups, local 
tribes, etc.  

In addition, AMBAG staff conducted extensive research in preparation for the 2023 Public 
Participation Plan by reviewing other California MPOs’ recently updated Public Participation 
Plans, researching new Federal and State legislation that may have affected the 
implementation process of the Public Participation Plan update, and sought new strategies in 
technological innovation that we can include to improve public outreach for the Monterey Bay 
region. 

Surveys 
Online surveys have been used by the SCCRTC in development of its RTP and for projects such 
as the 2012 Transit Corridor Alternatives Analysis, 2019 Unified Corridor Investment Study and 
the 2019 Highway 9 San Lorenzo Valley Complete Streets Corridor Plan. Multiple telephone 
surveys of likely voters have also been used by the Santa Cruz and Monterey County RTPAs in 
their evaluation of local funding options for implementing the RTPs. 

In March 2023, AMBAG developed a public outreach survey to request feedback on how to 
better keep the community engaged and informed throughout the decision-making process. 
The survey was available in English and Spanish and was posted online on AMBAG and partner 
websites and emailed to AMBAG’s stakeholders and interested parties contacts. The survey 

∗ Please refer to FHWA’s 23 CFR 450.316(a). 

25-23



20 
 

focused on preferred methods of communication, preferred dates and times of meetings, and 
preferred engagement methods.  

Overall, online and telephone surveys are great tools to elicit public input as these surveys 
provide us with a decent sample size of residents from each of our three counties, which allows 
us to gauge how to best reach the public and address pertinent issues in regard to our major 
plans and projects. For this reason, these survey methods will continue to be used for future 
plans and projects. 

Direct Outreach 
Providing public access to participation in the planning processes of the Monterey Bay region is 
a responsibility shared between AMBAG, SBtCOG, SCCRTC, TAMC, MST, San Benito County 
Express, Santa Cruz METRO, and Caltrans.  

Each partner agency solicits public input to its planning, policy, and programming processes. 
Various methods are used to engage stakeholders and the general public and provide impacted 
public agencies and interested parties with timely information and opportunities to participate 
in the transportation planning process.  

Each federally funded transportation plan, study, program, or project prepared or developed by 
AMBAG or RTPAS must have its own specified public participation process that defines the 
avenues for reasonable involvement in the transportation planning process.  

The following slate of procedures and strategies represents a compilation of the public 
participation efforts and opportunities that may be offered to residents in the Monterey Bay 
region. These procedures and strategies also provide guidance for realizing the desired 
outcome of a robust and informed level of broad based public involvement in the development 
and implementation of plans, programs and projects in the region.  

Additional information for how to engage in public participation opportunities for each county 
are summarized in Appendix B. 

Required Procedures and Methods for Public Participation∗ 
These activities are further explained in the following text, followed by a special section 
pertaining to new requirements for the MTP/SCS development pursuant to SB 375. 

 

*Please refer to Title 23: 450.316 from Federal Register Vol. 72 No. 30 in Appendix D for more 
information. 

 

25-24



21 
 

The following public participation activities must be included in every transportation plan, 
transportation improvement program and Environmental Impact Reports/Study:  

1. Define Purpose and Identify Stakeholders 
2. Consultation and Coordination with Other Agencies 
3. Consultation with Interested Parties (Policy Bodies and Advisory Committees) 
4. Public Notice, Public Hearings, Comment Periods (utilizes the Brown Act)  
5. Use of Media and Informational Materials and Visualization Techniques 
6. Encourage Bilingual Participation 
7. Respond to Public Comments/Input 
8. Web Posting/Distribution of Draft and Final Documents 

 
1. Define Purpose and Identify Stakeholders 
Prior to initiating public outreach on transportation plans, programs, and projects, AMBAG and 
RTPAs define the purpose, objectives, and stakeholders for public involvement. Individuals and 
groups that have an interest in transportation decisions may include, but are not limited to:  

• Landowners 
• Neighborhood and community groups 
• Environmental advocates 
• Tribal and Indigenous communities  
• Affordable housing advocates and providers 
• Transportation advocates  
• Home builder representatives  
• Business organizations  
• Commercial property interests 
• Educational organizations  
• Tourism representatives  
• Trucking and agriculture representatives 

These groups can be represented through direct outreach, advisory committees, or other 
methods described in the following text. AMBAG and our partner agencies recognize that the 
public expects a clear understanding of their involvement and purpose throughout the 
transportation planning process. 

As with many transportation projects, funding for public outreach is limited; therefore, practical 
and economical options can be used to expand toolbox skill sets, as well as leverage existing 
resources and technological advances. For instance, AMBAG, SBtCOG and SCCRTC have added a 

25-25



22 

Google Translation Widget on their webpage so users can switch from English to Spanish while 
browsing their website. Also, SCCRTC utilizes Caltrans QuickMap on the Cruz511 traveler 
information traffic map page. This map includes visuals from the live traffic camera, and road 
closure information from Caltrans. Tools such as these are cost-effective and helpful and can 
reach multiple audiences. 

2. Consultation and Coordination with Other Agencies

AMBAG and RTPAs seek input from state and federal resource management agencies during 
development of transportation planning studies and projects in their respective regions. 
AMBAG leads the outreach efforts with federal, state, and local agencies during development 
of the Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (MTP/SCS) and the 
associated Environmental Impact Report which also serves as the RTPA’s Regional 
Transportation Plan Environmental Impact Report. Appropriate consultation is undertaken with 
agencies and officials responsible for planning activities within the region, as well as state and 
federal resource management agencies. These agencies include but are not limited to: 

• Federal and State Resource Agencies (Water, Fish and Game, Coastal Commission, etc.)
• Federal Land Management Agencies
• Local Tribal Governments
• Housing, Economic Development and Community Planning Agencies
• Airports
• Freight Industry Stakeholders

Transportation Plan and Sustainable Communities Strategy Staff Working Group 
AMBAG, RTPAs and transit agencies within the Monterey Bay region participate in regular 
coordination group meetings to discuss the preparation of transportation plan updates, policy 
issues and coordinate development of the SCS for the region that is required by Senate Bill 375. 
During the development of the AMBAG’s MTP/SCS, staff meet with the three RTPAs’ staff twice 
a month as part of a working group in order to coordinate the development of each of the 
Regional Transportation Plans. 

NEPA and CEQA Consultation 
CEQA and NEPA both define the minimum standards for reasonable public access and 
participation in the decision-making process. The public participation process defined by the 
National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) for federal consultation serves as the primary process 
for consultation to occur with federal, state, and local resource management agencies. The 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires environmental documents to be prepared 
across all jurisdictions for regional and local transportation plans and projects, such as 
Environmental Impact Reports (EIRs).   

25-26



23 
 

AMBAG is primarily a planning agency, therefore AMBAG’s actions do not regularly fall under 
NEPA/CEQA as they are not projects, as defined by NEPA. However, AMBAG must abide by the 
statutory requirements as outlined in these acts, should we participate in a project that falls 
under the NEPA/CEQA process. For example, MPOs are responsible for the planning contained 
in the MTP/SCS that precedes project delivery. Typically, a local government, consultant or 
Caltrans is responsible for the actual construction of the project i.e., project delivery. CEQA 
applies to the planning document (MTP/SCS) while both NEPA and CEQA may apply to the 
individual projects that implement the MTP/SCS during the project delivery process. 

3. Consultation with Interested Parties (Policy Bodies and Advisory Committees)  

AMBAG and our partner agencies hold regularly scheduled meetings that are open to the public 
and noticed per Brown Act requirements. General meeting notices, agendas and materials are 
posted at agency offices at least 72 hours before regular meetings and 24 hours before special 
meetings. All Board meeting and standing committee meeting notices are typically posted on 
agency websites. Some special meetings or notices for public hearings are also published in 
general circulation newspapers.  

Agendas and materials are made available in advance of meetings by regular mail, email or by 
links to the host agency website. Agendas are also posted at each agency’s respective offices. 
The agenda of each meeting provides an opportunity for members of the general public to 
provide comment to the Board/Committee concerning matters within the agency’s purview. 

In recent years, AMBAG and partners provided opportunities for hybrid meeting styles that 
have allowed members of the public to participate in Board meetings, standing committees and 
special meetings remotely. AMBAG agendas now include Zoom links to increase public 
participation virtually and remotely. Virtual engagement methods increase inclusivity and 
accessibility, reduce geographical barriers, promote cost savings and efficiency, and facilitate 
increased data sharing and collaboration. Virtual participation has proven an effective way to 
ensure engagement and meaningful participation from our community members. As we move 
forward virtual engagement will continue to shape a more collaborative, equitable, and 
resilient transportation network.  

Staff reports, transportation plans and studies can be viewed at AMBAG or partners’ offices, 
websites, and are also made available upon request. Transportation plans and some major 
documents are also available at local public libraries.  

In addition, public input to the transportation planning and programming process can include 
notification and early solicitation through each of the agency’s technical advisory committees 
and through project sponsors, such as city councils and city committees (refer to Figure 3-1).  

 

25-27



24 
 

Figure 3-1: Building Blocks of Transportation Planning and Public Input Flow Chart 

  

25-28



25 
 

AMBAG and the region’s three public transit operators also use the RTPA technical advisory 
committees to notify and solicit input on their planning and programming processes. 

Technical Advisory Committees (TACs)  
TAMC, SBtCOG and SCCRTC, the three Regional Transportation Planning Agencies (RTPAs) for 
the Monterey Bay region, each appoints a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) which meets 
regularly to help guide the technical aspects of transportation planning, project selection and 
programming within their respective region. The TAC members are usually planners and 
engineers representing affected agencies and jurisdictions in each county.  

Additional agency representation on these committees includes some combination of the 
following: AMBAG staff, transit operators, regional agencies, Transportation Management 
Agencies, educational institutions, redevelopment agencies, Caltrans and the California 
Highway Patrol (CHP). Recommendations of each committee are provided to the respective 
Board. 

Social Service Transportation Advisory Councils (SSTACs) 
As required by the Transportation Development Act (TDA), each Regional Transportation 
Planning Agency appoints a Social Services Transportation Advisory Council (SSTAC) to advise 
the agencies on specialized transportation and unmet transit needs. Candidates are recruited 
from a broad representation of social services, transportation providers, and the general public 
representing the elderly, persons with disabilities, and persons of limited means. The 
Transportation Development Act requires an annual unmet needs public hearing if Local 
Transportation Funds are to be used for local road projects. 

In Monterey and San Benito Counties, the primary purpose of each committee is to ensure that 
there are no unmet transit needs which are reasonable to meet in areas which use Local 
Transportation Funds for purposes other than transit. Santa Cruz County does not divert any 
Local Transportation Funds to road projects, therefore they do not require a formal unmet 
transit needs process. However, SCCRTC regularly conducts unmet needs process to understand 
priority transportation needs for seniors, people with disabilities and low-income individuals.  

In addition to the unmet transit needs activities of the SSTACs, the three agencies’ committees 
regularly review and comment on proposed planning documents and matters affecting the 
groups they represent. For instance, the public transit operators’ on-going compliance in 
meeting the complementary paratransit goal provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act is 
of interest to SSTAC members. As such, a transit operator representative attends the SSTAC 
meetings to address complementary paratransit as well as other public transit issues of interest 
to the committee. SSTAC committee actions are reported to and considered by each Regional 
Transportation Planning Agency.  

25-29



26 
 

In Santa Cruz County, the Elderly and Disabled Transportation Advisory Committee (E&D TAC) 
serves as the Social Services Transportation Advisory Council. In addition to fulfilling the 
requirements of the SSTAC as required by California Code, the E&D TAC advises SCCRTC, the 
Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (Santa Cruz METRO), the Consolidated Transportation 
Services Agency, social service agencies and the local jurisdictions in Santa Cruz County on 
transportation issues, policies, plans, programs, and projects for the elderly, disabled and 
persons of limited means populations. 

In Monterey County, the MST Mobility Advisory Committee serves as the Transportation 
Agency’s Social Services Transportation Advisory Council and advises the agency on the 
transportation needs of the elderly, persons with disabilities and limited means populations. 
The Mobility Advisory Committee includes representatives from the County’s social service 
providers and MST Mobility Program customers. The committee serves as an advisory body to 
MST regarding the delivery of coordinated transportation and mobility management services 
provided through MST’s Consolidated Transportation Services Agency. 

In San Benito County, SBtCOG maintains its own SSTAC committee for the purposes of advising 
the COG and the Local Transportation Authority on matters related to transportation 
accessibility for seniors, persons with disabilities, and persons of limited means. Transit issues 
that may require more attention from the SSTAC are Specialized Transportation services, and 
related planning and studies. 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committees 
SCCRTC appoints a Bicycle Advisory Committee while TAMC appoints a Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Facilities Advisory Committee, and SBtCOG appoints a Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee. These committees meet either monthly or semi-monthly to review, discuss and 
make recommendations on bicycle and pedestrian related projects, plans and in some cases 
funding programming. Recommendations of each committee are forwarded to the respective 
Board of Directors or member jurisdictions. These committees are composed of community 
volunteers and local agencies.  

In Santa Cruz County, accessible pedestrian issues are also discussed by the Elderly and 
Disabled Transportation Advisory Committee (E&D TAC). As needed, the E&D TAC has 
established standing or temporary subcommittees to discuss pedestrian safety and 
accessibility.   

Rail Policy Committee  
The TAMC Rail Policy Committee meets monthly to advise the Agency on plans and issues 
associated with commuter and passenger rail services being developed in Monterey County. 
The Rail Policy Committee is composed of TAMC Board Members or their alternates from the 

25-30



27 

following jurisdictions on the rail lines: Cities of Salinas, Marina, Sand City, Seaside, and 
Monterey, Supervisorial District 1, Supervisorial District 2, Supervisorial District 4, Supervisorial 
District 5, and two representatives from South Monterey County: either (a) the 3rd District 
County Supervisor and a voting TAMC Board member from one of the South Monterey County 
Cities, or (b) two voting TAMC Board members from South Monterey County Cities. The TAMC 
Chair may appoint annually ex-officio members as needed. 

Transit Citizens Advisory Committee 
Each member of the Santa Cruz METRO Board of Directors appoints one person to the Santa 
Cruz METRO Advisory Committee (MAC) for a two-year appointment to represent Santa Cruz 
County. MAC provides advice to Santa Cruz METRO’s Board of Directors on matters of Santa 
Cruz METRO policy and operations referred to the Committee by the Board or 
Secretary/General Manager and to perform such additional duties as assigned by the Board. 
MAC also may address issues which members or the public raise with respect to the quantity 
and quality of services provided by Santa Cruz METRO and meets on the third Wednesday of 
each month. In Monterey County, the Monterey-Salinas Transit (MST) Mobility Advisory 
Committee fulfills this role. 

Budget, Administration & Personnel Committee 
To ensure efficient and effective operations, SCCRTC’s Budget, Administration & Personnel 
Committee serves to review and monitor issues relating to the budget, work program, and 
other administrative functions of SCCRTC and makes recommendations to SCCRTC regarding 
such items. The Committee is also responsible for reviewing personnel matters and conducting 
the annual performance evaluation of the Executive Director. The Budget, Administration & 
Personnel Committee is made up of six SCCRTC commissioners elected to the committee 
annually. The committee meets the second Thursday of each month. 

Traffic Operations System (TOS) Oversight Committee 
SCCRTC has a Traffic Operations System (TOS) Oversight Committee that includes 
representatives from Caltrans, the California Highway Patrol (CHP), local law enforcement, 
legislators’ representatives, and the media. The purpose of the Committee is to identify 
opportunities to improve the efficiency and safety of the transportation system through 
implementing operational improvements including the integration of technology into 
transportation infrastructure to monitor road conditions and inform motorists of potential 
hazards or delays. 

In addition, the Committee monitors the Freeway Service Patrol (FSP) program that improves 
operations by deploying tow trucks during peak hours to remove hazards from the roadway. 
The Committee routinely discusses ways to improve communication among the various 
agencies and to enhance the existing TOS system. The Committee meets biannually. In addition, 

25-31



28 
 

the SCCRTC staffs the Safe on 17 Task Force to discuss safety improvements and programs for 
Highway 17. Task Force members include Caltrans, the CHP, the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission, and other interests on both sides of the hill.  

Taxpayer Oversight Committee 
In compliance with state law, the SCCRTC established a Taxpayer Oversight Committee in order 
to ensure accountability, transparency and public oversight of all funds collected and allocated 
under Measure D. A Taxpayer Oversight Committee was formed by the Commission to review 
the annual independent fiscal audit of the expenditure of the Transportation Tax funds. The 
Oversight Committee issues an annual report on its findings to the Commission regarding 
compliance with the requirements of the Expenditure Plan and the Ordinance. Members of the 
Independent Oversight Committee are residents of Santa Cruz County who are neither elected 
officials of any government, nor employees from any agency or organization that either 
oversees or implements projects funded from the proceeds of the sales tax. Members are 
required to fairly represent the geographical, social, cultural and economic diversity of Santa 
Cruz County to ensure maximum benefit for transportation users. The meetings are announced 
in advance on the SCCRTC website and are open to the general public. 

Measure X, Transportation Safety & Investment Plan, Monterey County 
In accordance with the Policies & Project Descriptions for the Transportation Safety & 
Investment Plan approved by Monterey County voters in November 8, 2016, as Measure X, a 
Citizens Oversight Committee representing a diverse range of community interests was formed 
within six months of voter approval of the measure.  Members and their alternates were 
nominated by the organization they are representing. Additional members were appointed by 
the Transportation Agency Board of Directors to assure that a broad range of geographic and 
stakeholder interests are represented on the committee. 

The committee responsibility is to ensure that transportation funds are expended as required 
by the Transportation Safety and Investment Plan. The Citizens Oversight Committee also has 
review and recommendation responsibility for Plan changes and project delivery. 

Measure X is anticipated to generate an estimated $600 million over thirty years through a 
retail transaction and use tax of a three-eighths’ of one-percent (3/8%).  

San Benito COG Measure G Transportation Safety and Investment Plan Oversight Committee 
With the November 6, 2018 passing of Measure G, a 1% sales tax over thirty years to fund 
critical transportation safety and mobility projects in San Benito County, a Transportation 
Safety and Investment Plan Oversight Committee composed of citizens to oversee compliance 
with the tax ordinance was established. The Committee consist of 11 San Benito County 
residents that represent the geographical, social, cultural, and economic diversity of the County 
to ensure maximum benefit for transportation use and it meets quarterly. 

25-32



29 
 

Ad Hoc Committees 
All the standing advisory committees, listed above, must meet the requirements of the Brown 
Act in public involvement and participation requests. In addition to these standing committees, 
AMBAG and our partner agencies may appoint special ad-hoc committees for specific 
programs/plans that arise. Ad hoc committees are temporary committees established to 
address a specific matter or issue within the metropolitan planning framework.  

Although ad hoc committees do not necessarily have to meet the Brown Act public involvement 
requirements, they typically do because political leaders and the communities in the region 
have a strong commitment to the public participation process (CA Government Code § 
54952(b)). Additional public input and involvement may occur through these special ad-hoc 
committees.  

Planning Directors Forum 
AMBAG hosts regular meetings of the Planning Directors Forum (PDF). The PDF consists of 
planning directors and staff from the 18 cities, three counties, three regional transportation 
planning agencies, transit agencies, universities and LAFCO. The PDF meets regularly to address 
regional land use, housing, and transportation planning issues. 

4. Public Hearings  
Public hearings are held prior to a major decision point to gather comments for the public 
record, as well as input into the decision-making process. Each partner agency holds public 
hearings prior to adoption of their major plans, programs, and major service revisions (e.g., 
Metropolitan/ Regional Transportation Plans, Transportation Improvement Programs, Short 
Range Transit Plans, Americans with Disabilities Act, Complementary Paratransit Plans, Unmet 
Transit Needs, Transit Program of Projects, and Transit Service Revisions).  

For instance, Santa Cruz METRO and MST hold public hearings when there is a service change 
greater than 25 percent, elimination of routes, fare changes, adoption of an ordinance, 
adoption of a resolution authorizing application for grant funding, adopting the annual budget, 
environmental documents, eminent domain resolutions, or short-range transit plans. All Santa 
Cruz METRO public hearings are published as legal notice in local newspapers. For adoption of 
an ordinance, legal notices are published in both local newspapers and are posted at public 
places, such as Santa Cruz METRO transit centers.  

For some regional and local jurisdictions, public meetings are sometimes broadcast live on 
public access television, such as city council meetings. These meetings are generally re-
broadcast and available to view on the respective jurisdiction’s website, providing the public 
additional opportunities to view the proceedings. AMBAG now provides a hybrid meeting style 
for public hearings, allowing the public 3-minutes to comment whether participating in-person 
or remotely. 

25-33



30 

Public Hearing Notices ∗ 
AMBAG and the RTPAs publish legal notices of public hearings in newspapers of general 
circulation citing the time, date, and place of the hearings. For transportation matters of 
particular interest to our Spanish-speaking communities, public hearing notices are translated 
and displayed in both English and Spanish in newspapers and radio. For items of wide public 
interest, public display advertisements may also be used for legal notices. Unless indicated 
otherwise, public hearing notices are made available at least seven days in advance of a 
hearing. 

Public Hearings∗ 
Public hearings are conducted by the AMBAG Board and RTPAs during their regular meetings or 
at special meetings scheduled to attract greater community participation. Notice of these 
public hearings is placed on AMBAG’s website and, when required by law, in the legal section of 
numerous newspapers in the region. Public hearings may also be conducted by each agency’s 
standing committees. Meetings are held in facilities that are accessible to people with 
disabilities and along transit routes, when possible. 

As part of a public hearing, the policy board will generally receive a report from agency staff 
prior to opening the hearing for comments from the public. The hearing will be concluded when 
all members of the public wishing to speak have been provided with the opportunity to 
comment. Agency staff may respond, as appropriate, to comments provided at the hearing 
prior to the policy board taking action with respect to the subject of the hearing. 

Public Comment Period: AMBAG and our partner agencies publish legal notices of public 
comment periods in local newspapers of general circulation citing the dates when they will be 
accepting comments on regional plans, MTIP, studies and transportation projects. The public 
comment period for adoption or revision of the Public Participation Plan, Transportation Plans, 
the Transportation Improvement Program, and other key decision points must be “timely” and 
for the AMBAG region are as follows: 

• AMBAG Public Participation Plan: 45 Days
• Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable Community Strategy: 55 days
• Approval of Transportation Improvement Programs and Other Plans or Studies: 30 days
• Regional Transportation Plans: 30 days

*Please refer to Title 23: 450.316 from Federal Register Vol. 72 No. 30 in Appendix D for more
information.

25-34



31 
 

• Formal Amendments to the MTIP: 2 weeks 

AMBAG and RTPAs accept prepared comments (oral, written and emailed) from the public 
during the public review period for plans that require public hearings; all such comments are 
then made part of the public record. 

Amendment or Modification to Draft Plans (MTP/MTIP/PPP) or Projects: If draft plans or 
projects differ significantly from the initial draft, which was made available for public comment 
and raises new issues which interested parties could not reasonably have foreseen from the 
public involvement efforts, an additional opportunity for public comment on the revised plans 
or other plans will be made available within schedule constraints. Minor changes in the draft 
plans or projects generally can be made after AMBAG, our partner RTPAs, and/or our transit 
agencies have completed its public comment process without further opportunities for public 
involvement. AMBAG or respective agencies can define what is considered a minor change 
during the development of the public involvement process for the plan.  

5. Use of Media and Informational Materials, and Visualization Techniques 
Media notification is used by AMBAG and RTPAs to inform the public of upcoming decision 
points, decisions made and their potential ramifications regarding transportation planning, 
funding, project implementation and/or service provision. Media coverage can help deliver 
information regarding actions or events. All plans and projects should utilize at least one of the 
following methods to communicate details about the project and inform the public. The 
following public participation methods are employed within the Monterey Bay region: 

• Websites – AMBAG and RTPAs maintain websites that provide the public with 
information about the agencies’, their programs, and special projects.  

Project and program information - including reports, documents, plans, fact sheets, 
maps, graphs, charts and presentations - is posted on the websites and made available to 
the public. In addition, interactive functions have been added for members of the public 
to participate online such as submitting comments, voting and completing surveys on 
major projects and plans within the Monterey Bay region. 

Meeting notices and agendas/minutes/ meeting recordings for the agency, as well as 
their advisory committees, are also posted and available for downloading or review. 
TAMC also provides viewers the ability to watch their board meetings on demand on 
their website. Most of our partner agencies also have a “What’s New” section on their 
web page to provide reviewing parties a quick way to read more about the latest 
developments.  

Agency websites also provide a forum for visual materials that assist viewers in 
conceptualizing programs and projects. The partner agency websites include:  

• Council of San Benito County Governments: www.sanbenitocog.org 

25-35

http://www.sanbenitocog.org/


32 
 

• Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission: www.sccrtc.org 
• Transportation Agency for Monterey County: www.tamcmonterey.org 
• Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments: www.ambag.org 
• Monterey-Salinas Transit: www.mst.org 
• Santa Cruz METRO: www.scmtd.org 
• San Benito County Express: http://www.sanbenitocountyexpress.org 
 

• News Releases – AMBAG and our partner agencies prepare and forward news releases 
to print and broadcast media for issues or events that affect the region, including 
proposed actions, notification of workshops, completion of major projects and legislative 
actions affecting the transportation planning and service providers. This is perhaps the 
most frequently used media outreach method. Board meeting highlights are also sent by 
two agencies to media contacts as well as elected officials, advisory committees and a 
range of other interests in the county following each meeting. 

• Articles in the weekly county business council distributions. 
• Press Conferences – All of our partner agencies hold press conferences to focus press 

attention on newsworthy special events and occasions. 
• Radio and Television – Some of the Partners provide televised broadcasts of their Board 

meetings on community access television. Agencies also work with television and radio 
stations, special programs, and/or public access media within the region to interview 
and/or film special segments and upload webcasts/podcasts to spread the word about 
their agency and/or programs. For instance, AMBAG in the past has developed videos to 
promote important plan adoptions and frequently is included in radio interviews on 
regional topics like housing and transportation. 

• Newsletters, Brochures, and eNews – AMBAG and Partners use newsletters, brochures 
or eNews to provide information on their transportation programs and particular project 
development. News releases and eNews are often sent to entities for inclusion in their 
electronic newsletters.  

• Agency Reports – Several Partners prepare and distribute an annual agency report sent 
to a broad range of their constituents and planning partners. These reports serve to 
communicate to the public the agency’s accomplishments, revenue/expenditures and 
future directions. 

• Posters and Inserts – Posters and inserts are generally used by our AMBAG and partner 
agencies to focus attention on a particular program.  

• Project Flyers and Folders – AMBAG and several of the Partners develop and distribute 
information flyers and/or folders at public workshops, meetings, community events, and 
other significant events. Some agencies are now preparing and distributing fact sheets on 
various projects, programs, and agency information as a way to provide the most current 
information to the public. Many of the flyers are also printed in Spanish.  

• Advertising – Many of the Partners use advertising means, such as display ads in 
newspapers, outdoor advertisements on the sides of buses, “car cards” inside the buses, 
posters placed in high travel corridors, and business card-sized materials with web links 
or QR codes to capture people’s attention.  

25-36

http://www.sccrtc.org/
http://www.tamcmonterey.org/
http://www.ambag.org/
http://www.mst.org/
http://www.scmtd.org/
http://www.sanbenitocountyexpress.org/


33 
 

• Online Social Media Networks – The RTPAs distribute information on their respective 
plans, programs and projects through online social media networks such as Facebook, 
Twitter and Nextdoor. 

• Mapping – AMBAG provides internet users with access to regional planning data 
available through our website, such as statistical information for multiple geographies 
ranging from the neighborhood-level to the tri-county level. In addition, the AMBAG 
2021 Title VI Plan includes a spatial analysis utilizing U.S. Census data and GIS on our 
Limited English Proficiency (LEP) populations within the Monterey Bay region. AMBAG 
and our partner agencies provide GIS mapping tools on each agency’s website and 
include display maps in planning documents to help with project visualization. AMBAG’s 
mapping tool can be found on our website at: https://ambag.org/program/gis.  

6. Bilingual Participation  
The Monterey Bay region is home to a significant Spanish speaking population. AMBAG and our 
partner agencies employ a number of bilingual outreach methods to include participation of the 
Spanish speaking community. These methods include:  

• Publishing printed information regarding services, projects, programs, and meetings in 
Spanish.  

• Spanish language media in the distribution of news releases.  
• Advertising public hearings, meetings, projects and programs in the Spanish language 

print, radio, and television media. 
• Providing simultaneous Spanish language interpretation services at meetings.  
• Conducting meetings in Spanish in communities where Spanish is the dominant language 

with English translation 
• Producing Spanish language website content and physical publications, such as flyers. 
• Providing language identification flashcards at public meetings. 
• Ensure that transit contractors recruit bilingual (English/Spanish) personnel. 
• Providing bilingual pop-up opportunities at grocery stores and community events to 

solicit project feedback  

AMBAG can provide materials and special accommodations for other Limited English 
Populations in the region, with proper notice. 

7. Response to Public Input  
Timely response to public input is important to encourage public participation and ensure that 
agencies communicate that public input is valued.  

Responses to public input are made directly when public input level permits, or a consolidated 
response is prepared for specific issues if the volume of public comment does not allow 
individual responses. Written responses to public or agency input are reported to the 
respective policy Board for information. In some cases, as with the transportation plans and 
Transportation Improvement Program, when significant written and oral comments are 
received on the draft plan or program as a result of the public involvement process, a summary 

25-37

https://ambag.org/program/gis


34 
 

analysis and report on the disposition of comments is made and reported to the Board of 
Directors of the agency that received the comments or is approving the document.  

8. Distribution of Final Documents  
Final documents are available on agency websites or agency libraries. All electronic documents 
provided by AMBAG and posted to the agency website are in an ADA accessible format to 
comply with federal requirements. Accessible formatting for online documents to meet ADA 
requirements includes providing alternative text descriptions for visual elements, enabling 
keyboard accessibility, and offering captions and transcriptions for multimedia content.  
Members of the public can request a copy of our final documents from the appropriate agency. 
Written materials provided to a partner agency’s board of directors may also be available for 
review upon request.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25-38



35 
 

IV. PPP Procedures and Development Process 

AMBAG’s and the RTPA’s 2023 Public Participation Plan (PPP) aims to give the public ample 
opportunities for early and continued participation in critical transportation projects, plans, and 
decisions, and to provide full public access to key decisions. The goals set forth in the 2023 
Public Participation Plan are to further equitable participation and decision-making regionally 
by utilizing effective and innovative public outreach methods. Engaging the public early and 
often in the decision-making process is critical to the success of any transportation plan or 
program and is required by numerous state and federal laws. 

Preparation of the 2023 Public Participation Plan 

AMBAG initiated development of the plan by compiling information from various MPO’s 
research and federal transportation regulations. Consultation with our partner agencies on 
their existing public participation and policy decision-making processes was conducted 
throughout the PPP Process. AMBAG and the RTPAs consulted with interested parties at the 
federal, state, regional, and local level to identify opportunities for improving or building upon 
existing practices. 

Prior to the development of the plan, AMBAG released a Public Participation Plan Survey in 
English and Spanish to receive direction from the community on how to best engage to increase 
public participation. In March 2023, AMBAG released the Public Participation Plan Survey to 
regional, state, federal stakeholders and interested parties, and received nearly 200 responses. 

Trends of the survey included participants requesting online commenting, surveys, and meeting 
platforms, an increased interest in presenting information during informal events such as pop-
ups, and weekday evenings are the best times for in person and virtual community meetings. A 
few participants suggested AMBAG increase the use of social media platforms, including 
creating subject matter videos on hot topics and issues for YouTube and other video streaming 
sites. AMBAG can investigate incorporating this in future efforts. 

Preparation for the 2023 Public Participation Plan also included kick off meetings between 
AMBAG and the RTPAs. Staff from each agency provided discussion on relevant topics and 
policies that should be addressed in the plan update. This discussion, combined with feedback 
received while presenting the development of the draft plan amongst working groups and 
technical advisory committees throughout all three counties, resulted in the 2023 Public 
Participation Plan.  

The Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan will be circulated for public review and comment for a 
minimum of 45 days. AMBAG and RTPAs (TAMC, SBtCOG and SCCRTC) worked together to 
restructure the previously adopted 2019 Area Public Participation Plan to make the plan more 

25-39



36 
 

useful for transportation decision-making in the Monterey Bay region. See Figure 4-1 for the 
timeline of the 2023 PPP development process.  

Public Participation Plan Guiding Principles 

AMBAG and RTPAs established a set of activities and goals to achieve our guiding principles for 
the 2023 Public Participation Plan by creating a framework and action plan for each outreach 
goal. These goals are agencywide and are utilized and implemented in major plans and projects, 
including the Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies, Regional 
Transportation Plans (RTP), Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Plan (MTIP) and 
Regional Transportation Improvement Plan (RTIP). 

Equity 
Goal: Prioritize public engagement methods that increase equitable participation and 
distribution of resources in all outreach efforts, projects, and programs. 
 
Activity: Engage impacted and historically underserved communities early and often. Inclusive 
engagement, policies and practices must be considered to eliminate systematic barriers. In the 
AMBAG region, collaborative decision-making processes, such as citizen advisory committees 
and focus groups, can be established to ensure diverse representation and involvement are 
achieved. The public participation plan ensures that community concerns and engagement can 
guide the identification of programs, policies, and activities, and ensure that actions taken will 
not result in disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on 
underserved populations. Other methods include organizing community workshops and public 
hearings in the communities with low engagement, utilizing digital platforms, online surveys, 
and social media campaigns. Additionally, AMBAG, partners and other local decision-makers 
should incorporate cultural sensitivity into public outreach efforts. This includes recognizing and 
respecting cultural norms, values, and practices of diverse communities, and adapting 
engagement methods accordingly. For example, TAMC has adapted outreach strategies to 
include interpretation accommodations for indigenous language speakers in south Monterey 
County.  

Involvement 
Goal: Value public participation and promote broad based involvement by members of the 
community. 

Activity: In addition to having a list of stakeholders and working collaboratively with partner 
agencies, AMBAG and RTPAs will also interact and outreach to community groups within the 
Monterey Bay region, as input from a variety of perspectives helps to enhance the process. 
AMBAG and RTPAs structure their major planning initiatives and funding decisions to provide 
meaningful opportunities to help shape outcomes. For example, because AMBAG’s 2050 

25-40



37 
 

MTP/SCS is the blueprint for both new policies and investments for the Monterey Bay region, 
updating and developing the MTP/SCS is one of the best projects for interested persons to get 
involved. The list of all groups, stakeholders and councilmembers can be found in Appendix D. 

Opportunity 
Goal: Provide varied opportunities for public review and input. 
 
Activity: AMBAG and RTPAs will engage with partner agencies, committees, working groups, 
and the public to obtain comments and suggestions during the development of the MTP/SCS, 
MTIP, RTP and RTIP. When the drafts of major plans, programs, and documents are released, 
the public review periods for each document tend to vary from 30-60 days. AMBAG and RTPAs 
will announce these public review periods through various media outlets, thereby providing as 
many opportunities as possible for the public to read and provide comments on the drafts of 
our major documents to be implemented in the future. To find out more about our public 
participation practices by agency, please refer to Appendix B.  

Environmental Justice 

Goal: Treat all members of the public fairly, and respect and consider all citizen input as an 
important component of the planning and implementation process. 

Activity: AMBAG and RTPAs actively reach out to the traditionally underserved and 
underrepresented communities within the Monterey Bay region and enhance efforts to involve 
rural communities in all major transportation planning processes. AMBAG and the RTPAs will 
undertake specific strategies to involve all members of the general public in regional 
transportation planning and investment decisions. One size does not fit all as input from diverse 
perspectives enhances the process and creates a more equitable decision-making process. 

Engagement 

Goal: Promote a culture of dialogue and partnership among residents, property owners, the 
business community, organizations, other interested citizens, and public officials. 

Activity: Early engagement is best. Create support materials that are easy to understand and 
visually engaging in both print and electronic format and make them accessible at meetings and 
on AMBAG’s website. Plan workshops and/or public hearings that are available virtually, and at 
convenient venues and times across the region; and ensure such events, and material and 
outreach provided for the event, are fully accessible to the public, including low income, 
minority, rural communities, persons with disabilities (physical visual, audio) and Limited 
English Proficiency (LEP) populations.  

 

25-41



38 
 

Involvement 
 
Goal: Involve underserved communities and local community groups, as well as other 
organizations.  

Activity: Make a greater effort to reach out to local community groups and smaller/rural 
communities that feel like they don’t have a voice and involve them in the public participation 
process as much as possible. Strategies can include ground truthing in neighborhoods for 
underserved peoples, providing materials in languages other than English and Spanish, and 
holding enriching community events where participation is historically low. An open and 
transparent public participation process will help empower affected low income communities 
and communities of color to participate in the decision-making process. Engaging interested 
persons in regional transportation issues is challenging, yet possible, by making it relevant, 
removing barriers to participation, and saying it simply. 

Encouragement 

Goal: Encourage active public participation throughout the whole process. 

Activity: Ask thought provoking questions in public surveys, workshops and outreach meetings 
and engage audiences in strong discussions. Public participation is a dynamic activity that 
requires teamwork and commitment from all the Monterey Bay region’s agencies, from the 
regional level to the local level. 

8. Communication 

Goal: Provide communications and agency reports that are clear, timely and broadly 
distributed.  

Activity: Effective public outreach and involvement requires collaborating with regional local 
governments, stakeholders, and advisory groups such as partner agencies. Make all types of 
communication clear, accessible, and easy to understand. Potential methods include add a 
translation link in Spanish for Limited English Proficiency (LEP) citizens through a Google 
Translation Widget on websites and provide distributed flyers, online notices, announcements 
and other materials in both English and Spanish, as feasible, to engage diverse populations. We 
also provide hearing impaired and visually impaired citizens assistance in receiving online and 
physical media distributions through physical outreach materials printed in larger font and in 
braille, upon request, to all electronic materials provided in an accessible format.  

 

 

25-42



39 
 

2023 Public Participation Plan  

The 2023 Public Participation Plan was developed by AMBAG in collaboration with the RTPAs. 
The AMBAG Board of Directors is scheduled to release the Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan 
for public review in June 2023. The comment period will begin on June 14, 2023, and end on 
August 23, 2023. A public hearing on the Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan is scheduled for 
August 9, 2023, at the AMBAG Board of Directors meeting. The following is a list of key dates 
for AMBAG and RTPAs: 

• Draft Release Date for Public Comment 
o June 14, 2023: AMBAG and All Agencies 

• Public Hearing at Board Meeting 
o August 1, 2023: SCCRTC 
o August 9, 2023: AMBAG  
o August 17, 2023: SBtCOG 
o August 23, 2023: TAMC 

• Close of Public Comment Period 
o August 23, 2023: All Agencies 

• Final Adoption Date 
o September 21, 2023: SBtCOG 
o September 27, 2023: TAMC 
o October 5, 2023: SCCRTC 
o October 11, 2023: AMBAG 

Information about the development of the Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan was circulated 
to stakeholder groups and interested parties who have expressed interest in the regional 
transportation planning process. A list of advisory committees and stakeholders who will 
receive notification about the availability of the Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan is included 
in Appendix D.  

The Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan, like all of AMBAG’s public documents, was also made 
available online in ADA accessible format on AMBAG’s and RTPA’s website, and was promoted 
through newspapers, and AMBAG’s and RTPA’s online media pages to target social network 
users.  

The main changes between the 2019 Monterey Bay Public Participation Plan and the 2023 
Public Participation Plan are: 

• Expanding the seven guiding principles to eight guiding principles to include equity goals 
as a strategy for how to actively meet each of the goals and foster continued 
engagement with the public. 

• Include survey results from an online survey conducted for input on the public’s 
preferred engagement techniques prior to the development of the 2023 PPP. 

25-43



40 

• Include innovative public outreach best practices to increase public participation
regionally, including the limitations and advancements in public participation brought
about by the COVID-19 pandemic.

• A timeline of the 2023 Public Participation Plan process from conception to execution
(Figure 4-1)

• Updating and enhancing our online and visualization outreach strategies.

The strategies identified in this Plan will be used by AMBAG and RTPAs during the update of our 
2050 MTP/SCS and 2024 MTIP, as well as in each of the RTPAs’ RTPs. This 2023 Public 
Participation Plan will supersede the 2019 Monterey Bay Public Participation Plan. 

25-44



41 
 

Figure 4-1: 2023 Public Participation Plan Development Timeline 

 

25-45



42 
 

V. Interested Parties and Public Engagement 

Senate Bill 375 and Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS) Public Outreach 

In addition to the required methods for public participation employed to seek public input on 
plans, programs, and projects in the Monterey Bay region, AMBAG is required to undertake 
outreach defined in Senate Bill 375. This legislation requires that the transportation plans 
prepared by AMBAG be consistent with a Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS) for achieving 
greenhouse gas emissions targets approved by the California Air Resources Board (CARB) for 
the region. AMBAG and our partner agencies coordinated to undertake the specific outreach 
strategies identified below in preparation for the 2050 MTP/SCS which is scheduled for 
adoption in June 2023.  

Engagement of Minority, Low Income, and Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Communities 
Pursuant to Executive Order 13166 and FTA Circular 4703.1, AMBAG and RTPAs must strive to 
make more of a conscious effort to incorporate LEP populations within the Monterey Bay 
region in all regional and local planning projects and programs. This can be done by: 

• Increasing publication of information in Spanish and other languages as necessary 
• Establishing special bilingual committees 
• Increasing outreach to Spanish-language media  
• Establishing outreach methods to indigenous language communities   
• Assessing what is needed to expand cultural diversity at meetings 

More information as to how AMBAG conducts outreach to the LEP populations in our region 
can be found in the LEP Plan within the AMBAG 2021 Title VI Plan.  

Additional Methods for Public Participation  
In addition to the required methods and procedures for engaging public participation, our 
partner agencies in the Monterey Bay region may utilize some or all of the following optional 
methods to seek public input on plans, programs, projects and the regional Sustainable 
Communities Strategy. Methods chosen will depend on the size of the project or the 
community interest expressed after the initial outreach purpose and list of stakeholders are 
identified.  

Public Workshops and Public Meetings  
The purpose of public workshops and public meetings is to present information and obtain 
input from the public, usually on specific issues, policies, programs, plans or projects. Such 
meetings are held throughout the planning process and are tailored to specific issues or 
geographic areas. The Brown Act governs the general conduct of all public meetings, including 
public workshops.  

25-46



43 

For public workshops and meetings of particular interest to members of the community, the 
distribution of notices, agendas and materials via email and on websites is widely used. Public 
notice ads in local newspapers (online or printed) may also be used depending on the project. 

The COVID-19 pandemic brought about notable changes in transportation network planning 
and decision-making, leading to increased public participation and a greater reliance on virtual 
public workshops and hybrid public meetings. Transportation agencies and planners have 
turned to virtual platforms to facilitate public involvement. Engagement techniques include 
virtual town halls, online surveys, and interactive platforms for stakeholders and the general 
public to express their opinions, share concerns, and contribute to decision making. AMBAG will 
focus on hosting both in person and hybrid meetings, based on the positive feedback received 
through an online survey. 

Community Outreach Events and Strategies 
Community activities are used to encourage public engagement in regional planning activities 
and goals. For example, TAMC and several of the regional rideshare providers within the 
Monterey Bay region have worked with the Monterey Bay Air Resources District (MBARD) to 
promote the annual Rideshare Week and Clean Air Month in the past. 

MST and other rideshare agencies within the regional transportation network also attend 
community meetings, set up displays at Earth Day, at university/community college in-person 
registration periods, at transportation fairs at employers’ work sites and job fairs, at community 
events, and sponsor related events such as Bike Week and Bike to Work Day. Other community 
outreach strategies may include: 

• Working with community based organizations to enhance outreach, either through direct
contact or through the release of Request for Proposals (RFPs) as funding allows

• Incorporating visualization techniques and interactive activities into planning and
programming processes

• Outreach through disadvantaged communities, especially in underserved areas of the
Monterey Bay region

• Using health services programs to combine outreach efforts
• Working with leadership groups in each county to educate a broader audience of

community leaders about transportation issues
• Targeting large employers and colleges/universities
• Holding public hearings and/or focus group meetings outside of typical work hours and

at more convenient locations to provide a wider range of public meeting times and
multiple locations in each jurisdiction

• Hosting meetings in facilities that are already established activity centers, such as senior
centers

• Provide information at high-traffic locations such as Farmer’s Markets, First Friday Art
Gatherings, grocery stores, neighborhood block parties and parades.

25-47



44 
 

• Increase involvement with local schools including Safe Routes to School, parent groups 
and charter schools. 

Other Activities  
AMBAG and RTPAs also use other public involvement methods as appropriate, including:  

• Public Opinion Surveys – Public opinion or attitude surveys are used to assess public 
attitudes or to obtain socioeconomic or demographic information for specific purposes. 
Electronic deliberative polling and charettes may be employed at meetings to provide 
instant feedback from the public regarding opinions and attitudes to proposed plans, 
policies and projects.  

• Stakeholder Meetings – In the development of special studies, our partner agencies may 
hold meetings with affected stakeholders to gain their perspective and insights on the 
study subject.  

• Pop-Ups– Informal, on-the-spot meetings, workshops, or tabling opportunities at local 
community events, typically placed at well-traveled community locations such as grocery 
stores, coffee shops, and schools. Booths are timed to catch the public as they go about 
their daily activity or where the public is already gathered. 

• Open Houses – In an open house, one-to-one exchanges between the public and policy 
makers and/or staff take place in an informal setting. Members of the public ask 
questions, express concerns, react to proposed plans and policies and make suggestions.  

• Conferences – Some partner agencies have hosted conferences on transportation issues 
for educational purposes, soliciting media coverage, and/or soliciting input on specific 
funding topics.  

• Speaker’s Bureau – Designed to have people on staff able to visit various community and 
interest groups, several agencies employ this method to discuss their agency, its 
purpose, and upcoming projects/programs/issues.  

• Expert Panels - Individuals with specific expertise, with or without a stake in the outcome 
of the process, are invited to sit on expert panels to provide advice to staff on policy and 
technical issues in an informal, roundtable setting.  

• Focus Groups – Agencies conduct periodic Focus Groups to determine detailed public 
opinion on transportation topics in the county or reports written by the agency and 
transportation in the county.  

• Ribbon Cuttings and Ground Breakings – Agencies hold ceremonies to commemorate 
the opening of a new project or the beginning of construction. This provides a great 
opportunity to demonstrate agency accomplishments to the public. 

Additional Strategies to Increase Involvement 
Although the listing at the beginning of this section provides a summary of the procedures and 
methods currently used by AMBAG and RTPAs to provide information on their transportation 
planning processes in the region, each of these methods has varying levels of success, 
depending on the agency and its constituents. Some of the following methods were particularly 
successful in eliciting public participation into the transportation arena:  

25-48



45 
 

• Agency websites and web postings (such as eNews, videos, visual graphics and blogs) 
• Extensive email distribution lists 
• Flyers/inserts in paychecks, bills, or other mailers  
• Collaborative outreach with other agencies 
• Online and mail-in surveys 
• Targeted focus group or community meetings  
• Interviews on the radio 
• Presentations at standing events 
• Public service announcements 

In addition to these successful methods, the list below incorporates potential methods AMBAG 
and RTPAs will work to incorporate into their transportation planning, programming, and 
service delivery projects.  

1. Marketing and Visualization Strategies  
• Online publication and web based comment of plans/programs, including an increased 

use of illustrations on agency websites and on affiliated social media networks, such as 
Twitter, Facebook and Nextdoor 

• Increased emphasis on public access television, radio and internet radio 
• Coordinated media stories between partner agencies and media outlets 
• Prepare weekly or monthly transportation column in local newspapers or newsletters 
• Develop public service announcements for distribution 
• Write articles for company newsletters and special interest publications 
• Target marketing/notices highlighting how planning documents may impact them 
• Broadcast hearings on the internet, through webcasts and drone overviews 
• Distribute electronic neighborhood newsletters 
• Use newspaper articles and active communication with published news sources 
• “Word of mouth” is most effective, through direct phone calls and e-mails 
• Use direct communication and website information 
• Use of video on websites like YouTube, Vimeo and others 
• Tap into crowdsourcing and news group opportunities for public opinion 

2. Coordination Strategies  
• Better incorporation between transportation and land use programs and policies 
• Establish special commissions/task forces to engage the public in a less formal setting on 

certain topics 
• Notify and make presentations to other government agencies about high priority 

projects and to publicize upcoming topical meetings  
• Provide thorough explanations of the proposals or project needs in an easy to 

understand method 
3. Feedback and Evaluation Strategies  

• Constituent survey requesting feedback on their notification preferences 
• Follow up with contacts after each public input is received to ensure participants that 

their efforts are meaningful and are appreciated 

25-49



46 

4. Language Assistance Strategies
• Provide physical outreach materials in larger fonts and in braille at public outreach

meetings, upon request, and ensure all electronic outreach materials are available in an
ADA accessible format for the visually impaired populations.

• Upload audio recordings of the public outreach meetings on our website for our hearing
impaired populations

• Ensure all public meetings are held in wheelchair accessible locations to comply with
ADA standards and accommodate the physically disabled populations

• Offer translation services online and in printed outreach materials. The Google Translator
widget for instance is a great tool that can be used on agency websites that is cost
effective and helpful to residents

These strategies are not an exclusive summary of what could be done in the Monterey Bay 
region, but a list of what AMBAG and RTPAs believe could further enhance public outreach in 
our region. As our mission statement entails, AMBAG strives to provide “strategic leadership 
and services to analyze, plan and implement regional policies for the benefit of the Counties 
and Cities of Monterey, San Benito and Santa Cruz, balancing local control with regional 
collaboration.” 

By updating the PPP, AMBAG and the RTPAs hope to achieve equitable public participation on 
the various transportation planning, programming, and project implementation activities within 
the region. 

25-50



47 
 

VI. Accountability 

The 2023 Public Participation Plan will be adopted by AMBAG, TAMC, SBtCOG, and SCCRTC. The 
participation procedures, strategies and goals incorporated into this Public Participation Plan 
are intended to provide interested parties with reasonable opportunities for involvement in 
transportation planning, programming, and project implementation in the region.  

The 2023 Public Participation Plan contains a comprehensive list of interested parties to 
encourage participation among a diverse range of stakeholders and community groups. AMBAG 
is required to comply with state and local legislation in the development of its MTPs and MTIPs. 
RTPAs are required to comply with state and federal legislation in the development of their 
RTPs and RTIPs. AMBAG is specifically required to consult with agencies and officials 
responsible for other planning activities within the region that are affected by AMBAG’s 
MTP/SCS and MTIP (including, as appropriate, state and local agencies responsible for land use 
management, natural resources, environmental protection, conservation, and historic 
preservation). 

The 2023 Public Participation Plan is intended to act as a guide for the public participation 
process. The Plan will be reviewed biennially to determine its effectiveness in meeting a full and 
open participation process in transportation planning, programming and service delivery need.  

The 2023 Public Participation Plan will also be considered as a mandated document that 
requires AMBAG to continue its commitment to involve minority, low income, and Limited 
English Proficiency (LEP) communities by sharing this Public Participation Plan with these 
populations and staying connected with current stakeholders and local community groups who 
represent these populations on an ongoing basis. 

 

25-51



B-1

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission (SCCRTC) 

Website: www.sccrtc.org    Phone: (831) 460-3200 Fax: (831) 460-3215    E-mail: info@sccrtc.org 

Item Frequency Web Email Mail Media Other 
SCCRTC Meetings/Agenda 
Packets 

1-2 times per month,
second meeting in a
workshop format

Posted 3-6 days prior to 
meeting  

Notification sent to 
distribution list and 
interested parties (eNews) 
when packet posted on 
web 

Packet mailed to major 
libraries.  

Main meeting is televised and 
rebroadcast on Community TV. 
Meetings held in hybrid format 
allowing members of the public 
to participate either in person 
or remotely. Media notified by 
email when packet is posted on 
web.  

Meetings are held throughout 
the County; hard copy of 
agenda packet is available at 
SCCRTC office, major libraries, 
some partner agency offices, 
and posted on social media 

SCCRTC Actions As needed for high profile 
program/project decisions 

Press release and/or news 
feed posted  

Notifications to interested 
parties (eNews), if 
appropriate 

None generally Press release distributed 
before and/or after SCCRTC 
action (meeting)  

Notification included in 
committee packets as 
appropriate and posted on 
social media  

SCCRTC Highlights Following main monthly 
meeting 

Posted 1-2 days following 
the meeting 

Notifications sent to city 
councilmembers, transit 
district board members, 
media, chambers of 
commerce, SCCRTC 
committee members and 
to interested parties 
through enews 

None (see Email) Meeting highlights are posted 
on the SCCRTC social media 
channels 

Public Hearings As needed for high profile 
program/project decisions 

Notice posted 10 or more 
days prior to hearing, 
materials posted with 
packet (at least 4 days 
prior) 

Notification to interested 
parties (eNews) and those 
who receive the SCCRTC 
packets 

(see SCCRTC Meetings/ 
Agenda Packets)  

Press release sent 1-2 weeks in 
advance, media advisory sent 
the day before if a public 
event, paid ads may also be 
placed 1-2 weeks in advance  

Notification included in 
committee packets as 
appropriate, posted on social 
media, and signs may also be 
placed on A-frame barricades 
on major thoroughfares.  

Correspondence from the 
Public 

Varies Entry included in 
correspondence log posted 
with packets 

If correspondence is 
received via e-mail, it is 
acknowledged via e-mail. 

None None Correspondence addressing 
specific SCCRTC projects may 
be included with that item in 
the SCCRTC meeting packets. 

SCCRTC Committees 
• Interagency

Technical
• Bicycle
• Elderly & Disabled

Every 1-2 months Packets posted on web Packets emailed, 
notification about packet 
availability emailed to 
interested parties (eNews) 

Packets mailed to 
committee members that 
request it, fees may apply 
per SCCRTC Rules and 
Regulations  

Meetings held in hybrid format 
allowing members of the public 
to participate either in person 
or remotely. No media 
notification unless included in 
an important recommendation 
to the SCCRTC  

-- 

Attachment 2

25-52



B-2

Item Frequency Web Email Mail Media Other 
Approved SCCRTC plans, 
documents and/or project 
information 

As available (examples 
would be completed 
environmental analyses, 
RTPs, RTIPs, feasibility 
analyses, Traffic 
Monitoring Reports, etc.) 

Draft and final plans, 
documents, info posted on 
the web 

Link to posted document 
provided and emailed to 
interested parties (eNews) 

Documents mailed to 
major libraries for 
availability to public to 
review and provide 
comments  

Press release sent out when 
document available with 
information about the public 
hearing, if one planned  

Hard copies available in 
SCCRTC office and public 
libraries, as appropriate 

Social Media Several times a week Post RTC news, updates, 
events, videos and photos 
on Facebook, Twitter, 
Instagram and Nextdoor as 
available 

None None None -- 

Language Assistance Alternate formats 
(Spanish, hearing or 
visually impaired, etc.) as 
appropriate 

New website will be fully 
accessible for disabled 
users and have Spanish 
translation options 

Currently limited Currently limited Coordinate with Spanish 
language media, as 
appropriate.  

Provide Spanish language 
interpretation services as 
needed for meetings and 
events. 

25-53



AGENDA: August 3, 2023 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Riley Gerbrandt, P.E., Associate Transportation Engineer 

RE: Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP) Grant Funding 
Master Agreement, Contract Award for Professional Engineering 
and Environmental Services, and Amendment to the Measure D-
Rail Category 5-Year Program of Projects for the Zero Emission 
Passenger Rail & Trail Project between Pajaro Junction and Santa 
Cruz along the Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line   

RECOMMENDATIONS 

Staff recommends that the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC): 

1. Adopt a resolution (Attachment 1) authorizing the Executive Director,
or their designee, to:

• Negotiate and execute Master Agreements (Exhibit A to
Attachment 1), Program Supplement Agreements, and other
Agreements, and amendments to such agreements, with the
State of California, Caltrans and other state agencies to
administer grant funding for Transit and Intercity Rail Capital
Program (TIRCP) Grant Awards;

• Negotiate and execute Master Agreements, Program
Supplements, Cooperative/ Contribution Agreements, Fund
Exchange Agreements, and other agreements, and amendments
to such agreements, with the State of California, Caltrans,
California State Transportation Agency, the California
Transportation Commission and other state or federal agencies,
as may be necessary, to receive and administer regional, state
and federal funds, and

• Prepare and submit applications for funding of projects and
programs, consistent with the RTC’s adopted Annual Budget and
Work Program or other RTC documents and actions.

2. Adopt a resolution (Attachment 2) authorizing the Executive Director
to negotiate and execute a professional engineering and environmental
services contract for the full Project Concept Report for the Zero
Emission Passenger Rail & Trail Project between the Pajaro Junction
and Santa Cruz along the Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line with HDR
Engineering, Inc. for a total amount not to exceed $7,703,548;

27-1



TIRCP Master Agreement & ZE Passenger Rail & Trail Contract Page  2 

3. Amend the Measure D-Rail Category Program of Projects to add $1.63
million of funding in FY23/24 through FY24/25 to fully fund the Project
Concept Report;

4. Amend the RTC FY 23/24 budget accordingly; and

5. Authorize inter-program loans from other Measure D fund categories
to the Measure D Rail category, if needed.

BACKGROUND 

In 2012, the RTC acquired from Union Pacific Railroad 31 miles of the 
32-mile Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line (SCBRL), which provides a unique
opportunity for Santa Cruz County to have a dedicated transit facility that
connects the county’s two largest cities. The SCBRL is a single-track active
short line freight railroad that traverses Santa Cruz County along a right-of-
way of varying width between Pajaro and Davenport.

A passenger rail transit feasibility study was completed in 2015 which 
analyzed a range of rail transit service scenarios on the SCBRL. The 
Monterey Bay Sanctuary Scenic Trail Network Master Plan was completed in 
2013, which identified the Coastal Rail Trail in the SCBRL corridor as the 
spine of the bicycle and pedestrian trail network. In 2016, voters approved 
the Measure D sales tax measure, which designates 8% of revenues for the 
rail corridor, including environmental and other analysis of potential uses of 
the corridor, and 17% of revenues for the trail. The RTC completed the 
Unified Corridor Investment Study (UCS) in 2019 which evaluated a set of 
multimodal improvements along the 3 parallel routes Highway 1, Soquel 
Avenue/Soquel Drive/Freedom Boulevard and the SCBRL. The UCS serves as 
the County’s comprehensive multimodal corridor plan. With completion of 
the UCS the RTC selected a preferred scenario for the branch line that 
included both high-capacity public transit and a multi-use bicycle and 
pedestrian trail along the SCBRL.  

The Transit Corridor Alternatives Analysis and Rail Network Integration 
Study (TCAA/RNIS) was completed in 2021 which evaluated public transit 
investment options for an integrated transit network for Santa Cruz County 
utilizing all or part of the length of the branch line right-of-way, between the 
future Pajaro Station and Shaffer Road in Santa Cruz as a dedicated transit 
facility, adjacent to the proposed Coastal Rail Trail. The TCAA/RNIS identified 
electric passenger rail as the locally preferred alternative.  

27-2



TIRCP Master Agreement & ZE Passenger Rail & Trail Contract Page  3 

The Monterey Bay Sanctuary Scenic Trail Network (MBSST) is the RTC’s 
proposed 50-mile bicycle and pedestrian trail network. The spine of the trail 
network is the 32-mile Coastal Rail Trail from Davenport to Watsonville/ 
Pajaro, to be constructed largely within the RTC-owned rail right-of-way. The 
MBSST Master Plan organized the trail alignment into 20 Segments with 
logical beginning and end points. There are 17 miles of Coastal Rail Trail 
projects complete or under development. The remaining segments of Coastal 
Rail Trail have not yet been developed beyond master planning level. 

In August 2022, the RTC released a request for proposals (RFP) soliciting 
proposals for qualified and experienced professional consultants to perform 
preliminary engineering and environmental documentation for a proposed 
electric passenger rail transit and coastal rail trail project along the RTC-
owned SCBRL right of way. In December 2022, the RTC authorized an 
agreement not to exceed $3 million with the firm ranked as the most 
qualified proposer, HDR Engineering, Inc., to fund the first 12-months of 
work for the Project Concept Report, using Measure D-Rail funds, and to 
subsequently amend the agreement to complete the Project Concept Report 
and for the future tasks once additional funding is secured. 

DISCUSSION 

In February 2023, Staff submitted a grant application to the California State 
Transportation Agency (CalSTA) for Transit and Intercity Rail Capital 
Program (TIRCP) Cycle 6 funding under the program’s Major Projects Project 
Development Reserve for the Zero Emission Passenger Rail & Trail Project 
(formerly referred to as the electric passenger rail transit and coastal rail 
trail project). The grant application requested funding, with Measure D Rail 
Category funds as local match, sufficient to complete state and federal 
environmental clearance for the Project, including the project concept report, 
initial right of way services, preliminary engineering, and environmental 
documentation. 

In April of 2023, the State of California announced a TIRCP Cycle 6 grant 
award of $3,450,000 to the RTC to complete the Project Concept Report for 
the Zero Emission Passenger Rail & Trail Project. Staff submitted an 
allocation request to the California Transportation Commission (CTC). To 
receive and administer these funds, TIRCP Guidelines require that the RTC 
enter into a master agreement (Exhibit A to Attachment 1), program 
supplement agreement, and other agreements with the State of California 
through Caltrans, who administers the funds for CalSTA and the CTC. The 
TIRCP Master Agreement will enable the RTC, through program 
supplements, to receive the Cycle 6 TIRCP funds as well as future funding 
cycle TIRCP grant awards and potentially new formulaic TIRCP funds 

27-3

https://calsta.ca.gov/press-releases/2023-04-24-690-million-for-public-transportation-projects


TIRCP Master Agreement & ZE Passenger Rail & Trail Contract Page  4 

anticipated to be available for transit projects in Santa Cruz County (see 
Item 8, State and Federal Legislative Updates, on today’s agenda).  

Upon execution of the TIRCP Master Agreement and successful allocation of 
the TIRCP Cycle 6 funding, anticipated at the August CTC meeting, the RTC 
will have $3.45 million in State funding available for the Project Concept 
Report.   

Staff recommends that the RTC adopt a resolution (Attachment 1) 
authorizing the Executive Director to negotiate and execute Master 
Agreements (Exhibit A to Attachment 1) with the State of California, 
Caltrans and other state agencies to administer the Transit and 
Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP) grant funding and further 
authorizing the Executive Director to Negotiate and Execute Program 
Supplements, Cooperative/Contribution Agreements, Fund Exchange 
Agreements, Amendments, and other funding agreements in order to 
complete the Project Concept Report phase of the Zero Emission 
Passenger Rail & Trail Project – for Cycle 6 TIRCP – as well as future 
TIRCP and other state funding that the RTC may receive.

Caltrans advised the RTC that executing the consultant contract prior to 
executing the TIRCP Master Agreement and CTC allocation of TIRCP funds 
would violate TIRCP Guidelines. Therefore, staff negotiated with HDR 
Engineering, Inc. to revise the draft contract for the Project Concept Report 
phase (Task 1) of the Zero Emission Passenger Rail & Trail Project to fund 
the full Task 1 scope of work, instead of only the first 12 months as 
originally authorized by RTC in December 2022. Part of negotiations involved 
review of the contract by Caltrans Independent Office of Audits and 
Investigations, required by the Caltrans Local Assistance Procedures Manual. 

As a result of the negotiations and Caltrans audit, the cost proposal for 
Task 1 has been slightly reduced to $7,703,548, which is less than HDR’s 
original cost proposal of $7,759,711 for Task 1. The cost of project 
management, oversight, and community outreach during the concept report 
is estimated to be $1,520,000, which brings the total cost of the concept 
report to $9,230,000. Staff intends to return to the Commission to amend 
the contract to complete subsequent Tasks 2-4 (preliminary engineering, 
initial right-of-way support, and environmental documentation) of the Zero 
Emission Passenger Rail & Trail Project after securing additional grant 
funding.  

With the $3.45 million in TIRCP Cycle 6 competitive funding and the 
previously programmed $3.8 Million in Measure D-Rail and $350,000 in 
Measure D-Trail, an additional $1.63 million of funding is needed to fully 

27-4

https://calsta.ca.gov/-/media/calsta-media/documents/tircp-cycle-6-final-guidelines_a11y.pdf


TIRCP Master Agreement & ZE Passenger Rail & Trail Contract Page  5 

fund the Project Concept Report (Task 1) for the Zero Emission Passenger 
Rail & Trail Project.   

Staff recommends that the RTC adopt a resolution (Attachment 2) 
authorizing the Executive Director to negotiate and execute an 
agreement for Professional Engineering Services (Contract TP 2153) 
(Exhibit A to Attachment 2) with HDR Engineering, Inc. in the 
amount not to exceed $7,703,548 with a term through June 30, 2028 
to complete the Project Concept Report phase (Task 1) of the Zero 
Emission Passenger Rail & Trail Project. Staff recommends that the 
RTC amend the Measure D-Rail 5-year plan to program additional 
$1,630,000 of funds for the concept report (Task 1), including 
project management, oversight and community outreach. 

FISCAL IMPACT

The Project is funded by the Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program 
($3,450,000), previously programmed Measure D Rail category 
($3,800,000), Measure D Trail category ($350,000) funds. Due to the 
funding shortfall of $1,630,000, staff recommends programming additional 
Measure D-Rail funds to fully fund Task 1, including project management, 
oversight and community outreach. There is uncertainty as to whether there 
will be sufficient Measure D-Rail funding to meet cash needs during delivery 
of the Project Concept Report.  This uncertainty is primarily based on 
pending FEMA reimbursement of the RTC’s costs associated with 2017 storm 
damage on the rail line.  There is also uncertainty associated with the timing 
of other expenses, including anticipated invoices for the Project Concept 
Report.  However, RTC staff estimates that within the regional programs 
administered by RTC, there will be sufficient funding to maintain cash flow, 
with the understanding that it may be necessary to implement inter-program 
loans, in accordance with Policy 4.4, Use of Inter-Investment Category 
Loans. 

Measure D-Rail is the only locally controlled funding that RTC can presently 
program towards the project; however, there is other locally controlled 
funding that may become available for RTC programming soon.  For 
example, the State budget included TIRCP formula funds which could be 
used for both the Project Concept Report and/or the Tasks 2-4 to complete 
the environmental documents, but that funding will not be available for 
Santa Cruz County until adoption of funding guidelines by the state. RTC 
could also use other locally-controlled funding, such as State Transportation 
Improvement Program (STIP) or Surface Transportation Block Grant 
(STBG)/Regional Surface Transportation Program Exchange (RSTPX) as 
explained in Item #28 on today’s agenda. If desired by the Commission, 

27-5



TIRCP Master Agreement & ZE Passenger Rail & Trail Contract Page  6 

staff could return and recommend programming one of these other fund 
sources towards the rail and trail project to reduce the burden on 
Measure D, reduce or avoid the need for inter-program loans, and/or to 
serve as a match for future grants to fully fund the preliminary engineering 
and environmental analysis.   

SUMMARY 

Staff recommends that the RTC authorize the Executive Director to enter 
into the TIRCP Master Agreement with Caltrans to administer grant funding 
for Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP) and further authorize 
the Executive Director to Negotiate and Execute Program Supplements, 
Cooperative/Contribution Agreements, Fund Exchange Agreements, 
Amendments, and other funding agreements. Staff also recommends that 
the RTC authorize the Executive Director to negotiate and execute a 
professional engineering services agreement with HDR Engineering, Inc., 
program and budget an additional $1.63 million of Measure D-Rail funds to 
complete the Project Concept Report phase (Task 1) of the Zero Emission 
Passenger Rail & Trail Project, and utilize Measure D inter-program loans, if 
needed, for cash flow purposes.  

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Resolution
A. Draft TIRCP Master Agreement

2. Resolution
A. Draft Professional Engineer Services Contract TP 2155

27-6



RESOLUTION NO. 

Adopted by the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
on the date of August 3, 2023
on the motion of Commissioner
duly seconded by Commissioner 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO NEGOTIATE AND 
EXECUTE MASTER AGREEMENTS, PROGRAM SUPPLEMENT AGREEMENTS, AND 

OTHER AGREEMENTS WITH CALTRANS AND OTHER STATE AGENCIES TO 
ADMINISTER TRANSIT AND INTERCITY RAIL CAPITAL PROGRAM (TIRCP) GRANT 

FUNDING AND OTHER STATE AND FEDERAL FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the RTC is the designated Regional Transportation Planning Agency 
for Santa Cruz County under state law; 

WHEREAS, the RTC is an eligible recipient of funding for transportation related 
projects through the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), the 
California Transportation Commission (CTC), and the California State Transportation 
Agency (CalSTA); 

WHEREAS, the RTC must periodically execute Master Agreements, Program 
Supplements, Contribution/Cooperative Agreements, Fund Exchange Agreements, 
Fund Transfer Agreements, and/or other agreements or amendments to such 
agreements (hereafter, “Agreements and/or Amendments”) before such funds may 
be allocated and available to the RTC; 

WHEREAS, in connection with the RTC’s application for the FY 2023 Transit 
and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP), the State has awarded funding to the 
RTC for the Zero Emission Passenger Rail & Trail Project; 

WHEREAS, to receive the awarded funds from TIRCP, the RTC must enter into 
Agreements and/or Amendments with the State of California through the Caltrans 
Division of Local Assistance (DLA); 

WHEREAS, the TIRCP Master Agreement between the RTC and the State of 
California will be effective for ten (10) years, commencing upon final signature; 

WHEREAS, the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund and Senate Bill 1 Fund are 
the applicable funding sources covered by the Master Agreement and will be 
identified in each specific Program Supplement, adopting the terms of the Master 
Agreement; 

WHEREAS, the Zero Emission Passenger Rail & Trail Project Concept Report 

Attachment 1

27-7



considered part of the Project Approval/Environmental Document (PA/ED) 
component is ready to proceed, partially funded by TIRCP;  

WHEREAS, the California Transportation Commission (CTC) administers the 
TIRCP funds and requires that the RTC enter into Agreements and/or Amendments 
with Caltrans before it can allocate TIRCP funds to the RTC; 

WHEREAS, the RTC wishes to authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute 
the TIRCP Master Agreement and to make the required certifications in the Master 
Agreement; 

WHEREAS, the RTC wishes to authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute 
Agreements and/or Amendments with the State of California to receive state and 
federal funding, as may be required; 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE SANTA CRUZ COUNTY REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION THAT: 

The Executive Director, or their designee, is hereby authorized to: 

1. Negotiate and execute Master Agreements, Program Supplement Agreements,
Cooperative/Contribution agreements, Fund Exchange Agreements, other
agreements, and amendments to such agreements with the State of California,
Caltrans and other state agencies, as may be necessary, to receive and
administer grant funding for Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP)
grant awards; and

2. Negotiate and execute Master Agreements, Program Supplement Agreements,
Cooperative/Contribution Agreements, Fund Exchange Agreements, other
funding agreements and amendments to such agreements with the State of
California, Caltrans, California State Transportation Agency, the California
Transportation Commission and other state or federal agencies, as may be
necessary, to receive and administer regional, state and/or federal funds; and

3. Prepare and submit applications for funding of projects and programs,
consistent with the RTC’s adopted Annual Budget and Work Program or other
RTC documents or actions.

AYES: COMMISSIONERS 

27-8



NOES: COMMISSIONERS 

ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS 

 __________________________ 
Manu Koenig, Chair 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Guy Preston, Secretary  

EXHIBIT A:  Draft Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission Master 
Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA (SCCRTC – Caltrans) for the 
administration of the Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP) Grant 
Program 

Distribution:  RTC Fiscal, RTC Project Manager, Caltrans

27-9



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023  Page 1 

California State Transportation Agency 

Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program 

Grant Recipient: 

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation 
Commission 

CalSTA Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program Administered by: 

California Department of Transportation 
Division of Local Assistance 
1120 N Street, Room 3300 

P.O. Box 942874, MS-39 
Sacramento, California 94274-0001 

DRAFT

EXHIBIT A

27-10



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
RECITALS __________________________________________________________________________ 4 

ARTICLE I - DEFINITIONS _____________________________________________________________ 5 

ARTICLE II – TIRCP PROJECTS AND ADMINISTRATION __________________________________ 7 

Section 1.  TIRCP Projects and Project Management _______________________________ 7 

Section 2.  Program Supplement _________________________________________________ 8 
A. General __________________________________________________________________ 8
B. Project Overrun _________________________________________________________ 10
C. Cost Savings and Project Completion _____________________________________ 10
D. Scope of Work __________________________________________________________ 11
E. Program Supplement Amendments ______________________________________ 11

Section 3.  Allowable Costs and Payments _______________________________________ 11 
A. Allowable Costs and Progress Payment Invoice ___________________________ 11
B. Final Invoice _____________________________________________________________ 12

ARTICLE III – GENERAL PROVISIONS _________________________________________________ 12 

Section 1. Funding ______________________________________________________________ 12 

Section 2.  Audits and Reports ___________________________________________________ 12 
A. Cost Principles ___________________________________________________________ 12
B. Record Retention ________________________________________________________ 13
C. Reporting Requirements _________________________________________________ 14

Section 3.  Special Requirements ________________________________________________ 16 
A. California Transportation Commission Resolutions __________________________ 16
B. Recipient Resolution _____________________________________________________ 16
C. Termination _____________________________________________________________ 17
D. Third Party Contracting __________________________________________________ 18
E. Change in Funds and Terms/Amendments ________________________________ 18
F. Project Ownership _______________________________________________________ 18
G. Disputes_________________________________________________________________ 21
H. Hold Harmless and Indemnification _______________________________________ 21
I. Labor Code Compliance ________________________________________________ 22
J. Non-Discrimination Clause _______________________________________________ 22
K. State Fire Marshal Building Standards Code _______________________________ 23
L. Americans with Disabilities Act ___________________________________________ 23
M. Access for Persons with Disabilities ________________________________________ 24
N. Disabled Veterans Program Requirements ________________________________ 24
O. Environmental Process ___________________________________________________ 24
P. Force Majeure __________________________________________________________ 25

ARTICLE IV – MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS _________________________________________ 25 

Section 1.  Miscellaneous Provisions ______________________________________________ 25 
A. Successor Acts __________________________________________________________ 25

DRAFT

27-11



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 3 

B. Successor and Assigns to the Parties ______________________________________ 25
C. Notice __________________________________________________________________ 25
D. Amendment ____________________________________________________________ 26
E. Representation and Warranties of the Parties ______________________________ 26
F. Construction, Number, Gender and Captions _____________________________ 28
G. Complete Agreement ___________________________________________________ 28
H. Partial Invalidity __________________________________________________________ 28
I. Conflicts ________________________________________________________________ 28
J. Counterparts ____________________________________________________________ 29
K. Governing Law __________________________________________________________ 29

Appendix A - TIRCP PROGRAM GUIDELINES AND DEPARTMENT DELEGATION __________ 30 

Appendix B - RECIPIENT'S RESOLUTION ______________________________________________ 31 

DRAFT

27-12



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 4 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Effective Date of this Agreement: September 1, 2023, or upon final signature, 
whichever is earlier 

Termination Date of this Agreement: September 1, 2033 

Recipient: Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation 
Commission  

Application Funding: The Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund and 
Senate Bill 1 Fund are the applicable funding 
source covered by this Agreement and will be 
identified in each specific Program 
Supplement, adopting the terms of this 
Agreement.  

RECITALS 

1. WHEREAS, The Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 (the “ACT”) (Assembly

Bill [AB] 32, Nunez, Chapter 488) created a comprehensive program to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions in California. AB 32 requires California to reduce
greenhouse gases to 1990 levels by 2020, and to maintain and continue
reductions beyond 2020. In March 2012, Governor Brown signed Executive Order
B‐16‐2012 affirming a long‐range climate goal for California to reduce
greenhouse gases from the transportation sector to 80 percent below 1990 levels
by 2050.

2. WHEREAS, the Cap‐and‐Trade Program is a key element in California’s
climate plan. It creates a limit on the emissions from sources responsible for 85
percent of California’s greenhouse gas emissions, establishes the price signal
needed to drive long‐term investment in cleaner fuels and more efficient use of
energy, and gives covered entities flexibility to implement the lowest‐cost options
to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

3. WHEREAS, in 2012, the Legislature passed and Governor Brown signed into
law three bills, AB 1532 (Pérez, Chapter 807, Statutes of 2012), Senate Bill (SB) 535
(De León, Chapter 830, Statutes of 2012), and SB 1018 (Budget and Fiscal Review
Committee, Chapter 39, Statutes of 2012), that established the Greenhouse Gas
Reduction Fund (GGRF) to receive proceeds from the distribution of allowances
via auction and provided the framework for how those auction proceeds will be

DRAFT

27-13



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 5 

appropriated and expended. These statutes require that expenditures from the 
GGRF be used to facilitate the achievement of greenhouse gas emission 
reductions and further the purposes of AB 32. 

4. WHEREAS, in 2017, the Legislature passed and Governor Brown signed into
law the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 SB 1, which directed
additional funding to the Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP).

5. WHEREAS, TIRCP is one of several programs funded as part of the 2014-2015
State of California Budget (Senate Bill 852 and Senate Bill 862), and implemented
pursuant to Public Resources Code section 75220 et seq and Health and Safety
Code section 39719 et seq.

6. WHEREAS, as directed by the ACT, CalSTA established TIRCP Program
Guidelines that describe the policy, standards, criteria, and procedures for the
development, adoption and management of the TIRCP Program.

7. WHEREAS, Recipient has submitted an application, been evaluated and
selected by CalSTA in accordance with the TIRCP Program Guidelines.

8. WHEREAS, on August 17, 2015, CalSTA delegated the administration of the
TIRCP Program to the Department pursuant to the TIRCP Program Guidelines and
the Department’s policies and procedures for the administration of similar grant

programs.

9. NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals and the rights, duties and
covenants set forth herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby
agree to the following:

10. This Agreement, entered into effective as of the date set forth above, is
between the signatory public entity identified hereinabove, (hereinafter referred
to as Recipient), and the STATE OF CALIFORNIA, acting by and through the
California Department of Transportation (hereinafter referred to as DEPARTMENT),
and subject to the approval of the California State Transportation Agency
(CalSTA).

ARTICLE I - DEFINITIONS 

The terms defined in this Article I shall for all purposes of this Agreement have the 
meanings specified herein. 

1.1 “Act” refers to the Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 (the “ACT”) 

(Assembly Bill [AB] 32, Nunez, Chapter 488) created a comprehensive program to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions in California.  

DRAFT

27-14



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 6 

1.2 “Agreement” shall mean this Agreement, inclusive of all appendices and 
Program Supplements, whereby the Department, on behalf of CalSTA, and 
pursuant to the Act and as set forth herein, administers the TIRCP Program.  

1.3 “Award Agreement” shall mean a project-specific subcontract to this 
agreement executed following Project award and may include Project specific 
information, expected outcomes, and deliverables. 

1.4 “California Department of Transportation” or “Caltrans” or “Department” 
means the State of California, acting by and through its Department of 
Transportation of the State of California, and any entity succeeding to the powers, 
authorities and responsibilities of the Department invoked by or under this 
Agreement or the Program Supplements. 

1.5 “California Transportation Commission” or “CTC” shall refer to the 

commission established in 1978 by Assembly Bill 402 (Chapter 1106, Statutes of 
1977). 

1.6 “Effective Date” means the date set forth on page 4 of this Agreement. 

1.7 “Greenhouse Gas Reduction Funds” or “GGRF” shall mean the funds 

subject to Chapter 26, Statutes of 2014, authorizing the State to fund capital 
improvements and operational investments for California’s transit systems and 

intercity, commuter, and urban rail systems. 

1.8 “Senate Bill 1” or “SB 1” shall mean the funds subject to Chapter 5, Statutes 

of 2017, authorizing the State to fund capital improvements and investments for 
California’s transit systems and intercity, commuter, and urban rail systems. 

1.9 “Overall Funding Plan” has the meaning set forth in Article II, Section 
2(A)(5)(c). 

1.10 “Program Guidelines” shall mean the policy, standards, criteria, and 
procedures for the development, adoption and management of the TIRCP 
Projects established by CalSTA and provided in Appendix A. 

1.11 “Program Supplement” shall mean a project-specific subcontract to this 
Agreement that is executed following a CTC approved action and includes all 
Project specific information needed to encumber funding and shall include 
expected outcomes and deliverables.  Also referred to as Project Supplement 
Agreement.  

1.12 “Program Supplement Last Expenditure Date” refers to the last date for 
Recipient to incur valid Project costs or credits.   

DRAFT

27-15



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 7 

1.13 “Program Supplement Termination” shall occur when the Recipient’s 
obligations have been fully performed as set forth in Article II, Section 2D and 
Article III, Section 3(C)(2) or when terminated by convenience as set forth in 
Article III, Section 3(C)(1). 

1.14 “Project” shall mean the project identified in Recipient’s application. 

1.15 “Project Closeout Report” shall have the meaning set forth in Article II, Section 
3(B). 

1.16 “Project Financial Plan” shall have the meaning set forth in Article II, Section 
2(A)(5)(d). 

1.17 “Progress Payment Invoice” shall have the meaning set forth in Article II, 
Section 3A. 

1.18 “Project Schedule” has the meaning set forth in Article II, Section 2(A)(5)(b). 

1.19 “Scope of Work” has the meaning set forth in Article II, Section 2(A)(5)(a). 

1.20 “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the California State Transportation 
Agency (CalSTA). Unless the context otherwise requires, any reference to the 
Secretary includes CalSTA and its officers and employees.  

1.21 “State” shall mean the State of California. 

1.22 “TIRCP Projects” shall mean projects that are selected and funded pursuant 
to the Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program. 

ARTICLE II – TIRCP PROJECTS AND ADMINISTRATION 

Section 1.  TIRCP Projects and Project Management 

1. TIRCP Projects, pursuant to the Act, are established by CalSTA in
accordance with the TIRCP Program Guidelines.  Under delegation from CalSTA,
the Department will administer the TIRCP Program in accordance with the TIRCP
Program Guidelines and best management practices identified in the
administration of similar Department grant programs.

2. By this reference, TIRCP Program Guidelines are made an express part of
this Agreement and shall apply to each TIRCP Program funded Project as may be
amended or updated.  Recipient will cause its specific TIRCP mandated
Resolution to be attached as part of any TIRCP funded Program Supplement as a
condition precedent to the acceptance of GGRF or SB 1 Funds (upon availability
and allocation), for such project.

DRAFT

27-16



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 8 

3. All inquiries during the term of this Agreement and any applicable Program
Supplement will be directed to the project representatives identified below:

State’s Project Administrator:  

Department of Transportation 

Dee Lam 
Chief Division of Local Assistance 
1120 N Street 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

Phone: (916) 202-0620 

Email: Dee.Lam@dot.ca.gov 

Recipient’s Project Administrator: 

Santa Cruz County Regional 
Transportation Commission  

Guy Preston 
Executive Director 
1101 Pacific Avenue, Suite 250 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

Phone: (831) 460-3200 

Email: gpreston@sccrtc.org 

Section 2.  Program Supplement 

A. General

1. This Agreement shall have no force and effect with respect to the Project
unless and until a separate Project specific program supplement hereinafter
referred to as “Program Supplement,” adopting all of the terms and conditions of

this Agreement has been fully executed by both State and Recipient.

2. Recipient agrees to complete the defined scope of work for the Project,
described in the Program Supplement adopting all of the terms and conditions of
this Agreement.

3. A financial commitment of actual funds will only occur in each detailed
and separate Program Supplement.  No funds are obligated by the prior
execution of this Agreement alone.

4. Recipient further agrees, as a condition to the release and payment of the
funds encumbered for the scope of work described in each Program
Supplement, to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and all
the agreed-upon special covenants and conditions attached to or made a part
of the Program Supplement identifying and defining the nature of that specific
scope of work.

5. The Program Supplement shall include a detailed scope of work, which shall
include but not be limited to, a Project Description, a Project Schedule, an Overall
Funding Plan, and a Project Financial Plan as required in the TIRCP Program
Guidelines.

DRAFT

27-17



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 9 

a. The Scope of Work shall include a detailed description of the Project
and will itemize the major tasks and their estimated costs. 

b. The Project Schedule shall include major tasks and/or milestones and
their associated beginning and ending dates and duration. 

c. The Overall Funding Plan shall itemize the various Project
Components, the committed funding program(s) or source(s), and the matching 
funds to be provided by Recipient and/or other funding sources, if any [these 
Components include Environmental and Permits; Plans, Specifications and 
Estimates (PS&E); Right-of-Way (ROW); and Construction (including transit vehicle 
acquisition)]. 

d. The Project Financial Plan shall identify estimated expenditures for the
Project Component by funding source, provided that for the purposes of this 
Agreement the State is only monitoring compliance for expenditures for the TIRCP, 
including but not limited to GGRF and SB 1 Funds allocated for the Project 
Component.  

6. Adoption and execution of the Program Supplement by Recipient and
State, incorporating the terms and conditions of this Agreement into the Program
Supplement as though fully set forth therein, shall be sufficient to bind Recipient
to these terms and conditions when performing the Project.  Unless otherwise
expressly delegated to a third-party in a resolution by Recipient’s governing body,

which delegation must be expressly assented to and concurred in by State, the
Program Supplement shall be managed by Recipient.

7. The estimated cost and scope of the Project will be as described in the
applicable Program Supplement.  The State shall not participate in any funding
for the Project beyond those amounts actually encumbered by the STATE as
evidenced in the applicable Program Supplement unless the appropriate steps
are followed and approval is granted by the CTC as described below.

8. Upon the stated expiration date of this Agreement, any Program
Supplement executed under this Agreement for the Project with obligations yet
to be completed pursuant to the approved Project Schedule, deliverables, and
reporting requirements shall be deemed to extend the term of this Agreement
only to conform to the specific Project termination or completion date, including
completion of deliverables and reporting requirements, contemplated by the
applicable Program Supplement to allow that uncompleted Project to be
administered under the extended terms and conditions of this Agreement.

9. Total project cost includes the cost of a project for all phases (Plans,
Specifications, and Estimates (PS&E), Project Approval and Environmental

DRAFT

27-18



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 10 

Document (PA&ED) Right-of-Way (ROW), and Construction (CON) including 
rolling stock) of a Project from start to finish.   

B. Project Overrun

1. If Recipient or the State determine, at any time during the performance of
the Project, that the Project budget may be exceeded, Recipient shall take the
following steps:

a. Notify the designated State representative of the nature and
projected extent of the overrun and, within a reasonable period, thereafter, 
identify and quantify potential cost savings or other measures which Recipient will 
institute to bring the Project Budget into balance; and 

b. Identify the source of additional Recipient or other third-party funds
that can be made available to complete Project.  Recipient agrees that the 
allocation of the GGRF and SB 1 funds is subject to the allocation proposed by 
the CalSTA, submitted by the State, and approved by the CTC. 

C. Cost Savings and Project Completion

1. Recipient is encouraged to evaluate design and construction alternatives
that would mitigate the costs of delivering the commitments for the Project.
Recipient shall take all steps necessary on a commercially reasonable basis that
would generally be taken in accordance with best management practices.  In
determining cost savings, the Parties shall take into account all avoided costs,
including avoided design, right-of-way, material, equipment, labor, construction,
testing, acceptance and overhead costs and avoided costs due to time savings,
and all the savings in financing costs associated with such avoided costs.

2. If there is an identification and implementation of any CalSTA approved
alternative resulting in reduction of the Project costs, the parties agree that the
recipient shall provide a prorated share of Project or TIRCP funded Project
component cost savings based on the overall project match to the Department
no later than 30 days after the submission of the final invoice.  Subject to CalSTA’s

approval, savings may be used towards another project component or towards
increasing project benefits that are consistent with the original project award
while maintaining the overall project match referenced in the project award and
program supplements.

3. Program supplements will indicate the Project or Component proration of
funding match.

4. The Recipient agrees to complete the Project and accepts sole
responsibility for the payment of any cost increases. If either the Project or the

DRAFT

27-19



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 11 

funded components are not completed, the Recipient shall bear the burden of 
full TIRCP funds reimbursement to the Department.  

D. Scope of Work

1. Recipient shall be responsible for complete performance of the work
described in the approved Program Supplement for the Project related to the
commitment of encumbered funds.  All work shall be accomplished in
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act, Public Utilities Code, the
Streets and Highways Code, the Government Code, and other applicable
statutes and regulations.

2. Recipient acknowledges and agrees that Recipient is the sole control and
manager of the Project and its subsequent employment, operation, repair and
maintenance for the benefit of the public.  Recipient shall be solely responsible
for complying with the funding and use restrictions established by (a) the statutes
from which the GGRF and SB1 Funds are derived, (b) the CTC, (c) the State
Treasurer, (d) the Internal Revenue Service, (e) the applicable Program
Supplement, and (f) this Agreement.

3. Recipient acknowledges and agrees that the Recipient is responsible for
complying with all reporting requirements established by the TIRCP Guidelines
and California Air Resource Board (CARB) Funding Guidelines.

E. Program Supplement Amendments

Program Supplement amendments will be required whenever there are CalSTA 
or CTC approved actions, including but not limited to, Financial Allocations, 
Financial Allocation Amendments, Time Extensions and Technical Corrections.  
These changes shall be mutually binding upon the Parties only following the 
execution of a Program Supplement amendment. 

Section 3.  Allowable Costs and Payments 

A. Allowable Costs and Progress Payment Invoice

1. Not more frequently than once a month, Recipient will prepare and submit
to State signed Progress Payment Invoice for actual Project costs incurred and
paid for by Recipient consistent with the allocation and Scope of Work document
in the Program Supplement and State shall pay those uncontested allowable
costs once the invoice is reviewed and approved by the Department, subject to
CalSTA’s approval.  If no costs were incurred during any given quarter, Recipient
is exempt from submitting a signed Progress Payment Invoice.

DRAFT

27-20



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 12 

2. State shall not be required to reimburse more funds, cumulatively, per
quarter of any fiscal year greater than the sums identified and included in the
Project Financial Plan.  The State shall hold the right to determine reimbursement
availability based on an approved expenditure plan and TIRCP anticipated or
actual funding capacity. Each such invoice will report the total of Project
expenditures from GGRF and SB 1 Funds (including those of Recipient and third
parties) and will specify the percent of State reimbursement requested and the
GGRF and SB 1 Funds source.

B. Final Invoice

The Program Supplement Last Expenditure Dates(s) refer to the last date for 
Recipient to incur valid Project costs or credits.  Recipient has one hundred and 
eighty (180) days after that Last Expenditure Date to make already incurred final 
allowable payments to Project contractors or vendors, prepare the Project 
Closeout Report, and submit the final invoice to State for reimbursement of 
allowable Project costs before those remaining State funds are unencumbered 
and those funds are reverted as no longer available to pay any Project costs.  
Recipient expressly waives any right to allowable reimbursements from State 
pursuant to this Agreement for costs incurred after that termination date and for 
costs invoiced to Recipient for payment after that one hundred and eightieth 
(180th) day following the Project Last Expenditure Date. 

ARTICLE III – GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Section 1. Funding 

1. Recipient agrees to contribute at least the statutorily or other required local
contribution of matching funds (other than State or federal funds), if any is
specified within the Program Supplement or any appendices thereto, toward the
actual cost of the Project or the amount, if any, specified in any executed SB 2800
(Streets and Highways Code Section 164.53) Agreement for local match fund
credit, whichever is greater.  Recipient shall contribute not less than its required
match amount toward the Project cost in accordance with a schedule of
payments as shown in the Project Financial Plan prepared by Recipient and
approved by State as part of a Program Supplement.

Section 2.  Audits and Reports 

A. Cost Principles

1. Recipient agrees to comply with Title 2 Code of Federal Regulations 200 (2
CFR 200) Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles for State and Local
Government, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards.

DRAFT

27-21



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 13 

2. Recipient agrees, and will assure that its contractors and subcontractors will
be obligated to follow 2 CFR 200, and which shall be used to determine the
allowability of individual Project cost items. Every sub-recipient receiving Project
funds as a contractor or sub-contractor under this Agreement shall comply with 2
CFR 200.

3. Any Project costs for which Recipient has received payment or credit that
are determined by subsequent audit to be unallowable under 2 CFR 200, are
subject to repayment by Recipient to State.  Should Recipient fail to reimburse
moneys due State within thirty (30) days of demand, or within such other period
as may be agreed in writing between the Parties hereto, State is authorized to
intercept and withhold future payments due to Recipient from State or any third-
party source whose funding passes through the State, including but not limited to,
the State Treasurer, the State Controller and the CTC.

4. The State may terminate the grant for any reason at any time if it is
determined by the State, based on an audit under this section, that there has
been a violation of any State or federal law or policy by the Recipient during
performance under this or any other grant agreement or contract entered into
with the State.  If the grant is terminated under this section, the Recipient may be
required to fully or partially repay funds.

B. Record Retention

1. Recipient agrees, and will assure that its contractors and subcontractors
shall establish and maintain an accounting system and records that properly
accumulate and segregate incurred Project costs and matching funds by line
item for the Project.  The accounting system of Recipient, its contractors and all
subcontractors shall conform to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP), enable the determination of incurred costs at interim points of
completion, and provide support for reimbursement payment vouchers or
invoices.  All accounting records and other supporting papers of Recipient, its
contractors and subcontractors connected with Project performance under this
Agreement and each Program Supplement shall be maintained for a minimum
of three (3) years from the date of final payment to Recipient under a Program
Supplement and shall be held open to inspection, copying, and audit by
representatives of State, the California State Auditor, and auditors representing
the federal government.  Copies thereof will be furnished by Recipient, its
contractors, and subcontractors upon receipt of any request made by State or its
agents.  In conducting an audit of the costs and match credits claimed under this
Agreement, State will rely to the maximum extent possible on any prior audit of
Recipient pursuant to the provisions of federal and State law.  In the absence of
such an audit, any acceptable audit work performed by Recipient’s external and

DRAFT

27-22



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 14 

internal auditors may be relied upon and used by State when planning and 
conducting additional audits. 

2. For the purpose of determining compliance with Title 21, California Code of
Regulations, Section 2500 et seq., when applicable, and other matters connected
with the performance of Recipient’s contracts with third parties pursuant to
Government Code section 8546.7, Recipient, Recipient’s contractors and

subcontractors, and State shall each maintain and make available for inspection
all books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence
pertaining to the performance of such contracts, including, but not limited to, the
costs of administering those various contracts. All of the above referenced parties
shall make such Agreement and Program Supplement materials available at their
respective offices at all reasonable times during the entire Project period and for
three (3) years from the date of final payment to Recipient under any Program
Supplement. State, the California State Auditor, or any duly authorized
representative of State or the United States Department of Transportation, shall
each have access to any books, records, and documents that are pertinent to
the Project for audits, examinations, excerpts, and transactions, and Recipient
shall furnish copies thereof if requested.

3. Recipient, its contractors and subcontractors will permit access to all
records of employment, employment advertisements, employment application
forms, and other pertinent data and records by the State Fair Employment
Practices and Housing Commission, or any other agency of the State of California
designated by State, for the purpose of any investigation to ascertain compliance
with this Agreement and the Act.

C. Reporting Requirements

1. Reporting requirements of Recipient will include whether reported
implementation activities are within the scope of the Project Program Supplement
and in compliance with State laws, regulations, and administrative requirements.

2. TIRCP Progress Reporting shall be no more frequently than monthly and no
less frequently than quarterly at the discretion of the State and shall generally
include the following information;

a. Activities and progress made towards implementation of the project
during the reporting period and activities anticipated to take place in the next 
reporting period; 

b. Identification of whether the Project is proceeding on schedule and
within budget; 

DRAFT

27-23



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 15 

c. Identification of whether the Project Deliverables are proceeding on
schedule. 

d. Identification of changes to the Project funding plan, milestone
schedule, or deliverables completion date; 

e. Any actual or anticipated problems which could lead to delays in
schedule, increased costs or other difficulties for either the Project or other State 
funded projects impacted by the Project’s scope of work and the efforts or 
activities being undertaken to minimize impacts to schedule, cost, or deliverables; 

3. CARB Reporting shall be no more frequently than monthly and no less
frequently than semiannually at the discretion of CARB and shall include the
following information (subject to modification by CARB);

a. Identify metrics and benefits achieved for disadvantaged
communities, low income communities, and/or low-income households; 

b. continued reporting following project implementation to identify
benefits achieved. 

c. Any and all other requirements instituted by CARB.

4. Within one year of the Project or reportable Project components becoming
operable, the implementing agency must provide a final delivery report including
at a minimum:

a. Scope of completed Project as compared to Programmed Project;

b. Performance outcomes derived from the project as compared to
outcomes described in the Project application and shall include but not be 
limited to before and after measurements and estimates for ridership, service 
levels, greenhouse gas reductions, updated estimated greenhouse gas 
reductions over the life of the project, benefits to disadvantaged communities, 
low income communities, and/or low income households, and project co-
benefits as well as an explanation of the methodology used to quantify the 
benefits. 

c. Before and after photos documenting the project

d. The final costs as compared to the approved project budget by
component and fund type, and an estimate of the TIRCP funds spent to benefit 
disadvantaged communities, low-income communities, and/or low-income 
households, and 

DRAFT

27-24



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 16 

e. The project duration as compared to the project schedule in the
project application. 

Section 3.  Special Requirements 

A. California Transportation Commission Resolutions

1. Recipient shall adhere to applicable CTC policies on “Timely Use of Funds”

as stated in Resolution G-06-04, adopted April 26, 2006, addressing the
expenditure and reimbursement of GGRF and SB 1 Funds.  These resolutions,
and/or successor resolutions in place at the time a Program Supplement is
executed, shall be applicable to GGRF and SB 1 funds, respectively.

2. Recipient shall be bound to the terms and conditions of this Agreement,
the Project application contained in the Program Supplement (as applicable);
and CTC Resolutions G-06-04, G-09-11 and/or their respective successors in place
at the time the Program Supplement is signed (as applicable) and all restrictions,
rights, duties and obligations established therein on behalf of State and CTC shall
accrue to the benefit of the CTC and shall thereafter be subject to any necessary
enforcement action by CTC or State.  All terms and conditions stated in the
aforesaid CTC Resolutions and CTC-approved Guidelines in place at the time the
Program Supplement is signed (if applicable) shall also be considered to be
binding provisions of this Agreement.

3. Recipient shall conform to any and all permit and mitigation duties
associated with Project as well as all environmental obligations established in CTC
Resolution G-91-2 and/or its successors in place at the time a Program
Supplement is signed, as applicable, at the expense of Recipient and/or the
responsible party and without any further financial contributions or obligations on
the part of State unless a separate Program Supplement expressly provides
funding for the specific purpose of hazardous materials remediation.

B. Recipient Resolution

1. Recipient has executed this Agreement pursuant to the authorizing
Recipient resolution, attached as Appendix B to this Agreement, which empowers
Recipient to enter into this Agreement and which may also empower Recipient
to enter into all subsequent Program Supplements adopting the provisions of this
Agreement.

2. If Recipient or State determines that a separate Resolution is needed for
each Program Supplement, Recipient will provide information as to who the
authorized designee is to act on behalf of the Recipient to bind Recipient with
regard to the terms and conditions of any said Program Supplement or

DRAFT

27-25



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 17 

amendment and will provide a copy of that additional Resolution to State with 
the Program Supplement or any amendment to that document. 

C. Termination

1. Termination Convenience by State

a. State reserves the right to terminate funding for any Program
Supplement, subject to CalSTA approval, upon written notice to Recipient in the 
event that Recipient fails to proceed with Project work in accordance with the 
Program Supplement, or otherwise violates the conditions of this Agreement 
and/or the Program Supplement or the funding allocation such that substantial 
performance is significantly endangered. 

b. No such termination shall become effective if, within thirty (30) days
after receipt of a notice of termination, Recipient either cures the default involved 
or, if not reasonably susceptible of cure within said thirty (30)-day period, 
Recipient proceeds thereafter to complete the cure in a manner and timeline 
acceptable to State. Any such termination shall be accomplished by delivery to 
Recipient of a notice of termination, which notice shall become effective not less 
than thirty (30) days after receipt, specifying the reason for the termination, the 
extent to which funding of work under this Agreement is terminated and the date 
upon which such termination becomes effective, if beyond thirty (30) days after 
receipt.  During the period before the effective termination date, Recipient and 
State shall meet to attempt to resolve any dispute. 

c. Following a fund encumbrance made pursuant to a Program
Supplement, if Recipient fails to expend GGRF or SB 1 monies within the time 
allowed specified in the Program Supplement, those funds may revert, and be 
deemed withdrawn and will no longer be available to reimburse Project work 
unless those funds are specifically made available beyond the end of that Fiscal 
Year through re-appropriation or other equivalent action of the Legislature and 
written notice of that action is provided to Recipient by State. 

d. In the event State terminates a Program Supplement for
convenience and not for a default on the part of Recipient as is contemplated in 
this section, Recipient shall be reimbursed its authorized costs up to State’s 

proportionate and maximum share of allowable Project costs incurred to the date 
of Recipient’s receipt of that notice of termination, including any unavoidable 

costs reasonably and necessarily incurred up to and following that termination 
date by Recipient to effect such termination following receipt of that termination 
notice. 

2. Termination After Recipient’s Obligations Fully Performed

DRAFT

27-26



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 18 

Following project completion, and all obligations as defined in the TIRCP 
Guidelines, CARB Guidelines, and Program Supplement are fully performed, 
including Project completion of all deliverables and reporting, the Program 
Supplement shall be terminated.  If the Project obligations are not fully performed, 
as defined under this section, the Recipient may be required to fully or partially 
repay funds. 

D. Third Party Contracting

1. Recipient shall not award a construction contract over $10,000 or other
contracts over $25,000 [excluding professional service contracts of the type which
are required to be procured in accordance with Government Code Sections
4525 (d), (e) and (f)] on the basis of a noncompetitive negotiation for work to be
performed under this Agreement without the prior written approval of State.
Contracts awarded by Recipient, if intended as local match credit, must meet
the requirements set forth in this Agreement regarding local match funds.

2. Any subcontract entered into by Recipient as a result of this Agreement
shall contain the provisions of ARTICLE III – GENERAL PROVISIONS, Section 2. Audits
and Reports and shall mandate that travel and per diem reimbursements and
third-party contract reimbursements to subcontractors will be allowable as Project
costs only after those costs are incurred and paid for by the subcontractors.

3. In addition to the above, the pre-award requirements of third-party
contractor/consultants with local transit agencies should be consistent with Local
Program Procedures (LPP-00-05).

E. Change in Funds and Terms/Amendments

This Agreement and the resultant Program Supplements may be modified, 
altered, or revised only with the joint written consent of Recipient and State. 

F. Project Ownership

1. Unless expressly provided to the contrary in a Program Supplement, subject
to the terms and provisions of this Agreement, Recipient, or a designated
subrecipient acceptable to State, as applicable, shall be the sole owner of all
improvements and property included in the Project constructed, installed or
acquired by Recipient or subrecipient with funding provided to Recipient under
this Agreement.  Recipient, or subrecipient, as applicable, is obligated to
continue operation and maintenance of the physical aspects of the Project
dedicated to the public transportation purposes for which Project was initially
approved unless Recipient, or subrecipient, as applicable, ceases ownership of
such Project property; ceases to utilize the Project property for the intended
public transportation purposes; or sells or transfers title to or control over Project

DRAFT

27-27



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 19 

and State is refunded the Credits due State as provided in paragraph (2) herein 
below. 

2. Project right-of-way, Project facilities constructed or reconstructed on the
Project site and/or Project property (including vehicles and vessels) purchased by
Recipient (excluding temporary construction easements and excess property
whose proportionate resale proceeds are distributed pursuant to this Agreement)
shall remain permanently dedicated to the described public transit use in the
same proportion and scope, and to the same extent as mandated in the Program
Supplement, unless State agrees otherwise in writing.  Vehicles acquired as part
of Project, including, but not limited to, buses, vans, rail passenger equipment,
shall be dedicated to that public transportation use for their full economic life
cycle, which, for the purpose of this Agreement, will be determined in
accordance with standard national transit practices and applicable rules and
guidelines, including any extensions of that life cycle achievable by
reconstruction, rehabilitation or enhancements.  The exceptions to this section are
outlined below:

a. Except as otherwise set forth in this Section, State, or any other State-
assignee public body acting on behalf of the CTC, shall be entitled to a refund or 
credit (collectively the Credit), at State’s sole option, equivalent to the 

proportionate Project funding participation received by Recipient from State if 
Recipient, or a sub-recipient, as applicable, (i) ceases to utilize Project for the 
original intended public transportation purposes or (ii) sells or transfers title to or 
control over Project.  If federal funds (meaning only those federal funds received 
directly by Recipient and not federal funds derived through or from the State) 
have contributed to the Project, Recipient shall notify both State and the original 
federal source of those funds of the disposition of the Project assets or the 
intended use of those sale or transfer receipts. 

b. State shall also be entitled to an acquisition credit for any future
purchase or condemnation of all or portions of Project by State or a designated 
representative or agent of State. 

c. The Credit due State will be determined by the ratio of State’s funding

when measured against the Recipient’s funding participation (the Ratio).  For 

purposes of this Section, the State’s funding participation includes federal funds 

derived through or from State.  That Ratio is to be applied to the then present fair 
market value of Project property acquired or constructed as provided in (d) and 
(e) below.

d. For Mass Transit vehicles, this Credit [to be deducted from the then
remaining equipment value] shall be equivalent to the percentage of the full 
extendable vehicle economic life cycle remaining, multiplied by the Ratio of 

DRAFT

27-28



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 
 

7/25/2023        Page 20 

funds provided for that equipment acquisition.  For real property, this same 
funding Ratio shall be applied to the then present fair market value, as 
determined by State, of the Project property acquired or improved under this 
Agreement. 

e. Such Credit due State as a refund shall not be required if Recipient 
dedicates the proceeds of such sale or transfer exclusively to a new or 
replacement State approved public transit purpose, which replacement facility 
or vehicles will then also be subject to the identical use restrictions for that new 
public purpose and the Credit ratio due State should that replacement project or 
those replacement vehicles cease to be used for that intended described pre-
approved public transit purpose. 

i. In determining the present fair market value of property for 
purposes of calculating State’s Credit under this Agreement, any real property 
portions of the Project site contributed by Recipient shall not be included.  In 
determining State’s proportionate funding participation, State’s contributions to 

third parties (other than Recipient) shall be included if those contributions are 
incorporated into the Project. 

ii. Once State has received the Credit as provided for above 
because Recipient, or a sub-recipient, as applicable, has (a) ceased to utilize the 
Project for the described intended public transportation purpose(s) for which 
State funding was provided and State has not consented to that cessation of 
services or (b) sold or transferred title to or control over Project to another party 
(absent State approval for the continued transit operation of the Project by that 
successor party under an assignment of Recipient’s duties and obligations), 

neither Recipient, subrecipient, nor any party to whom Recipient or subrecipient, 
as applicable, has transferred said title or control shall have any further obligation 
under this Agreement to continue operation of Project and/or Project facilities for 
those described public transportation purposes, but may then use Project and/or 
any of its facilities for any lawful purpose. 

iii. To the extent that Recipient operates and maintains 
Intermodal Transfer Stations as any integral part of Project, Recipient shall 
maintain each station and all its appurtenances, including, but not limited to, 
restroom facilities, in good condition and repair in accordance with high 
standards of cleanliness (Public Utilities Code section 99317.8).  Upon request of 
State, Recipient shall also authorize State-funded bus services to use those stations 
and appurtenances without any charge to State or the bus operator.  This 
permitted use will include the placement of signs and informational material 
designed to alert the public to the availability of the State-funded bus service (for 
the purpose of this paragraph, "State-funded bus service" means any bus service 
funded pursuant to Public Utilities Code section 99316). 

DRAFT

27-29



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 21 

G. Disputes

Parties shall develop a mutually agreed upon issue resolution process, as described 
below, and issues between the Parties are to be resolved in a timely manner. The 
Parties agree to the following: 

1. If the Parties are unable to reach agreement on any particular issue relating
to either Parties’ obligations pursuant to this Agreement, the Parties agree to
promptly follow the issue resolution process as outlined below:

a. The Department’s project manager and the Recipient’s equivalent

may initiate the process of informal dispute resolution by providing the other Party 
with written notice of a dispute.  The written notice shall provide a clear statement 
of the dispute and shall refer to the specific provisions of this Agreement or 
Program Supplement that pertain to the dispute.  The Department’s project 

manager and the Recipient’s equivalent shall meet and attempt to resolve the 

dispute within five days from the written notice.  If the dispute is resolved, the 
Parties shall create and sign a short description of the facts and the resolution that 
was agreed upon by the Parties.  

b. If the dispute is not resolved by the fifth day from the written notice,
the Department’s senior project manager and the Recipient’s equivalent shall 

meet and review the dispute within five days.  The Department’s senior project 
manager and the Recipient’s equivalent manager shall attempt to resolve the 

dispute within ten days of their initial meeting.  If the dispute is resolved, the Parties 
shall create and sign a short description of the facts and the resolution that was 
agreed upon by the Parties. 

c. If the dispute is not resolved by the tenth day, the Department’s

Director or his designee and the Recipient’s equivalent manager shall meet and 

review the dispute within five days.  The Department’s Director or his designee and 

the Recipient’s equivalent manager shall attempt to resolve the dispute within ten 

days of the initial meeting.  If the dispute is resolved, the Parties shall create and 
sign a short description of the facts and the resolution that was agreed upon by 
the Parties.  If the dispute is not resolved by the tenth day by the Department’s 

Director or his designee and the Recipient’s equivalent manager, the Parties shall 
submit the matter to the Secretary of CalSTA for a final administrative 
determination. 

H. Hold Harmless and Indemnification

1. Neither State nor any officer or employee thereof shall be responsible for
any damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be
done by Recipient, its agents and contractors under or in connection with any

DRAFT

27-30



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 22 

work, authority, or jurisdiction delegated to Recipient under this Agreement or any 
Program Supplement or as respects environmental clean-up obligations or duties 
of Recipient relative to Project.  It is also understood and agreed that, Recipient 
shall fully defend, indemnify and hold the CTC and State and their officers and 
employees harmless from any liability imposed for injury and damages or 
environmental obligations or duties arising or created by reason of anything done 
or imposed by operation of law or assumed by, or omitted to be done by 
Recipient under or in connection with any work, authority, or jurisdiction 
delegated to Recipient under this Agreement and all Program Supplements. 

2. Recipient shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless State, the CTC and the
State Treasurer relative to any misuse by Recipient of State funds, Project property,
Project generated income or other fiscal acts or omissions of Recipient.

I. Labor Code Compliance

Recipient shall include in all subcontracts awarded using Project funds, when 
applicable, a clause that requires each subcontractor to comply with California 
Labor Code requirements that all workers employed on public works aspects of 
any project (as defined in California Labor Code §§ 1720-1815) be paid not less 
than the general prevailing wage rates predetermined by the Department of 
Industrial Relations as effective the date of Contract award by the Recipient. 

J. Non-Discrimination Clause

1. In the performance of work under this Agreement, Recipient, its
contractor(s) and all subcontractors, shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass or
allow harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because
of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability,
mental disability, medical condition, age, marital status, family and medical care
leave, pregnancy leave, and disability leave.  Recipient, its contractor(s) and all
subcontractors shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees
and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and
harassment.  Recipient, its contractor(s) and all subcontractors shall comply with
the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code
section 12900 et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder
(California Code of Regulations, Title 2, section 7285 et seq.).  The applicable
regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing
Government Code section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2
of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by
reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full.  Each of Recipient’s
contractors and all subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations
under this clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective
bargaining or other agreements, as appropriate.

DRAFT

27-31



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 23 

2. Each of the Recipient’s contractors, subcontractors, and/or subrecipients

shall give written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations
with which they have collective bargaining or other labor agreements. The
Recipient shall include the non-discrimination and compliance provisions hereof
in all contracts and subcontracts to perform work under this Agreement.

3. Should federal funds be constituted as part of Project funding or
compensation received by Recipient under a separate Contract during the
performance of this Agreement, Recipient shall comply with this Agreement and
with all federal mandated contract provisions as set forth in that applicable
federal funding agreement.

4. Recipient shall include the non-discrimination and compliance provisions of
this clause in all contracts and subcontracts to perform work under this
Agreement.

5. The Recipient shall comply with the nondiscrimination program
requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.  Accordingly, 49 CFR 21
(Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of
Transportation—Effectuation of Title VI of The Civil Rights Act of 1964) and 23 CFR
Part 200 (Title VI Program and Related Statutes—Implementation and Review
Procedures) are made applicable to this Agreement by this reference.  Wherever
the term “Contractor” appears therein, it shall mean the Recipient.

6. The Recipient shall permit, and shall require that its contractors,
subcontractors, and subrecipients will permit, access to all records of
employment, employment advertisements, application forms, and other
pertinent data and records by the State Fair Employment Practices and Housing
Commission or any other agency of the State of California designated by
Department to investigate compliance with this Section J.

K. State Fire Marshal Building Standards Code

The State Fire Marshal adopts building standards for fire safety and panic 
prevention. Such regulations pertain to fire protection design and construction, 
means of egress and adequacy of exits, installation of fire alarms, and fire 
extinguishment systems for any State-owned or State-occupied buildings per 
section 13108 of the Health and Safety Code. When applicable, Recipient shall 
request that the State Fire Marshal review Project PS&E to ensure Project 
consistency with State fire protection standards. 

L. Americans with Disabilities Act

By signing this Master Agreement, Recipient assures State that Recipient shall 
comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 

DRAFT

27-32



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 24 

discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and 
guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.). 

M. Access for Persons with Disabilities

Disabled access review by the Department of General Services (Division of the 
State Architect) is required for all publicly funded construction of buildings, 
structures, sidewalks, curbs and related facilities.  Recipient will award no 
construction contract unless Recipient’s plans and specifications for such facilities 

conform to the provisions of sections 4450 and 4454 of the California Government 
Code, if applicable.  Further requirements and guidance are provided in Title 24 
of the California Code of Regulations. 

N. Disabled Veterans Program Requirements

1. Should Military and Veterans Code sections 999 et seq. be applicable to
Recipient, Recipient will meet, or make good faith efforts to meet, the 3% Disabled
Veterans Business Enterprises goals (or Recipient’s applicable higher goals) in the
award of every contract for Project work to be performed under these this
Agreement.

2. Recipient shall have the sole duty and authority under this Agreement and
each Program Supplement to determine whether these referenced code
sections are applicable to Recipient and, if so, whether good faith efforts asserted
by those contractors of Recipient were sufficient as outlined in Military and
Veterans Code sections 999 et seq.

O. Environmental Process

Completion of the Project environmental process (“clearance”) by Recipient 
(and/or State if it affects a State facility within the meaning of the applicable 
statutes) is required prior to requesting Project funds for right-of-way purchase or 
construction.  No State agency may request funds nor shall any State agency, 
board or commission authorize expenditures of funds for any Project effort, except 
for feasibility or planning studies, which may have a significant effect on the 
environment unless such a request is accompanied with all appropriate 
documentation of compliance with or exemption from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (including, if as appropriate, an environmental 
impact report, negative declaration, or notice of exemption) under California 
Public Resources Code section 21080(b) (10), (11), and (12) provides an 
exemption for a passenger rail project that institutes or increases passenger or 
commuter services on rail or highway rights-of-way already in use. 

DRAFT

27-33



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 25 

P. Force Majeure

Each party will be excused from performance of its obligations where such non-
performance is caused by any extraordinary event beyond its reasonable control, 
such as any non-appealable order, rule or regulation of any federal or state 
governmental body, fire, flood, earthquake, storm, hurricane or other natural 
disaster, epidemic, pandemic, war, invasion, act of foreign enemies, hostilities 
(regardless of whether war is declared), civil war, rebellion, revolution, 
insurrection, military or usurped power or confiscation, terrorist activities, 
nationalization, government sanction, blockage, embargo, labor dispute, strike, 
lockout or interruption, provided that the party excused hereunder shall use all 
reasonable efforts to minimize its non-performance and to overcome, remedy or 
remove such event in the shortest practical time.  

Should a force majeure event occur which renders it impossible for a period of 
forty-five (45) or more consecutive days for either party to perform its obligations 
hereunder, the Parties agree to negotiate in good faith to amend the existing 
Master Agreement or Supplemental Agreement to deal with such event and to 
seek additional sources of funding to continue the operation of the Service. 

ARTICLE IV – MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 1.  Miscellaneous Provisions 

A. Successor Acts

All statutes cited herein shall be deemed to include amendments to and 
successor statutes to the cited statues as they presently exist.  

B. Successor and Assigns to the Parties

Neither this Agreement nor any right, duty or obligation hereunder may be 
assigned, transferred, hypothecated or pledged by any party without the express 
written consent of the other party; provided, that unless otherwise expressly 
required herein, a party shall not be obligated to obtain the written consent of 
the other party with respect to any contract related to the Service for the provision 
of goods and/or services to the contracting party in the ordinary course of 
business.  

C. Notice

Any notice which may be required under this Agreement shall be in writing, shall 
be effective when received, and shall be given by personal service, or by certified 
or registered mail, return receipt requested, to the addresses set forth below, or to 

DRAFT

27-34



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 26 

such other addresses as may be specified in writing and given to the other party 
in accordance herewith. 

If given to the Department:  

State of California 

Department of Transportation 

Division of Local Assistance 

P.O. Box 942874 

Sacramento, CA 994274-0001 

Attention: Division of Local Assistance TIRCP Contract Manager, 
Mail Stop 39 

with a copy to:  

California State Transportation Agency 

915 Capitol Mall Suite 350 B 

Sacramento, CA 95814 

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 

1101 Pacific Avenue, Suite 250 

Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

Attention: Guy Preston  

D. Amendment

This Agreement may not be changed, modified, or amended except in writing, 
signed by the parties hereto, and approved in advance in writing by the 
Secretary, and any attempt at oral modification of this Agreement shall be void 
and of no effect. 

E. Representation and Warranties of the Parties

1. Recipient hereby represents and warrants to the Department that:

a. Recipient is in good standing under applicable law, with all requisite
power and authority to carry on the activities for which it has been organized and 
proposed to be conducted pursuant to this Agreement.  

DRAFT

27-35



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 27 

b. Recipient has the requisite power and authority to execute and
deliver this Agreement and to carry out its obligations hereunder. The execution 
and delivery of this Agreement by such entity, the performance by it of its 
obligations thereunder and the consummation of the transactions contemplated 
thereby have been duly authorized by the governing board of such entity and no 
other proceedings are necessary to authorize this Agreement or to consummate 
the transactions contemplated thereby. The Agreements have been duly and 
validly executed and delivered by such entity and constitute valid and binding 
obligations of such entity, enforceable against it in accordance with their terms, 
except to the extent that such enforceability may be subject to bankruptcy, 
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or other laws now or hereinafter in effect 
relating to the creditor’s rights and the remedy of specific enforcement and 

injunctive and other forms of equitable relief, and may be subject to equitable 
defenses and to the discretion of the court before which any proceeding 
therefore may be brought.  

c. Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the
performance of its obligations thereunder nor the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated thereby will (i) conflict with or result in a breach of any 
provision of any agreement to which Recipient is a party; (ii) violate any write, 
order, judgment, injunction, decrees, statute, rule or regulation of any court or 
governmental authority applicable to such entity or its property or assets. 

2. The Department does hereby represent and warrant with respect to each
provision of this Agreement to the Recipient that:

a. It validly exists with all requisite power and authority to carry on the
activities proposed to be conducted pursuant to this Agreement. 

b. It has the requisite power and authority to execute and deliver this
Agreement and to carry out its obligations thereunder. The execution and 
delivery of this Agreement, the performance by it of its obligations thereunder and 
the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby have been duly 
authorized and no other proceedings are necessary to authorize this Agreement 
or to consummate the transactions contemplated thereby. The agreements have 
been duly and validly executed and delivered by it and constitute valid and 
binding obligations, enforceable against it in accordance with their terms, except 
to the extent that such enforceability may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, 
reorganization, moratorium or other laws now or hereinafter in effect relating to 
creditor’s rights and other forms of equitable relief, and may be subject to 

equitable defenses and to the discretion of the court before which any 
proceeding therefore may be brought.  

DRAFT

27-36



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 28 

c. Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the
performance of its obligations thereunder nor the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated thereby will (i) conflict with or result in a breach of any 
provision of any agreement to which the Recipient is a party; (ii) violate any writ, 
order, judgment, injunction, decree, statute, rule or regulation of any court or 
governmental authority applicable to such entity or its property or assets.  

F. Construction, Number, Gender and Captions

The Agreements have been executed in the State of California and shall be 
construed according to the law of said State. Numbers and gender as used 
therein shall be construed to include that number and/or gender which is 
appropriate in the context of the text in which either is included. Captions are 
included therein for the purposes of ease of reading and identification. Neither 
gender, number nor captions used therein shall be construed to alter the plain 
meaning of the text in which any or all of them appear.  

G. Complete Agreement

This Agreement, including Appendices, constitutes the full and complete 
agreement of the parties, superseding and incorporating all prior oral and written 
agreements relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.   All attached 
Appendices A and B are hereby incorporated and made an integral part of this 
Agreement by this reference.  

H. Partial Invalidity

If any part of this Agreement is determined to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, 
such determination shall not affect the validity, legality or enforceability of any 
other part of this Agreement and the remaining parts of this Agreement shall be 
enforced as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable part were not contained 
herein.  

I. Conflicts

To the extent that any provision of or requirement of this Agreement may conflict 
with a provision or requirement of any other agreement between the parties 
hereto, or between a party hereto and any other party, which is attached to this 
Agreement as an appendix, the priority of agreements shall be employed to 
resolve such conflict. In the event of a conflict, the Master Agreement controls 
the Program Supplement and any further Amendments. 

DRAFT

27-37



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

7/25/2023   Page 29 

J. Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts and may include 
multiple signature pages, all of which shall be deemed to be one instrument. 
Copies of this Agreement may be used in lieu of the original.  

K. Governing Law

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws 
of the State of California. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement by their 
duly authorized officers. 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORATION 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION  

BY: ______________________________ BY: ____________________________ 
Dee Lam 
Chief of Division of Local 
Assistance 

Guy Preston 
Executive Director 

DATE: ______________________________ DATE: ____________________________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND PROCEDURE 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

SANTA CRUZ COUNTY 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION  

BY: _____________________________ BY: _____________________________ 
Deputy Attorney Legal Counsel 

DATE: _____________________________ DATE: _____________________________ 

DRAFT

27-38



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

Revised as of 9/22/20  Page 30 

APPENDIX A 
TIRCP PROGRAM GUIDELINES AND DEPARTMENT DELEGATION 

DRAFT

27-39



Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA 

Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

Revised as of 9/22/20  Page 31 

APPENDIX B 
RECIPIENT’S RESOLUTION 

DRAFT

27-40



RESOLUTION NO. 

Adopted by the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
on the date of August 3, 2023
on the motion of Commissioner 
duly seconded by Commissioner 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO NEGOTIATE AND 
ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT FOR A PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

CONTRACT WITH HDR ENGINEERING, INC. FOR PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION FOR A ZERO EMISSION PASSENGER RAIL & 
COASTAL RAIL TRAIL PROJECT, AMEND THE MEASURE D 5-YEAR PLAN FOR THE 

RAIL CATEGORY AND RTC BUDGET ACCORDINGLY, AND IMPLEMENT INTER-
PROGRAM LOANS FROM MEASURE D, IF NEEDED 

WHEREAS, the Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
(SCCRTC) purchased the Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line in 2012 to preserve and 
expand transportation uses of the corridor;  

WHEREAS, following extensive community input, the RTC prepared a Passenger 
Rail Transit Feasibility Study in 2015, the Unified Corridor Investment Study (UCS) 
in 2019, and the Transit Corridor Alternatives Analysis and Rail Network Integration 
Study (TCAA/RNIS) in 2021, which evaluated public transit investment options for 
an integrated transit network for Santa Cruz County utilizing all or part of the length 
of the branch line right-of-way. The TCAA/RNIS identified electric passenger rail as 
the locally preferred alternative; 

WHEREAS, in 2016, voters approved the Measure D sales tax measure, which 
designates 8% of revenues for the rail corridor, including environmental and other 
analysis of potential uses of the corridor, and 17% of revenues for the trail; 

WHEREAS, at its August 2022 meeting, the Commission directed staff to release 
a request for proposals (RFP) from qualified consultants to prepare an operating 
concept, project definition, right of way services, preliminary engineering, and 
environmental documentation with optional services for full engineering through 
construction of the Electric Passenger Rail and Coastal Rail Trail project;  

WHEREAS, at its December 2022 meeting, the Commission authorized the 
Executive Director to negotiate and execute a professional engineering and 
environmental services contract for the electric passenger rail transit & trail project 
between the Pajaro Junction and Santa Cruz along the Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line 
with HDR Engineering, Inc. for a total amount not to exceed $3 million to fund the 
first 12 months of preparing the Project Concept Report; 

Attachment 2

27-41



WHEREAS, in February 2023 staff submitted a grant application to the California 
State Transportation Agency (CalSTA) for Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program 
(TIRCP) Cycle 6 funding under the program’s Major Projects Project Development 
Reserve for the Zero Emission Passenger Rail & Trail Project (formerly the electric 
passenger rail transit and coastal rail trail project), requested funding, with 
Measure D Rail Category funds as local match, sufficient to complete state and 
federal environmental clearance for the Project, including the project concept report, 
initial right of way services, preliminary engineering, and environmental 
documentation; 

WHEREAS, on April 24, 2023 the State of California announced a TIRCP Cycle 6 
grant award of $3,450,000 to the RTC to complete the project concept report phase 
of the Project; 

WHEREAS, upon execution of the TIRCP Master Agreement with Caltrans 
successful allocation of the TIRCP Cycle 6 funding, the RTC will have secured enough 
funding to execute an agreement with HDR Engineering, Inc. to complete the full 
scope to deliver the Project Concept Report (Task 1) for the Zero Emission Passenger 
Rail & Trail Project, instead of only the first 12 months as originally authorized by 
the RTC in December 2022, with an agreement not to exceed amount of $7,703,548 
and a term through June 30, 2028; 

WHEREAS, Task 1 of the Zero Emission Passenger Rail & Transit Project is 
funded by the Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program ($3,450,000), previously 
programmed Measure D Rail category ($3,800,000), Measure D Trail category 
($350,000) funds; 

WHEREAS, due to the funding shortfall of $1,680,000 to fully fund Task 1 - 
Project Concept Report for the project, programming additional Measure D-Rail 
funds for the Project is needed;  

WHEREAS, TIRCP formula funds were recently included in the FY23/24 State 
budget, which will be available for Santa Cruz County pending adoption of funding 
guidelines by the state, and the Project’s funding plan includes TIRCP formula funds; 
however, if those funds are not available for use by the Project, the RTC is required 
to fund the shortfall with other locally-controlled funding (such as additional 
Measure D, State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP), or Regional Surface 
Transportation Program Exchange (RSTPX)) and/or potential future competitive 
grant fund sources; 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE SANTA CRUZ COUNTY REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION THAT:  

1. The Executive Director is authorized to negotiate and execute a professional

27-42



engineering and environmental services contract for the Zero Emission 
Passenger Rail & Trail project between the Pajaro Junction and Santa Cruz 
along the Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line with HDR Engineering, Inc. for a total 
amount not to exceed $7,703,548 to fund Task 1 of the Project to prepare 
the Project Concept Report; 

2. The Measure D-Rail Category Program of Projects is hereby amended to add
$1,630,000 of funding in FY23 and FY24 to fully fund Task 1 of the
consultant contract as well as associated community outreach and project
management;

3. The FY 23/24 RTC Budget and Work Program are hereby amended to
incorporate funding programmed; and

4. Inter-program loans from other Measure D regional categories to the
Measure D Rail category are hereby authorized, if needed.

AYES: COMMISSIONERS 

NOES: COMMISSIONERS 

ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS 

 __________________________ 
Manu Koenig, Chair 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Guy Preston, Secretary  

EXHIBIT A:  Draft Architectural & Engineering Services Contract, Contract No. 
TP2153 

Distribution:  RTC Fiscal, RTC Project Manager

27-43



S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153 1 

CONTRACT NO. TP2153 
ARCHITECTURAL & ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into on _____________, by and 
between the SANTA CRUZ COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION, hereinafter called COMMISSION, and HDR ENGINEERING, 
INC., hereinafter called CONSULTANT for Professional Engineering and 
Environmental Services for the Zero Emissions Passenger Rail Transit & Trail 
Project between the Pajaro Junction and Santa Cruz along the Santa Cruz 
Branch Rail Line. The parties agree as follows: 

1. DUTIES.
A. CONSULTANT agrees to exercise special skill to accomplish the

following results: Professional Engineering and Environmental
Services for the Electric Passenger Rail and Trail Project, as specified
in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, which by this reference is
incorporated herein.

B. Articles I through III of Exhibit F. Master Agreement, CalSTA Transit
and Intercity Rail Capital Program and Santa Cruz County Regional
Transportation Commission are attached and hereby incorporated
into this AGREEMENT.

C. CONSULTANT shall provide the personnel listed below to perform the
above-specified services, which persons are hereby designated as
key personnel under this AGREEMENT.

Name Firm Function 
Vikrant Sanghai HDR Engineering, Inc. Principal 
Mark McLaren HDR Engineering, Inc. Project Manager 
Buzz Berger HDR Engineering, Inc. Engineering Lead 
Lisa Marie Alley HDR Engineering, Inc. Outreach Lead 
Arvin Chaudhary Chaudhary & Associates, Inc. Survey Lead 
Rich Walter ICF Jones & Stokes, Inc. Environmental 

Lead 

D. No person named in Paragraph C of this Article or in the Cost
Proposal (Exhibit C), or his or her successor, shall be removed or
replaced by CONSULTANT, nor shall his or her agreed-upon function
hereunder be changed, without the prior written consent of the
COMMISSION Contract Manager.

E. This AGREEMENT includes the subconsultants and/or subconsultants
listed in Exhibit C Cost Proposal.

EXHIBIT A

27-44



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  2 

F. Except as expressly authorized herein, CONSULTANT'S obligations 
under this AGREEMENT are not assignable or transferable, and 
CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any work, without the prior 
written approval of the COMMISSION. However, claims for money 
due or which become due to CONSULTANT from COMMISSION under 
this AGREEMENT may be assigned to a financial institution or to a 
trustee in bankruptcy, without such approval. Notice of any 
assignment or transfer whether voluntary or involuntary shall be 
furnished promptly to the COMMISSION. 

G. Consultant’s Progress Reports and/or Meetings 

1. CONSULTANT shall perform the services in accordance with the 
Project Schedule attached hereto (Exhibit B) and incorporated by 
reference. The CONSULTANT shall submit written progress reports 
with each invoice. The report should be sufficiently detailed for the 
Contract Manager to determine if the CONSULTANT is performing 
to expectations or is on schedule; to provide communication of 
interim findings; and to sufficiently address any difficulties or 
special problems encountered, so remedies can be developed.  

2. The CONSULTANT’S Project Manager shall meet with the 
COMMISSION’S Contract Manager, as needed, to discuss progress 
on the AGREEMENT. 

2. COMPENSATION. 
In consideration for CONSULTANT accomplishing work to be performed 
under this AGREEMENT (as described in Exhibit A Scope of Services and 
Exhibit B Project Schedule), COMMISSION shall compensate 
CONSULTANT in accordance with the approved Cost Proposal, attached 
hereto (Exhibit C) and incorporated by reference. The consideration to 
be paid to CONSULTANT as provided herein shall be for all 
CONSULTANT’S expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including 
travel and per diem, unless otherwise expressly so provided. If there is 
any conflict between the approved Cost Proposal and this AGREEMENT, 
this AGREEMENT shall take precedence. 

A. The method of payment for this AGREEMENT will be based on actual 
cost plus a fixed fee. COMMISSION will reimburse CONSULTANT for 
actual costs (including labor costs, travel, equipment rental costs, 
overhead, and other direct costs (ODCs)) incurred by CONSULTANT 
in performance of the work. CONSULTANT will not be reimbursed for 
actual costs that exceed the wage rates, travel, equipment rental, 
overhead, and other estimated costs set forth in the approved 

27-45



S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153 3 

CONSULTANT’S Cost Proposal (Exhibit C), unless additional 
reimbursement is provided for by written AGREEMENT amendment. 
In no event, will CONSULTANT be reimbursed for overhead costs at a 
rate that exceeds COMMISSION’S approved overhead rate set forth 
in the Cost Proposal (Exhibit C). In the event, that COMMISSION 
determines that a change to the work from that specified in the 
Scope of Services (Exhibit A) of this AGREEMENT is required, the 
AGREEMENT time or actual costs reimbursable by COMMISSION shall 
be adjusted by AGREEMENT amendment to accommodate the 
changed work. The maximum total cost as specified in Paragraph “I” 
shall not be exceeded, unless authorized by AGREEMENT 
amendment. 

B. The indirect cost rate established for this AGREEMENT is extended
through the duration of this AGREEMENT.

C. In addition to the allowable incurred costs, COMMISSION will pay
CONSULTANT a fixed fee of $ 530,543.72. The fixed fee is
nonadjustable for the term of the AGREEMENT, except in the event of
a significant change in the scope of work and such adjustment is
made by AGREEMENT amendment approved by the COMMISSION in
its sole discretion.

D. Reimbursement for transportation and subsistence costs shall not
exceed the per diem rates authorized to be paid rank and file State
employees under current State Department of Personnel
Administration (Cal HR), as specified in the approved Cost Proposal
(Exhibit C).

E. When milestone cost estimates are included in the approved Cost
Proposal (Exhibit C), CONSULTANT shall obtain prior written approval
for a revised milestone cost estimate from the Contract Manager
before exceeding such cost estimate or shifting hours or costs
between tasks.

F. Progress payments will be made monthly in arrears based on
services provided and allowable incurred costs. A pro rata portion of
CONSULTANT’S fixed fee will be included in the monthly progress
payments. If CONSULTANT fails to submit the required deliverable
items according to the schedule set forth in the Project Schedule
(Exhibit B) or the Scope of Services (Exhibit A), COMMISSION shall
have the right to delay payment or terminate this AGREEMENT in
accordance with the provisions of Article 7 Termination, unless such
delay was waived or agreed to by the Contract Manager in writing.

27-46



S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153 4 

G. CONSULTANT shall not commence performance of work or services
until this AGREEMENT has been approved by COMMISSION and
notification to proceed has been issued by COMMISSION’S Contract
Manager. No payment will be made prior to approval of any work, or
for any work performed prior to approval of this AGREEMENT.

H. Salary increases will be reimbursable if the new salary is within the
salary range identified in the approved Cost Proposal (Exhibit C) and
is approved by COMMISSION’S Contract Manager.

I. The total amount payable by the COMMISSION for this AGREEMENT
shall not exceed $7,703,548.

J. CONSULTANT will be reimbursed, as promptly as fiscal procedures
will permit and according to California Code of Regulations, as they
currently exist or may be amended during the term of this
AGREEMENT, upon receipt by COMMISSION’S Contract Manager of
itemized invoices. Invoices shall be submitted no later than 45
calendar days after the performance of work for which CONSULTANT
is billing or Task Order, if applicable. Invoices shall detail the work
performed on each milestone, task order and/or each project as
applicable. Invoices shall follow the format stipulated for the
approved Cost Proposal (Exhibit C) and shall reference this
AGREEMENT number and project title. Final invoice must contain the
final cost and all credits due COMMISSION including any equipment
purchased under the provisions of Article 35 Equipment Purchase of
this AGREEMENT. The final invoice should be submitted within 60
calendar days after completion of CONSULTANT’S work. Invoices
shall be submitted electronically to COMMISSION’S Contract Manager
and Accounts Payable:

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission
Attn: Riley Gerbrandt, Associate Transportation Engineer
RGerbrandt@sccrtc.org and AccountsPayable@sccrtc.org

The invoices must include the following information:

1. Labor (staff name, hours charged, hourly billing rate, current
charges and cumulative charges) performed during the billing
period by task;

2. Itemized expenses incurred during the billing period;

3. Total invoice/payment requested, specifically noting the amount of
retention, if any;

27-47

mailto:RGerbrandt@sccrtc.org
mailto:AccountsPayable@sccrtc.org


 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  5 

4. Total amount previously paid under this AGREEMENT; and 

5. Report of expenditures by CONSULTANT and subconsultants for 
each task and subtask or milestone and estimated percentage 
completion by such divisions of work. 

For personnel subject to prevailing wage rates as described in the 
California Labor Code, all salary increases, which are the direct result 
of changes in the prevailing wage rates are reimbursable. 

3. PROMPT PAYMENT FROM THE COMMISSION TO CONSULTANT 
COMMISSION shall process any progress payment within 30 days after 
receipt of an undisputed and properly submitted payment request from 
CONSULTANT. If COMMISSION fails to pay promptly, COMMISSION shall pay 
interest to the CONSULTANT, which accrues at the rate of 10 percent per 
annum on the principal amount of a money judgment remaining unsatisfied. 
Upon receipt of a payment request, COMMISSION shall act in accordance 
with both of the following: 

A. Each payment request shall be reviewed by COMMISSION as soon as 
practicable after receipt for the purpose of determining that the 
payment request is a proper payment request.  

B. Any payment request determined not to be a proper payment 
request suitable for payment shall be returned to CONSULTANT as 
soon as practicable, but not later than seven (7) days, after receipt.  

C. A request returned pursuant to this paragraph shall be accompanied 
by a document setting forth in writing the reasons why the payment 
request is not proper. 

4. FUNDING REQUIREMENTS 
A. It is mutually understood between the CONSULTANT and 

COMMISSION that this AGREEMENT may have been written before 
ascertaining the availability of funds or appropriation of funds, for the 
mutual benefit of both parties, in order to avoid program and fiscal 
delays that would occur if the AGREEMENT were executed after that 
determination was made. 

B. This AGREEMENT is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are 
made available to COMMISSION for the purpose of this AGREEMENT. 
In addition, this AGREEMENT is subject to any additional restrictions, 
limitations, conditions, or any statute enacted by the Congress, State 
Legislature, federal or state agency, or COMMISSION that may affect 
the provisions, terms, or funding of this AGREEMENT in any manner. 

27-48



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  6 

C. It is mutually agreed that if sufficient funds are not appropriated, this 
AGREEMENT may be amended to reflect any reduction in funds. 

D. COMMISSION has the option to terminate the AGREEMENT pursuant 
to Article 7 Termination, or by mutual agreement to amend the 
AGREEMENT to reflect any reduction of funds. 

5. RETENTION OF FUNDS.  
A. The COMMISSION shall hold retainage from CONSULTANT and shall 

make prompt and regular incremental acceptances of portions, as 
determined by the COMMISSION of the contract work and pay 
retainage to CONSULTANT based on these acceptances. 
CONSULTANT or subconsultant shall return all monies withheld in 
retention from all subconsultants within 15 days after receiving 
payment for work satisfactorily completed and accepted including 
incremental acceptances of portions of the contract work by the 
COMMISSION. Any delay or postponement of payment may take 
place only for good cause and with the COMMISSION’S prior written 
approval. Any violation of these provisions shall subject the violating 
CONSULTANT or subconsultant to the penalties, sanctions, and other 
remedies specified in Section 3321 of the California Civil Code. This 
requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, 
administrative or judicial remedies otherwise available to 
CONSULTANT or subconsultant in the event of a dispute involving 
late payment or nonpayment by CONSULTANT; deficient 
subconsultant performance and/or noncompliance by a 
subconsultant. This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE 
subconsultants.  

B. Any violation of these provisions shall subject the violating 
CONSULTANT or subconsultant to the penalties, sanctions and other 
remedies specified therein. These requirements shall not be 
construed to limit or impair any contractual, administrative, or 
judicial remedies otherwise available to CONSULTANT or 
subconsultant in the event of a dispute involving late payment or 
nonpayment by CONSULTANT, deficient subcontract performance, or 
noncompliance by a subconsultant. 

6. TERM.  
A. CONSULTANT shall commence work after notification to proceed by 

the COMMISSION’S Contract Manager. The AGREEMENT shall end on 
<<Date>> unless earlier terminated pursuant to Article 7 below or 
extended by AGREEMENT amendment.  

27-49



S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153 7 

B. The CONSULTANT is advised that this AGREEMENT is not binding and
enforceable until it is approved by the COMMISSION and fully
executed.

7. TERMINATION.
A. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by COMMISSION, for cause or

without cause provided that COMMISSION gives not less than ten
(10) calendar days written notice of its intent to terminate and in the
event of termination for cause, provides the reasons for termination
stated in the notice.

B. COMMISSION may temporarily suspend this AGREEMENT, at no
additional cost to COMMISSION provided that CONSULTANT is given
written notice of temporary suspension. If COMMISSION gives such
notice of temporary suspension, CONSULTANT shall immediately
suspend its activities under this AGREEMENT. A temporary
suspension may be issued concurrent with the notice of termination.

C. Notwithstanding any provisions of this AGREEMENT, CONSULTANT
shall not be relieved of liability to the COMMISSION by termination of
this AGREEMENT for damages sustained by COMMISSION by virtue of
any breach of this AGREEMENT by CONSULTANT, and COMMISSION
may withhold any payments due to CONSULTANT until such time as
the exact amount of damages, if any, due to COMMISSION from
CONSULTANT is determined.

D. If COMMISSION terminates this AGREEMENT with CONSULTANT,
COMMISSION shall pay CONSULTANT the sum due to CONSULTANT
under this AGREEMENT for services satisfactorily performed prior to
termination, unless the cost of completion to COMMISSION exceeds
the funds remaining in the AGREEMENT in which case the overage
shall be deducted from any sum due CONSULTANT under this
AGREEMENT and the balance, if any, shall be paid to CONSULTANT
upon demand.

E. Upon termination, COMMISSION shall be entitled to all
CONSULTANT’S work produced under this AGREEMENT, including,
but not limited to, reports, investigations, appraisals, inventories,
studies, analysis, drawing and data estimates performed to that
date, whether or not complete.

F. COMMISSION may terminate this AGREEMENT for CONSULTANT'S
default if a federal or State proceeding for the relief of debtors is
undertaken by or against CONSULTANT, or CONSULTANT'S principal,

27-50



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  8 

or if CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT'S principal makes an assignment 
for the benefit of creditors. 

G. CONSULTANT may terminate this AGREEMENT by giving the 
COMMISSION at least one hundred and twenty (120) days advance 
written notice. CONSULTANT shall be liable for any and all reasonable 
costs incurred by COMMISSION as a result of such early termination, 
default, including but not limited to re-procurement costs of the 
same or similar services defaulted or not provided by CONSULTANT 
under this Agreement. 

8. INDEMNIFICATION FOR DAMAGES, TAXES AND CONTRIBUTIONS.  
To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall exonerate, 
indemnify, defend, protect, and hold harmless the COMMISSION, its 
governing body, officers, officials, agents, employees and volunteers from 
and against: 

A. Any and all claims, demands, costs, damages, losses, expenses, or 
liability arising from or connected with the services provided under 
this AGREEMENT due to the recklessness, willful misconduct or 
negligent acts, errors, or omissions of the CONSULTANT, its officers, 
subconsultants, employees, volunteers, or agents. The CONSULTANT 
will reimburse COMMISSION for any expenditure, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by COMMISSION in defending 
against claims ultimately determined to be due to recklessness, 
willful misconduct or to negligent acts, errors, or omissions of the 
CONSULTANT, its officers, subconsultants, employees, volunteers, or 
agents. 

B. Any and all federal, State and local taxes, charges, fees, penalties, or 
contributions required to be paid with respect to CONSULTANT and 
CONSULTANT’S officers, subconsultants employees, volunteers, and 
agents engaged in the performance of this AGREEMENT (including, 
without limitation, unemployment insurance, social security, and 
payroll tax withholding). 

C. In the event that CONSULTANT or any employee, agent, or 
subconsultant of CONSULTANT providing services under this 
AGREEMENT is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction or the 
California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) to be eligible 
for enrollment in PERS as an employee of COMMISSION, 
CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 
COMMISSION for the payment of any employee and/or employer 
contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of CONSULTANT or its 

27-51



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  9 

employees, agents, or subconsultants, as well as for the payment of 
any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would 
otherwise be the responsibility of COMMISSION. 

D. The provisions of this Article shall survive expiration, termination, or 
suspension of this AGREEMENT.  

9. SAFETY.  
A. The CONSULTANT shall comply with OSHA, Cal/OSHA, and all other 

safety requirements and regulations applicable to CONSULTANT 
regarding necessary safety equipment or procedures. The 
CONSULTANT shall comply with safety instructions issued by the 
COMMISSION Safety Officer and other COMMISSION representatives. 
CONSULTANT personnel shall wear hard hats and safety vests at all 
times during construction work on the project site. 

B. If any work might be conducted on the Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line 
or within the rail line right-of-way, CONSULTANT personnel (officers, 
employees, volunteers, or agents) and any subconsultants must 
submit and comply with the “Right-of-Entry Agreement” (ROE) with 
COMMISSION and St. Paul & Pacific Railroad, LLC (a subsidiary of 
Progressive Rail, Inc.), or its successor, as applicable, the terms and 
conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, and 
shall wear hard hats and safety vests at all times while working on 
the Santa Cruz Branch Rail Line or within the rail line right-of-way.  

1. CONSULTANT shall obtain a right  of entry agreement with St. 
Paul & Pacific Railroad (SPPR) in which 30–45 days are needed for 
SPPR to process this request. SPPR guidelines for obtaining a right 
of entry agreement are included as Exhibit J.  

2. The one-time Progressive Rail, Inc. Right of Entry application 
processing fee (Exhibit J) is included in Exhibit C Cost Proposal. 

C. Pursuant to the authority contained in Section 591 of the Vehicle 
Code, COMMISSION has determined that areas within the limits of 
the project are open to public traffic unless otherwise identified as 
private property. The CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the 
requirements set forth in Divisions 11, 12, 13, 14, and 15 of the 
Vehicle Code. The CONSULTANT shall take all reasonably necessary 
precautions for safe operation of its vehicles  

D. CONSULTANT must have a Division of Occupational Safety and 
Health (Cal/OSHA) permit as outlined in Labor Code sections 6500 
and 6705, prior to the initiation of any practices, work, method, 

27-52



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  10 

operation, or process related to the construction or excavation of 
trenches which are five (5) feet or deeper. 

10. INSURANCE. 
CONSULTANT, at its sole cost and expense, for the full term of this 
AGREEMENT, and any extensions thereof, shall obtain and maintain at a 
minimum compliance with all of the following insurance coverage(s) and 
requirements. Such insurance coverage shall be primary coverage as 
respects COMMISSION and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
COMMISSION shall be excess of CONSULTANT’S insurance coverage and 
shall not contribute to it. Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized 
to conduct business in the state with a current A.M. Best rating of no less 
than A:VII if admitted in the State of California. 

Types of Insurance and Minimum Limits 

1. Workers’ Compensation in the minimum statutorily required 
coverage amounts. This insurance coverage shall not be required 
if the CONSULTANT has no employees and certifies to this fact by 
initialing here: _____ / _____. 

2. Automobile Liability Insurance for each of CONSULTANT’S vehicles 
used in the performance of this AGREEMENT, including owned, 
non-owned (e.g., owned by CONSULTANT’S employees), leased or 
hired vehicles, in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 combined 
single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage. 
This insurance coverage shall not be required if vehicle use by the 
CONSULTANT is not a material part of performance of this 
AGREEMENT and CONSULTANT and COMMISSION both certify to 
this fact by initialing here: _____ / _____. 

3. Comprehensive or Commercial General Liability Insurance 
coverage at least as broad as ISO form CG 00 01, with a minimum 
limit of two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence, and four 
million ($4,000,000) in the aggregate, including coverage for: (a) 
products and completed operations, (b) bodily and personal 
injury, (c) broad form property damage, (d) contractual liability, 
and (e) cross-liability. 

4. Railroad Protective Liability Insurance in the minimum amount of 
two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence and four million 
($4,000,000) aggregate, if any work is to be conducted within the 
rail line right-of-way or within fifty (50) feet of the track or 
Commercial General Liability Insurance coverage that does not 
exclude work on the railroad. 

27-53



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  11 

5. Pollution Liability applicable to the work being performed, with a 
limit no less than two million ($2,000,000) per claim or 
occurrence and two million ($2,000,000) aggregate per policy 
period of one year.  

6. Errors & Omissions applicable to the work being performed, with a 
limit no less than two million ($2,000,000) per claim or 
occurrence and two million ($2,000,000) aggregate per policy 
period of one year. 

7. If the CONSULTANT maintains broader coverage and/or higher 
limits than the minimums shown above, the COMMISSION 
requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the 
higher limits maintained by CONSULTANT. Policy should include 
coverage for completed operations for 10 years or the term 
matching statute of limitations. Any available insurance proceeds 
in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and 
coverage shall be available to the COMMISSION. CONSULTANT 
hereby acknowledges and agrees that any and all insurances 
carried by it shall be deemed liability coverage for any and all 
actions it performs in connection with this AGREEMENT. 

Other Insurance Provisions 

1. If any insurance coverage required in this AGREEMENT is 
provided on a “Claims Made” rather than “Occurrence” form, 
CONSULTANT agrees that the retroactive date thereof shall be 
no later than the effective date of this AGREEMENT, and that it 
shall maintain the required coverage for a period of three (3) 
years after the expiration of this AGREEMENT (hereinafter “POST 
AGREEMENT COVERAGE”) and any extensions thereof. 
CONSULTANT may maintain the required POST AGREEMENT 
COVERAGE by renewal or purchase of prior acts or tail coverage. 
The COMMISSION will not be responsible for any premiums or 
assessments on the policy. 

2. All policies of Commercial General Liability Insurance and 
Railroad Protective Liability Insurance, if required, shall be 
endorsed to cover the Santa Cruz County Regional 
Transportation Commission, its governing body, officials, 
employees, agents and volunteers, and St. Paul & Pacific 
Railroad, LLC (a subsidiary of Progressive Rail, Inc.), or its 
successor, and its officials, employees, agents and volunteers, if 
any work will be undertaken in the rail right-of-way or within 
fifty (50) feet from the track, as additional insureds with respect 

27-54



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  12 

to liability arising out of the work or operations and activities 
performed by or on behalf of, the CONSULTANT, including 
materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such 
work or operations. Endorsements shall be at least as broad as 
ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or equivalent, covering ongoing 
operations and products and completed operations.   

3. CONSULTANT agrees to provide its insurance broker(s) with a 
full copy of these insurance provisions and provide COMMISSION 
on or before the effective date of this AGREEMENT with 
Certificates of Insurance and endorsements for all required 
coverages. The Certificates of Insurance must note whether the 
policy does or does not include any self-insured retention and 
also must disclose the deductible. The certificates shall require 
the carrier to notify COMMISSION in writing of any material 
change, cancellation, termination or non-renewal of the coverage 
at least thirty days (30) days  in advance of the effective date of 
such cancellation, or material change, or non-renewal. Insurance 
shall not be canceled until after ten (10) days prior written 
notice in the event of nonpayment of premium. Failure to obtain 
the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not 
waive the CONSULTANT’s obligation to provide them. All 
Certificates of Insurance and endorsements shall be delivered via 
email to: 

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
contracts@sccrtc.org 

4. The CONSULTANT agrees that the insurance herein provided for, 
shall be in effect at all times during the term of this AGREEMENT. 
In the event said insurance coverage expires at any time or 
times during the term of this AGREEMENT, the CONSULTANT 
agrees to provide at least thirty (30) days prior notice to said 
expiration date; and a new Certificate of Insurance evidencing 
insurance coverage as provided for herein, for not less than 
either the remainder of the term of the AGREEMENT, or for a 
period of not less than one (1) year. New Certificates of 
Insurance are subject to the approval of the COMMISSION. In 
the event the CONSULTANT fails to keep in effect at all times 
insurance coverage as herein provided, the COMMISSION may, 
in addition to any other remedies it may have, terminate this 
AGREEMENT upon occurrence of such event. 

5. If any insurance policy of CONSULTANT required by this 
AGREEMENT includes language conditioning the insurer’s legal 

27-55

mailto:contracts@sccrtc.org


 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  13 

obligation to defend or indemnify COMMISSION on the 
performance of any act(s) by the named insured, then said 
insurance policy, by endorsement, shall also name the 
COMMISSION as a named insured. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, both the CONSULTANT and its insurers agree that by 
naming the COMMISSION as a named insured, the COMMISSION 
may at its sole direction, but is not obligated to, perform any act 
required by the named insured under said insurance policies. 

6. CONSULTANT shall do all things required to be performed by it 
pursuant to its insurance policies including but not limited to 
paying within five (5) workdays, all deductibles and self-insured 
retentions (SIR) required to be paid under any insurance policy 
that may provide defense or indemnity coverage to 
COMMISSION or any additional insured. If CONSULTANT’S 
insurance policy includes a self-insured retention that must be 
paid by a named insured as a precondition of the insurer’s 
liability, or which has the effect of providing that payments of 
the self-insured retention by others, including additional insureds 
or insurers do not serve to satisfy the self-insured retention, 
such provisions must be modified by special endorsement so as 
to not apply to the additional insured coverage required by this 
AGREEMENT so as to not prevent any of the parties to this 
AGREEMENT from satisfying or paying the self-insured retention 
required to be paid as a precondition to the insurer’s liability. 

7. CONSULTANT hereby grants to COMMISSION a waiver of any 
right of subrogation which any insurer of said CONSULTANT may 
acquire against the COMMISSION by virtue of the payment of 
any loss under such insurance. CONSULTANT agrees to obtain 
any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of 
subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or 
not the COMMISSION has received a waiver of subrogation 
endorsement from the insurer. 

8. CONSULTANT shall cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted 
in all subcontracts for any work covered under this AGREEMENT, 
provided that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to 
contracts or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or 
raw materials. 

11. FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL LAWS.  
A. CONSULTANT warrants that in the performance of this AGREEMENT, 

it shall exercise usual and customary professional care in its efforts 

27-56



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  14 

to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes 
and ordinances and all lawful orders, rules and regulations 
promulgated thereunder. In the event of a conflict between the laws 
and lawful regulations of any government entities having jurisdiction 
over the project, the CONSULTANT shall notify COMMISSION of the 
nature and impact of such conflict. The COMMISSION agrees to 
cooperate and work with the CONSULTANT in an effort to resolve any 
conflict. 

B. Those laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, and procedural 
requirements that are imposed on COMMISSION as a recipient of 
federal or state funds are imposed on CONSULTANT. 

12. NON-DISCRIMINATION AND COMPLIANCE PROVISIONS.  
A. The CONSULTANT’S signature affixed herein and dated shall 

constitute a certification under penalty of perjury under the laws of 
the State of California that the CONSULTANT has, unless exempt, 
complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements of 
Government Code 12990 et seq. and 2 CCR 8103. CONSULTANT and 
subconsultants shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of 
their employees and applicants for employment are free from such 
discrimination and harassment. 

B. During the performance of this AGREEMENT, the CONSULTANT and 
its subconsultants shall not deny the AGREEMENT benefits to any 
person on the basis of race, color, sex, gender, religious creed, 
national origin, ancestry, physical disability (including HIV and AIDS 
status), mental disability, medical condition (e.g., cancer), genetic 
information, marital status, gender, gender identity, gender 
expression, age, sexual orientation, military, or veteran status. 
CONSULTANT and subconsultants shall ensure that the evaluation 
and treatment of their employees and applicants for employment are 
free from such discrimination and harassment. Such action shall 
include, but not be limited to, the following: recruitment; advertising, 
layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 
and selection for training (including apprenticeship), employment, 
upgrading, demotion, or transfer. The CONSULTANT agrees to post in 
conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, notice setting forth the provisions of this non-
discrimination clause. 

C. CONSULTANT and subconsultants shall comply with the provisions of 
the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code §12990 et 
seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (2 CCR 

27-57



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  15 

11000et seq.), the provisions of Government Code section 11135 to 
11139.5, and the regulations of standards adopted by the 
COMMISSION to implement such article.  

D. The CONSULTANT shall make a good faith effort to consider 
Minority/Women/Disabled Owned Business Enterprises in 
CONSULTANT’S solicitation of goods and services. Definitions for 
Minority/Women/Disabled Business Enterprises are available from the 
California Department of Transportation, at 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/obeo/index.html.  

E. CONSULTANT and its subconsultants shall give written notice of their 
obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they 
have a collective bargaining or other AGREEMENT. 

F. CONSULTANT shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance 
provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform work under 
this AGREEMENT. 

G. The CONSULTANT, with regard to the work performed under this 
AGREEMENT, shall act in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §2000d et seq.). Title VI provides that the 
recipients of federal assistance will implement and maintain a policy 
of nondiscrimination in which no person in the United States shall, on 
the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, disability, 
be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of or subject to 
discrimination under any program or activity by the recipients of 
federal assistance or their assignees and successors in interest. 

H. CONSULTANT and its subconsultants shall permit access to all 
records of employment, employment advertisements, application 
forms, and other pertinent data and records by the State Fair 
Employment Practices and Housing Commission or any other agency 
of the State of California designated by State to investigate 
compliance with this Article. 

I. In the event of CONSULTANT’S non-compliance with the non-
discrimination clauses of this AGREEMENT or with any of the said 
rules, regulations or orders, the COMMISSION may cancel, terminate 
or suspend the AGREEMENT in whole or in part. CONSULTANT may 
also be declared ineligible for further agreements with the 
COMMISSION. 

J. CONSULTANT, subrecipient, or subconsultant will never exclude any 
person from participation in, deny any person the benefits of, or 

27-58

http://www.dot.ca.gov/obeo/index.html


 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  16 

otherwise discriminate against anyone in connection with the award 
and performance of any contract covered by 49 CFR 26 on the basis 
of race, color, sex, or national origin. In administering the 
COMMISSION components of the DBE Program Plan, CONSULTANT, 
subrecipient or subconsultant will not, directly, or through contractual 
or other arrangements, use criteria or methods of administration that 
have the effect of defeating or substantially impairing 
accomplishment of the objectives of the DBE Program Plan with 
respect to individuals of a particular race, color, sex, or national 
origin. 

13. TITLE VI ASSURANCES 
During the performance of this Agreement, the CONSULTANT, for itself, its 
assignees and successors in interest agrees as follows: 

A. Compliance with Regulations: CONSULTANT shall comply with the 
regulations relative to nondiscrimination in federally assisted 
programs of the Department of Transportation, Title 49, Code of 
Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to 
time, (hereinafter referred to as the REGULATIONS), which are 
herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this 
AGREEMENT. 

B. Nondiscrimination: CONSULTANT, with regard to the work 
performed by it during the AGREEMENT, shall not discriminate on 
the grounds of sex, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national 
origin, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, age, 
marital status, family and medical care leave, pregnancy leave, and 
disability leave. in the selection and retention of sub-applicants, 
including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. 
CONSULTANT shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the 
discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, 
including employment practices when the agreement covers a 
program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations. 

C. Solicitations for Sub-agreements, Including Procurements of 
Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations either by competitive 
bidding or negotiation made by CONSULTANT for work to be 
performed under a Sub-agreement, including procurements of 
materials or leases of equipment, each potential sub-applicant or 
supplier shall be notified by CONSULTANT of the CONSULTANT’S 
obligations under this AGREEMENT and the Regulations relative to 
nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin. 

27-59



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  17 

D. Information and Reports: CONSULTANT shall provide all information 
and reports required by the Regulations, or directives issued 
pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, 
accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be 
determined by the recipient or FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain 
compliance with such Regulations or directives. Where any 
information required of CONSULTANT is in the exclusive possession 
of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, 
CONSULTANT shall so certify to the recipient or FHWA as 
appropriate and shall set forth what efforts CONSULTANT has made 
to obtain the information. 

E. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of CONSULTANT’s 
noncompliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of this 
AGREEMENT, the recipient shall impose such agreement sanctions as 
it or the FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not 
limited to: 

1. withholding of payments to CONSULTANT under the Agreement 
within a reasonable period of time, not to exceed 90 days; 
and/or 

2. cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement, in 
whole or in part. 

F. Incorporation of Provisions: CONSULTANT shall include the 
provisions of paragraphs (A) through (E) in every sub-agreement, 
including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless 
exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto. 

G. CONSULTANT shall take such action with respect to any sub-
agreement or procurement as the recipient or FHWA may direct as a 
means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for 
noncompliance; provided, however, that, in the event CONSULTANT 
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a sub-
applicant or supplier as a result of such direction, CONSULTANT may 
request the recipient enter into such litigation to protect the 
interests of the COMMISSION, State, and, in addition, CONSULTANT 
may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect 
the interests of the United States. 

H. During the performance of this AGREEMENT, the CONSULTANT, for 
itself, its assignees, and successors in interest  agrees to comply 

27-60



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  18 

with the following non- discrimination statutes and authorities, 
including, but not limited to: 

Pertinent Non-Discrimination Authorities: 

1. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 
78 stat. 252), prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, 
national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21. 

2. The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 
Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair 
treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been 
acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and 
projects); 

3. Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; 

4. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 
et seq.), as amended, (prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
disability); and 49 CR Part 27; 

5. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 
6101 et seq.), prohibits discrimination on the basis of age); 

6. Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 U.S.C. § 471, 
Section 47123), as amended, (prohibits discrimination based on 
race, creed, color, national origin, or sex); 

7. The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), 
(Broadened the scope, coverage and applicability of Title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding 
the definition of the terms “programs or activities” to include all 
of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-
recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities 
are Federally funded or not); 

8. Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which 
prohibit discrimination of the basis of disability in the operation 
of public entities, public and private transportation systems, 
places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 
U.S.C. §§ 12131 – 12189) as implemented by Department of 
Transportation regulations 49 C.F.R. parts 37 and 38; 

27-61



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  19 

9. The Federal Aviation Administration’s Non-discrimination statute 
(49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
race, color, national origin, and sex); 

10. Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address 
Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income 
Populations, which ensures discrimination against minority 
populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities 
with disproportionately high and adverse human health or 
environmental effects on minority and low-income populations; 

11. Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for 
Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency 
guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination 
because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure 
compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to 
ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your 
programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100); and 

12. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, 
which prohibits you from discriminating because of sex in 
education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq). 

14. HARASSMENT. 
The COMMISSION maintains a strict policy prohibiting unlawful 
harassment, including sexual harassment, in any form, including verbal, 
physical, and visual harassment by any employee, supervisor, manager, 
officer or Commission member, or agent of the employer. Vendors, 
contractors, and consultants shall not engage in conduct that has an 
effect of unreasonably interfering with a COMMISSION employee's work 
performance or creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive work 
environment. 

15. FEDERAL CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES. 
A. CONSULTANT and all subconsultants shall comply, as applicable, with 

the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) "Transportation Planning 
Process Certification" requirements in accordance with 23 CFR 
450.336, as may be amended, and the federal transportation act and 
its successors thereto. It may include but is not limited to:  

1. 23 U.S.C. 134,49 U.S.C. 5303, and this subpart;  

27-62



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  20 

2. In nonattainment and maintenance areas, sections 174 and 176 
(c) and (d) of the Clean Air Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 7504, 
7506 (c) and (d)) and 40 CFR part 93;  

3. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. 
2000d–1), 49 CFR Part 21, and the Title VI Assurance executed 
by California under 23 U.S.C. 324 and 29 U.S.C. 794;  

4. Section 1101(b) of the FAST Act Pub. L. 114-357) and 49 CFR 
part 26 regarding the involvement of disadvantaged business 
enterprises in USDOT funded projects;  

5. The provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 
U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) and 49 CFR parts 27, 37, and 38;  

6. 49 U.S.C. 5332, prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, 
color, creed, national origin, sex, or age in employment or 
business opportunity; 

7. 23 CFR part 230, regarding the implementation of an equal 
employment opportunity program on federal and federal-aid 
highway construction contracts;  

8. The Older Americans Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 6101), 
prohibiting discrimination on the basis of age in programs or 
activities receiving Federal financial assistance; 

9. Section 324 of title 23 U.S.C. regarding the prohibition of 
discrimination based on gender; and 

10. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794) 
and 49 CFR part 27 regarding discrimination against individuals 
with disabilities.  

B. CONSULTANT shall also comply with “Certifications and Assurances 
for Federal Transportation Administration (FTA) Assistance", including 
“Certifications and Assurances Required of Each Applicant” and the 
“Lobbying Certification” in compliance with 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53, 
published annually in the Federal Register and found online at 
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grantee-
resources/certifications-and-assurances/certifications-assurances 

The 2022 FTA Certifications includes the following areas under 
“Assurances Required of Each Applicant:”  

1. Authority of Applicant and its Representatives  

27-63

https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000546&cite=42USCAS2000D-1&originatingDoc=N0373FB31F09711E7ABC0EDFD8FD204FF&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=4fbece87ee9f4bc5b13ea2aa525188f2&contextData=(sc.Category)
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000546&cite=42USCAS2000D-1&originatingDoc=N0373FB31F09711E7ABC0EDFD8FD204FF&refType=LQ&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&ppcid=4fbece87ee9f4bc5b13ea2aa525188f2&contextData=(sc.Category)
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grantee-resources/certifications-and-assurances/certifications-assurances
https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/grantee-resources/certifications-and-assurances/certifications-assurances


 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  21 

2. Standard Assurances  

3. Intergovernmental Review Assurance  

4. Suspension and Debarment Certification 

5. U.S. OMB Assurances in SF-424B and SF-424D 

16. PROHIBITION OF EXPENDING COMMISSION, STATE, OR FEDERAL 
FUNDS FOR LOBBYING.   
A. CONSULTANT certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief 

that: 

1. No state, federal or COMMISSION appropriated funds have been 
paid, or will be paid by-or-on behalf of CONSULTANT to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any state or agency; a Member of the State 
Legislature or United States Congress; an officer or employee of 
the Legislature or Congress; or any employee of a Member of the 
State Legislature or United States Congress, or any employee of a 
Member of the Legislature or Congress, in connection with the 
awarding this AGREEMENT or with the extension, continuation, 
renewal, amendment, or modification of this AGREEMENT. 

2. If any funds other than state or federal appropriated funds have 
been paid, or will be paid to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any local, State, 
or federal agency; a Member of the State Legislature or Congress; 
an officer or employee of the State Legislature or Congress, or any 
employee of a Member of the State Legislature or Congress; in 
connection with the awarding or making of this AGREEMENT, the 
CONSULTANT shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, 
“Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying”, in accordance with its 
instructions. 

B. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which 
reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into.  
Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or 
entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, US. 
Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be 
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than 
$100,000 for each such failure. 

C. CONSULTANT also agrees by signing this AGREEMENT that he or she 
shall require that the language of this certification be included in all 

27-64



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  22 

lower-tier subcontracts, which exceed $100,000, and that all such 
sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

17. CONFLICT OF INTEREST. 
A. During the term of this AGREEMENT, CONSULTANT shall disclose any 

financial, business, or other relationship with COMMISSION that may 
have an impact upon the outcome of this AGREEMENT, or any 
ensuing COMMISSION construction project. CONSULTANT shall also 
list current clients who may have a financial interest in the outcome 
of this AGREEMENT, or any ensuing COMMISSION construction 
project, which will follow. 

B. CONSULTANT certifies that it has disclosed to COMMISSION any 
actual, apparent, or potential conflicts of interest that may exist 
relative to the services to be provided pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 
CONSULTANT agrees to advise COMMISSION of any actual, apparent 
or potential conflicts of interest that may develop subsequent to the 
date of execution of this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT further agrees 
to complete any statements of economic interest if required by either 
COMMISSION ordinance or State law. 

C. CONSULTANT hereby certifies that it does not now have, nor shall it 
acquire any financial or business interest that would conflict with the 
performance of services under this AGREEMENT. 

D. The CONSULTANT hereby certifies that the CONSULTANT or 
subconsultant and any firm affiliated with the CONSULTANT or 
subconsultant that bids on any construction contract or on any 
agreement to provide construction inspection for any construction 
project resulting from this AGREEMENT, has established necessary 
controls to ensure a conflict of interest does not exist. An affiliated 
firm is one, which is subject to the control of the same persons, 
through joint ownership or otherwise. 

18. LICENSES.  

If a license of any kind is required of CONSULTANT, its employees, 
agents, or subcontractors by Federal or State law, CONSULTANT 
warrants that such license has been obtained, is valid and in good 
standing, that CONSULTANT shall keep it in effect at all times during the 
terms of this AGREEMENT, and that any applicable bond has been 
posted in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. 

27-65



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  23 

19. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION.  
A. CONSULTANT’S signature affixed herein, shall constitute a 

certification under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of 
California, that CONSULTANT or any person associated  therewith in 
the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, or manager, is not 
currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or 
determination of ineligibility by any federal agency; has not been 
suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded, or determined ineligible 
by any federal agency within the past three (3) years; does not have 
a proposed debarment pending; and has not been indicted, 
convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against it by a court of 
competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official 
misconduct within the past three (3) years.  

B. Any exceptions to this certification must be disclosed to the 
COMMISSION. Exceptions will not necessarily result in denial of 
recommendation for award but will be considered in determining 
CONSULTANT responsibility. Disclosures must indicate to whom 
exceptions apply, initiating agency, and dates of action. 

C. Exceptions to the Federal Government Excluded Parties List System 
maintained by the General Services Administration are to be 
determined by the FHWA. 

20. INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT STATUS. 
A. CONSULTANT and COMMISSION have reviewed and considered the 

principal test and secondary factors herein and agree that 
CONSULTANT is an independent CONSULTANT and not an employee 
of COMMISSION. CONSULTANT is responsible for all insurance 
(workers compensation, unemployment, etc.) and all payroll related 
taxes. CONSULTANT is not entitled to any employee benefits 
provided by the COMMISSION, including any pension or PERS 
benefits. COMMISSION agrees that CONSULTANT shall have the right 
to control the manner and means of accomplishing the result 
contracted for herein.  

1. PRINCIPAL TEST: The CONSULTANT rather than COMMISSION 
has the right to control the manner and means of accomplishing 
the result contracted for. 

2. SECONDARY FACTORS: (a) The extent of control which, by 
agreement, COMMISSION may exercise over the details of the 
work is slight rather than substantial; (b) CONSULTANT is 
engaged in a distinct occupation or business; (c) In the locality 

27-66



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  24 

where the work is to be done by CONSULTANT is usually done by 
a specialist without supervision, rather than under the direction 
of an employer; (d) The skill required in the particular 
occupation is substantial rather than slight; (e) The 
CONSULTANT rather than the COMMISSION supplies the 
instrumentalities, tools and work place; (f) The length of time for 
which CONSULTANT is engaged is of limited duration rather than 
indefinite; (g) The method of payment of CONSULTANT is by the 
job rather than by the time; (h) The work is part of a special or 
permissive activity, program, or project, rather than part of the 
regular business of COMMISSION; (i) CONSULTANT and 
COMMISSION believe they are creating an independent 
CONSULTANT relationship rather than an employer-employee 
relationship; and (j) The COMMISSION conducts public business. 

It is recognized that it is not necessary that all secondary factors 
support creation of an independent CONSULTANT relationship, 
but rather that overall there are significant secondary factors 
which indicate that CONSULTANT is an independent 
CONSULTANT. 

B. It is understood and agreed that CONSULTANT (including 
CONSULTANT’S employees) is an independent contractor, and that 
no relationship of employer-employee exists between the parties 
hereto. CONSULTANT’S assigned personnel, officers, employees, 
agents, or subconsultants shall not be entitled to any benefits 
payable to COMMISSION employees, including, but not limited to, 
healthcare, retirement, and leave benefits. 

C. CONSULTANT’S obligation to pay its subconsultant(s) is an 
independent obligation from COMMISSION’S obligation to make 
payments to the CONSULTANT.  

D. COMMISSION is not required to make any deductions or withholds 
from the compensation payable to CONSULTANT under the provisions 
of the AGREEMENT and is not required to issue W-2 Forms for 
income and employment tax purposes for any of CONSULTANT’S 
assigned personnel. CONSULTANT, in the performance of its 
obligation hereunder, is only subject to the control or direction of the 
COMMISSION as to the designation of tasks to be performed and the 
results to be accomplished.  

E. Any third-party person(s) employed by CONSULTANT shall be 
entirely and exclusively under the direction, supervision and control 
of CONSULTANT. CONSULTANT hereby indemnifies and holds 

27-67



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  25 

COMMISSION, its governing body, officers, employees, and agents, 
harmless from any and all claims that may be made against 
COMMISSION based upon any contention by any third party that an 
employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this AGREEMENT. 

F. Except as expressly authorized herein, CONSULTANT'S obligations 
under this AGREEMENT are not assignable or transferable, and 
CONSULTANT shall not subcontract any work, without the prior 
written approval of the COMMISSION.  However, claims for money 
due or which become due to CONSULTANT from COMMISSION under 
this AGREEMENT may be assigned to a financial institution or to a 
trustee in bankruptcy, without such approval.  Notice of any 
assignment or transfer whether voluntary or involuntary shall be 
furnished promptly to the COMMISSION. 

21. COST PRINCIPLES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS. 
A. CONSULTANT agrees that the AGREEMENT Cost Principles and 

Procedures, 48 CFR, Federal Acquisition Regulations System, Chapter 
1, Part 31et seq., shall be used to determine the cost allowability of 
individual items.  

B. CONSULTANT and all subconsultants also agree to comply with 
federal procedures in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200 Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards. 

C. Any costs for which payment has been made to CONSULTANT that 
are determined by subsequent audit to be unallowable under 48 CFR, 
Part 31 or 2 CFR Part 200 are subject to repayment by CONSULTANT 
to COMMISSION. 

D. When a CONSULTANT or subconsultant is a Non-Profit Organization 
or an Institution of Higher Education, the Cost Principles for Title 2 
CFR Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards shall apply. 

E. CONSULTANT and subconsultants shall establish and maintain, an 
accounting system conforming to Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) to support Requests for Reimbursement which 
segregate and accumulate the costs of work elements by line item 
(i.e., direct labor, other direct costs, subrecipients/subcontractor, 
etc.) and enable the determination of incurred costs at interim points 
of completion and provide support for reimbursement payment 
vouchers or invoices.  

27-68



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  26 

22. RETENTION OF RECORDS/AUDIT.  
A. For the purpose of determining compliance with Government Code 

section 8546.7, CONSULTANT, its subconsultants, and COMMISSION 
shall maintain and make available for inspection all books, 
documents, papers, accounting records, Independent CPA Audited 
Indirect Cost Rate workpapers, and other evidence pertaining to the 
performance of the AGREEMENT, including but not limited to, the 
costs of administering the AGREEMENT. All parties, including the 
CONSULTANT’S independent CPA, shall make such materials 
available at their respective offices at all reasonable times during the 
AGREEMENT period and for three (3) years from the date of final 
payment under the AGREEMENT and records for real property and 
equipment acquired with federal funds must be retained for three (3) 
years after final disposition. If any action has occurred relative to the 
records, the records must be retained until completion of the action 
and resolution of all issues that arise from it. 

B. The State, State Auditor, and COMMISSION shall have access to any 
books, records, and documents of CONSULTANT, subconsultants, and 
its/their certified public accountants’ (CPA) work papers that are 
pertinent to the AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT shall furnish indirect cost 
rates (ICR) for audit, examinations, excerpts, and transactions, and 
copies thereof if requested. The FTA, FHWA, or other authorized 
representative of the federal government shall also have access to 
the records described in this paragraph if federal funds are used in 
this AGREEMENT. 

23. INSPECTION OF WORK.  
The CONSULTANT and any subconsultant shall permit the COMMISSION, 
the STATE, and the FHWA or FTA if federal participating funds are used 
in this AGREEMENT, to review and inspect the project activities and files 
at all reasonable times during the term of this AGREEMENT including 
review and inspection on a daily basis if desired.  

24. ACKNOWLEDGMENT.  
CONSULTANT shall acknowledge in all reports and literature that the 
material is prepared for and on behalf of the COMMISSION. 

25. WORK PRODUCTS/OWNERSHIP OF DATA.  
A. All material, data, information, and written, graphic or other work 

produced under this AGREEMENT shall be the property of 
COMMISSION, as such the material, data, information, and written, 
graphic or other work is subject to the unqualified and unconditional 

27-69



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  27 

right of the COMMISSION to use, reproduce, publish, display, and 
make derivative use of all such work, or any part of it, free of charge 
and in any manner and for any purpose; and to authorize others to 
do so. CONSULTANT shall have no property right therein whatsoever. 

B. Immediately upon termination or expiration of this AGREEMENT or 
upon completion of all work under this AGREEMENT, the 
COMMISSION shall be entitled to and the CONSULTANT shall deliver 
to the COMMISSION reports, investigations, appraisals, inventories, 
studies, analysis, drawing and data estimates performed to date, 
whether completed or not, and other such materials as may have 
been prepared  by CONSULTANT in performing this AGREEMENT 
(which is not CONSULTANT’S privileged information, as defined by 
law or CONSULTANT’S personnel information) along with all other 
property belonging exclusively to the COMMISSION which is in the 
CONSULTANT’S possession. Publication of the information derived 
from work performed or data obtained in connection with services 
rendered under this AGREEMENT must be approved in writing by the 
COMMISSION.   

C. Additionally, it is agreed that the Parties intend this to be an 
AGREEMENT for services and each considers the products and results 
of the services to be rendered by CONSULTANT hereunder to be work 
made for hire. CONSULTANT acknowledges and agrees that the work 
(and all rights therein, including, without limitation, copyright) 
belongs to and shall be the sole and exclusive property of 
COMMISSION without restriction or limitation upon its use or 
dissemination by COMMISSION. 

D. Nothing herein shall constitute or be construed to be any 
representation by CONSULTANT that the work product is suitable in 
any way for any other project except the one detailed in this 
AGREEMENT. Any reuse by COMMISSION for another project or 
project location shall be at COMMISSION’S sole risk.  

E. Applicable patent rights provisions regarding rights to inventions 
shall be included in the AGREEMENT as appropriate (48 CFR 27, 
Subpart 27.3—Patent Rights under Government Contracts for 
federal-aid contracts). 

F. The COMMISSION may permit copyrighting reports or other 
AGREEMENT products, subject to its rights in paragraph G below. If 
copyrights are permitted, the agreement shall provide that the 
COMMISSION shall have the royalty-free nonexclusive and 

27-70



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  28 

irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use; and to 
authorize others to use, the work for government purposes.  

G. If any of the work is subject to copyright, trademark, service mark, 
or patent, CONSULTANT now grants to the COMMISSION a perpetual, 
royalty-free, nonexclusive and irrevocable license and/or right to use, 
reproduce, publish, use in the creation of derivative works, and 
display and perform the work, or any part of it, and to grant to any 
third party a comparable and coextensive sublicense and/or right.  

26. CONFIDENTIALITY OF DATA. 
A. All financial, statistical, personal, technical, or other data and 

information relative to COMMISSION’S operations, which are 
designated confidential by COMMISSION and made available to 
CONSULTANT in order to carry out this AGREEMENT, shall be 
protected by CONSULTANT from unauthorized use and disclosure.   

B. Permission to disclose information on one occasion, or disclosure 
pursuant to a public hearing held by COMMISSION relating to the 
AGREEMENT, shall not authorize CONSULTANT to further disclose 
such information, or disseminate the same on any other occasion.  

C. CONSULTANT shall not comment publicly to the press or any other 
media regarding the AGREEMENT or COMMISSION’S actions on the 
same, except to COMMISSION’S staff, CONSULTANT’S own personnel 
involved in the performance of this CONTRACT, at public hearings or 
in response to questions from a government entity.  

D. CONSULTANT shall not issue any news release or public relations 
item of any nature, whatsoever, regarding work performed or to be 
performed under this AGREEMENT without prior review of the 
contents thereof by COMMISSION, and receipt of COMMISSION’S 
written permission. 

27. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION. 
In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 10296, CONSULTANT 
hereby states under penalty of perjury that no more than one final 
unappealable finding of contempt of court by a federal court has been 
issued against CONSULTANT within the immediately preceding two-year 
period, because of CONSULTANT’s failure to comply with an order of a 
federal court that orders CONSULTANT to comply with an order of the 
National Labor Relations Board. 

27-71



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  29 

28. EVALUATION OF CONSULTANT.  
CONSULTANT’s performance will be evaluated by COMMISSION. A copy 
of the evaluation will be sent to CONSULTANT for comments. The 
evaluation together with the comments shall be retained as part of the 
AGREEMENT record. 

29. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE.  
CONSULTANT shall comply with the provisions of Government Code § 
8350 et seq., regarding Drug-Free Workplace Certification, and with the 
U.S. DOT regulations "Drug-Free Workplace Requirements Grants" in 49 
CFR Part 29, Subpart F.  

30. CHANGE IN TERMS.  
A. This AGREEMENT may be amended or modified only by mutual 

written agreement of the parties. 

B. No alteration or variation of the terms of this AGREEMENT shall be 
valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties authorized to 
bind the parties; and no oral understanding or agreement not 
incorporated herein, shall be binding on any of the parties hereto. 

C. There shall be no change in CONSULTANT’s Project Manager or 
members of the project team, as listed in the approved Cost 
Proposal, which is a part of this AGREEMENT, without prior written 
approval by COMMISSION’s Contract Administrator. 

D. CONSULTANT shall only commence work covered by an amendment 
after the amendment is executed and notification to proceed has 
been provided by the COMMISSION’S Contract Manager. 

31. DISPUTES.  
This AGREEMENT shall be construed under the laws of the State of 
California. Pending final resolution of a dispute hereunder, CONSULTANT 
shall proceed diligently with the performance of this AGREEMENT and 
shall comply with COMMISSION’S instructions. 

Prior to either party commencing any legal action under this 
AGREEMENT, the parties agree to try in good faith, to settle any dispute 
amicably between them. If a dispute has not been settled after thirty 
(30) days of good-faith negotiations and as may be otherwise provided 
herein, then either party may commence legal action against the other. 

A. Any dispute, other than audit disputes, concerning a question of fact 
arising under this AGREEMENT that is not disposed of by agreement 

27-72



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  30 

shall be decided by a committee consisting of the COMMISSION’S 
Contract Manager and Executive Director, who may consider written 
or verbal information submitted by the CONSULTANT. The 
committee’s determination regarding such dispute shall be final 
unless the committee determines, in its sole discretion, that the 
dispute shall be determined by the Board of COMMISSION. 

B. Not later than 30 days after completion of all work under the 
AGREEMENT, CONSULTANT may request review by COMMISSION of 
unresolved claims or disputes, other than audit. The request for 
review will be submitted in writing and carried out in accordance with 
the process described in paragraph A. 

C. Neither the pendency of a dispute, nor its consideration by the 
committee will excuse the CONSULTANT from full and timely 
performance in accordance with the terms of this AGREEMENT. 

32. CLAIMS FILED BY COMMISSION’S CONSTRUCTION CONSULTANT.  

A. If claims are filed by COMMISSION’S construction contractor relating 
to work performed by CONSULTANT’S personnel, and additional 
information or assistance from CONSULTANT’S personnel is required 
in order to evaluate or defend against such claims; CONSULTANT 
agrees to make its personnel available for consultation with 
COMMISSION’S construction AGREEMENT administration and legal 
staff and for testimony, if necessary, at depositions and at trial or 
arbitration proceedings.  

B. CONSULTANT’S personnel that COMMISSION considers essential to 
assist in defending against construction contractor claims will be 
made available on reasonable notice from COMMISSION. 
Consultation or testimony will be reimbursed at the same rates, 
including travel costs that are being paid for CONSULTANT’S 
personnel services under this AGREEMENT.  

C. Services of CONSULTANT’S personnel in connection with 
COMMISSION’S construction contractor claims will be performed 
pursuant to a written amendment to this AGREEMENT, if necessary, 
extending the termination date of this AGREEMENT in order to 
resolve the construction claims. 

33. AUDIT REVIEW PROCEDURES. 
A. Any dispute concerning a question of fact arising under an interim or 

post-completion audit of this AGREEMENT that is not disposed of by 

27-73



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  31 

agreement, shall be reviewed by the COMMISSION’S Contract 
Manager and Executive Director 

B. Not later than 30 days after issuance of the final audit report, the 
CONSULTANT may request a review by the COMMISSION’S Executive 
Director of unresolved audit issues. The request for review will be 
submitted in writing. The Executive Director’s determination 
regarding such dispute shall be final unless the Executive Director 
determines, in its sole discretion, that the dispute shall be 
determined by the Board of the COMMISSION. 

C. Neither the pendency of a dispute nor its consideration by the 
COMMISSION will excuse the CONSULTANT from full and timely 
performance, in accordance with the terms of this AGREEMENT. 

D. CONSULTANT and subconsultants’ contracts, including cost proposals 
and indirect cost rates (ICR), are subject to audits or reviews such 
as, but not limited to, an AGREEMENT Audit, an Incurred Cost Audit, 
an ICR Audit, or a certified public accountant (CPA) ICR Audit 
Workpaper Review. If selected for audit or review, the AGREEMENT, 
Cost Proposal (Exhibit C) and ICR and related work papers, if 
applicable, will be reviewed to verify compliance with 48 CFR, Part 31 
and other related laws and regulations. In the instances of a CPA ICR 
Audit Workpaper Review, it is CONSULTANT’S responsibility to ensure 
federal, state, or local government officials are allowed full access to 
the CPA’s workpapers, including making copies as necessary. The 
AGREEMENT, cost proposal, and ICR shall be adjusted by 
CONSULTANT and approved by COMMISSION Contract Manager to 
conform to the audit or review recommendations. CONSULTANT 
agrees that individual terms of costs identified in the audit report 
shall be incorporated into the AGREEMENT by this reference if 
directed by COMMISSION at its sole discretion. Refusal by 
CONSULTANT to incorporate audit or review recommendations, or to 
ensure that the COMMISSION, and/or Federal, State, or other local 
governments have access to CPA workpapers, will be considered a 
breach of AGREEMENT terms and cause for termination of the 
AGREEMENT and disallowance of prior reimbursed costs. 

E. CONSULTANT’S Cost Proposal (Exhibit C) may be subject to a CPA 
ICRA Audit Work Paper Review and/or audit by the Independent 
Office of Audits and Investigation (IOAI). IOAI, at its sole discretion, 
may review and/or audit and approve the CPA ICR documentation. 
The Cost Proposal (Exhibit C) shall be adjusted by the CONSULTANT 
and approved by the COMMISSION Contract Manager to conform to 
the Work Paper Review recommendations included in the 

27-74



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  32 

management letter or audit recommendations included in the audit 
report. Refusal by the CONSULTANT to incorporate the Work Paper 
Review recommendations included in the management letter or audit 
recommendations included in the audit report will be considered a 
breach of the AGREEMENT terms and cause for termination of the 
AGREEMENT and disallowance of prior reimbursed costs. 

1. During IOAI’s review of the ICR audit work papers created by the 
CONSULTANT’s independent CPA, IOAI will work with the CPA 
and/or CONSULTANT toward a resolution of issues that arise 
during the review. Each party agrees to use its best efforts to 
resolve any audit disputes in a timely manner. If IOAI identifies 
significant issues during the review and is unable to issue a 
cognizant approval letter, COMMISSION will reimburse the 
CONSULTANT at an accepted ICR until a FAR (Federal Acquisition 
Regulation) compliant ICR {e.g. 48 CFR Part 31; GAGAS 
(Generally Accepted Auditing Standards); CAS (Cost Accounting 
Standards), if applicable; in accordance with procedures and 
guidelines of the American Association of State Highways and 
Transportation Officials (AASHTO) Audit Guide; and other 
applicable procedures and guidelines}is received and approved by 
IOAI. 

Accepted rates will be as follows: 

a. If the proposed rate is less than one hundred fifty percent 
(150%)—the accepted rate reimbursed will be ninety percent 
(90%) of the proposed rate. 

b. If the proposed rate is between one hundred fifty percent 
(150%) and two hundred percent (200%)—the accepted rate 
will be eighty-five percent (85%) of the proposed rate. 

c. If the proposed rate is greater than two hundred percent 
(200%)—the accepted rate will be seventy-five percent (75%) 
of the proposed rate. 

2. If IOAI is unable to issue a cognizant letter per paragraph E.1. 
above, IOAI may require CONSULTANT to submit a revised 
independent CPA-audited ICR and audit report within three (3) 
months of the effective date of the management letter. IOAI will 
then have up to six (6) months to review the CONSULTANT’s 
and/or the independent CPA’s revisions. 

3. If the CONSULTANT fails to comply with the provisions of this 
paragraph E, or if IOAI is still unable to issue a cognizant approval 
letter after the revised independent CPA audited ICR is submitted, 

27-75



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  33 

overhead cost reimbursement will be limited to the accepted ICR 
that was established upon initial rejection of the ICR and set forth 
in paragraph E.1. above for all rendered services. In this event, 
this accepted ICR will become the actual and final ICR for 
reimbursement purposes under this AGREEMENT. 

4. CONSULTANT may submit to COMMISSION final invoice only when 
all of the following items have occurred: (1) IOAI accepts or 
adjusts the original or revised independent CPA audited ICR; (2) 
all work under this AGREEMENT has been completed to the 
satisfaction of COMMISSION; and (3) IOAI has issued its final ICR 
review letter. The CONSULTANT MUST SUBMIT ITS FINAL 
INVOICE TO COMMISSION no later than sixty (60) calendar days 
after occurrence of the last of these items. The accepted ICR will 
apply to this AGREEMENT and all other agreements executed 
between COMMISSION and the CONSULTANT, either as a prime or 
subconsultant, with the same fiscal period ICR. 

34. SUBCONTRACTING. 
A. The CONSULTANT is responsible for performing the work required 

under the AGREEMENT in a manner acceptable to COMMISSION. The 
CONSULTANT’S organization and all associated consultants and 
subconsultants must be identified in Article 1 of this AGREEMENT or 
the Cost Proposal (Exhibit C). If the CONSULTANT wishes to use a 
subconsultant not specified in this AGREEMENT or Exhibit C, prior 
written approval must be obtained from the COMMISSION’S Contract 
Manager. The subagreement must contain all required provisions of 
this AGREEMENT. All subawards must include adequate oversight, 
management, and administration of engineering and design related 
consultant services and be administered in accordance with State 
laws and procedures specified in 23 U.S.C.106(g)(4) and 2 CFR 
200.331.  

B. Nothing contained in this AGREEMENT or otherwise, shall create any 
contractual relation between COMMISSION and any subconsultant(s), 
and no subcontract shall relieve CONSULTANT of its responsibilities 
and obligations hereunder. CONSULTANT agrees to be as fully 
responsible to COMMISSION for the acts and omissions of its 
subconsultant(s) and of persons either directly or indirectly employed 
by any of them as it is for the acts and omissions of persons directly 
employed by CONSULTANT. CONSULTANT’S obligation to pay its 
subconsultant(s) is an independent obligation from COMMISSION’S 
obligation to make payments to the CONSULTANT. 

27-76



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  34 

C. The CONSULTANT shall perform the work contemplated with 
resources available within its own organization; and no portion of the 
work pertinent to this AGREEMENT shall be subcontracted without 
prior written authorization by the COMMISSION’S Contract Manager, 
except that, which is expressly identified in the approved Cost 
Proposal (Exhibit C).  

D. CONSULTANT or subconsultant shall pay to any subconsultant, not 
later than fifteen (15) days after receipt of each progress payment, 
unless otherwise agreed to in writing, the respective amounts 
allowed CONSULTANT on account of the work performed by the 
subconsultants, to the extent of each subconsultant’s interest 
therein. In the event that there is a good faith dispute over all or any 
portion of the amount due on a progress payment from CONSULTANT 
or subconsultant to a subconsultant, CONSULTANT or subconsultant 
may withhold no more than 150 percent of the disputed amount. Any 
violation of this requirement shall constitute a cause for disciplinary 
action and shall subject the licensee to a penalty, payable to the 
subconsultant, of 2 percent of the amount due per month for every 
month that payment is not made.  

E. In any action for the collection of funds wrongfully withheld, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to his or her attorney’s fees and 
costs. The sanctions authorized under this requirement shall be 
separate from, and in addition to, all other remedies, either civil, 
administrative, or criminal. This clause applies to both DBE and non-
DBE subconsultants. 

F. All subcontracts entered into as a result of this AGREEMENT shall 
contain all the provisions stipulated in this AGREEMENT to be 
applicable to subconsultants. 

G. Any substitution of subconsultants must be approved in writing by 
the COMMISSION’S Contract Manager prior to the start of work by 
the subconsultant. 

H. The CONSULTANT hereby agrees that neither CONSULTANT, nor any 
firm affiliated with the CONSULTANT, will bid on or enter into any 
construction AGREEMENT, or on any AGREEMENT to provide 
construction inspection for any construction project resulting from 
this AGREEMENT. An affiliated firm is one which is subject to the 
control of the same persons through joint-ownership, or otherwise. 

I. Except for subconsultants whose services are limited to providing 
surveying or materials testing information, no subconsultant who has 

27-77



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  35 

provided design services in connection with this AGREEMENT shall be 
eligible to bid on or enter into any construction contract, or on any 
contract to provide construction inspection for any construction 
project resulting from this AGREEMENT. 

35. EQUIPMENT PURCHASE.  
A. Prior authorization in writing, by COMMISSION’S Contract Manager 

shall be required before CONSULTANT enters into any unbudgeted 
purchase order, or subcontract exceeding $5,000 for supplies, 
equipment, or CONSULTANT services. CONSULTANT shall provide an 
evaluation of the necessity or desirability of incurring such costs.  

B. For purchase of any item, service or consulting work not covered in 
CONSULTANT’S Cost Proposal (Exhibit C) and exceeding $5,000, with 
prior authorization by COMMISSION’S Contract Manager, three 
competitive quotations must be submitted with the request, or the 
absence of proposal must be adequately justified. 

C. Any equipment purchased as a result of this AGREEMENT is subject 
to the following:  

1. CONSULTANT shall maintain an inventory of all nonexpendable 
property. Nonexpendable property is defined as having a useful 
life of at least two years and an acquisition cost of $5,000 or 
more. If the purchased equipment needs replacement and is sold 
or traded in, COMMISSION shall receive a proper refund or credit 
at the conclusion of the AGREEMENT, or if the AGREEMENT is 
terminated, CONSULTANT may either keep the equipment and 
credit COMMISSION in an amount equal to its fair market value, 
or sell such equipment at the best price obtainable at a public or 
private sale, in accordance with established COMMISSION 
procedures; and credit COMMISSION in an amount equal to the 
sales price. If CONSULTANT elects to keep the equipment, fair 
market value shall be determined at CONSULTANT’S expense, on 
the basis of a competent independent appraisal of such 
equipment. Appraisals shall be obtained from an appraiser 
mutually agreeable to by COMMISSION and CONSULTANT, if it is 
determined to sell the equipment, the terms and conditions of 
such sale must be approved in advance by COMMISSION.  

2. Regulation 2 CFR, Part 200 requires a credit to Federal funds 
when participating equipment with a fair market value greater 
than $5,000 is credited to the project. 

27-78



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  36 

36. STATE PREVAILING WAGE RATES.  
A. CONSULTANT and subconsultants shall comply with all applicable 

provisions of the California Labor Code requiring the payment of 
prevailing wages, and all applicable Federal, State, and local laws 
and ordinances applicable to the work, as may be amended.  

B. No CONSULTANT or subconsultant may be awarded a contract 
containing public work elements unless registered with the 
Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) pursuant to Labor Code 
1725.5. Registration with DIR must be maintained throughout the 
entire term of the AGREEMENT, including any subsequent 
amendments. 

C. The CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the applicable provisions of 
the California Labor Code requiring the payment of prevailing wages. 
The General Prevailing Wage Rate Determination applicable to work 
under this AGREEMENT are available and on file with the Department 
of Transportation’ Regional/District Labor Compliance Officer. 
(https://dot.ca.gov/programs/construction/labor-compliance). These 
wage rates are made a specific part of this AGREEMENT by reference 
pursuant to Labor Code §1773.2 and will be applicable to work 
performed at a construction project site. Prevailing wages will be 
applicable to all inspection work performed at COMMISSION 
construction sites, at COMMISSION facilities and at off-site locations 
that are set up by the construction contractor or one of its 
subcontractors solely and specifically to serve COMMISSION projects. 
Prevailing wage requirements do not apply to inspection work 
performed at the facilities of vendors and commercial materials 
suppliers that provide goods and services to the general public. 

D. General Prevailing Wage Rate Determinations applicable to this 
project may also be obtained from the Department of Industrial 
Relations website at https://www.dir.ca.gov/.  

E. Payroll Records  

1. Each CONSULTANT and Subconsultant shall keep accurate 
certified payroll records and supporting documents as mandated 
by Labor Code §1776 and as defined in 8 CCR §16000 showing 
the name, address, social security number, work classification, 
straight time and overtime hours worked each day and week, and 
the actual per diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, 
worker, or other employee employed by the CONSULTANT or 
Subconsultant in connection with the public work. Each payroll 

27-79

https://dot.ca.gov/programs/construction/labor-compliance
https://www.dir.ca.gov/


 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  37 

record shall contain or be verified by a written declaration that it 
is made under penalty of perjury, stating both of the following: 

a. The information contained in the payroll record is true and 
correct. 

b. The employer has complied with the requirements of Labor 
Code §1771, §1811, and §1815 for any work performed by his 
or her employees on the public works project. 

2. The payroll records enumerated under paragraph (1) above shall 
be certified as correct by the CONSULTANT under penalty of 
perjury. The payroll records and all supporting documents shall be 
made available for inspection and copying by COMMISSION 
representatives at all reasonable hours at the principal office of 
the CONSULTANT. The CONSULTANT shall provide copies of 
certified payrolls or permit inspection of its records as follows: 

a. A certified copy of an employee's payroll record shall be made 
available for inspection or furnished to the employee or the 
employee's authorized representative on request. 

b. A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in paragraph 
(1) above, shall be made available for inspection or furnished 
upon request to a representative of COMMISSION, the Division 
of Labor Standards Enforcement and the Division of 
Apprenticeship Standards of the Department of Industrial 
Relations or other party given the right to inspect the payroll 
records under state law. Certified payrolls submitted to 
COMMISSION, the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement 
and the Division of Apprenticeship Standards shall not be 
altered or obliterated by the CONSULTANT. 

c. The public shall not be given access to certified payroll records 
by the CONSULTANT, but such records shall be available upon 
request made through COMMISSION or the Department of 
Industrial Relations. The CONSULTANT is required to forward 
any requests for certified payrolls to the COMMISSION Contract 
Administrator by both email and U.S. mail no later than the 
business day following receipt of the request. 

3. Each CONSULTANT shall submit a certified copy of the records 
enumerated in paragraph (1) above, to the entity that requested 
the records within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of a written 
request. 

4. Any copy of records made available for inspection as copies and 
furnished upon request to the public or any public agency by 

27-80



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  38 

COMMISSION shall be marked or obliterated in such a manner as 
to prevent disclosure of each individual's name, address, and 
social security number. The name and address of the 
CONSULTANT or Subconsultant performing the work shall not be 
marked or obliterated. 

5. The CONSULTANT shall inform COMMISSION of the location of the 
records enumerated under paragraph (1) above, including the 
street address, city and county, and shall, within five (5) working 
days, provide a notice of a change of location and address. 

6. In the event the CONSULTANT or subconsultant fails to comply 
within the ten (10) day period, he or she shall, as a penalty to 
COMMISSION, forfeit one hundred dollars ($100) for each 
calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker, until strict 
compliance is effectuated. Such penalties shall be withheld by 
COMMISSION from payments then due. CONSULTANT is not 
subject to a penalty assessment pursuant to this Article due to the 
failure of a subconsultant to comply with this Article. 

F. When prevailing wage rates apply, the CONSULTANT is responsible 
for verifying compliance with certified payroll requirements. Invoice 
payment will not be made until the invoice is approved by the 
COMMISSION Contract Manager. 

G. Penalty 

1. The CONSULTANT and any of its subconsultants shall comply with 
Labor Code §1774 and §1775. Pursuant to Labor Code §1775, the 
CONSULTANT and any subconsultant shall forfeit to the 
COMMISSION a penalty of not more than two hundred dollars 
($200) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker 
paid less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director 
of DIR for the work or craft in which the worker is employed for 
any public work done under the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT 
or by  its subconsultant in violation of the requirements of the 
Labor Code and in particular, Labor Code §§1770 to 1780, 
inclusive. 

2. The amount of this forfeiture shall be determined by the Labor 
Commissioner and shall be based on consideration of mistake, 
inadvertence, or neglect of the CONSULTANT or subconsultant in 
failing to pay the correct rate of prevailing wages, or the previous 
record of the CONSULTANT or subconsultant in meeting their 
respective prevailing wage obligations, or the willful failure by the 

27-81



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  39 

CONSULTANT or subconsultant to pay the correct rates of 
prevailing wages. A mistake, inadvertence, or neglect in failing to 
pay the correct rates of prevailing wages is not excusable if the 
CONSULTANT or subconsultant had knowledge of the obligations 
under the Labor Code. The CONSULTANT is responsible for paying 
the appropriate rate, including any escalations that take place 
during the term of the AGREEMENT. 

3. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to Labor Code §1775, the 
difference between the prevailing wage rates and the amount paid 
to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which 
each worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be 
paid to each worker by the CONSULTANT or subconsultant. 

4. If a worker employed by a subconsultant on a public works project 
is not paid the general prevailing per diem wages by the 
subconsultant, the prime CONSULTANT of the project is not liable 
for the penalties described above unless the prime CONSULTANT 
had knowledge of that failure of the subconsultant to pay the 
specified prevailing rate of wages to those workers or unless the 
prime CONSULTANT fails to comply with all of the following 
requirements: 

a. The AGREEMENT executed between the CONSULTANT and the 
subconsultant for the performance of work on public works 
projects shall include a copy of the requirements in Labor Code 
§§ 1771, 1775, 1776, 1777.5, 1813, and 1815. 

b. The CONSULTANT shall monitor the payment of the specified 
general prevailing rate of per diem wages by the subconsultant 
to the employees by periodic review of the certified payroll 
records of the subconsultant. 

c. Upon becoming aware of the subconsultant’s failure to pay the 
specified prevailing rate of wages to the subconsultant’s 
workers, the CONSULTANT shall diligently take corrective 
action to halt or rectify the failure, including but not limited to, 
retaining sufficient funds due the subconsultant for work 
performed on the public works project. 

d. Prior to making final payment to the subconsultant for work 
performed on the public works project, the CONSULTANT shall 
obtain an affidavit signed under penalty of perjury from the 
subconsultant that the subconsultant had paid the specified 
general prevailing rate of per diem wages to the 
Subconsultant’s employees on the public works project and any 
amounts due pursuant to Labor Code §1813. 

27-82



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  40 

5. Pursuant to Labor Code §1775, COMMISSION shall notify the 
CONSULTANT on a public works project within fifteen (15) 
calendar days of receipt of a complaint that a subconsultant has 
failed to pay workers the general prevailing rate of per diem 
wages. 

6. If COMMISSION determines that employees of a subconsultant 
were not paid the general prevailing rate of per diem wages and if 
COMMISSION did not retain sufficient money under the 
AGREEMENT to pay those employees the balance of wages owed 
under the general prevailing rate of per diem wages, the 
CONSULTANT shall withhold an amount of moneys due the 
subconsultant sufficient to pay those employees the general 
prevailing rate of per diem wages if requested by COMMISSION. 

H. Hours of Labor: Eight (8) hours labor constitutes a legal day's work. 
The CONSULTANT shall forfeit, as a penalty to the COMMISSION, 
twenty-five dollars ($25) for each worker employed in the execution 
of the AGREEMENT by the CONSULTANT or any of its subconsultants 
for each calendar day during which such worker is required or 
permitted to work more than eight (8) hours in any one calendar day 
and forty (40) hours in any one calendar week in violation of the 
provisions of the Labor Code, and in particular §§1810 to 1815 
thereof, inclusive, except that work performed by employees in 
excess of eight (8) hours per day, and forty (40) hours during any 
one week, shall be permitted upon compensation for all hours worked 
in excess of eight (8) hours per day and forty (40) hours in any 
week, at not less than one and one-half (1.5) times the basic rate of 
pay, as provided in §1815. 

I. Employment of Apprentices 

1. Where either the AGREEMENT or the subcontract exceeds thirty 
thousand dollars ($30,000), the CONSULTANT and any 
subconsultants under him or her shall comply with all applicable 
requirements of Labor Code §§ 1777.5, 1777.6 and 1777.7 in the 
employment of apprentices. 

2. CONSULTANTS and subconsultants are required to comply with all 
Labor Code requirements regarding the employment of 
apprentices, including mandatory ratios of journey level to 
apprentice workers. Prior to commencement of work, 
CONSULTANT and subconsultants are advised to contact the DIR 
Division of Apprenticeship Standards website at 
https://www.dir.ca.gov/das/, for additional information regarding 

27-83

https://www.dir.ca.gov/das/


 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  41 

the employment of apprentices and for the specific journey-to- 
apprentice ratios for the AGREEMENT work. The CONSULTANT is 
responsible for all subconsultants’ compliance with these 
requirements. Penalties are specified in Labor Code §1777.7. 

J. When prevailing wages apply to the services described in the scope 
of work, transportation and subsistence costs shall be reimbursed at 
the minimum rates set by the Department of Industrial Relations 
(DIR) as outlined in the applicable Prevailing Wage Determination. 
See http://www.dir.ca.gov. 

37. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) 
PARTICIPATION.  
A. CONSULTANT, subrecipient (COMMISSION), or subconsultant shall 

take necessary and reasonable steps to ensure that DBEs have 
opportunities to participate in the contract (49 CFR 26). To ensure 
equal participation of DBEs provided in 49 CFR 26.5, The 
COMMISSION shows a contract goal for DBEs. CONSULTANT shall 
make work available to DBEs and select work parts consistent with 
available DBE subconsultants and suppliers.  

CONSULTANT shall meet the DBE goal shown elsewhere in these 
special provisions or demonstrate that they made adequate good 
faith efforts to meet this goal. It is CONSULTANT’s responsibility to 
verify at date of proposal opening that the DBE firm is certified as a 
DBE by using the California Unified Certification Program (CUCP) 
database and possesses the most specific available North American 
Industry Classification System (NAICS) codes or work code applicable 
to the type of work the firm will perform on the AGREEMENT. 
Additionally, the CONSULTANT is responsible to document the 
verification record by printing out the CUCP data for each DBE firm. A 
list of DBEs certified by the CUCP can be found at 
https://dot.ca.gov/programs/civil-rights/dbe-search. 

All DBE participation will count toward the California Department of 
Transportation’s federally mandated statewide overall DBE goal. 
Credit for materials or supplies CONSULTANT purchases from DBEs 
counts towards the goal in the following manner: 

1. 100 percent counts if the materials or supplies are obtained from 
a DBE manufacturer.  

2. 60 percent counts if the materials or supplies are purchased from 
a DBE regular dealer. Page 22 of 32 September 2020 I - I LAPM 
Exhibit 10-R A & E Boilerplate Agreement Language. 

27-84

http://www.dir.ca.gov/
https://dot.ca.gov/programs/civil-rights/dbe-search


 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  42 

3. Only fees, commissions, and charges for assistance in the 
procurement and delivery of materials or supplies count if 
obtained from a DBE that is neither a manufacturer nor regular 
dealer. 49CFR26.55 defines "manufacturer" and "regular dealer." 

This AGREEMENT is subject to 49 CFR Part 26 entitled “Participation 
by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of 
Transportation Financial Assistance Programs”. CONSULTANTS who 
enter into a federally-funded agreement will assist the COMMISSION 
in a good faith effort to achieve California's statewide overall DBE 
goal. 

B. The goal for DBE participation for this AGREEMENT is 18%. 
Participation by DBE consultant or subconsultants shall be in 
accordance with information contained in the Consultant Proposal 
DBE Commitment (LAPM Exhibit 10-O1), or in the Consultant 
Contract DBE Information (LAPM Exhibit 10-O2) attached hereto and 
incorporated as part of the AGREEMENT.  

C. CONSULTANT can meet the DBE participation goal by either 
documenting commitments to DBEs to meet the AGREEMENT goal, or 
by documenting adequate good faith efforts to meet the AGREEMENT 
goal. An adequate good faith effort means that the CONSULTANT 
must show that it took all necessary and reasonable steps to achieve 
a DBE goal that, by their scope, intensity, and appropriateness to the 
objective, could reasonably be expected to meet the DBE goal. If 
CONSULTANT has not met the DBE goal, complete and submit LAPM 
Exhibit 15-H: DBE Information –Good Faith Efforts to document 
efforts to meet the goal. Refer to 49 CFR Part 26 for guidance 
regarding evaluation of good faith efforts to meet the DBE goal. 

D. Contract Assurance 

Under 49 CFR 26.13(b):  

CONSULTANT, subrecipient or subconsultant shall not discriminate on 
the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of 
this AGREEMENT. CONSULTANT shall carry out applicable 
requirements of 49 CFR 26 in the award and administration of 
federal-aid contracts. Failure by the CONSULTANT to carry out these 
requirements is a material breach of this AGREEMENT, which may 
result in the termination of this AGREEMENT or such other remedy as 
the recipient deems appropriate, which may include, but is not 
limited to: 

27-85



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  43 

1. Withholding monthly progress payments.  

2. Assessing sanctions.  

3. Liquidated damages.  

4. Disqualifying CONSULTANT from future proposing as non-
responsible. 

E. Termination and Substitution of DBE Subconsultants 

CONSULTANT shall utilize the specific DBEs listed to perform the 
work and supply the materials for which each is listed unless 
CONSULTANT or DBE subconsultant obtains the COMMISSION’S 
written consent. CONSULTANT shall not terminate or substitute a 
listed DBE for convenience and perform the work with their own 
forces or obtain materials from other sources without authorization 
from the COMMISSION. Unless COMMISSION’S consent is provided, 
the CONSULTANT shall not be entitled to any payment for work or 
material unless performed or supplied by the listed DBE on the 
Exhibit 10-02 Consultant Contract DBE Commitment form included in 
the bid.  

The COMMISSION authorizes a request to use other forces or sources 
of materials if CONSULTANT shows any of the following justifications:  

1. Listed DBE fails or refuses to execute a written contract based on 
plans and specifications for the project.  

2. The COMMISSION stipulated that a bond is a condition of 
executing the subcontract and the listed DBE fails to meet the 
COMMISSION’S bond requirements.  

3. Work requires a consultant's license and listed DBE does not have 
a valid license under Contractors License Law.  

4. Listed DBE fails or refuses to perform the work or furnish the 
listed materials (failing or refusing to perform is not an allowable 
reason to remove a DBE if the failure or refusal is a result of bad 
faith or discrimination).  

5. Listed DBE's work is unsatisfactory and not in compliance with the 
AGREEMENT. 

6. Listed DBE is ineligible to work on the project because of 
suspension or debarment. 

27-86



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  44 

7. Listed DBE becomes bankrupt or insolvent. 

8. Listed DBE voluntarily withdraws with written notice from the 
AGREEMENT.  

9. Listed DBE is ineligible to receive credit for the type of work 
required.  

10. Listed DBE owner dies or becomes disabled resulting in the 
inability to perform the work on the AGREEMENT. 

11. The COMMISSION determines other documented good cause.  

CONSULTANT shall notify the original DBE of the intent to use other 
forces or material sources and provide the reasons and provide the 
DBE with 5 days to respond to the notice and advise CONSULTANT 
and the COMMISSION of the reasons why the use of other forces or 
sources of materials should not occur. CONSULTANT’S request to use 
other forces or material sources must include:  

1. One or more of the reasons listed in the preceding paragraph.  

2. Notices from CONSULTANT to the DBE regarding the request. 

3. Notices from the DBEs to CONSULTANT regarding the request.  

If a listed DBE is terminated or substituted, CONSULTANT must make 
good faith efforts to find another DBE to substitute for the original 
DBE. The substitute DBE must perform at least the same amount of 
work as the original DBE under the AGREEMENT to the extent needed 
to meet or exceed the DBE goal. 

F. Commitment and Utilization  

The COMMISSION’S DBE program must include a monitoring and 
enforcement mechanism to ensure that DBE commitments reconcile 
to DBE utilization. The COMMISSION shall request CONSULTANT to: 

1. Notify the COMMISSION Contract Manager or designated 
representative of any changes to its anticipated DBE participation 

2. Provide this notification before starting the affected work or 
material unless it is performed or supplied by the listed DBE on 
the LAPM Exhibit 10-02 Consultant Contract DBE Commitment 
form, included in the Bid 

27-87



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  45 

3. Maintain records including: 

a. Name and business address of each 1st-tier subconsultant 
b. Name and business address of each DBE subconsultant, DBE 

vendor, and DBE trucking company, regardless of tier  
c. Date of payment and total amount paid to each business (see 

LAPM Exhibit 9-F Monthly Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
Payment)  

If CONSULTANT is a DBE CONSULTANT, they shall include the date of 
work performed by their own forces and the corresponding value of 
the work.  

If a DBE is decertified before completing its work, the DBE must 
notify CONSULTANT in writing of the decertification date. If a 
business becomes a certified DBE before completing its work, the 
business must notify CONSULTANT in writing of the certification date. 
CONSULTANT shall submit the notifications to the COMMISSION. On 
work completion, CONSULTANT shall complete a Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprises (DBE) Certification Status Change, LAPM Exhibit 
17-O, form and submit the form to the COMMISSION within 30 days 
of AGREEMENT acceptance.  

Upon work completion, CONSULTANT shall complete LAPM Exhibit 
17-F Final Report – Utilization of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises 
(DBE), First-Tier Subcontractors and submit it to the COMMISSION 
within 90 days of AGREEMENT acceptance. The COMMISSION will 
withhold $10,000 until the form is submitted. The COMMISSION will 
release the withhold upon submission of the completed form.  

In the COMMISSION’S reports of DBE participation to Caltrans, the 
COMMISSION must display both commitments and attainments. 

The COMMISSIONS DBE program must include a monitoring and 
enforcement mechanism to ensure that DBE commitments reconcile 
to DBE utilization. 

G. A DBE is only eligible to be counted toward the AGREEMENT goal if it 
performs a commercially useful function (CUF) on the AGREEMENT. 
CUF must be evaluated on an agreement-by-agreement basis. A DBE 
performs a CUF when it is responsible for execution of the work of 
the AGREEMENT and is carrying out its responsibilities by actually 
performing, managing, and supervising the work involved. To 
perform a CUF, the DBE must also be responsible, with respect to 
materials and supplies used on the AGREEMENT, for negotiating 

27-88



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  46 

price, determining quality and quantity, ordering the material and 
installing (where applicable), and paying for the material itself. To 
determine whether a DBE is performing a CUF, COMMISSION will 
evaluate the amount of work subcontracted, industry practices, 
whether the amount the firm is to be paid under the AGREEMENT is 
commensurate with the work it is actually performing, and other 
relevant factors.  

H. If a DBE does not perform or exercise responsibility for at least thirty 
percent (30%) of the total cost of the AGREEMENT with its own work 
force, or the DBE subcontracts a greater portion of the work of the 
AGREEMENT than would be expected on the basis of normal industry 
practice for the type of work involved, it will be presumed that it is 
not performing a CUF. 

I. CONSULTANT shall maintain records of materials purchased or 
supplied from all subcontracts entered into with certified DBEs. The 
records shall show the name and business address of each DBE or 
vendor and the total dollar amount actually paid each DBE or vendor, 
regardless of tier. The records shall show the date of payment and 
the total dollar figure paid to all firms. DBE prime consultants shall 
also show the date of work performed by their own forces along with 
the corresponding dollar value of the work.  

J. If a DBE subconsultant is decertified during the life of the 
AGREEMENT, the decertified subconsultant shall notify CONSULTANT 
in writing with the date of decertification. If a subconsultant becomes 
a certified DBE during the life of the AGREEMENT, the subconsultant 
shall notify CONSULTANT in writing with the date of certification. Any 
changes should be reported to the COMMISSION’S Contract Manager 
within thirty (30) calendar days.  

K. After submitting an invoice for reimbursement that includes a 
payment to a DBE, but no later than the 10th of the following month, 
the prime consultant shall complete and email the LAPM Exhibit 9-F: 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Running Tally of Payments to 
business.support.unit@dot.ca.gov with a copy to the COMMISSION.  

L. The CONSULTANT must make available to the COMMISSION’S 
Contract Manager a copy of all DBE subcontracts upon request. 

M. Any subcontract entered into as a result of this AGREEMENT shall 
contain all of the provisions of this Article. 

27-89

mailto:business.support.unit@dot.ca.gov


 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  47 

38. REBATES, KICKBACKS OR OTHER UNLAWFUL CONSIDERATION.  
The CONSULTANT warrants that this AGREEMENT was not obtained or 
secured through rebates, kickbacks, or other unlawful consideration, 
either promised or paid to any COMMISSION employee. For breach or 
violation of this warranty, COMMISSION shall have the right in its 
discretion; to terminate the AGREEMENT without liability; to pay only for 
the value of the work actually performed; or to deduct from the 
AGREEMENT price; or otherwise recover the full amount of such rebate, 
kickback or other unlawful consideration. 

39. CONTINGENT FEE. 
CONSULTANT warrants, by execution of this AGREEMENT, that no 
person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or 
secure this AGREEMENT upon an agreement or understanding, for a 
commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent, excepting bona fide 
employees or bona fide commercial or selling agencies maintained by 
the CONSULTANT for the purpose of securing business. For breach or 
violation of this warranty, the COMMISSION shall have the right to 
annul this AGREEMENT without liability, or at its discretion to deduct 
from the AGREEMENT price or consideration, or otherwise recover, the 
full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or 
contingent fee. 

40. NOTIFICATION.  
All notices hereunder and communications regarding interpretation of 
the terms of this AGREEMENT and changes thereto, shall be effected by 
the mailing thereof by registered or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid, and addressed or emailing with delivery 
receipt requested as follows: 

CONSULTANT: 
HDR Engineering, Inc. 
Mark McLaren, Senior Vice President 
1 South Church Avenue 
Tucson AZ 85701-1612 
Mark.McLaren@hdrinc.com  

 
COMMISSION: 

Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
Riley Gerbrandt, Associate Transportation Engineer 
1101 Pacific Avenue, Suite 250, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
rgerbrandt@sccrtc.org 

 

27-90

mailto:Mark.McLaren@hdrinc.com
mailto:rgerbrandt@sccrtc.org


 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  48 

41. FORCE MAJEURE 
Neither COMMISSION nor CONSULTANT will be liable for any breach or 
failure to perform under this AGREEMENT or any other documents 
incorporated by reference herein if such breach or failure to perform is 
due to acts beyond the reasonable control of such party, which include 
by way of illustration, but not limitation, acts of God or public enemy, 
acts of federal, state, or local government, either in its sovereign or 
contractual capacity, fire, floods, epidemics and quarantines, civil 
disobedience, strikes, lock-outs, freight embargoes, or severe weather 
provided, however, that party which has been so affected will promptly 
give written notice to the other of the fact that it is unable to so perform 
and the cause(s) therefore. The party claiming force majeure shall 
promptly notify the other party of the termination of the event and shall 
resume its performance under this AGREEMENT immediately upon the 
cessation of such cause(s). During the period that the performance by 
one of the parties of its obligations under this AGREEMENT has been 
suspended because of an event of force majeure, the other party may 
likewise suspend the performance of its obligations under this 
AGREEMENT to the extent that the suspension is reasonable. 

42. COMPLETE AGREEMENT. 
A. AGREEMENT: The two parties to this AGREEMENT, who are the 

before named CONSULTANT and the before named COMMISSION, 
hereby agree that this AGREEMENT constitutes the entire 
AGREEMENT which is made and concluded in duplicate between the 
two parties. Both of these parties for and in consideration of the 
payments to be made, conditions mentioned, and work to be 
performed; each agree to diligently perform in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT  as evidenced by the 
signatures below.  

B. COMMISSION DESIGNEE: The Executive Director of COMMISSION, or 
his or her designee, shall have the authority to act for and exercise 
any of the rights of COMMISSION as set forth in this AGREEMENT 
subsequent to, and in accordance with the authorization granted by 
the COMMISSION.  

C. COMPLETE AGREEMENT, INCLUDING ATTACHMENTS. This 
AGREEMENT includes all exhibits, attachments, and documents 
incorporated herein and made applicable by reference, constitutes 
the complete and exclusive statement of the terms and conditions of 
the AGREEMENT  between COMMISSION and CONSULTANT, and 
supersedes all prior representations, understandings and 
communications. The invalidity in whole or in part of any term or 

27-91



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  49 

condition of this AGREEMENT shall not affect the validity of other 
terms or conditions. The COMMISSION’S waiver of CONSULTANT'S 
performance of any term(s) or condition(s) of this AGREEMENT shall 
not be construed as a waiver for any future performance of such 
term(s) or conditions(s). 

D. ATTACHMENTS: 

Exhibit A: Scope of Services 

Exhibit B: Project Schedule 

Exhibit C: Consultant/Subconsultant(s) Cost Proposals  

Exhibit D: Independent Office of Audits and Investigations 
Acceptance of Indirect Cost Rate(s) 

Exhibit E. Certification of Indirect Costs and Financial Management 
System 

Exhibit F: CalSTA Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program and 
Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission, 
Master Agreement No. 64SantaCruzCountyRTCMA, 
Program Supplement No. 05SantaCruzCountyRTCPS 

Exhibit G: Consultant Contract DBE Commitment (LAPM Exhibit 10-
O2)  

Exhibit H: Disclosure of Lobbying Activities, Standard Form (LAPM 
Exhibit 10-Q) 

Exhibit I: California Levine Act Statement  

Exhibit J: St. Paul & Pacific Railroad, LLC (a Subsidiary of Progressive 
Rail, Inc.) Guidelines for Document Submission, Right of Entry 

Each of the undersigned represents and warrants that he or she is duly 
authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement and that such execution is 
binding upon the entity for which he or she is executing this document. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract No. 
TP2153 to be executed on the date first written above. 

  

27-92



 

S:\CONTRACT\CurrentContracts\Rail\HDR TP2153\Contract TP2153  50 

 
SIGNATURE PAGE 

 
Contract No. TP2153 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands the day and 
year first above written. 
 
 
1. CONSULTANT: 
 
 
 
By 

 Holly Kennedy  
Vice President/N. CA Operations 

 
Date 

 
HDR Engineering, Inc. 
3003 Oak Road, STE 500 
Walnut Creek, CA 94597 
(925) 465-2717 
holly.kennedy@hdrinc.com 

 
3. APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By 

Steve Mattas 
RTC Counsel 
 

Date 

2. SANTA CRUZ COUNTY REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION: 

 
 
By 

Guy Preston 
Executive Director 

 
Date 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
4. APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE: 
 
 
By 

Yesenia Parra 
RTC Administrative Services Officer 
 

Date 
 

 
 
Distribution: 
 
RTC Contract Manager, RTC Contract Coordinator, CONSULTANT

27-93



AGENDA: August 3, 2023 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission (RTC)  

FROM: Amy Naranjo, Transportation Planner 

RE: Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) Call for Projects 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Interagency Technical Advisory Committee (ITAC) and staff recommend that the 
Regional Transportation Commission (RTC): 

1. Approve evaluation criteria, specified in Attachment 2, and the proposed
process for programming various state and federal funds and production of the
2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP); and

2. Issue a call for projects for projected new State Transportation Improvement
Program (STIP), Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBG)/Regional
Surface Transportation Program Exchange (RSTPX) funds, SB 1 formula Local
Partnership Program (LPP) funds.

BACKGROUND 

As the Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA) for Santa Cruz County, the 
Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) is responsible for 
selecting projects to receive certain state and federal funds, including State 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP), Surface Transportation Block Grant 
Program/Regional Surface Transportation Program Exchange (STBG/RSTPX), SB 1 
Local Partnership Program-formulaic (LPP), Transportation Development Act (TDA), 
State Transit Assistance (STA)-State of Good Repair (SGR), Low Carbon Transit 
Operations Program (LCTOP), and TNC-Access for All funds.  

The RTC typically selects projects to receive some of these funds through a 
competitive application process, which includes evaluation of project benefits, review 
by the RTC’s advisory committees, and a public hearing. Approved projects are 
programmed in the RTC’s Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) 
and/or included in the RTC budget. If projects are considered regionally significant, 
will impact air quality conformity, or are receiving federal funds, they are also 
amended into the Federal/Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program 
(prepared by the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG)). Projects 
approved by the RTC for State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) funds are 

28-1

https://catc.ca.gov/programs/state-transportation-improvement-program
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-law/stbg.cfm
https://catc.ca.gov/programs/sb1/local-partnership-program
https://dot.ca.gov/programs/rail-and-mass-transportation/state-transit-assistance-state-of-good-repair
https://dot.ca.gov/programs/rail-and-mass-transportation/low-carbon-transit-operations-program-lctop
https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/regulatory-services/licensing/transportation-licensing-and-analysis-branch/transportation-network-companies/tnc-accessibility-for-persons-with-disabilities-program/tnc---access-for-all-program-access-provider
https://sccrtc.org/funding-planning/approved-projects/
https://www.ambag.org/program/metropolitan-transportation-improvement-program-mtip


RTIP Call for Projects 

subject to concurrence from the California Transportation Commission (CTC), which 
also makes the final determination on what year STIP funds are programmed after 
consideration of proposals from agencies statewide. RTC proposals for STIP funds are 
due to the CTC by December 15, 2023. 

DISCUSSION 

Recommendations for the 2023 Grant Process 

In consideration of CTC priorities for STIP funds1, past RTC commitments, changes in 
state and federal legislation and guidelines, 2045 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 
policies and targets, and construction cost increases being experienced by agencies 
statewide, ITAC and staff recommend the following for the 2023 grant cycle: 

Issue Call for Projects: Announce a consolidated call for projects for approximately 
$26.8 million that is expected to be available from the region’s formula shares of 
STIP, STBG/RSTPX, and SB1 LPP funds. Additional information on these funding 
programs is provided in Attachment 1. The RTC has the option to issue separate calls 
for projects for each funding source, but combining the programs allows the RTC to 
develop a more comprehensive investment program and requires fewer RTC and 
project sponsor staff resources. It also provides the flexibility to fund some individual 
projects with a combination of these funds.  

• STIP: Estimated $8.6 million target of State Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP) funds through FY28/29.  

• STBG/RSTPX: Approximately $17.4 million in Surface Transportation Block 
Grant Program (STBG)/Regional Surface Transportation Program Exchange 
(RSTPX) funds available through FY25/26.   

• LPP: Approximately $600,000 formula share of SB1-Local Partnership Program 
(LPP) funds available through FY 24/25.  The amount is relatively small in 
comparison to the region’s STIP and STBG/RSTPX shares. 

• Earmark Repurposing: $186,523 in federal earmark funds previously 
programmed to the Highway 1 Soquel-Morrissey Auxiliary Lane project are 
expected to also be available to repurpose, but is dependent on federal and 
state actions.  

  

 

1 Guidelines and fund estimate are currently under development for the 2024 State 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) and expected to be adopted by the California 
Transportation Commission (CTC) on August 16th, 2023. 

28-2



RTIP Call for Projects 

Evaluation Criteria 

The RTC is required to select projects to receive funds based on an evaluation of 
project benefits. The RTC considers how well projects address Regional Transportation 
Plan (RTP) goals, policies, and targets and federal and state criteria and guidelines 
when evaluating projects. Staff and ITAC recommend that the RTC approve the 
evaluation criteria for the 2023 cycle (Attachment 2). The RTC would select 
projects to receive funds based on how well they advance the criteria, as compared to 
other proposed projects. Staff are proposing minor changes to the evaluation criteria 
used in previous RTIP application cycles. The RTC’s advisory committees provided 
input on the proposed evaluation criteria at their February meetings and the ITAC 
reviewed and refined criteria again at its June 15, 2023 meeting, including the 
recommendation to allow the lowest scoring criteria per project to be dropped from 
consideration. The RTC has given the greatest consideration to the first four criteria 
(number of people served by a project, safety benefits, system preservation, air 
quality benefits) when selecting projects to receive funds. This is in line with the 
ITAC's recommendations in the past. The proposed evaluation criteria also 
incorporates input from various members of the public who provided feedback at 
committee meetings. 

Projects should also align with the State's climate and equity goals, including the 
Climate Action Plan for Transportation Infrastructure (CAPTI). 

Match 

Require project sponsors to provide at least an 11.47% match for all funding sources 
except LPP. This is consistent with the minimum non-federal funding match required 
for STBG. Requiring a match increases the number of projects funded, leverages other 
funds, demonstrates local agency commitment to a project as a priority, and helps 
cover projects costs that may not be eligible for reimbursement by the state. For the 
LPP funds, the CTC requires at least a 1-to-1 match from private, local, federal, or 
state funds. The RTC and direct recipients (cities, the County, METRO, and Community 
Bridges/Lift Line) of Measure D funds could use their shares of Measure D or other 
local funds to meet this LPP match requirement.  

RTC Programming Applications 

As provided by state law, the CTC makes 5% of the STIP shares available for 
planning, programming, and monitoring activities. Since these funds have been 
available, they have been used by the RTC for the work necessary to program funds, 
produce and update regional transportation improvement programs, monitor the 
development of projects to make sure that programmed funds are not lost, and 
produce regional transportation plans and other plans that identify projects for future 
programming. 

28-3



RTIP Call for Projects 

As in the past, RTC staff will submit an application to program 5% of the regions new 
STIP shares ($430,000 through FY28/29) for regional planning, programming, and 
monitoring activities (PPM) performed by the RTC. Staff may also submit applications 
for the RTC’s proposed bike subsidy program, highway projects, rail and trail projects, 
which would be evaluated alongside other projects.  

Reserve 

While staff recommends issuing a call for projects for approximately $26.8 million in 
funds from several programs, the RTC could decide in December to keep some of the 
region’s shares unprogrammed to address future funding needs.  

The RTC is likely to receive proposals for new projects and requests for additional 
funds for several previously programmed projects. As part of the 2024 RTIP, the RTC 
may also receive proposals to modify the schedule, scope, and funding information for 
projects previously approved by the RTC. Based on the current bid environment, 
agencies statewide are seeing significant increases in project costs. Additionally, as 
projects undergo environmental review, design, and community review, it is not 
uncommon for project costs to increase. For projects that maintain strong benefits in 
comparison to other proposals, it is not uncommon for the RTC to approve additional 
funds to cover previously unanticipated cost increases.  

Formal RTC action on programming funds to specific projects would take place 
following review of all the project proposals received (including requests for additional 
funds on previously programmed projects) and a public hearing at the December 7, 
2023, RTC board meeting. 

Deciding Color of Funds 

As project applications are evaluated and projects are approved by the RTC, staff will 
work with projects sponsors to confirm the most appropriate funding source (“color of 
funds”) for each. This may also include changing previously approved STBG/RSTPX to 
STIP for large projects, thereby freeing up more flexible STBG/RSTPX for smaller 
projects or projects that are not as high of a priority for the CTC.  

2023 Cycle Timeline 

The RTC’s proposal for STIP funds is due to the CTC by December 15, 2023. To meet 
that deadline, the proposed schedule for the RTIP development is as follows:  

28-4



RTIP Call for Projects 

 

DATE MILESTONE 

August 3, 2023 RTC approves evaluation criteria and issues call for projects 

August 4 Application available on RTC website 

August 16-17 CTC adopts STIP Fund Estimate and Guidelines 

August 17 RTC and ITAC receive updates on state funding programs and 
the 2024 RTIP. 

August 23 Application workshop to review and respond to questions  

October 27 Applications and amendment requests for previously approved 
projects due from project sponsors 

November 2023 RTC Committees review proposals, make recommendations 

December 7 Public hearing, RTC adoption of program of projects, projects 
amended into the Regional Transportation Improvement Program 
(RTIP) and RTC budget as appropriate. 

December 15 RTC’s 2024 RTIP proposal for STIP funds due to CTC 

January 25, 
2024 

CTC STIP North Hearing on RTIP proposals 

March 1 CTC releases staff recommendations for STIP (based on review 
of proposals from Caltrans and regions statewide) 

March 21-22 CTC adopts 2024 STIP (final determination on which projects are 
included each year of the 2024 State Transportation 
Improvement Program (STIP)) 

Eligible Projects  

STIP, STBG/RSTPX, and LPP funds can be used on a variety of projects, as outlined in 
CTC Guidelines, Article 19 of the California Constitution, the federal transportation act, 
and Caltrans guidelines for each source. Collectively, eligible projects include a wide 
range of transportation projects: highway, local street and road, transit, paratransit, 
and community transportation services, public mass transit guideways, grade 
separations, bicycle, pedestrian, transportation system management, transportation 
demand management, soundwalls, intermodal facilities, safety, and bridge projects. 
Cities, the County of Santa Cruz, the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC), 
University of California Santa Cruz (UCSC), Santa Cruz Metro, Caltrans, and non-profit 

28-5



RTIP Call for Projects 

agencies (with public agency sponsorship) are among those eligible to apply for the 
funds. Non-capital costs for transportation system management or transportation 
demand management may be funded by the STIP or STBG/RSTPX where the regional 
agency finds the project to be a cost-effective substitute for capital expenditures. 
Other non-capital projects (e.g., ongoing maintenance and transit service) are not 
eligible. Projects must be consistent with the Regional Transportation Plan.   

Regional Projects 

RTC staff is currently evaluating the funding needs for regional projects and programs 
and anticipates submitting applications for some projects previously identified as 
priorities by the RTC, including bicycle incentives. Those projects would be evaluated 
alongside projects submitted by other agencies.  

As part of development of the 2024 RTIP, staff and project sponsors are also looking 
at opportunities to use these regional formula funds to leverage other competitive 
grants. This may include things like initiating pre-construction work with regional STIP 
funds, so that projects are “shelf ready” and able to compete for future SB 1 Solutions 
for Congested Corridors funds, or advancing projects which are partially funded by 
Measure D.  

SUMMARY 

The RTC is responsible for selecting projects to receive certain state and federal funds. 
Staff recommends that the RTC issue a consolidated call for projects for approximately 
$26.8 million available from the region’s formula shares of STIP (approximately $8.6 
million through FY28/29), STBG/RSTPX ($17.4 million through FY25/26), and SB 1- 
LPP funds (approximately $600,000), with applications due on October 27, 2023. A 
public hearing will be held in December to take final action to program the funds. 

Attachments: 

1. Funding Programs
2. Draft Evaluation Criteria

https://rtcsc.sharepoint.com/sites/programming/shared documents/2023-next-rtip/staffreports/23-08 sr 
rtip call for projects.docx 

28-6

https://sccrtc.org/funding-planning/long-range-plans/2045-regional-transportation-plan/


Attachment 1 

Funding Programs 
As communicated in the staff report, the Interagency Technical Advisory Committee 
(OTAC) and staff recommend a consolidated call for projects/application process for 
selecting projects to receive the region’s shares of formula funds from the following 
state and federal programs. This will allow the 2023 Regional Transportation 
Improvement Program (RTIP) to serve as a comprehensive investment program. 

State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 

For the 2024 State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) the region’s 
estimated formula share of funds through FY28/29 is approximately $8.6 million 
(target); this includes $430,000 (5%) available for the RTC’s state-mandated 
planning, programming, and monitoring (PPM) activities. The RTC’s proposal for 
STIP funds is due to the California Transportation Commission (CTC) by December 
15, 2023. The CTC is expected to adopt final county share estimates in mid-August 
2023. 

Though the RTC is responsible for selecting projects to receive the region’s share of 
STIP funds, the CTC makes the final decision on whether projects are included in 
the STIP and in what year. It is not uncommon for the CTC to program only some 
projects and to shift projects to later years than requested. While the region’s 
target for the STIP is $8.6 million, the CTC is only required to make $5.7 million in 
STIP funds available for programming in this cycle (the county minimum). It seems 
that the CTC is working to make all regions “whole” in this cycle and will program to 
the County shares ($8.6 million for Santa Cruz County). If the RTC does not select 
projects for the full $8.6 million, it may be FY28/29 before the balance of the 
region’s STIP share would be made available, but it may give the RTC better 
flexibility to program funds to projects that do not receive funding from other 
sources (such as statewide competitions for SB1 or ATP funds) or for projects that 
are delayed and experience cost increases.  

For STIP funds, the CTC has indicated that it will prioritize funds to regions for the 
reprogramming of projects from the 2022 State Transportation Improvement Program 
(STIP). After those priorities, the CTC will consider new projects – with a focus on 
RTIP proposals that meet state highway improvement and intercity rail needs. The 
CTC is increasingly taking into account how effectively projects promote a variety of 
performance metrics, address climate readiness, and mitigate greenhouse gas 
emissions. Furthermore, the CTC has indicated that projects that increase vehicle 
miles traveled will need to provide justification and demonstrate other projects will 
reduce VMT.  

28-7



Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBG)/ Regional Surface 
Transportation Program Exchange (RSTPX)  

In addition to STIP funds, the RTC is responsible for selecting projects to receive 
approximately $4 million per year in federal Surface Transportation Block Grant 
Program (STBG) funds, which the region can annually trade for state Regional 
Surface Transportation Program Exchange (RSTPX) funds. The amount of these 
funds available to the region is determined based on California implementation of 
the federal transportation act. In addition to these funds, the County of Santa Cruz 
receives $224,813 of the region’s share of RSTPX funds directly each year, as set 
forth in state statute.  

Approximately $17.4 million in STBG/RSTPX is available for programming projects 
in Santa Cruz County through FY25/26. Staff recommends that the RTC select 
projects to receive these STBG/RSTPX funds as part of the consolidated 2024 RTIP 
Call for Projects. Unlike STIP funds, programming decisions for STBG/RSTPX funds 
are not subject to CTC approval.  

Notably, the RTC previously approved an interest-free loan of RSTPX funds to cover 
the cost of storm damage on the rail line until FEMA payments are received. If 
FEMA does not pay for all the storm damage, the loan will be repaid by Measure D 
instead. Initially staff anticipated that the loan would only be $1 million, however 
over $3 million remains outstanding. If the loan is not repaid to the RSTPX account 
prior to projects approved for RSTPX being ready to be implemented this could 
impact when funds are available for.  

SB 1 Local Partnership Formula Funds 

The RTC is responsible for selecting projects to receive a portion of the Local 
Partnership Program funds that are generated by Senate Bill 1 taxes and fees. The 
region’s shares of LPP funds are relatively small in comparison to the STIP and 
STBG/RSTPX programs. Rather than issuing a separate call for projects for those 
funds, staff recommend including them in the 2024 RTIP call for projects. Based on 
the CTC’s guidelines, LPP-funded projects are required to provide a 1-to-1 match of 
Measure D or other eligible local taxes and fees. The RTC’s proposal for FY23/24-
24/25 LPP formula funds is due to the CTC by April 30, 2026.  

Not included in 2023 call for projects 

Transit Funding 

In addition to STIP, RSTPX, and LPP funds, the RTC is responsible for programming 
various funds that are only available for transit projects, including State Transit 

28-8



Assistance (STA), Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP), TNC-Access for 
All, and STA-State of Good Repair (SGR) funds. The RTC previously decided to wait 
on issuing a call for projects for up to 25% of STA funds for another year. The 
recently approved State budget also provided two new formula funds for transit: 

1) $4 billion Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP). 
The funds will be distributed by population-based formula to RTPAs. Staff 
estimates that the RTC will receive $27 million for Santa Cruz County from 
this funding source. This new TIRCP investment will be funded by the General 
Fund and is expected to be permitted to be used for transit capital projects 
and operations. 

2) $1.1 billion Zero Emission Transit Capital Program (ZETCP). 
The funds will be distributed by population and revenue-based STA formulas 
to RTPA’s. The RTC can expect to receive $7-10 million for Santa Cruz 
County from this funding source. This program is funded from Cap & Trade 
revenues. 

Since updated guidelines for these transit funds are not yet available, staff does 
not recommend including the funds, which are only available for transit 
projects, in this consolidated call for projects.  

 

28-9



Attachment 2 

Draft Evaluation Criteria for RTC Call for Projects 

State and federal regulations require state departments of transportation 
(Caltrans), regions (RTC and AMBAG), and transit agencies to establish and 
advance projects that meet performance targets. A performance-based approach 
to transportation planning and programming aims to ensure the most efficient 
investment of transportation funds, support improved decision-making, and 
increase accountability and transparency. These include measures identified in the 
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP), 
California Transportation Asset Management Plan (TAMP), federal Infrastructure 
Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA), State Transportation Improvement Program 
(STIP) Guidelines, Climate Action Plan for Transportation Infrastructure (CAPTI), 
Caltrans Strategic Investment Strategy (CSIS), and other state and local plans.  

Project evaluation criteria are vital to the implementation of the Regional 
Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP). The following criteria will be used to 
evaluate projects to ensure they meet the objectives and policies outlined in the 
Regional Transportation Plan, including meeting state and federal guidelines, 
legislative requirements, and executive orders. The project evaluation scoring 
criteria are one factor in project selection. The responses for each category will 
receive a score based on the equally weighted scoring range (HIGH-3, MED-2, 
LOW-1, NO RESPONSE-0) and each project will receive a final evaluation score 
totaled across all categories. The lowest score for each project will be dropped 
from the overall project score. 

The following categories summarize federal, state, and regional performance 
measures, goals, and/or targets used to evaluate and prioritize projects. Examples 
of the types of information that could be included in the application to 
demonstrate how a project addresses the metric are provided as well.  

Safety and Collisions 

Objective: Reduce transportation related fatalities and serious injuries and 
maximize safety for all transportation users (reduce collisions; eliminate hazards) 

• Does the project have a history of collisions in the area? How will the
proposed safety measure reduce collisions or address hazards?

• What demonstrated countermeasures are incorporated into the project to
reduce collisions, especially fatalities and serious injuries?

• Does the project reduce the potential for conflict between bicyclists,
pedestrians and vehicles?

28-10



• Does the project improve safety for more vulnerable users (low income,
seniors, people living with disabilities, people of color, youth)

• Will the project reduce or prevent major mechanical failures for transit
vehicles?

• Does the project address perceived safety or security issues to encourage
increased transit ridership, biking, or walking (e.g., add lighting at bus
stops)

• Does the project fill a gap in the bicycle or pedestrian network within the
project area?

• Does the project eliminate hazards, such as trees in roadways, dips in roads,
or improve drainage?

• Does the project improve access to/for emergency services and emergency
evacuation routes?

System Preservation/Infrastructure Condition 

Objective: Maintain and improve the condition of transportation assets such as 
pavement, culverts, bridges, and public transit assets to maintain a state of good 
repair. 

Does the project: 

• Increase percentage of facilities in good condition?
• Reduce percentage of transit vehicles that have met or exceeded their useful

life benchmark?
• Extend useful life of a transportation facility or program?
• Maintain facilities in a state of good repair?
• Incorporate sustainable pavement practices?

System Performance 

Objective: Improve the efficiency of the surface transportation system; improve 
the national freight network, strengthen the ability of rural communities to access 
national and international trade markets, support regional economic development; 
reduce congestion; enhance the performance of the transportation system while 
protecting and enhancing the natural environment. 

• Reduce emissions, air pollution, greenhouse gas emissions, and/or fuel
consumption. 

• Reduce number of vehicle miles traveled (VMT): Reduce number or distance
of trips; reduce percent of single-occupancy vehicle travel.

• Mode Shift: Shift automobile travel to alternative modes and increase the
percentage of trips made via bicycling, walking, transit or carpool; increase
telecommuting; coordinate land-use, housing, and transportation policies to
reduce need for travel.

28-11



• System Reliability: Improve reliability and efficiency of the multimodal
transportation system: reduce variability in travel times, especially during
peak travel periods day-to-day and for transit.

• Reduce travel delays, especially during peak hours; reduce annual hours of
excessive delay per capita.

• Reduce transit travel times.
• Connect multiple jurisdictions – e.g., arterials linking cities and

unincorporated towns/population centers.
• Improve freight and goods movement efficiency: Increase freight throughput

on existing facilities or services. 

Access for All 

Objective: Expand affordable and convenient multi-modal travel options and 
choices, especially to and within key destinations for all users. 

• Address transportation needs of people with limited mobility.
• Increase walking (add new sidewalks, crosswalks, minimize obstacles)
• Increase bicycling (add bicycle lanes/paths, fill gaps in network, add bicycle

box at intersection).
• Increase public transit access or quality of transit rider experience.
• Fill gap in complete streets network and increase network connectivity by

closing gaps in the bike, sidewalk, and transit networks. Indicate if there are
no alternate routes.

• Expand bicycle and pedestrian network across physical barriers such as
creeks, freeways, and private property.

• Provide education and encouragement.

Public Health and Equity 

Objective: Enhance healthy, safe access to key destinations for transportation-
disadvantaged populations and avoid new negative impacts to historically 
disadvantaged communities. 

• Improves public health: The project targets health issues such as obesity,
physical inactivity, asthma, or other health issues.

• Reduce disparities in safety and access for people who are transportation
disadvantaged due to age, income, disability, language or race/ethnicity.

• Serves transportation disadvantaged populations and avoids substantial
burdens on a disadvantaged community.

Climate Change and Resiliency 

Objective: Fund projects that will not increase greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions or 
vehicle miles traveled (VMT) per capita. 

28-12



Additional Considerations in Project Evaluation 

RTP Consistency: Is the project included in the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 
Project List, which implements the SB375-mandated Sustainable Communities 
Strategy (SCS)? 

Consistency with Complete Streets: Consistency with Complete Streets guidelines 
and policies, including the Monterey Bay Area Completes Streets Guidebook,  the 
California Complete Streets Act (AB1358-2008), and state, city or county 
Complete Streets policies. 

• Consideration of possible complete streets components appropriate for
different street types

• Integration of complete streets elements into road projects

Consistency With Other Plans: Is the project consistent with other regional and/or 
local plans, such as the plans listed below? 

• Active Transportation Plans, Complete Streets Plans, Safe Routes to Schools
Plans

• Transit asset management, Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan
(PTASP) and other transit plans

• General Plans
• Capital Improvement Programs
• Unmet Transit Needs
• Vision Zero/zero traffic fatalities, local roadway safety plans
• Unified Corridor Investment Study (UCS)
• Local Roadway Safety Plans
• Safe Streets for All Plan

Public Engagement: Does the project provide early and ongoing opportunities for 
meaningful public participation for all users? 

• Describe how the project was identified as a community priority.
• List any public outreach that has already occurred.
• Participation from diverse and historically underrepresented members of the

public in project planning
• Describe any planned outreach that will occur during project planning and/or

implementation (e.g., outreach to stakeholder groups, advisory committees,
other jurisdictions/agencies, transit, environmental groups, seniors, etc.;
surveys, open houses)

Scale of Benefits: How many people could potentially benefit from this project? 
What are the number of anticipated users for the facility, service, or program 
(e.g., number of cars, transit riders, bicyclists and/or pedestrians)? 

28-13

https://sccrtc.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/08/final-2013-complete-streets-guidebook.pdf


Data to support these estimates may include:  

• Traffic volumes, transit ridership, bicycle and pedestrian counts if available,
etc.

• Work plan for a program and targeted number of people to use program.
• Destinations served by a project (e.g., employment center, transit center,

retail/commercial area, visitor destination, school)
• Modeling information for future use, if available

Potential Risks: Describe the efforts undertaken to minimize risk to project 
implementation. 

• Funding: Is the project or would the project be fully funded? What other
funding has been secured for the project? What are potential funding
sources available for the project if there are unanticipated cost increases.
Are there financing options to advance?

• Schedule: How quickly can the project be implemented to provide benefits to
the community? Are there any potential risks to the project schedule?

• Deliverability: What is the ability of the agency to complete the project on
schedule? Performance on past grant applications? Timing of other projects?
Is there an ability to consolidate projects, even if one project might
otherwise be constructed several years later) - Ex. Timed utility upgrades,
new development, etc.

• Environmental Risks: What are the risks associated with current and future
environmental conditions such as climate change, extreme weather, and
seismic activity?

• Other: Are there any other potentials risks that could delay the project?
Describe any possible financial, operational/asset, strategic/organizational
compliance, political, other risks.

https://rtcsc.sharepoint.com/sites/programming/shared documents/2023-next-rtip/staffreports/23-08 att 1 
evaluation criteria.docx 

28-14


	RTC Agenda 08-03-2023
	5. Minutes RTC 06-01-2023
	6. Minutes E&DTAC 06-13-2023
	7. Minutes ITAC 06-15-2023
	8. State & Federal Legislative Updates
	8.1 Bill Summary

	9. TNC Access Provider - Community Bridges
	9.1 Resolution

	10. SLV Schools Access Final Report
	11. Work Plan 2050 Regional Transportation Plan
	11.1 2050 RTP Work Plan
	11.2 2050 RTP Schedule

	12. Reject Bid - Debris Removal & Erosion Repair
	12.1 Bid Summary

	13. TDA Revenues June & July
	14. Measure D Revenues June & July
	15. Budget & Work Program Amendments
	15.1 Resolution
	15.1.a FY22-23 Amendment
	15.1.b FY23-24 Amendment


	16. Measure D Annual Report
	16.1 FY21/22 Measure D Annual Report (English)
	16.2 FY21/22 Reporte Anual (Spanish)

	17. Monthly Meeting Schedule
	18. Correspondence Log
	19. Letter to CCCE Re: Bike Voucher Program
	23. Caltrans Report
	25. Public Hearing: Public Participation Plan 
	25.1 Draft 2023 Public Participation Plan
	25.2 SCCRTC Participation Plan Practices

	27. Zero Emission Passenger Rail & Trail Project
	27.1 Resolution - TIRCP Funding Agreement
	27.1.a Draft Master Agreement

	27.2 Resolution - Draft Contract - HDR
	27.2.a Drafts Arch & Eng Contract


	28. Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) - Call for Projects
	28.1 Funding Programs
	28.2 Evaluation Criteria





